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Full year highlights:

- Attributable gold production of 626,212
ounces and total cash costs of US$949
per ounce soid

Revenue of US$1,087 million

Continued progress on the Bulyanhulu
CIL Expansion and Upper East Expansion,
our key brownfield projects at Bulyanhulu

Renewal of the North Mara Special
Mining Licences

Operationai Review initiated to drive
Improved returns and free cash flow
generation from the existing asset base

Total dividend for 2012 of U$16.3
cents per share

EBITDA of

US$331 million

New country entry into

Kenya

Net cash balance of

US$401 million

Final dividend of

us¢e12.3

Total community Average realised gold

investment of price of
US$14.4 million US$1,668
per ounce

‘These lughhghts include Non-IFRS performance measures An explanaton of Non IFRS measures1s provided as part of the glossary Attributable gold production reflect; equity ounces

which exclude 30% of Tulawakas production base

Forward-looking statements

This report includes forward loakang statements that express or tmply expectations of
future events ot results Forward lookung statements are statements that are not historscal
facts These staternents mclude, without imizhion finanaal projecuons and estimates
and their underlying assumplions, statements regarding plans, objectives and
expectations with respect to future produchion, operabions costs, products and services,
and statements regarding hature performance Forward-loclang statements are generally
wdentified by the wards plans, expects’ ‘anticapates’ believes, “intends; ‘estimates’ and other
symilar expressions

All forwend looking st lve a ber of risks, uncertainties and other factors
Although ABGs management believes that the expectatinns reflected tn such forward-
looking statements are reasanahle, investors are cautioned that forward locking information
and stitements are subject 1o vanous nsks and uncertanties, many of which are duffieult

to predict and generally beyond the coniral of ABG, that could cause actoal results and
developments to differ matenally fram those exprossedin or implied or projected by, the
forward looking infor and stat contamned in this report. Factars that could
cause or contnbute to differences between the actual results perlormance and achievetments
of ABG include, but are not limuted to. poliical. economic and business condinons,

industry lrends, competibion, commodity prices, changes tn regulation currency fluctuatons
(including the US dollar, South African rand and Tanzanan shilling exchange rates),

ABG s abality to recover its reserves or develop new reserves, induding s ability to convert
s resinrcs st reserves aned bs mincral polenbal o resources or reserves, and o londy
and successfully process its mineral reserves, nsks of trespass, theft and vandalism changes
m its business strategy, as well as nsks and hazards associated with Lhe busmmess of mineral
exploratien development, mming and production Accordingly, investors should not place
reliance on forward looking statements contained tn this report.

The forward looking staternents in thus report reflect information avalahle at the tme

of prepanng ths report Subject to the requirements of the Disclasure and Transparency
Rules and the Listing Rules or applicable law ABG explicily disclaims any obitgation or
undertakang publicly to release the result of any revisions to any forward looking statements
11t this report that may occur due to any change in ABG' expectations or reflect events or
arcumstences after the date of this repart No staternents made 1n this report regarding,
etpectations of fiture profits are profit forecasts or esimates, and no statements made i
thns repart should be interpreted to meqn that ABG's profits or esrnimgs per share tor any
future period wall necessanty match or exceed the hustarical published profits or eaznings
per share of ABG or any other Jevel.




ABG is Tanzania’s largest gold
producer and one of the five largest
gold producers in Africa. We have
four producing mines, all located in
Northwest Tanzania, and several
exploration projects at various stages
of development in Tanzania and
Kenya. With a high-quality asset base
and solid growth opportunities we are

exectuting a clear strategy to optimise,

expand and grow our business.

ABG 1s a UK public company with its headquarters
tn London We are listed on the Main Market of
the London Stock Exchange under the symbol ABG
and have a secondary listing on the Dar es Salaam
Stock Exchange also under the symbol ABG
Historically and prior to our initial public offering
(IPO), our operations comprised the Tanzanian
gold mining business of Barrick Gold Corporation
(Barrick), our majonty shareholder

ABG reports in US dollars (US$) and 1n accordance
with IFRS as adopted by the European Union,
unless otherwise stated in this report

ﬂ More wiformation withun thus report

Gu onhine o iind more mfurmation www afncanbarnckgold com
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10 accordince with section 417 of the Compames Act 2006
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Group at a glance

A single focus

: Gold in Africa

Where we operate
Currentty, all of ABG’s mining operations

are 1n Tanzama We believe that Tanzanma

possesses significant mining potential Critically, it has an established lega! and
regutatory framework for mining companies and a history of political stability

and democratically elected governments

Corporate headquarters,

London, UK

Qur office 1n London serves as ABGs
corporate headquarters and s the base
for ABGs Executive Drrectors and other
members of the Semor Leaderstup Team,
including the General Counsel and the
Head of Corporate Development and
Investor Relations

Country office, Operatons office,

Dar es Salaam, Tanzania Johannesburg, South Africa

Our office 1n Dar es Salaam serves as the Our Johannesburg office 1s the regronal
primary nterface with the government, base for capital projects, planmng, technical
1n addition to being the logistical base in services and admimstrative, finance, human
Tanzania, which provides in-country support  resources and procurement functions for

to our operations. Other functions located our operations

n this office include commumty relations,
legal and communications

Bulyanhulu

Bulyanhuhu ts a high grade underground mune
primarily accessed by a vertical shaft The mine
15 2 trackless operation using long-hole as s
principal mining method, with ahmak,
conventtonal cut and fill and dnft and fill the
other pnmary mumng methods The process
plant currently has the capacity to process

an average of approxirately 3,300 tonnes of
ore per day (approumately 1 1 mulhon tonnes
per yedr) and produces both doré and copper/
gold concentrate

Bulyanhulu’s life of mune 15 currently estimated
to be over 25 years, based on 1ts proven and
probable gold reserves of 10,564,000 ounces.

u More information on page 24

2 wwwafncanbarnckgold.com

Buzwagi

Buzwags 15 a low grade bulk deposit with a single
large ypen pit The mull 15 designed wath a

throughput capacity of 12,000 tonnes per day
(approximately 4 4 milhon tonnes per year) and
produces both doré and cupper/guld concentrate

Buzwagy's ife of mine 1s currently estimated
to be over 10 years, based on 1ts proven and
probable gold reserves of 2,697,000 ounces

H More information on page 25

North Mara

North Mara 1s a lugh grade open pit mine
consisting of three apen pit deposits Nyabwarma,
Gokona and Nyabigena. The process plant has
the capacity to process an average of 8,000
tonnes per day (or approximately 2 8 mullion
tonnes per year) and produces doré.

North Mara’s life of mine 15 estimated to be over
10 years based on its proven and probable gold
reserves of 3,012,000 ounces

More information on page 26




Tulawaka (70%)

Tulawaka consists of a completed open pit with
an underground access ramp located at the
bottom of the pit All caputal and operating costs
assocuated wath the Tulawaka mine and net cash
generated by the mine are divided on a 70-30
basis between ABG and MDN in¢ The process
plant started to operate using batch processing
during 2012 and produces doré

Tulawaka has proven and probable gold reserves
of 16,000 ounces and 1s expected to close in 2013

n More information on page 27

Tanzania exploration

ABG’s Tanzanan exploration programme
focuses pnmarily on advancing our organic
growth projects 1n and around our existing
operations, as well as advanang important

regional exploration programmes at North Mara
and Nyuanzaga, our pnmary greentield projectin

Tanzama Core brownfield exploration projects
mclude the Bulyanhulu CIL Expansion,
Bulyanhulu Upper East Expansion, Gokona
Expansion and Nyabirama Expansion Where
practicable, we also explore opporturities to
develop satellite pold deposits, such as Golden
Rudge, to increase production at our

exsung operations

H More information on page 28

Kenya exploration

Through vanous joint venture arrangements,

ABG holds an 1nterest 1n a number of
exploration licences over a land package in
excess of 2,800km? of the hughly prospective
Ndon Greenstone Belt in West Kenya. The
licences contain multiple large-scale gold
anomalies in areas of historic colonial mines
and prospects Sporadic hustone and current
exploration activities have identthed a large
number of targets that justify extensive
follow-up ABG intends to implement a
systernanic and focused gold exploration

programme m 2013 and beyond to explore
these oppurlumues

H More information on page 32
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Performance highhghts

Measuring our performance

With a high-quality asset base and solid growth opportumties we are executing a clear strategy of

OPTIMISING

our operating efhiciencies to optimise production

from our existing asset base

EXPANDING

through near mine expansion and
development of advanced-stage projects

EBITDA* CASH COST PER CASH COST PER GROSS PROFIT ADJUSTED NET ATTRIBUTABLE.
(LIS$ 00D) OUNCE SOLDY TONNE MILLED* (1SS 000) EARNINGS GOLD PRODUCTION?
(US$/02) __ (USS/tonne) - PER SHARE* __ {02) -
(USt/share)
1 ;| I |12 w0 [ 11 10 n B 10|11 jia2
US$330,869 US$949/0: US$75/tome US$284,630  US25.7wms/see 626,2120:

KPIs and relevance to strategy

EBITDA 15 the net profit or loss for the period
excluding. income tax expense, finance expense,
finance ncorne, depreciation and amortisation,
and impawrment charges of goodwill and other
long-lived assets. It 1s a valuable indicator of our
dbility Lo generate vperating cash flow o fund
workang capital and capital expenditures and to
service debt obligations

Cash cost per ounce sold is calculated by
drnding the aggregate of cash costs by attnbuted
gold ounces sold. It s one of the key indicators
that we use ta morutar and manage those factors
that impact production costs on a monthly basis

Performance

Cash cost per tonne milled is calculated by
dividing the aggregate of cash costs by attributed
ore tonnes mulled. We use it to track cash costs

agamnst productivity

Gross profit 1s calculated by takung our
revenue and deducting cost of sales [t 1s used
ta help manutor costs associated with gold
production and gold sales and our ability te
manage such costs [t 15 also used to calculate
gross profit margin

Adjusted net earrungs per share is
calculated by dnviding adjusted net earnings

by the weighted average number of Ordinary
Shares 1n 1ssue. It serves as an indicator of our
profitability and 15 often used to determine share
price and value

Attributable gold production is the
aggregate of the Group's equity mnterest in gold
ounces produced from its rnes and one of the
key measures used to track progress made 1n
mcreasing our production levels

+ EBITDA was U$5§331 mulhon, a 39% decrease
on 2011, driven by lower revenue and
increases mn direct mumng costs

+ Cash cost per ounce sold increased to US$949
per ounce sold, 37% hugher than 2011, as
aresult of lower producuon and mcreased
direct muning costs

« Cash cost per tonne mulled increased to
US$75 per tonne, a 15% 1ncrease on 2011,
due to the same factors as those related to
the increase 1in cash cost per ounce sold

+ Gross profd was Ub$285 milhon, a 45%
decrease on 2011, as a result of lower
revenue, increased direct miming costs
and increascd depreciation

+ Adjusted net earnings per share amounted
to US25 7 cents, down from US67 0 cents
n 2011

Attributable gold production was 626,212
ounces, 9% below 2011 production, due to the
lower grade mtned at three of our operations
when compared to 2011

1 EBITDA, cash cost pex ounce sold, cash cost per tenne mulled, adjusted net earnings per share and operating cath flow per share are non-TFRS finangal performance measures with no
standard meamng under IFRS. Reter to Non-IFRS meastres provided as part of the glossary for the full defimtions of each measure

4 wwwaineanbarmckgold com




GROWING

through organic greenfield growth

and acquisitions n Africa

RESPONSIBLE MINING

by maintaimng our hicence to operate through acting responsibly
In relation to our people, the environment and the communrties
In which we operate 1s central to achieving our objectives

OPERATING CASH TOTAL TOTAL RESERVES TOTAL COMMUNITY  TOTAL REPORTABLE
FLOW PER SHARE*  SHAREHOLDER AND RESOURCES INVESTMENT INJURY FREQUENCY
(Us¢/share) RETURN (TSR) (Moz) o {Us$ 00D) RATE
(%) ‘—‘ _| ’_l (frequency rate)
o
| —
W1 )12 w |1 1z el )12 11 j{12
U862.9c>enls/5hare -124% 320 Moz US$14,440 0 83
Operating cash flow per share ~ Total reserves and Total community mvestment  Total reportable ipjury

15 the cash generated from, or
utilised 1n, operating activities,
drvided by the weighted average of
the number of Ordmary Shares in
wssue It helps to measure our ability
to generate cash from our business

Total shareholder return is the
return on invesiment a shareholder
recewves aver a speaified time
frame based on our share price
appreciatton/depreciation and
drvidends recerved. It 15 used to
compare our performance against
industry peers

resoUrces is calculated as the total
of proven and probable reserves,
plus measured, indicated and
inferred resources expressed n
contamed ounces It measures our
ability to discover and develop new
ore bodies and to replace and extend
the hfe of vur vperatng rames

represents the amount of money
that we mvest across our corporate
social responsibality programmes,
including investments made under
various rmine site and regronal
intdlives, spealfic projecds
sponsored by the ABG Maendeleo
Fund and mvestments under
VBIAs/VBAs It helps us to track
progress made as regards our
chjective to support socio-
economic development in our
operating environment.

frequency rate (TRIFR) tracks all
employee and contractor reported
workplace injuries that requure
medical treatment, including lost
tune and restncted duty We use it
to measure progress towards our
health and safety goal of ensuning
that every employee goes home
safe and healthy every day It s
calculated as total reportable injures
multiphed by 200,000 then divided
by total number of hours worked

+ Operating cash flow per share was US62 9 cents, down 48% on 2011,

as aresult of decreased revenue

« Total sharcholder return n 2012 was -1 24%, due to the decrease in

our share price aver the year

« Total reserves and resources increased to 32 million ounces of gold,
an approximate 500 thousand ounce mncrease an 2011, as a result of
continued progress across exploration dnll programmes

2 Production reflects equity ounces which exclude 30% of Tulawakas production base

« Total community investment was US$ 14 4 mithon, approximately 95%
hugher than 1n 2011, as a result of our enhanced communuty investment
programme and the introduction of the ABG Maendeleo Fund

= TRIFR for the year was 0 83, 2 30% improvement on 2011, as a result
uof continuous improvemnent 10 our health and safety pracuces
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Chairman’s statement

Navigating through challenges

Dear Shareholders,

The past year has been a period of change and readjustment for the Board
and ABG as a whole While the financial and operaung results for the year
were disapponting, the Board has approved a number of imitatives which
should positively influence future performance

‘The year’s must notable event was the decision by Barnck tu seek a
purchdser for 1ts shareholding in the Company [hus process, and the
assuaated due dibgence, diverted a significant amount of Board and
senior mandgement bme and also impacted relations with the Tanzanian
government and local commumities Although the sale process was
ultimately unsuccessful there were several positive outcomes In particular,
the intense due diligence process and associated learmng have been
incorporated into several mitiatives which were underway prior to the
Offer Pertod as part of 4 major review of the Company’s structure and
costs, culminating in the Board’s request for managernent to perform an
Operational Review The key objectives of this are to drive improved
retuns from the asset base and enhance the certainty of performance
delivery 1n the future

On the operations front, whulst we fell short of production targets for
the year as a result of challenges faced in our operating emvarontment,
nevertheless we progressed certain key objectives

Throughout the year we increased our focus on upgrading the production
potential at Bulyanhuhu, with the advancement of the Bulyanhulu CIL
Expansion project that will add a further 40-50 thousand ounces to annual
production, as well as progressing plans for the development of the Upper
East Zone, which has the potential to add a further 90 thousand ounces of
production per annum Though the poor performance at the end of the year
assoaated with the paste backfill system and a loss of quahfied personnel
1n the face of proposed pension legislation changes was disappointing, we
are undertaking a number of actions to prevent a repeat of thus and to
progress this world class asset generally

6 wwwsfncenbarnckgaold.com

Derek Pannell,
Acting Chawrman of the Board

New projects such as Buzwag tymeally take some five years to consmistently
reach full nameplate capacity, so 1t was graufying to see this mme really
perform in the last quarter of the year after months of suffering regular
power interruptions and lower recoveries

North Mara expenenced certain sethacks in its commurnuty engagement
programme dunng the prolonged Offer Period, but at the end of the year
and begmning of 2013, with strong support from lecal authorities, the
situation improved markedly, allowing these programmes to regain
tracton In thus context, ABG 1s developing a mult-pronged social
programme to improve the balance between the ilegal miners, the local
communities and the operating constraints of the mune In future, this
will be a key factor in determuning the success of the mine, the creation
of commumty wealth and associated stable employment and unproved
local infrastructure

Our efforts to add mearngful reserves to Tulawaka dunng the year were
unsuccessful and as a result of thus we have taken the decision to phase out
this operation 1 2013

Lastly, from a growth perspective, we have conttnued to make good
progress across our brownfield exploration programme and made
sigmficant additions to our greenfield projects through the acqusition
of Aviva Miming (Kenya) Limited Not only does this provide significant
addittons to our exploration pipehine, 1t also provides the opporturuty
to dwversify both ABG' geographical and political exposure




Final dividend for 2012

While our operational and financial performance 1n 2012 has been lower
than the previous year, we recogruse the importance of rewarding ongowng,
support from our shareholder base For this reason, the Board has
recommended that the total dividend for 2012 be maimntained at the 2011
level, comprising a final drvidend of US12 3 cents per share, such that the
total dividend payable 1n respect of 201215 US16 3 cents per share

Board composition

We saw a number of further changes to the Board through the year with
Aaron Regent and James Cross retiring as Non-Executive Directors and
Kelvin Dushnusky, Senior Executive Vice President, and Rick McCreary,
Semor Vice Prestdent, Corporate Development, Joining as Barrick
norminee Non-Executive Directors mid-year

Foltowing the expury of the Offer Petiad to which ABG was subject dunng
the latter half of the year, the Company 1s now 1n a position to review
Board composition generally in order to buld on the strengths and calibre
of our existing Board members [n this regard, for a variety of personal
reasons 1 have, afier three years with ABG, deaded not to stand fur
re-clection as a Director at the forthcorming AGM and therefore will also
step down as Acting Chairman [ would like to thank my fellow Directors
and ABG management for therr support and friendstup dunng my time
with ABG Mr Dushrusky will succeed me as Chairman to lead the Board
and I arm confident that he wall provide strong leadership going forward.

Outlook

Looking forward to 2013, ABG will contmue to ook to optumise its
portioho and drive returns for all stakeholders through the implementation
of the Operational Review Undoubtedly the year will bring new
challenges, but I am confident that the Company will meet any such
challenges head on Fimally, on behalf of the Board I extend my gratitude
to alf of our employees for their hard work and commitment over the past
12 months

7,01

Deerek Pannell,
Acting Charrman of the Board

INDUSTRY GOLD PRODUCTION
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Total dividend {US¢)

U816.3 cents

Revenues (USSm)

uss1,087

Attributable gold
production (02)

626,212
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Chief Executive Qfficer’s statement

Focused on improving returns

“Cash flow generation and improving returns
from our assets form a key part of our
Operational Review and we will update on our
progress throughout the course of 2013, We
have maintained the 2012 dividend at the 2011
level, reflecting our confidence in the business
and our commutment to shareholder returns.”

Greg Hawkens,
Chief Executsve Otheer
ffgm”‘ ALLOCATION Overall for ABG, 2012 was a year where we realised good progress in
several areas but where we did not meet our core production and cost
20 targets. We continued to invest i the ongoimng stabihity of the busimess and
our hicence to operate This was rewarded with increasing consistency
300 m the operational performance at Buzwag; as the year progressed, and
umprovements tn the grade profile at North Mara where we also received
260 confirmation of the renewal of our mumng hcences and signed the Village

Benefit Implementation Agreements Overall, our muning rates for the
///// year tncreased, we processed 4% more tonnes through our plants and
109 we improved the recovery profile of our operations despite the expected
decrease 1n grade We also sigruficantly enhanced our early stage
o exploration portfolio with the acquisitson of Aviva Munng (Kenya)
FY2010 FY2011 EY2012 Lunuted ("AMKIL"}

1 Dwcend payments 8l Explomation spend B Acquistion spend

Our Group production for the year was 9% lower than 2011, with the
grade driven increase at North Mara offset by dechines of scrmlar levels

at our other three operatons Bulyanhuly was impacted by paste fill and
equipment avalability issues together with the loss of skalled employees
due to proposed government pension law changes, Buzwag) saw an
expected reduction 1n grade to around its reserve grade although it did
henefit from improved plant performance later in the year, and Tulawaka
operated under batch processing following the exhaustion of surface
stockpiles These lower production levels, tagether wath agher energy and
maintenance expenses, resulted in our cash costs for the year reachung
US$949 per ounce sold. As we move into 2013, we start from a strong
platform with a net cash position of US$401 million, but we nonetheless
need to strengthen our focus on reducing costs n order to ensure the
business can delver attracuve levels of free cash flow generation. This will
form a key part of our ongoing Operattonal Review

8 www.alncanburickgold com




Beyond the day to day operational challenges of our business, for a large
part of the second half of the year we also dealt wath several additional
factors resulung from the discussions between Barrick and Chuna National
Gold with respect to Barnck’s majonity stake in ABG These included a
detailed due diligence process and site visits as well as other factors such
as dealing with the uncertanty caused among our employees and also the
communties 11 which we operate We implemented a range of measures
to deal with these addihional challenges and were largely successful in
limiting the disruption to our business With the discussions now
terminated, we need to ensure everyone tn the business remains focused
un debivering the sigmificant putential of our asset base

Our share price performance in 2012 was set against a backdrop of
continung underperformance by gold equties relative to the underlying
commodity The key focus from investars has centred on the lack of free
cash flow [everage in the industry to the gold price, etther through rising
operattonal costs or increasing investment in new projects which do

not meet hurdle return rates In the three years since ABG listed as an
tndependent company we have been successful in generating substantial
free cash flow and have muntained the view that capital returns to
shareholders are of criucal importance with the proposed final dindend
for 2012, we will have returned in excess of US$150 milhon to shareholders
over that penod and have also invested in two early stage projects which
we believe have the potential to deliver significant long-term value to the
business Nonetheless, during 2012 the increases 1n our operating expenses
and in the level of capital we mnvested 1n our assets meant that the business
consumed capital, which 15 not sustainable over the longer term As such,
the Board of ABG has asked management to conduct a full Operational
Review of the business with the aim of recalibrating our operations so as to
drrve improved returns from the asset base whilst enhancing the certamty
of delivery ‘The review cormnmenced in January 2013

Maore recently, Kevin Jenmings, our Cheef Financial Officer, has given
nolsce that he intends to leave ABG in order to take up a sumular role at
another mining company Whalst we are naturally disappointed to see
Kevin leave us, we understand his wish to pursue thus new opporturuty
and wish burn the very best for his new venture

Operating performance

Atan mdnidual mine level, Bulyanhulu remained our largest producing
asset and 1s set to remain so with the exisung mune plan and the growth
projects being advanced. In 2012, production was 10% lower than 1n 2011
as we expertenced power supply 1ssues earlier in the year which impacted
on hoisting capacity, whale later tn the year the delwvery of ore to surface
was reduced by a lack of paste fill availabihty which led to increased rebance
on lower grade stopes and a shortage of skilled personnel resulting from
resignations n the face of proposed changes to pension fund legislation m
lanzanta. We have several runatives in place to deal with these short-term
factors 1n order for Bulyanhulu to get back to its expected run rate as

2013 progresses

At North Mara, 1t was pleasing to see the expected increase 1n production
levels on the prior year as we accessed the hugher prade zones in the
Gokona piin the second half of the year Ihus reduced the reliance un
lower grade stockpiles to provide feed to the mull and led to increased head
grade and a 13% wncrease in production compared to 2011 Operations
saw some unpact from an increase in illegal mining activity during the
second half of the year but this has now subsided and returned to more
normahised levels Production during 2012 was from the Gokona and
Nyabigena pits, with operations at the Nyabirama pit subject to the
necessary land acquisitrons and relocations which are a key focus for mine
management 1n 2013

At Buzwagy, signuficant progress was made across both miming and
processing activities during the year Production was 16% below the level
of 2011, a result of the expected 309 decline 1n grade as the mine operated
at close to s reserve grade This impact was shightly offset by operational
improvements, with a 33% increase in total tonnes nuned, which includes
a 19% increase 1n ore tonnes, and a throughput increase of 24% Site
management are now firmly focused on ensunng these improvements

are maintained during 2013

At Tulawaka, the processing plant operated on batch rmilling due to the
lack of sutficient ore to vun 1t full ume, which was a consequence of relying
on underground material during 2012 As a result, throughput was down
substantially on 2011 with a corresponding fall in production levels We
have successfully extended the hfe of this operation consistently in the last
three years, however, as a part of the Operational Review we have taken
the decision not to further extend the muine life and to phase out the
operation in 2013 We are currently starting to implemnent our closure plan
for the operation and will engage with our employees as we move through
this process As a result of this, and in combmation with the downward
revision of reserves, we have incurred a non-cash tmparment charge at
the mine of US$44.5 muflion for 2012

Growth projects

We have continued to make very good progress on our growth projects
over the year we are progressing the constructton of the Bulyanhulu CIL
Expansion project, and the Board has approved the ordenng of certamn
long iead ttems requared for the acceleration of mining at the Upper East
Expangion project at Bulyanhutu These two projects will add meamngful
long-term production to our core operating asseL
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Chief Executive Qfficer’s statement confinued

Key challenges
and mutigants Challenges Mitigants
Power supply ) + Unreltable grid power + Optimusing use of back-up power
+ Ongomng review of alternative sources for
power generation
Secu rity, trespass ) « Tnadences of trespass, theft, corruption « Upgrading secunty infrastructure

and vandalism and vandalism at operations « Development of secunty personnel
» Progressing dialogue on law and order
Commumty relations ) « Operatronal and reputational impact of + Continue to bwld on existing community
legacy 1ssues as a result of prior management relationshups
of relations wath local communities . ABG Maendeleo Fund
» Development of social management plans
Land acquisition ) « Impact of land acquisition cost and delays in » Engagement with local and central government
completing such acquusitions on current mumng to address land speculation
activities, particularly at North Mara
Developmg commercial ) « Challenge of developing and retavung « Conhinumg mvestment in tramng and development
muning industry a sklled workforce « Continued progression of programmes for

workforce localisation

On our greenfield exploration portfolio we continued to increase the size
of the Nyanzaga resource, which now has an in-pst resource of over 4 §
maulhon ounces ("Moz”) of gold (“Au”) consisung of 3 75 Moz at 1 42 g/t
Au Indhcated and 0 85 Moz at 1 81 g/t Au Inferred We are currenily
finabising the pre-feasibibity study and expect to take a decision on whether
to progress to a full feasibility study by the middle of the year

We alse acquared an interest n over 2,800 square kilometres of under
explored, hughly prospective licence areas i Kenya for an imtsal
consideration of US$22 mulhon, including exploration funding. The
licences add more than 20 existing targets from grassroots through to the
drill testing stage into the exploration and development pipeline and will
be the focus for a ssgruficant proportion of our exploration budget in 2013

Dniling at North Mara has continued to hughhight the potentsal for
underground development at both the Gokona and Nyabirama pits and
we dare undertaking the technical trade-off analysis in order to establish
how best to sequence the underground potential with the existing open pit
operattons tn order to maximuse the lfe of mine return from the mine

Government relations

Notwithstanding the acqusition of AMKL in 2012, the majonity of our
asscts and our cash flow remain i Tanzama Dunng 2012, we conunucd
to bunld on the constructive dialoguc we cnjoy with the Tanzaman
government as our operations delivered ssgmficant benefits and value to
our host communities The deasion to voluntarily move to a royalty rate
of 4% from 3% was one that ABG instigated but 1t was also recogmtion of
the improved level of cooperation we saw from the Tanzanian authorttres
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as we solved a range of taxation, permutting and hicensing 1ssues, some
of which dated from several years back.

As we move into 2013 there remans much to be done and 1t 15 vital we
enjoy the ongong support of the government in these areas Across our
asset base, the lack of avarlability of reliable power 13 a key 1ssue for us and
one whuch 1s receving attention at the hughest levels within the Tanzanian
government, and we look forward to the government delivering on its
nitiateves to alleviate thas 1ssue. At North Mara, we have seen good
support over the last few months in relation to improving law and order
but need to resolve a number of land access 1ssues to ensure we have the
appropriate footprint for our operations and we look forward to the
government’s support m achieving this Elsewhere, we are encouraging the
government to help resolve the penston fund 1ssue whuch has impacted
our workforce From a taxation perspective, we are working closely with
the appropriate authorties to ensure we munumse the level of workang
capital tied up in indirect tax payments which are recoverable under the
terms of our Mineral Development Agreements

Licence to operate

From an operational perspective, ABG has a hugh quality and well
mvested portfolio of assets which positons us strongly for the long term
However, without the accompanying licence to operate and a stable
workang relationshup with all stakehelders, the quahity of our assets could
be sgnificantly impacted For this reason, the achievements we have made
with the government and with our host communutzes on 1ssues relating to
uur uperating emaronment dre of key importance We have benefiied from
a full year of operation of the ABG Maendeleo Fund whach has supported
a range of projects across our operations throughout the year



In terms of the indnvidual operations, the key challenges are centred on
North Mara and we have made significant progress in 2012 in order to
secure the long-term future of the mine In addition to the signing of
VBIAs wath the local commumties, we have invested 39% of the ABG
Maendeleo Fund's annual expenditure towards new infrastructure around
North Mara, including rehabiitating the local health chinuc, the provision
of clean water and the launch of a major school desk programme

We were also pleased to recesve the renewal of the specsal mining licences
(“SMLs") at North Mara The renewals are ont the same terms and
conditions as the previous licences and are both for a period of 15 years
The onginal SMLs were 1ssued in February 2000 and had expired in
September 2011, simce whach time the mune continued to operate on the
same basis due to the rollover provisions contained 1n the Tenzanran
Mimng Act

The life of mmne footprint contimues to be a challenge at North Mara

as land acquisttion 1s increasingly expensive due to the tugh levels of
speculation This has led to the ongoing suspension of aperatons in the
Nyabirama pit. We are engaging wath local and central government 1n
order to find a solution During the year we received waste rock perrnits
necessary for the immediate operations of the site and we contimze to
apply for permits to meet ongoing requirements

We continue to work with the relevant authorites to progress the hfting of
the Environmental Protection Order at North Mara in order to be able to
discharge water NEMC, the environmental regulator, has recently visited
the operation for a final review and we are now awating their approval

Outlook

ABG enters 2013 with a ugh-quahty portfolio of assets and sigmficant
financial strength as a result of our net cash positon of over US$400
million However, we did not generate acceptable returns from the
business 1n 2012 and with the producuon level forecast for this year we
need to rmmplement efhiciencies in our operating cost base as well as
applying capital more selectsvely to the business following the heavy
mvestment made over the past three years These objectives wll form the
key pillars of our Operational Review, together with a detarled assessment
of our life of mine plans to establish the optimal mmung rates as we move
forward. Our operating environment has evolved substantrally 1n recent
years, as have our assets, and we need 1o ensure the organsation is
properly set to maximise returns aganst this backdrop

At the mine level, our expectation 1s for broadly simuar production levels
to 2012 at our Buzwagi and North Mara operations, with lower production
at Bulyanhulu as we implement our recovery plan at the mure through the
first half of the year and Tulawaka as 1t comes to the end of its life in the
second quarter of the year

Asa result of our Operational Review, we are targeting reductions to our
cash cost per ounce as we go through the year While we esumate the cash
cost per ounce for the year, including royalties, will be between US$925-
975 per ounce sold (including a reduction of US$124 per ounce sold due
to a change 1n accounting for waste stripping (IFRIC 20)}, we anticipate
the run rate will be below thus level by the end of the year

With US5§135 mullion of capstal being allocated to expansion projects,
principally at Bulyanthulu, we have set our sustaining capital budget at
US$100 million, including land, and we have allocated US$210 mullion to
capital development inclusive of deferred sinpping The adopuion of IFRIC
20, which recognises eligible production phase deferred waste stripping
costs as assets on a stage-by-stage basis as opposed to the previous single
pit basis, will merease our deferced stripping capitalisation by
approxumately U$$70 muillion over 2012

Overall, our key objectives for 2013 are

« achieving attributable Group production of between 540,000
600,000 ounces,

« maintaiing total cash cost ncluding royalties of between US$925-
US$975 per ounce sold,
total capital expenditure of US$445 mullion, comprising US$100 milhon

of sustaiming capatal, US$210 mullion of capital development inclusive
of deferred stnpping and US$135 mlhon of expansion capital,

completing the Operational Review and implementing cutcomes from
the process,

substantially completing construction planned for the Bulyanhulu
CIL Expansion,

obtaining Board approval for the Bulyanhulu Upper East Expanston,
optimusing Group throughput and recoveries,

achieving growth n our overall resource base;
mmproving further our safety record,
contmuing the development of our sustamnatnhty practices, and

.

continuing our disciplmed focus on opportunities for strategic
acquisitions throughout Africa.

Finally, I would like to tharnk all of my colleagues for their commutment,
enthusiasm and hard work throughout what has been an important year
1o the development of our business T would also bike to thank our Board
for their unwavering support, their wise counsel and ther commitment
throughout the year

Greg Hawkans
Chuef Executive Officer
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Operational Review

Over the past three years our operating environment has seen sigmficant change, which has had an impact both on the production
levels at our operating mines as well as on our overall cost of production As a result, we have commenced a full Operational
Rewview of the business and have identified a number of areas where we can improve both the cost profile as well as the deliverability
of production Together with a reduction 1n the overall level of capital applhed to the business, we believe that the current base

of production can deliver attractive returns, which will be enhanced by our portfolio of organic growth projects which will start
delivering incremental production from next year We will periodically report on the progress of the Operational Review throughout

the year, as a part of our results releases

The specific imttatives which will form the core of the Operational Review are

1. OPERATING COST REDUCTIONS
Initial results available in 6 months

Aside from labour, our key costs drivers over the past few years have been
power, maintenance and consumable usage. Whlst the increase in diesel
usage across the Group has been necessary to ensure production outcome,
it has led to increased cost, speafically at Buzwag We conunuc to
investigate opportunutzes to reduce the impact of our rehiance on the
electrrcity gnd, ncluding short-term opporturuties such as the installauon
of capacitors to reduce dips and voltage swings and fonger-term alternative
energy soluttons Optumisation of management operating systems and
supply chain practices are expected to provide further reductions n cur
maintenance and consumable cost levels

2. CAPITAL DISCIPLINE
Over US$50 million reduction achieved in 2013

We have maintained a disciplined approach to capital expenditure over
the past three years, but have stll invested aver US$750 million wnto the
business in order to optimise our asset hase This investment provides
us with well-invested, modern m:nes, such that we should be able to
substantially lower our caputal budget going forward. Our 2013 capital
expenditure guidance indicates an imnal reduction of aver US$50 mullion
from 2012 sustainung capital levels We are reassessing all of our future
capital expenditure to identify further opportumties to cut capital
expenditure further into 2014 and beyond.

12 wwwafncanbarnckgold com

3. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
Initial results avallable in 6 months

Our production dnd cost profile have changed significantly and we wall
now ensure thdt we nght-size the business in order to fit our anticipated
production levels and new operating paradigrn With thus in mnd, a zero
based review 18 being undertaken of the entire orgamsation, 1n order to
ensurc that we have the appropnate staffing levels, mux of cmployees and
contractors and the opimal combinatton of international and national
employees in order to meet our obyectves without impacting production.
Further to this we will also ssmplufy the corporate structure in order to
improve the responsiveness of the organisation.

4. CORPORATE OVERHEAD COST REDUCTIONS
Initial results available in 3 months

As a part of the review of our orgarusational structure we are reviewing
opportumties to reduce our corporate overheads as we align the corporate
support and service mode] to match the business model to take forward
nto 2014 Aside from labour efficencies, we see key npportumbties for
umproved efficiencies wathin our Cormmuruty, Health, Environment,
Safety and Secunty function model and in a reduction mn travel and
accommodation expenses




5. MINE PLANNING DELIVERABILITY
Initial results available in 6 months

On a mune site Jevel, we are i the early stages of the review process. As
part of this process we are reviewing and optumising the hfe of mme plans
at cach of the assets to priontise doving returns and cash flow and are
sccking to improve both productvity and efficiency at cach of the asscts
through improved organtsational structure and traning.

Key focus areas for further asset optumisation are

= At our flagship asset Bulyanhulu, we are conducting a number of
studses to optumise the ore extraction schedule, plan for the right
nfrastructure to support the ore extraction and transport and,
tmportantly, make sure we have a clear understanding of the most
efhcient mining method to be deployed for the bfe of mune Whilst we
have some temporary issues to resolve, the mene represents our best
leverage to generate hugh return ounces, given the scale and quality
of 1ts resources

» At North Mara, as a part of the review we are assessing all options for
future development of the nune, including the potential for underground
development We have overcome sigruficant legacy 1ssues and our social
licence to operate has been regained, but as part of this exercise we will
assess a range of potential mine plans based around the ability to access
tand wn order to satisfy the life of mine requirernents for the existing three
open pits [n conjunction with the mune development review, we will
continue to work with regronal and governmental departments n order
to buiid on the actions we have implemented over the course of 2011 and
2012 to strengthen further our social licence to operate.

» At Buzwagi, now that we have stabilised mining and processing rates
we are continuing to review options to unprove operating efficiencies
and thereby the profitability of thus operation Our key focus 1n this
regard 15 to review ways in which we can reduce Buzwagys reliance on
diesel power, which results in high operahng costs, and the reduction
of required levels of sustairung capital There are clear opportumties
to 1mprove sustaimng capital investment levels, given that we are now
through the bulk of the catch up capital investment required 1n order
to stabilise production levels over the past three years

At Tulawaka, as a result of our renewed focus on generating returns
rather than ounces, we have deaded not to further extend the Lfe of
the rmne beyond 2013 Frgagement with our employees wall he
undertaken as we embark on this process and we wall focus efforts on
the redeployment of the mine’s skilled workforce to our other assets
and the progression of closure planning. Options for divestment will
also be considered.
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Strategy and business model

A model to deliver performance

Our business model focuses on the creation of a high performance organisation,
something that 1s fundamental for the realisation of our longterm strategy.
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o

Establishing solid foundations

At the heart of our business model lie the foundations which
we believe embody our commutment to excellence Together,
these foundations form the base structure for the creation of
a high performance orgamisation

Industry expertise

We beleve that industry and regtonal knowledge and expertise are
cnitical 1n order to drive performance As such we placea premuum on
our exisung expenence of acquinng, hinancing and bwilding rnes in
Tanzarua and the collective experience of the mining industry and the
African region held between our Board members and

mdndagement tedam

Quality asset base

Qur long-life, lugh-grade reserve and resource base and the expansion
opportumities that are available through near mune projects at our
existing operations provide us with a solid basis on which to develop
and grow our business within the Alnican gold mining industry

Governance and risk management

Effective governance and controls are crucial for the reahsanon of
our business strategy For this reasan our business management
framework allocates responsibilities for the momtoring, review

and management of our business and strategy throughout our
orgamsational structure, ensuring that accountability for performance
15 shared across our governance functions We use the same approach
for nsk management to ensure that business risks are 1dentified,
mitigated and controlled as appropriate for our operating environment.

Licence to operate

Our husiness conduct reflects our commutment to excellence, for the
henefit of all stakeholders as a whale We ensure that our commumty
relations, environmental, health and safety, human resources and
securtty functions work closely together and wath the management
teams at each of our operations to ensure that all key components of
responsible mining are addressed throughout the exploration and
minng cycle and across all of our locations

People and management

An orgarusation 1s only as good as 1ts people Fis for this reason that

we are committed to promoting and developing the skl set of our
workforce for the benefit of our business and our industry in general We
ensure that we fairly compensate our employees for their contributions,
pravide meamingful performance feedback to them and offer them
professional development and traimng opportunities to develop employee
potential and reward best performance

O

Developing key strengths

When combined, the foundations of our organisation create
our core standards, which 1n turn create and develop key
strengths 1 operanonal and financial performance They
also safeguard and help to promote our responsible mining
pracuces All of these factors are fundamental qualities of

a hugh performance organisation

Operational excellence

We belreve that the ahgnment of our operanonal and governance
standards with industry and peer group best practice provides us with the
framework to achieve the highest posable levels of productivaty, safety and
efficiency within our operanons, all being components of operational
excellence that drives business performance

Strong financial performance

Our business and operational processes are focused on the achuevement
of targets while mantaimng a stnict cost disciphne, optimsing capital
ctficiency and maintamng a conservative balance sheet Thas supports
the preductton of strong finanaal results required for the development
of our business

Responsible mumng

By mutung in a responsible manner for the benefit of our people, the
environment and the host countries iIn which we work, we are able to
maintam our reputation as a good corporate atizen in the eyes of all
relevant stakeholders In turn, thus allows us to progress our business
on the basis of common expectations and objectives
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OPTIMISE

THE EXISITING ASSET BASE
ABG Group progress in 2012

» Increased production levels and improvements 1n the grade profile at
North Mara, following the access to higher grade zones in the Gokona
pit in the second half of the year

+ Improvements in recovery rates at North Mara, as a result of the positive
impact of the gold plant upgrade

» Continued progress in muning and processing activities at Buzwag;,
Increasing consistency in the operattonal performance of this operation,
particularly during the second half of the year

= Commencement of operational iitiatives at Bulyanhulu to address
paste fill delays, lower than planned avarlatnlity of lugh grade stopes and
lower equipment availabiities

ABG Group priorities for 2013

+ Finalising and implementing our Operational Review

Resolve paste fill plant 1ssues, increase availability of higher grade stopes

and stabilise workforce at Bulyanhulu

» Sustain increased level of mining rates and continue to operate at
nameplate capacity 1n the process plant at Buzwag

» Maintain increased mining rates, continue to deliver umproved

recovenes and progress land acqusitions and relocations at North Mara

Harvest hugh grade pillars, progress discussions on closure/divestment

options for Tulawaka




Case study: Gold Plant Project at North Mara

North Mara has been undergomng a substantial optimusation programme
both mn the mining operations and m the process plant Improvements in
vur mimng fleet and pracuces have posiioned us to be able o efhicently
move increased volumes of tonnes in 2013 In tandem wath this, we have
wivested over US$25 mullion into process plant infrastructure in order to
improve recovery rates, semething whuch should increase production and
help 10 mugate cash cost increases

The gold plant upgrade has involved improving the gnnding efficiency of
the mills and adding oxygen into the circunt to improve the responsiveness
of ore to cyamude leachung. We have converted two tahngs thickeners into
pre-leach thickeners and have also installed additional leach tanks so that
ore may be exposed to cyarde for a longer time period as part of

processing and treatment procedures The increased residence tme wall
allow for improved recoveries and a reduction of gold residue in tadings

We expect the project to increase gold recoveries by up to 4% as a result
of the combined measures In addition to the improved recovery rates,

as a part of the project we installed further cyamide detoxification capaaty
i line with compliance standards under the International Cyansde Code
and our commtment to manage our tatlings responsibly

2} Goonhne to find more information www africanbarrickgold.com



EXPAND

THROUGH NEAR MINE PROJECTS
ABG Group progress in 2012

« Engineering, procurement and construction contract awarded and
project finanang arranged for Bulyanhuly CIL Expansion project

= Expansion of the scope of the Bulyanhulu Upper East Expansion
project to intclude Reef 2 as well as Reef 1

« Continued progress of dnill programmes around the Nyabirama
open pit at North Mara

« Gokona underground resource at North Mara mereased to
approximately 900 thousand ounces of gold

18 www.aintcanbarrckgold com

ABG Group priorities for 2013

» Substantially complete construcuon of Bulyanhulu CIL
Expansion project

+ Recewve Board approval to proceed with Bulyanhulu Upper
East Expanston project and continue exploratron dnlling to expand
Reef 2 resource

+ Complete feasibility study for the Gokona Expansion at North Mara

+ Complete the Nyabirama resource update at North Mara




Case study: Bulyanhulu Upper East Expansion

As part of our drive to expand our assets, ABG has been examining
options to increase munng rates at the Bulyanhulu mme to bring
producuon more intw hine wath the scdle of its resource base The
acceleration of mining from the Upper East Zene 1s one of our key
expansion projects aimed at achreving this

Previously, the Bulyanhulu Upper East Expansion project was solely based
on the 1 2 miflon ounces of gold reserves located in Reef 1 of the Upper
East Zone We have now completed a positive scoping study to incorporate
an additional 900 thousand ounces of gold which currently sit tn reserves
in Reef 2 of the Upper East Zone We have ordered certain long lead items
and are now progressing with further technical studies to explore ths

opportunity If these studies are successful, we should be able to progress
the project so as to commence gold production from the Upper East Zone
1 late 2014

The incorporation of Reef 2 signtficantly enhances the Bulyanhulu Upper
East Expansion project, which 1s now expected to produce 90 thousand
ounces of gold per annum once fully ramped up and will delver life of
mine production of 1 ¢ million ounces of gold over the next 20 years

The project 1s expected to require approxumately 1UUS5100 mulhon of
pre-production capital, to be spentin 2013 and 2014

L Go online to find more information www africanbarrickgold com
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GROW

THROUGH GREENFIELD OPPORTUNITIES AND ACQUISITIONS IN AFRICA

ABG Group progress In 2012 ABG Group priorities for 2013

+ Completion of the West Kenya JV project acquisition - Continue regional grassroots exploration across West Kenya JV project

» Expansion of Nyanzaga in-pit resource to in excess of 4.6 million ounces  + Advance dnll testing stage targets around the Kakamega Dome Camp
of gold and successful compleuon of scoping study for the project of the West Kenya JV Project

« Completion of metallurgical dniling programme to update resource « Delineate potential for new discovenes around the Lake Zone Camp of
model at Golden Rudge the West Kenya JV Project

« Progression of exploration drill programme at Dett prospect + Complete the pre-feasibihty study for the Nyanzaga project and continue

drdl programmes to explore underground potental for thus project

20 wwwaincnberrckgald.com




Case study: West Kenya Joint Venture Project

In late 2012 we acquured the entire 15sued share capital of Aviva Mimng
{Kenya) Lunited ("TAMKL”), the assets of which include a 51% interest in
ajmint venture with Lonmun ple, which may be increased to 75% subject to
satisfaction of certamn conditions, and a nght to earn up to a 75% interest
1n 2 second jomnt venture with Advance Gold Corporation Together, these
joint venture arrangements provide ABG with an interest tn a number of
exploration licences located within the Ndor1 Greenstone Belt in West
Kenya. This acquisition represents our first step mn expanding our footprnnt
outside of Tanzansa and 1s an important addition to the grassroots and
target delineation segrnents of our exploration pipeline as we look to
secure medium to long-term growth and diversification of our asset base

The Ndon Greenstone Belt1s a highly prospective area and one of several
greenstone belts in Kenya. 1t has multiple styles and types of gold prospects
that are comparable to those found 1n the Lake Victona Greenstone belts

in Tanzama. The hcences held under the Kenyan ot venture structures
contain multiple large-scale gold anomalies n areas of historic colonal
mines and prospects, and cover a land package in excess of 2,800 square
kilometres Sporadic, histonic and current exploration activities have
dentified a large number of targets that yusufy follow-up and we intend to
implement a systematic and focused gold exploration programme tn 2013

and beyond

In addition to the interests 1n the exploration licences and properties, the
acquusitton of AMKI. provides ABG with a strong Kenyan based exploration
team, contimuity of project hustory and knowledge, as well as existing local
and country government and mumstry relationships

L Go unhne Lo find mure informauun www africanbarmckgold.com
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RESPONSIBLE MINING

MAINTAINING OUR LICENCE TO OPERATE

ABG Group progress in 2012

+ Aduevinga 30% mprovemnent 1 our Group Total Reportable Inpury
Frequency Rate (*TRIFR™)

+ Obtarmg Bulyanhulu’s recertficaton under the Internanonal Cyzmde
Management Code

+ Execution of Village Benefit Agreements and Village Benefit Inplementation
Agreements with North Mara local communitses

« Improving national employimertt levels by 2%, to 91% of our
operations’ workforce

+ Increasmyg traming on Voluntary Pnncrples on Secunty and Human Reghts
across ABG stakeholders

22 www.afncanbarrckgoldd com

ABG Group priorities for 2013

- Acheving a further 10% improvement in Group TRIFR

+ Completing the commussioning of the North Mara Water Treatment
Plant for the Lfung of the Environment Protection Order and obtaimng
a discharge permut for the site

+ Implemnentation of social management plans at Buzwags and North
Mara and development of a social management plan for Bulyanhulu

» Achieving = workforce Jocalisation target of 93% across our operations

- Progressing dialogue on law and order, particularly at North Mara,
with our wider stakehalder group




Case study: Sungu-Sungu Clinic

North Mara 1s located 1n a remote part of Tanzanta and as such
mfrastructure in the region 1s hmited In line with our commitment to
community development, throughout the year we have continued to invest
n upgrading local infrastructure to help unprove transportation hinks and
access to water, education and healthcare One of our core commuruty
infrastructure projects 1s the rehabilitation of the Sungu-Sungu Clinic 1n
Nyamongo, one of the villages located 1n the vicimity of the North Mara
munc The chimeis the sole source of local medical care outside of the mine
for those Iving 1n the mune’s seven local communities Unfortunately, the
clinie 1s ot currently eligible for central government funding due to its
size, so ABG's support 1s cntical.

As the first phase of the upgrade, ABG has invested approximately
US$350,000 1n the clinuc n order to refurbish materrty and paediatnc
wards, laurrdry facihties and basic amerutes and to construct an outpatient

block and further wards In addition to thus, we are improving access to
power and water by nstalling addihenal water wells and a connection to
the national electnaty gnd For the tme being, we have installed a dresel
generator and we are trackmng clean water from the mune to the cline 1o
provide for key utihities while we complete these elements of the project.

In easly 2013 we will commence the second phase of the ciruc upgrade, for
whuch we aim to invest a further 1U58200,000 m chruc improvernents. The
mvestment wifl pnncpally be used to further equip the hospital with vatal
diagnostic equipment, with the aim of bringing the chruc up to a natonal
standard in order for 1t to recerve ongoing government funding and provision
of healthcare professionals

[H Go onhne to find more information www africanbarnickgold.com
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Operating review

Bulyanhulu

Key mine statistics
Year ended 31 December

2012 2011
Underground ore tonnes hoisted (Kt) 959 1,048
QOre mulled (Kt} 1,012 1,056
Head grade (g/t) 80 85
Mull recovery (%) 90 6% 91 2%
Ounces produced (Oz) 236,183 262,034
Ounces sold (Oz) 235410 269,981
Cash cost per cunce sold (US$/0z) 803 610
Cash cost per tonne mulled (US$/1) 187 156
Copper production {Klbs) 6,102 7,675
Copper sold {(Khbs) 5,895 7,716
Capital expenditure (US$000) 117,569 95,432

The statistrcal information presented includes Non-TFRS measures An explination of

Non JFRS measures 1s inciuded as part of the glossary

2013 Prionties
« Resolve paste fill plant 1ssues

« Increase availabihity of higher grade stopes
« Stabilise and rebuild national workforce
» Progress CIL Expansion and Upper East

Expansion projects
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Contribution to
Group ounces

38*
1.02

Total reserves and
resources (Moz)

1745

Operating performance

Bulyanhuhs produced 236,183 ounces n 2012, 10% lower than n 2011,
as d result of pasie hill delays, lower than planned avaldbiiny of hagh grade
stopes and lower equipment availabilities resulting in reductions to ore
tonnes hoisted and head grade mined Whulst corrective actions are
underway, progress has been slowed by potenuial changes to Tanzantan
pension legslation which has led to sigmficant numbers of long servng
Tanzan:an employees ressgming These included a number of shalled
underground mimng personnel as well as mamntenance staff dealing with
improving mobile equipment avalabihites With the end of the Offer
Penod we are now actively hiring as well as rotating staff from elsewhere
1n our operations, i order to munimise further impacts in 2013

Head grade of 8 0 g/t was lower than tn 2011 {8 5 g/t) as a result of paste
fill delays Lmiting access to the primary long hole stopes leading to
ncreased tonnes being muned from tower grade stopes The lower muned
grade together with lower recoveries in the CIL circust led to a recovery
rate of 90 6%

Gold ounces sold for the year were 235,410 ounces, which was broadly
1 ke with the producton figure, but 13% lower than in 2011

Copper production for the year of 6 1 mullion pounds was 20% lower than
mn 2011 This was pnmarily due to rmmng of lower copper grade areas and
lower recovenes

Cash costs for the year of US$803 per ounce sold were 32% lugher than i
2011 (US$610) Cash costs were negatively impacted by lower production
levels and the resultant lower co-product revenue; uncreased mamntenance
costs dniven by an increase i unplanned mimng and processing related
breakdowns, increased energy costs due to increased Tanesco rates and
consumption, and increased Gé&A charges driven by lugher camp costs
and aviation charges This was shightly offset by increased capitalised
mining expenditure Cash cost per tonne mlled increased to US$187

1 2012 (US$1561n 201 1) as a result of the costs mcrease outhned above

Capital expenditure for the year of US$117 6 milhon was 23% higher
than 1n 2011 {1JS$95 4 milhon), mamly driven by expansion capital and
increased nnderground development. Key capital expenditure for 2012
mncluded. capitahised underground development (US$45 6 mullhion), the
CIL Expansion prgject (US$26 1 mullton), and mining equipment
{(US§$10 6 mutlion)




Buzwagi

Key nune statistics
Year ended 31 December

2012 2011
Tonnes mined {Kt) 28,563 21,534
Ore tonnes mned (Kt) 4,223 3,545
Ore milled (Kt) 3,715 2,993
Head grade (g/t) 16 23
Mill recovery (%) 87 3% 88 0%
Ounces produced (0z) 165,770 196,541
Qunces sold (Oz) 155,322 200,518

Cash cost per ounce sold (US$/0Oz} 1,087 691
Cash cost per tonne mulled (US$/t) 45 46
Copper production {Klbs) 6,773 7.201
Copper sold (Klbs) 5,628 7,353
Caprtal expenditure {US$' 000} 98,054 83,203

The statisucal information presented includes Non-[FRS medsures An explanaban of

Noa-1FRS measures is included as part of the glossary

2013 Prionties
+ Continue to operate at nameplate
capacity in the process plant

« Sustain mcreased level of mining rates
+ Optimuse the power mix for the mine

+ Minimise additional capital mvestment

Contributlon to
Group ounces

26"
0.57

Total reserves and
resources {Moz)

3.44

Operating performance

Buzwag produced 165,770 ounces 1n 2012, 16% lower than 1n 2011, as a
result of the reversion o minung at reserve grade for 4 ssgmiicant part of
the year, with production further impacted by plant operational factors
leading to decreased processing rates in the first half of the year With the
wnstallation of diesel back-up power and improved plant operational
avalability and ctficenaes in the second half of the year, 2002 mll
throughput increased by 24% compared to 2611 In addition, there was

4 sigmficant increase 1o tonnes mined compared to 2011, as aresult of a
larger mobule fleet and improved equipment availability We expect the
improvement 1n both mining and mlling rates to continue through 2013

Gold ounces sold decreased by 23% to 155,322 ounces (200,518 ounces in
2011), faling below production by 6% due to a delay m sales as a result of
the back-ended nature of production i the fourth quarter

Copper produchion for the year of 6 8 milion pounds was 6% lower than n
2011 Ihus was pnmanly due w the mumng of lower vopper grades in 2012

Cash costs for the year were US$1,087 per ounce sold (US$691 1n 2011)
Cash costs have been affected by lower production and resultant lower
co-product revenue and increased diesel consumption driven by a
requirernent to self generate electricity Increased consumable usage
and contract services costs, due to increased maintenance and repar
contractor (*"MARC") charges were offset by increased capitalised
strpping costs due to the waste stnpping undertaken

Cash cost per tonne milled of US$45 decreased slightly from 2011 as
meredsed throughput was offset by an incredse in the direct rmming
wost base

Capital expenditure of US$98 1 milion was 18% higher than m 2011
(US$83 2 million}, primarity due to deferred strrpping Key caputal
expenditure for 2012 included. capitalised deferred stripping (US$31 1
mlhion), mine fleet investments (US$19 8 mulhon), and investrnents in
the process plant’s detoxfication process (U5$17 2 rmlhon) Includedin
capital expenditure 15 3 non-cash reclamation adjustment which amounted
to US$10 5 million
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Operating review continued

North Mara

Key mune statistics
Year ended 31 December

2011 2011
Tonnes muned (Kt} 18,391 21,808
Ore tonnes mined (Kt} 1,711 2,254
Ore mulled (Kt} 2,786 3,070
Head grade (g/t) 25 21
MIll recovery (%) 85 4% 80 6%
Qunces produced (Oz) 193,231 170,832
Qunces sold (Oz) 186,600 170,625
Cash cost per ounce sold {US$/Oz) 965 810
Cash cost per tonne mulled (US$/t) 65 45
Capital expenditure {(US$’000) 91,096 123,146

The statishica) infermation presented mclodes Nom ITRS measures An explanation of

Non IERS measures 15 included as part of the glossary

2013 Pnontes
» Maintamn increased minmng rates

« Continue to deliver improved recoveries

» Progress land acqusitions and relocations

= Finalise hifting of Environmental
Protection Order

» Continue 10 1mprove social hcence
to operate

26 www.africanbarnckgold com

Contribution to
Group ounces

31"
0.71

Total reserves and
resources (Moz2)

5.55

Operating performance

Narth Mara produced 193,231 ounces in 2012, an increase of 13% on
2011, as 4 result of improved grade and recovenes partally offset by

ore milled being 9% lower than i 2011, as throughput was negatively
umpacted by unplanned maintenance n the second quarter of 2012 Gold
ounces sold amounted to 186,600 cunces for the year, 9% tugher than in
2011, due to the increase in production, but trating production by 3% due
to the back-ended nature of production 1n the fourth quarter of the year

Head grade of 2 5 g/t umproved by 19% on 2011, as a result of increased ore
tonnes mined and rine grade during the second half of the year, leading to
a reductton m mull feed from the lower grade stockpiles Recoveries of 85 4%
increased 6% on 2011, primarily as a result of the positive impact from the

completed gold plant upgrade

We focused on the continuation of the substantial waste stnpping
programme in both the Gokona and Nyabwrama pits throughout the year
1n order to open up lugher grade zones for future years Minmng 1n the
Gokona pit was adversely impacted by delays in the 1ssung of PAF waste
dumping permits duning the first half of the year, and delays in relocating
villagers surrounding the Nyabirama pit led to the suspension of minmg
1n the pit from the sccond quarter As 4 resull, total tonnes mined of 184
mulion tonnes were 16% lower than in 2011 Ore tonnes mined amounted
to 1 7 mithion tonnes, a reduction of 24% on 2011 {2 3 mullion tonnes)

Cash costs for the year were US$965 per ounce sold compared to US$810
1n 2011 Direct muning costs were in hine wath 2011, with increases in
labour, G&A and maintenance offset by lower contracted services charges
due to the move from a MARC to an owner maintenance model However,
lower than planned capitalised mining and negative inventory valuation
changes drove an increase 1n overall cash costs Cash cost per tonne mulled
increased to US$65 1n 2012 (US$45 i 2011), mainly as a result of the
decrease in throughput Capital expenditure for the year of US$91 1
mullion was 26% lower than in 2011 (US$123 1 nullion), due to lower
expansion capital Key capital expenditure for 2012 included. capitalised
deferred stripping (U525 7 mullion}, mne equipment (U510 5 mullion),
infrastructure investment (USS$14 5 million), and caprtalised explorabon
dniling costs (US55 2 rmilhon) Incdluded 1 capital expenditure 1s a
non-cash reclamation adjustment which amounted to US$7 5 rmilien

The Special Mining Ticences for North Mara were renewed during the
fourth guarter, on the existing terms far a 15 year perind. This renewal
supports our long-term planmung and will assist in unlocking value from
the asset base

The ife of mine footprint continues to be a challenge at North Mara due
to increases 1n land acquisition costs driven by high levels of speculation
This has led to the ongoing suspension of operatzons 1 the Nyabirama pit
We are engaging with local and central government in order to find a
solution. Duning the year we recerved PAF waste dump permits necessary
for the immediate operations of the site and we continue to apply for
permits to meet ongoing requirements,

We cantinue to work wath the relevant authonbies to progress the hfting of
the Environmental Protection Order at North Mara wn order to be able to
discharge water NEMC, the environmental regulator, has recently visited
the operanon for a final review and we are now awaiting ther approval




Tulawaka

Key mine statistics (70%)

Year ended 31 December

2012 2011
Underground ore tonnes howsted (Kt) 124 144
Open pit ore tonnes maned (Kt} 43 2
Open pit waste tonnes mined (Kt) 222 497
Ore muled (Kt) 185 291
Head grade (g/t) 55 66
Ml recovery (%) 95 5% 95 1%
Ounces produced (Oz) 31,028 58,871
Qunces sold (Oz) 31,920 58,415
Cash cost per ounce sold (US$/0z} 1,269 727
Cash cost per tonne rulled (US$/t} 219 146
Capital expendature (US$'000) (100%) 24,588 31,652

The statstical information presented meludes Non-IFRS measures An explanahon of

Non-IFRS measures is included as part of the plossary

2013 Priorities
« Harvest hugh grade pillars and dose/
divest operation

+ Implement closure plan m conjunction
with the Tanzanian government

« Redeploy employees within our
other operations

Contribution to
Group ounces

5%
1.38

Total reserves and
resources (Kaz}

175

Operating performance

Tulawakas attributable gold production for the year was 31,028 ounces,
compared to 58,871 ounces 1n 2011 The decreased gold producuon
level resulted from lower mined grade from underground stopes and
the application of batch rmlhng in order to drive plant eficiencies Gold
ounces sold were broadly in line wath production.

Cash costs for the year were US$1,269 per ounce sold, compared

to US$7271n 2011 Thus cost increase was manly due to the lower
production base and the impact of lower capitahised muung These were
shghtly offset by lower sales related costs due to lower sales ounces

Cash cost per tonne milled increased to US$219 1n 2012 (US$146 1n
2011}, primanly as a result of a lower mill throughput due to the batch
mulling campagn

Capital expenditure for the year of US$24 6 rmllion was 22% lower than
m 2011 {USs31 7 million) Key capital expenditure for 2012 included
capttalised exploration drilling and underground development costs
(US$10 2 mdlion), relating to mune life extension evaluations, and
wnfrastructure nvesiments mto the talings storage facility, security and
accommodation (US84.2 million}, which wall form part of the closure
plan Included :n capital expendtture 15 a non-cash reclamatron adjustment
witch amounted to US$1 3 mullion

Followng the deciston to phase out this operatton 1n 2013, and 1n
combination with the downward revision of reserves, we have recogrnsed

a non-cash impawrment charge of US$44 5 million in respect of Tulawaka,

gven the current rune plan and krmited mine life Thas ts a result of the

mune Ife net carrying value exceeding the recoverable amount by US$41 0
millton and the umparrment of capualised exploratton costs relating to the

Moja-Moya project of US$3 5 mullion
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Exploration and development review

Progressing growth opportunities

Overall, 2012 was a successful year of execution and delivery for both the Exploration and Projects teams
across our greenfield and browntfield exploration and development projects

ONGOING PROJECTS RESOURCE GROWTH
Greenfleld Totat Gold Reserves end Resources (Moz) Exploration
. Nyanzaga and evaluation
costs {USSm)

Dett

+ West Kenya IV
st Femya 2012 456

Brownfield
* Bulyanhulu

- Upper East Expansion 2011 481

- Buly Reef Extensions

{East & West)

North Mara 2010 274

~ Gokona Expansion 0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

- Nyabirama Expansion

Oeuyarhuu O Burwag ONoh Mare T Tulawaka O Nyanmags {1 Goiden Ridge

Overview 0f 2012 activities

Dunng 2012, US$29 0 million of exploration and evaluation activities were
expensed, with a further US$16 6 mullton of capitalised exploration and
evaluation activities taking place. Key lhughhghts include the addition of
sigruficdnt resource gunces 4L Nyanzaga, successful dnlhing results from
browntield expluration programrmes 4L North Mara and the acquisiion

of the West Kenya JV project.

In early 2012 we announced an increase of over 3 mullton ounces of
Indicated and Inferred in-pit resources at Nyanzaga and in April, following
further successful dnlling of the Kilimanu Zone, we added approximately
500 thousand ounces of gold to this resource The project subsequently
returned a positive scoping study and has been moved anto a pre-feassbility
study Exploration dntling in 2013 at Nyanzaga will continue to target the
extensions of hugh grade zones intersected by deep dnlling

At the North Mara mune, brownfield exploration dnlling programmes
were completed below the Gokona and Nyabirama open pits targeting
stgnuficdnt resource expansions with the aim of expanding the current
open pits andfor developing underground resources. Both programmes
achieved therr ams, with a rade-ofl analysis beiny completed o
determine how we proceed with scheduling and miming the expanded
resources at Gokona and a scoping study now undetway at Nyabirama
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At Butyanhulu, Board approval was granted for the CIL Expansion project
The project has progressed well with site works now underway Project
commussioning 1s targeted for early 2014. Additionally, the Bulyanhulu
Upper East Expansion project has now been expanded in scope to mnclude
both of Reef 1 and Reef 2 and has the potential to add an average of 0
thousand ounces of gold per year to production over the life of mme

Greenfield exploraben

Grecenficld exploraton 1s a key value dniver, and when successful, it enables
the business to generate future production ounces at competative cost
Therefore, ssgmficant focus in 2012 has been placed onidenufying new
greenficld exploration opportunitics throughout Africa to strengthen our
exploration portfolio. Collectively, the greenfield exploratron programines
we have undertaken have further strengthened our portfohio of exploration
projects, with the potential to add sigmficantty to our production profile
over the medium term

We have made good progress at our Nyanzaga project throughout the
Year as noted above Elsewhere tn Tanzama, during the year wide zones
of lower grade mineralisation have been intersected at the Dett prospect
45 kilometres west of the North Mara mine Current dnlhing is targeting
higher grade zones within this munerahised system 1n order to further
explore its potential




EXPLORATION PIPELINE

Production

Tanzania
(5,969 km?)

Advanced Exploration
& Resource Development

Drdl Testing

Target Dehineation

Grassroots Programme

Kenya
(2,833 km?)
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In addition, inital exploration programmes conducted on the West Kenya
1V Project following completion of our acquisiion of AMKL have already
started to yield positive results at several prospects withuri the 2,800 square
lalometre land package in 2013, we will continue our focus on advancing
grassroots and other early stage prospects on this project to dnill ready
status At the same tume, we will continue to advance opportunities at dnil
testing and advanced exploration stages of the exploration pipeline toward
tangible resource projects

Brownfield exploration

In 2012, near mine brownficld exploration successfully identified
extensians to known resources. The mawn focus was Gokona and Nyabirama
depth extensions at North Mara where drilling returned excellent results
from infill and step-out resource dnlling At Gokona, we intersected
sigmficant high grade minerahsation up to 300 metres below the current
final open pt depth, further supporting the opportumty for a sigmficant
hugh grade underground resource,

Al Bulyanhulu, we undertook a small programme of nfill dnlling around
the planned Reef 2 Upper East underground The dnlhing was successful at
delineating extensions to known high grade shoots around the margins of

the existing resource as well as confirming grade conbnuity within
reserve areas Further dnlling 15 scheduled for 2013 to expand the Reef 2
resource i deeper areas of the mme to enhance future planmng and hfe
of rmne scheduhng

In 2013 there wall be a sigmificant focus on reahsing tesource expansons
around our Bulyanhulu and North Mara operations

Anmual Report and Accounts 2012
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Exploration and development review confinued

Core growth projects

Growth project Progress in 2012 Priorities for 2013
n Bulyanhutu CIL Expansion + Detatled engineeningdesign  + Completion i
B5% N
E This project will expand the current CIL circwt at Bulyanhulu to 2 4 million metnc tonnes complete ERgIEAng dealgn
per annum in arder to re-treat hustonc talings, and increase production by approximately = EPC contract awarded to « Receipt of approvals for
40 thousand ounces of gold per annum for the first six years of operation The project MDM Engineering to the hfe of mine tathng
has been progressing according o plan, with commesstoning on track for early 2014 manage the project Storage facility
In comunction with this, we have now submatted the Environmental and Social Impact « Project financing arranged + Substannal completion

Assessment to the Tanzarman Government, s required for the extension of the existing

for the provision of an

of construction ahcad of

tailings storage faciity at Bulyanhulu, export credit faality for commussioning in early 2014
15$142 mulkon
E Bulyanhulu Upper East Expansion « Expansion of the scope of + Complete the development
the project to include Reef 2 of a test stope and successful
E This project was previously solely based on the 1 2 mullion ounces of gold reserves located a5 well as Reef 1 completion of triah manamy
B
1n Reef 1 of the Upper East Zone we have now completed a positive scoping study to
incorporate the 900 thousand ounces of gold which currently sit in reserves in Reef 2 - Development of test « Receipt of Board approval
We are progressing pre-feasibiity and feasibility work on Reef 2 with the aim of stope and completion to proceed with project
completing a combmed feasibhity study for both reefs. Production from the Upper East of rehabiltation of execution
Zone 15 targeted to commence tn late 2014 and 15 expected to average in excess of 90 main decline « Conunue exploration drlling
thousand ounces of gold per annum over the hfe of mine » Board approval to order to expand Reef 2 resource
certain long lead stemns
Gokona Expanmon, North Mara + Sgnificant exploration « Complete feasibility study

Dnlling programmes 1n 2012 targeted extenstons to the Gokona mineralised system
al depths beluw the current planned open pit The aum of the dnll programumes was to
expand the potential underground resource in order to complete a detaled feasibility
study Drlling has been successful in demonstrating that hugh grade mmerahsation
extends to sigmficant depths below the Gokona pit and studies are currently underway
to determine the optimal way of integrating the underground and surface resources

m order to maximuse the hfe of mine return at North Mara

@]

ntersections demonstrating
good grade contimuty

+ Gokona underground
resource uncreased to
approxamately 900
thousarrd ounces

Golden Rudge . Complenon of metallurgicl  + Completion of study nto
Golden Radge 15 a satellite depostt, approxmately 35km from Bulyanhulu. Dunng 2012 drer;]imurgcjm odelg me to update ﬁ::gzr;&ng G] ‘::]d:zf?dgc
we completed a metallurgical dnlling programme and incorporated the findings intoe our of mine
exsting model. We contunue to exarmine the opportunuty to use Bulyanhulu as a potential ~ + Ttibiation of study into toll
processing facility and this wall progress on completion of the technical review process milling ore at Bulyanhulu
currently being conducted at Bulyanhulu as a part of the Operatonal Review

E Nyabirama Expansion, North Mara . ExPloml‘:in dnlling + Complete tszvabma

E Brownfields exploration drilhing around the Nyahrama open pit duning 2012 has targeted ﬁ;ﬁ:xﬁ:ﬁgg’m ¢ Update
opportunites for open pit expansions and underground extensions Drll results dunng the system 1s rabust at d eptf: + Complete scoping study
2012 demonstrated that gold minerahsation continues to signtficant depths below current on pit expansion and
and fature open pit depths and that further drilling 15 warranted to assess the size potential underground potential
of the Nyabnrama system The results from the 2012 dniling have been incorporated into
a scoping study that 1s expected to be completed i cardy 2013

B Nymzaga « Expanston of n-pit « Successful completion of the

E Followang a hughly successfu! drilling prograrnme we were able to increase the size of the 46m ﬂlfol::mc:::” of g;t:ﬁ];}hg :;M yn the
in-pit resource at Nyanzaga by more than 3 5 milbon ounces and it now stands in excess
of 46 milhion cunces of gold. We have successfully completed the scoping study for the - Posttve exploration results + Opumisaton of the capital
project and have now maved o the pre-feasility stage where we wall cxamine different showing hugher grade zones and operating costs f moved
options for developing the 1n-pit resource In order to ensure an appropriate mix of both at surface and depth mto & feasibility study
upfront capital and future cash flows we will exarmne a range of options for the size of + Project moved from + Dnlling of deep
the process plant up to 8 milhon metnc tonnes per annum scoping into pre-feasibility exploration holes to target

study slage underground potential
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Exploration and development review continued

Entry into Kenya

UGANDA

Lake Victorla
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2012 Progress
» Acquisition of West Kenya [V project completed 1n late 2012

= Dnlhing continued to intersect sigruficant gold mincralisation on targets
around the Kakamega Dome

» Imbal high grade gold zones intersected at the Ramula project in the
Lake Zene Gold Camp

2(:13 Pnonties
« Advance dnll testing stage targets at Bushiangaia, Rosterman and
Kimingam around the Kakamega Dome Camp

Delineate potential for new discoveries at Ramula, Masumhy, Abambao,
Kitson and Wagusu projects in the Lake Zone Camp

» Advance regional understanding of geology and structure throughout
the project

+ Identify new projects at all stages across the exploratton pipeline
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West Kenya Jont Venture Project

In October 2012 we announced the acquisition of AMKL from Aviva
Curpuraton Through the acquisinon of AMKL, ABG now owns 4 51%
interest, with the potential to move to 75% 1n a joint venture with Lonmun
plc, and AMKLs nght to earn up to a 75% miterest 1n a second joint
venture wath Advance Gold Corporation The acquisition of the interests
provides an opportumty for ABG to enter an under-explored region with

multiple styles and types of gold prospects in a country with sohd transport
infrastructure and synergies with Tanzama.

The Licence areas, which have only seen hmited previous exploration,
contar multiple large-scale gold anomalies and cover five conhguous
hicences over a land package i excess of 2,800 square kilometres of the
hughly prospective Ndon Greenstone Belt in Kenya, which forms part of
the Tanzaman Archaean Craton The Ndon Greenstone Belt has all the
gealogical charactenistics of the hughly praductive greenstone belts of the
Abjub: region of Canada and the Eastern Goldfields of Western Australia.
Colomal and artisanal mining and prospecting has identfied in excess
of 130 prospects and targets across the hcensed properues Sporadic
historic and current exploration actrvities have idenufied a large number
of targets that justify extensive follow-up, and ABG ntends to implement
a systematic and focused gold exploration programme These targets
represent a sigruficant addiiion to the grassroots and target delineation
segments of our exploration pipehne.

Dunng 2013 we will focus on advancing our knowledge of the Ndon
Greenstone Belt geology and structure through regronal programmes,
micluding dnill testing of the mare advanced stage targets ‘The imtial aim
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for 2013 15 to dnil up to 50,000 metres of aurcore, reverse circulatton and
diamond dnill core, and to cellect more than 15,000 auger and sou samples
throughout the properties.

Generally, we expect to see the West Kenya ]V project develop over
the coming year through an expansive programme of early stage
reconnaissance work and later stage dril testing wath the aim of
identifying several projects to move nto resource defimbion dnthing,

To take this forward, we have divided the hicensed properties into two
large-scale gold camps, the Kakamega Dome Camp 1n the east and the
Lake Zone Camp to the west, 1 order to focus our exploration activities
and teams to ensure we are advancing the best targets

Kakamega Dome Camp
The Kakamega Dome Camnp has over 70 known gold occurrences frem
historc exploration and prospecting activites,

Exploratzon over the past ten: years has focused on soil sampling, ground
geophysics and dnilling ‘The majonty of recent cxploration actrvity
undertaken prior to ABG’s acquisition of AMKL was focused on the
Bumbo VMS Cu-Zn-Ag-Au deposit in the south of the camp and at the
Bushiangala and Kimungin: prospects on the south side of the interpreted
Kakamega Dome

Reconnaissance aurcore drilling in 2013 will focus on the Liranda
Lineament on the south stde of the Kakamega Dome, wiuch 1s a feature
observed in awrborne magnetic surveys, and 1s co-incident wath a 15-20

kilometre roughly east-west corrdor of gald in sol anomahes This
programme will be aimed at delineating targets for deeper drill testing.
Drilling to date has revealed excellent results, indicating that the

systems remain open at depth and that strike extensions can be expected.
Additional deeper drilling wall be undertaken at Bushiangala and Kumigum
to further explore this opportunity

Lake Zone Camp

"The Lake Zone Camp has uver 60 gold vecurrences from histone
exploration and prospecting actmities Exploraiion over the past ten years
has included soil samphing, ground and airborne geophysical surveys and
limited shallow percussion drilling,

Activities n the Lake Zone Camp during 2012 focused on core drilhing of
several projects to investigate the style and controls on gold muneralisation
at several prospects At one such prospect, known as Ramula, results from
dnll programmes have been positive and we have already intersected
sigmficant gold mmerabsation 1 dlamond dnll core when testing a 600
try 400 metre gold 1n soil anomaly with some assoiated artisanal mimng
actvity Drilling on the project will be accelerated in early 2013 and a
second rig will be brought in to test greater depths

Ongoing exploration programmes in the Lake Zone Camp wall focus
on developing 4 number of dnll ready targets, whale at the same tme
completing extensive regional programmes to generate new targets for
Prospecting acimnes
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Financial review

Increasing focus on cost control

Year ended 31 December

2012 2011
Attributable gold productien (Oz)! 626,212 688,278
Attributable gold sold (Oz)! 609,252 699,539
Cash cost per ounce sold (U3$/0z)? 949 692
Average realised gold price (US$/0z)? 1,668 1,587
Revenue (US$°000) 1,087,339 1,217,915
EBITDA (US$°000) 330,869 545,448
Cash generated from operating activities
(USS'000) 257,903 498,323
Net earmungs (US$°000) 59,471 274,895
Net earnings per share (US cents) 145 670
Adjusted net earnings (US$'000)? 105,484 274,895
Adjusted net earnings per share (US cents) 257 670
Dividend per share (US cents) 163 163
Operating cash flow per share (US cents)? 629 1215

—_

¥

Attibutable producuon and sold ounces reflects equity ounces which excludes 30% of
Tolawakas preduction and sales base

Cash cost per ounce sold, cash margin, average reabsed gold price EBITDA, operating
cash flow per share adjusted net earnungs per share and adjusted net carnings are
non-IFRS finanaal performance measures with no standard meaning under IFRS Refer
to Non-TFRS meastires provided as part of the glossary for the defimnons of each measure

Inchudes final recommended drndend to be paid in 2013
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“Operational challenges were reflected in our
Sfinancial results for the year”

Kevin Jenmings,
Chuef Financal Officer

Overview of 2012 financal performance
Overall, challenges to operating performance negat:vely impacted
the Group's finannizl results for the year

» Revenue of US$1,087 3 mullion was 11% lower than in 2011,

« Cash costs increased to US$949 per ounice sold (US$692 m 2011),
= EBITDA decreased by 39% to US$330 9 mallion,

» Adpsted net earungs decreased by 62% to US$105 5 mulhon,

+ Adjusted earnings per share amounted to U525 7 cents, down from
US67 G cents in 2011, and

¢« Operational cash flow of Us$257 9 mullion was 48% lower than 2011

Natwathstanding our finanaal performance we have maintained a strong
financial posihon with a net cash balance of US$401 mullion at year end,
and we have mamtaned the full year dvidend at the same level as 2011

In line wath the Operational Review, the 2013 key finance intiatives
will be

» Conducting a cost and organisational structure review to align
aur current cost profile with the scale of the business,

« Contmuing our focus on working capital optinusation, and

+ Contmmung our focus on capital prionisation and optimisation:

[he following review provides a detatled analyas of our consolidated
finanadl results and the main factors affecting inenaal performance n
2012 Tt should be read mn comunction wath the consohdated financial
staternents and accompanying notes to the consohdated finanaal
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with International
Financiat Reporting Standards as adopted for use 1n the European
Umon (“ITRS")




Financial performance

Revenue for the year of US$1,087 3 million was 11% lower than n 2011
{U5%1,217 9 rmullion) due to decreases in our production levels and gold sales
Year on year Group gold sales volume decreased by 13 1%, while gold revenue
benefited from higher average reahsed gold prices The decrease in gold sales
was primanly due to the lower production base and the back-ended nature of
productionin December 2012, which deferred sales into 2013 The average
realised gold price was US$1,668 per ounce in 2012 compared to US$1,587
per ounce in 2011 Co-product revenue amounted to US$48 0 million for
2012, a 29% decrease on 2011 (US$67 9 mithon} due to lower sales volumes
and prices The decredse 1n the production of gold/wpper woncentrate at
Bulyanhulu and Buzwagi resulted in the decrease i copper sales volumes
The 2012 average reahsed copper price of US$3 57 per pound compared
unfavourably to 2011 (US$3 82 per pound), and was driven by global market
factors regarding supply and demand.

REVENUE CASH MARGINS? EBITDA?
{US$ 000) (US$/02) (US$"000)

1]l v dlaz] o]l iz 10 f 11 {12 ]
US$1,087,339 US$719/0: US$330,869

Market overview

The key external drivers of our financial results are
commaodity prices, exchange rates and the price of ol Their
tmpact 1n 2012 and our posittoning going into 2013 are set
out below

Commodity prices

Gold prices have a sgmficant impact on ABG's operating carnings
and its abihity to generate cash flows In 2012 the pnce of gold traded
tn a range of US$1,540 to US$1,790 per ounce and closed at
US$1,675 per ounce Gold prices averaged US$1,669 per ounce n
2012, a new record average and a US$97 per ounce improvement on
the US$1,572 per ounce average i the prier year penod.

The market price of gold has been positively influenced by low US
dollar interest rates, sovereign debt concerns, investment demand
and the monetary polictes put in place by the world’s most promnent
central banks As a result of the global easing of maonetary palicy, as
well as large fiscal defiaits incurred tn the US and other mayor
developed econones, there 1s a possibility that both inflation and US
dollar depreciation could emerge 1 the comng years Gold 15 viewed
as a hedge aganst mflation and has histoncally been inversely
correlated to the US dotlar Therefore, higher inflation and/for
depreciation in the US dellar should be positive for the price of gold.

Guld prices also continue to be nfluenced by the impact of central
bank gold purchases and investor interest m owning gold. In 2012,
central banks purchased an esumated 536 metric tonnes of gold, and
investor wnterest led holdings by major global exchange wraded funds to
increase by 10 million ounces in the year to total 8% mullion ounces at
the end of the pentod. Historcally, gold has been viewed as a reliable
store of value in bmes of finanaal uncertamty and inflation and as

a de facto global currency Investor interest n gold as an asset class has
mncreased greatly as a result of this

ABG also produces copper as a co-product which is recogmsed as part of
revenue. Copper prices traded 1n a wide range of US$3 29 to USS$3 93 per
pound and averaged US$3 61 per pound (compared to US$4 00 per pound
i 2011) Copper's fall during the second half of 2012 occurred manly due
to uncertainty regarding the global economic recovery, and softer demand
from emerging markets, especially China. We expect copper to benefit as
the US domestic recovery accelerates and the effects of the European
financtal cnisis become clearer Copper prices wll hikely also be boosted

by a resurgence of Asian demand, and by the hinuted availability of scrap
metal and lower production levels of muines and smelters

We will continue to momtor prices and take advantage of opportumties
10 hedge the copper price at acceptable price levels

SPOT GOLD PRICES VS DXY INDEX
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Financial review continued

Market review continued

Fuel

During 2012, Brent crude ol traded between US$126 and
US$89 per barrel and averaged US$112 per barrel, We
consume approximately 625 thousand barrels of diesel
fuel annually acrass all our mines Mresel fuelis refined
from crude o1l and 1s therefore subject to the same price
volatihity affecting crude o1l prices Volatility in crude
prices has a sigmficant direct and indirect impact on our
production costs

Using three-way option strategies, we have put 1n place
certhng protection on approximately 40% of our expected
o1l exposure for 2013 The hedges cap our o1l exposure at
USS5110 per barrel should o1l trade between US$110 and
US$135 per barrel Should the price of o1l fall, we will
partiapate in the lower price W a floor of US$85 per barrel

Currency exchange rates

A portion of the Company’s costs are incurred in currencies
other than US dollars The exposure relating 1o other
currencies 1s approximately 28% of the Company's total
expenditure, of which the matn contributing currencies are
the Tanzanian shilling and the South Afnican rand. [n 2012,
the rand dechned sigmificantly against the US dollar as
investors shunned nskier rand-denominated assets 1n
favour of alternative ivestments

Using collar option strategres, we have put in place floor
protection on approxtmately 74% of our expected rand
operating expenditures for 2013 at average floor prices
of 7ZAR8 31

We have also used collar option strategies to put i place
floor protection on approximately 84% of our expected
rand-denomnated capita] expenses relating to the
Bulyanhulu CIL Expansion project, for 2013 and 2014, at
average floor prices of ZARB 70 and ZARS 90 respectively
We participate in rand weakness up to average ceilings of
ZAR9 59 and ZARS 80, for 2013 and 2014 respectively
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Cost of sales equalied US$802 7 mullion for the year, a 14% increase on
2011 (US$704 1 million}, primarily as a result of increases in direct muung
costs and increased depreciation due to the increased asset base employed
and depreciated and increased capital cxpenditure during the year The
table below provides a breakdown of cost of sales

Year ended 31 Decerber

(US$'000} 2012 2011
Cost of Sales

Durect minung costs 581,483 510,465
Third party smelting and refiming fees 18,574 21,400
Royalty expense 43,769 38,100
Depreciation and amortisation 158,883 134,149
Total 802,709 704,114

Overall, duect mining costs increased by 14% during 2012, when compared
to 2011 The key factors for this increase mclude labour costs of 1755177 ¢
mmlhon, an increase of 5% on 2011, due to increases in inflation and
employee headcount at Buzwag: and North Mara, energy and fuel expenses
of US$138 2 mullion, an increase of 31% on 2011, primarily due to mcreased
relance on diesel generated power at Buzwags, consumables costs of
US5105 8 mullion, a 13% increase on 2011, as a result of mcreased mining
and processing activities and a change 1n processing mix at Buzwagy due to
the mmung of lower grade matenal, mantenance costs of i$$98 4 nullion,
a 24% increase on 2011, primarily due to North Mard’s transition from a
MARC to an owner matntenance model, general admenustrative costs of
US$91 ¢ million, which after allowing for certam cost reallocations equalled
a 9% increase on 2011, prumanly driven by increases i camp and secunty
costs, and capitahised direct muning costs of US$119 5 million, an 11%
mncrease on 2011, due to ucreased deferred stripping costs at Buzwags and
hugher capitahsed development costs at Bulyanhulu.

Corporate administration costs totalled US$51 6 muthon for the year, a 5%
mncrease on 2011 (17S$49 1 alkon), pnmanly due to mflabonary increases
which drove labour costs lugher and increased share based payment
expenses as a result of our share price performance,

Exploration and evaluation costs equalled US$29 0 mullion for the year,

a 5% decrease on 2011 (1J5$30 3 million) Key eXpensesincluded
exploration dnlling at Nyanzaga (US$5 6 mulhon), dnlling along the North
Mara corrdor (US$4 7 million), metallurgical sampling and modelling at
Golden Ridge (US$1 6 mudlion), and the Nyanzaga scoping study (US$1 3
million} An additional US$1 1 million of exploration costs were incurred
following the AMKL acquisition Exploration funding provided to AMKL
prior to completion of the acqustion of US$1 3 mullion has been treated
as part of the acquisthion cost

Corporate social responsibility expenses amounted to US$14 4 mullion
for the year, approx:mately 95% higher than in 2011 (U$$7 4 mllion)
The increase was driven by VBIA project costs at North Mara and larger
contributtons to general commurty projects funded by the ABG
Maendeleo Fund.

Other charges amounted to US$17 7 rmllion for the year, 13% hugher than
111 2011 (US515 6 rmlkon) The mamn contnbutors to this incredse were

{1) cxpenscs incurred as a part of the CNG offer process, incduding adwviser
fees and worldorce retention accruals totalling US$6 7 mullion, (n}
disaliowed indirect tax clams of US$3 0 aullion (US$7 1 mullion m 2011)
relating to ongomng discussions with the TRA on outstanding refunds and

retrospective legislation changes, (1) legal costs of US$1 7 mullion,
(v} ARG’ entry into 7ero cost callar contracts as part of hedging
arrangements to address copper, silver, rand and fuel cost volaulity,
resulting in a combined mark-io-market revaluation loss of US$1 7
million (US$7 9 mullion gain 1n 2011}, (v} discounting adjustments of
long-term indurect taxes of US$4 2 nuflion, and (vi) foresgn exchange
gans of USS4 3 milhon (USS6 0 mulhion loss in 2011), ansing manly
from the devaluation of the ZAR agamnst the US dollar Refer to Note 8
to the consohdated financial statements for further detai!

Finance expenses of US$10 3 mulhon remained 1n ine wath 2011 Key
tmanang expenses included US$3 0 milhon for the servicing of our
US§$150 million undrawn revolving credst facility (US$4 6 mithon 1n
2011}, and increased accretion expenses relating to the discounting of the
environmental reclamation Labelity (US$4 0 mulhon) Other costs include
bank charges and interest paxd on the factoring of concentrate receivables
and {inance leases Al year end, ABG had nu external debt Finance
mcome earned during the year related predonunantly to interest charged
on non-current recervables and nterest recerved on tume deposits. Refer
to Note 10 to the consolidated finanaal statements for further detail

Imparment charges of US$44 5 rullton (US$ mul in 2011) were recorded
aganst Tulawaka, asa result of the annual impatrment review of goodwall
and other long-lived assets, when companng the recoverable amount to
the net carrying value of Tulawaka A review of Tulawaka’s rune plan
resulted m the downward revision of reserves from the hugh grade crown
pillars due to geotechnical and recovery concerns. As a result the net
carrying value exceeded the recoverable amount by US$41 0 rmlhon

Also ncluded in the :mpairment charge 1s the wnitedown of capitalised
exploration costs of US$3 5 mullion relating to the unltkelthoed of miming
the Moja-Moja project near Tulawaka Refer to Notes 18 and 19 1o the
consohdated finanaal statements for detals

Taxation expense decreased to US$71 1 muflion for the year, compared to
Us5117 8 rmlhon n 2011 The 2012 expense consists predorminantly of
deferred tax The lower tax expense was driven by lower profits before tax
The effective tax rate m 20412 amounted o0 609, compared to 29% 10 2011
The mcrease was mamly dnven by tax losses of 175523 7 miihon for which
no deferred income tax assets were recogrused 1n respect of Tulawaka,
ABG Exploration Ltd and ABG Plc stand alone assessed losses, and a
charge of US$8 9 milion relating to disallowed tax deductions from the
results of a tax assessment completed by the TRA on Bulyanhulu hustorical
tax returns Thus was further adversely impacted by a goodwill impairment
charge that 1s not tax deductible Refer to Note 11 of the consolidated
finanaial statements for detals

Net earnings were US$59 5 mullon for the year as a result of decreased
revenue, mcreases in our cost base and the Tulawaka impairment charge
s represents a decredse of 78% from 2011 edrmngs levels (US$274 9
million} Net earmngs per share for the year amounted to US14 5 cents,
adecrease of 78% {rom 2011 (US67 0 cenits), as a resull of the decrease
n nel edrmmngs

Adjusted net earmings per share for the year amounted to US25 7 cents,
compared to US67 0 cents in 2011 For 2012, we have calculated adpusted
net earmngs by excluding one off costs or credits relating to non-routine
transactions from net profit atimbuted to owners of the parent Further
detauls regarding the calcutation of adjusted net earrungs and adjusted
net earmings per share are provided as part of the Non-IFRS measures
defirutrons provided as part of the glossary
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Financial review continued

Key financial highlights
CASH COST RECONCILIATION DIRECT MINING COST BREAKDOWN O zo11
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Fmancial position The net book value of Group property, plant and equipment increased

At year end, ABG had cash and cash equivalents of US$401 3 rmilion
{U5$584 2 mlhon 1n 2011) The Group's cash and cash equivalents are
with counterparties whom the Group considers 1o have an appropnate
credit rating Location of credit risk 1s determined by physical location of
the bank branch or counterparty Investments are held mamnly in United
States dollars and cash and cash equivalents in other foreign currencies
are mawntained for operational requirements

Dunng the year we progressed the negotiation of project financing for
the Bulyanhulu CIL Expansion (*Project™) wath a commeraal bankang
syndicate (Standard Bank, Standard Chartered and ABSA) for the
provision of a US$142 mallion export credit backed term loan facality
{*Facihty™), and cencluded this exerase in January 2013 The Facihity has
been put 1n place to fund a substantial portion of the Project construction
costs, 15 secured upon the Project and has a term of seven years When
drawn, the spread aver T IBOR wall be 250 basis points The Facihity i
repayable 1 equal instalments over its term, after a two-year repayment
holiday period This financing complements our existing revolving credit
facility of US$$150 mullion which runs until 2014 and remains undrawn
At year end, debt remainted at zero

Goodwill and intangible assets increased by US$19 7 million from 2011,
primanly as a result of the acquisition of intangible assets and goodwll
from our acquisition of AMKL. Thus increase has been partially offset by
the Tulawaka impairment charge. Refer to Note 19 to the conschdated
financial statements for further detal
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from US$1 82 billion 1in 2011 to US$! 96 ullkon in 2012 The main capital
expenditure drivers have been explained in the section entitled cash flow
used i wnvesting activities below, and have been offset by depreaiation
charges of US$164 9 millton and impatrment charges of US$30 7 mullion
at Tulawaka. Refer to Nutes 18 and 19 1o the consolidated inancial
statements for further detait

Total indirect tax recervables, net of a discount provision applied to the
non-current portion, increased from US$85 3 mullion in 2011 to US$98 8
milhon 1n 2012 The increase was mainly due to the impact of VAT rehef
abahshment in the last quarter of 2012, offset by USS4 5 mithon 1n refunds
recerved by ABG duning the year The net deferred tax positton increased
from a net deferred tax Lability of US$94 0 mullion 1 2011 to a net
deferred tax hahty of US$171 2 mulhion This was driven by taxable
mcome generated during 2012 and the prior year adjustment relating to
Bulyanhulw's corporate tax position {(US$8 9 mullion) Tax losses carried
forward have reduced from US$384 5 mulhon n 2011 to US$321 0 mullion
1n 2012 US$88 9 milhion of deferred tax assets were not recogrused as at
31 December 2012

Net assets attributable to owners of the parent decreased from US$2 76
hilion 1 2011 10 U582 75 bilbon 1 2012 The decrease reflects the current
year profit attributable to owners of the parent of US559 5 rmlhion, which
was offsct by the aggregate amount of the final 2011 and intenm 2012
drvrdends (US$70 1 mulhion} pard to shareholders during 2012
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Cash flow generation
Year ended 31 December

{USS'000} 2012 2011

Cash flow from operating actvmties 257,903 498,323
Cash used 1n mvesting activities (360,655)  (281,532)
Cash used mn financang activities (79,439) (32,682)
{Decrease)/increase 1n cash (182,191) 184,109
Foreign exchange difference on cash (615) {967)
Openng cash balance 584,154 401,012
Closing cash balance 401,348 584,154

Cash flow from operating 2ctivities was US$257 9 rullion for the year, a
decrease of US$240 4 rmulhon from 2011 The decrease primaniy related to
decreased EBITDA combined with an outflow associated wath working
capital (US$80 3 mullion) Working capital movements primarily related
to increased investment in critical spares for major fleet overhauls at
Buzwag: and North Mara and the impact of long lead times on
consumable inventory levels (U5$42 5 milhon), an increase in trade
recervables (US$14.4 mullion), mainly due to the timng of shupments at
year end, an increase m gold inventory on hand (U$$16 6 mullion}, mawmnly
due to sales delays and increased ore valuation, and an increase m other
current assets (US$21 3 million), mainly driven by lugh VAT recervables
owed by the Tanzanian government.

Cash flow used i investing activities was US$360 7 million for the year
Total cash capital expenditure for the year was US$312 7 mullion, a 14%
increase on 2011 (US$273 2 mubion) driven by both increased sustaming
and capitabised development expenditure, shghtly offset by lower
expansionary capital expenditure

A breakdown of total capital and other investing capital activities for the
year 15 provided below

Year ended 31 December

(US§D00) 2012 2011
Sustamning capital 153,160 125,945
Expansionary capitat 49,889 63,273
Capuitahised development 109,626 83,990
Total cash capital 312,675 273,208
Non-cash rehabibtation asset adjustment 19,242 52,761
Non-cash sustainung capital® 8378 19,266
Total capital expenditure 340,295 345,235
Other wnvesting capital

- AMKL acqusition® 22,039 -

- Non-current asset movement? 25,941 8,325

—_

AMKL acquisition relates to the acquisition of the subsidiary, net of cash for US$22 0
mulien {inclusive of exploration funding US$1 3 million)

2 Non current assel movements relates to the investment 15 land acquisitions reflected as
prepard operating leases, Tanzanian government recevables and the settlement of a
Iustorical exploration acquisttion Liability at Buzwagr of US$6 6 mullion

3 Totalnon cash sustaming relates to the capital finance lease at Buzwag for dnll ngs in
2012 and the back up power generators in 2011 and also includes capual accruals excluded
from cash sustaming capital
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Fmancial review continued

Key financial highlights
CASH COST PER ADJUSTED NET OPERATING CASH EBITDA BY MINE SITE*
OUNCE 501D EARNINGS FLOW PER SHARE! {US% 000)
US$/07) PER SHARE! (US¢/share)
’_' (US¢/share) ‘ .
I
2012 2011
O Bulyanhulu 204 348 256504
O Buzwag 86 155 166113
{1 North Mara 117 676 128,627
O Tulawaks 15614 67,973
l $330,869 O other (92824) [73,760)
10 jL ]2 12 10 Jp 1 J 52
US$949/0; US25. Teems/srare USB2. oentsyshare

—

Cash cost per onnce sold, EBITDA, adpusted net earnings per share and operating cash
flow per share are hon-IFRS findncial performance meastres with no standard meamng
under IFRS Refer to Non IFRS measures provided as part of the giossary for the full
defimtions of vach measure

Sustaiming capital expendirure included the renewal of mine equipment
across our three mam operations (US$50 0 mullion), mvestment 1n
underground, camp and building infrastructure at Bulyanhulu (US$6 1
million), North Mara (IU$$14 5 mullion) and Tulawaka {(US$1 2 milkon),
process plant and taibngs storage facility expansion expenditure at
Buzwag: (US$3 8 million), Bulyanhulu (UJ8$17 2 mullion), North Mara
{US$2 5 mullzon) and Tulawaka (US$3 0 million), and costs relating to
the Morth Mara gold plant upgrade (US$4.1 nullion).

Expansionary capital expenditure conssted of the Bulyanhulu CIL
Expansion (U8$26 1 mullion} and capitalised exploration and evaluation
costs of US$16 6 milion Capitalised exploration and evaluation costs
predomnantly relate to the Balyanhulu Upper East Zone resource defimtion
dnlling (US$5 2 mullion), Gokona and Nyabirama underground dnlling
projects at North Mara (U585 3 mithon), Nyanzaga pre-feasibility costs
(US$3 2 milbon}, and Tulawaka underground drilling (US$2 ¢ nullion)

Caputalised development capital intcludes capitalised deferred stnpping
at North Mara (US$25 7 nullion) and Buswag {(U5$31 1 mullion) and
Bulyanhulu and Tulawaka capitalised underground development of
US$45 6 million and US5$7 3 muthion respectively

Non-cash caputal for the year totalled US$27 6 mullton and consisted
manly of reclamation asset adjustments (US$19 2 muflion) and the impact
of sustaimng capital accruals (USS$6 8 million) Reclamation adjustments
were driven by increased contractor equipment rates, addittonal disturbance
caused by the expansion of mne sites and a change 1n discount rate
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Other investing capital included the acquisttion cost of AMKL (US$220
mullion) net of cash and inclusive of US$1 3 mullion exploration funding
During the year North Mara incurred land purchases totaling US$25 9
mmilon which was shghtly offset by cash proceeds on the sale of assets
(US$4 6 million) We have also settled the hustorical exploration
acqusttion liability of US$6 6 mullion at Buzwag,

Cash used in financing actrities was US$79 4 million for the year, an
mgrease on 2011 (US$32 7 milhan) The outflow primanly relates to che
payment of the 2011 final and 2012 intenm dwidends Finance lease
hiabilities amounted to US$5 7 million, an tncrease of US$3 5 milhon on
2011, as a result of payments required for a full year of finanang leasing
MDN contribution payments in respect of Tulawaka for 2012 amounted
to USS3 6 milion

Final dividend of US12 3 cents per share has been recommended by
the Directors for 2012, subject tw the shareholders approving ths
recommendation at the AGM An intertm dividend of US4 0 cents per
share was paid to shareholders on 24 September 2012

Significant judgements 1n applying accounting policies and key sources of
estumation uncertamty Many of the amounts mncluded i the consolhdated
financial statements require management to make judgements and/or
estmates These yudgernents and estamates are contureously evatuated and
are based on management’s experience and best knowledge of the relevant
facts and arcumstances, nevertheless, actual results may differ Information
about such judgements and estimation 1s nduded in the accounting
pobaes andfor notes to the consolidated financyal staternents Key areas of
judgement and key sources of estimation uncertamnty that have the most
sigmbicant effect on the amounts recogmsed i the consolidated (inancial
statements mclude.
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3 Payables

« Estimates of the quantittes of proven and probable gold reserves,
+ The capitalisation of production stnpping costs,
+ The capitalisation of exploration and evaluation expenditures,

» Review of goodwll, tangible and intangible assets carrymg value,
the determination of whether these assets are impaired and the
measurement of impairment charges or reversals,

The estumated fair values of cash generating umts for impatrment
tests, incleding estumates of future costs to produce proven and
probable reserves, future commodity prices, foreign exchange rates
and discount rates,

The estimated uselul hves of langible and long-lived assets and the
measurement of depreciation expense;

)

Praperty, plant and equipment held under finance leases,

« Recogmition of a provision for environmental rehabalitation and the
estimation of the rehabilitation costs and tirung of expenditure;

Whether to recognise a iability for loss contingencies and the amount
of any such provision,

» Whether to recognise a provision for accounts recervable and the
impatt of discounting the non-current efement,

» Recogrution of deferred income tax assets, arnounts recorded for
uncertain tax positions, the measurement of income tax expense and
indirect taxes,

« Determmation of the cost incurred in the productive process of ore
stockpiles, gold in process, gold doré/bullion and concentrate, as well as
the associated net realisable value and the split between the long-term
and short-term portions,

Determination of fair value of dervative tnstruments, and

Determination of fair value of stock options and cash-settled share
based payments

Gowng concern statement The ABG Group's business activities, together
with factors hikely to affect 1ts future development, performance and
position, are set out 1 the operational and financal review sections of this
report The financial position of the ABG Group, its cash flows, hquidity
posiion and borrowing facilities are described in the preceding
paragraphs of this financial review

In assessing the ABG Group's going concern status the Directors have
taken mnto account the above factors, including the financial position of the
ABG Group and n particular its sigmficant cash position, the current gold
and copper price and market expectations for the same in the medium
term, and the ABG Groups capital expenditure and finanang plans After
making appropniate enquiries, the Directors consider that ABG and the
ABG Group as a whole has adequate resources to coritinue tn operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that 1t 1s appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements

7t

Kevin Jenmings,
Chief Financial Officer
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Corporate responstbility

Responsible mining

“Responsible mining means conducting our
business 1n a way that reflects our commtment
to excellence, to the benefit of all stakeholders
as a whole.”

Overview of 2012 activities

Responsible miung has remained a key objective for our business in 2012
In this regard, we have made a number of developments within our
sustamability programme, resulting in the achievement of a positive level
of averall performance across this pragramme  The matenal components
of our sustamability programme for 2012 remamed the same as those
wdentified in 2011, these being Commumty Relations, Employees,
Environment, Governance and Ethics, Health and Safety and Security
and Human Rights

In the context of community relations, efforts for the year focused on the
progression of commumty stakeholder engagement procedures, further
implementation of ABG social incident reporting procedures, the
continued implementation of the North Mara Co-Existence Plan, the
development of social management plans to support our operations and
further enhancements to our communuty relations management system.

We have made a number of positive developments throughout the yeat

m our employee recruitment, retention, tratning and development
programmes We have also been successful in the progression of employee
localisation targets, whilst making improvements in ABG Group turnover
rates overall

We progressed our environmental compliance programme throughout the
year, primanly as a result of continued progress in the implementateon of
Group environmental management systems, enhancements made to the
processes and procedures used to monitor environmental impacts at our
operations and further improvements made to permitting processes

There are no new matenal adverse developments in the context of business
governance and ethics for 2012 The majonty of reports submutted 1n
connection with our Business Ethucs imnaident reporting procedures during
the year related to employee matters at our operations None of the reports
submitted are expected to have a sigruficant effect on ABG

Core health and safety actrvities for the year focused on the continual
progression of improvements in our Group total reportable injury
frequency rate, which at 0 83 for the year 15 a 30% improvement on 2011,
further implementation of critical risk standards, ABG health standards
and key health and safety governance itiatives, namely our Visble Felt
Leadership and Courageous Leadershup traiming programmes However,
despute progress made w these areas, regretfully we suffered two fatahties

dunng the year

We continued to progress enhancements to our secunty function and
compliance with our human nghts commtments throughout the year
Key achievements include the further enhancements of security
wfrastructure across our operations and increased participation n
safety, security and human rights tramning programmies, involving
participants from the ABG security function, the Tanzanian police force

and local commututies

Further details on 2012 performance and 2013 targets for each matenal
component of our sustainability programme are provided below

Our material areas

GOVERNANCE
& ETHICS

COMMUNITY
RELATIONS

SECURITY

&
HUMAN
RIGHTS

RESPONSIBLE
MINING

Community Relations
« Stakeholder Engagement

« Socral Impacts

+ Community Development
« Resettlement
Employces

+ Labour Pracuces

« Local Employment

« Employment Development
« Talent Retention
Environment

« Conservation and Protection
+ Biodiversity

+ Chmate Change

+ Management of
Hazardous Matenals

Health & Safety
+ Operational Health & Safety

+ Emergency Preparedness
« Communty Wellbeing

» Inczdent Reporting
Secunty & Human Rughts
» Stakeholder Engagement
+ Tranng & Development
» Emergency Preparedness
+ Incident Reporting
Governance & Ethics

- Business Ethics

» Code of Conduct

» Corporate Governance
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ABG’s economic contribution

We contnibute to the economic growth of our host communities, regions and countries
1n a number of ways to assist the progression of sustainable socio-economic development

ABG's total direct economic contrnibution was US$1,073 million in 2012 (US$1,063 mullion in 2011).

Direct econonuc contribution DIRECT ECONOMIC CONTRIBUTION £ 2011
Dhrect economuc contributton 15 made up of the economuc value we add by G202
paying our employees, governments, supphers, shareholders, contractors 0
and communiies However, our true economic contribution 15 far greater
once the preater cffects of our presence 1s considered These include the 0
mdirect effects of people spending thewr wages, governments distriibuting 40
tax and royalty revenues, and neighbouring communities using the 20
wnfrastructure developed for our operations o e T 1 1 ]
20 ]
40
FEE g Tid 3 g 3
E g% -3 = E E 5

Of this, our net taxation contribution was US$159 mullion (US$144 million 1n 2011).

2011 NET TAX CONTRIBUTION 2012 NET TAX CONTRIBUTION
Taxation contribution asm) vt

The table below shows the total of all tax payments for each of the mamn
countnes where we have operations or projects The distnbution of taxes ‘

paid by the Group reflects the geographical spread of our business The

majority of our taxes are paid in Tanzana, thus being the location of owr

operating mines, followed by South Africa. Although ABG’s headquarters

are in London, only a small proportion of our operations are located in $ 1 4 4
the UK. A large propurtion of our adrmstrative, finnance and techmeal

support functons are located 1n South Africa. Please refer to the

government relations discussion provided as part of the Chuef Executive
Officer’s statement for mformation regarding developments affecting ’
royalty payments duning the year
va Qoo % Domme 2

. Taxes Taxes paymentsto o :nTmZLxT$$e§na fuel leves) (15) O |nmz“m‘r("\:mm fuel levies) 17
(uss'000) Taxes borre collected Subtotal refunded governments O Payroll taxes {In¢ socizl security) 72 ([ Payroll taxas {inc social secunty) 75
Tanzania 99,658 54,991 154,649 (4,500) 150,149 0 Other taxss (nc WHT stamp dutias O Other taxas (inc WHT stamp duties
South Africa 1541 571 2 7253 ( 1 146) 6,107 environmentsl levies i5 enviranmental levies 27
Other 1,656 2,381 4,037 (B6B) 3,169
Total 102,855 63,084 165,939 {6,514) 159,425
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Corporate responsibihity continued

Progress made under the

ABG Maendeleo Fund

We established the ABG Maendeleo Fund 1n 2011 as part of
our commitment to promoting sustainable development in
Tanzania ABG aims to commut U§$10 mullion per year to
the fund, making it the largest commumnity development fund
of its kind 1n Tanzania We use the fund to support all of our
community investment programmes Funding prionity 1s
given to investments that support commuruty development
and capacity building, access to heaith, education and water
and environment projects within communities surrounding
our gperations

Since its mception in 2011, the ABG Maendeleo Fund has approved
funding for projects amounting to approximately US$7 4 milhon Of thus
amount, US$3 6 milhion was mvested n projects during 2612 We invested
US$1 4 rmihon for projects supporting North Mara local communities,
US30 5 milhon for projects supporting Buzwag local communities,

US30 1 million 1n projects that support Bulyanhulu local communities
and US$0 3 rmlhon for projects supparting communities 1n the vicimty

of Tulawaka. We alsa invested 17881 3 milion m projects spansored at

a corporate level The majonty of commitments relate to projects that
support community development and access to healthcare and education

In addition to local initiatives, during the year we commenced sponsorship
of a regronal programme to fund the provision of additional school desks

and other equipment to schools The project entitled “A desk for every
chald’, auns at increasing school capacities to ulimately increase
opporturuties for access to education in ABG local communities
Ultimately, we atm to contribute 5,000 new school desks to ths project

= Go onhne to find all the projects www afncanbarmckgold com

Education

Supporting projects that increase access to
education 1s a primary objective of the ABG
Maendeleo Fund. Qur core projects focus on
encreastng educational ifrastructure, through
the building and renovation of schools,
providing core supphes, such as books and
equpment, and providing scholarships and
training opportunities for students and

Healthcare

We support access to healthcare through
investment in a wade range of projects, including
projects that build and strengthen local healthcare
infrastructure, projects that increase healthcare
capacities through training and development, the
sponsorship of international surgical mussions
and by supporting a range of mitiatives aimed

at helping to combat core infecuous diseases,

Community development

We support community economic development
through trawung and employment imtzatives
and local trading arrangements We use local
supphers and businesses wherever possible

for our operations, and support traimng
programmes that ain to enhance skill sets
within commurties.

members of the teaching profession namely malaria, HIV/AIDs, and tuberculosis
Koy projects Amount Invested Key projects Amount invested Key projects Amount Invested
supported in 2012 in 2012 supported In 2012 In 2012 supported in 2012 In 2012

10 us$0.Bmiinon

16 US$1 .5m1li|on

11 US$1.5milhon
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Community relations

The development of social management plans, which wall
act as the pninapal too) for the management of socal
performance across all ABG operattons gomng forward, was

a core focus for 2012 Dunng the year we agreed the form of
social management plan for use at North Mara and Buzwag,
both of which wilt be implemented 1 2013 The socal
management plan for Bulyanhulu will be developed in 2013
Relevant components of a social management plan for
Tulawaka will be included n the closure plan for this mene,
given the current status of its mine hife

We continued to progress objectives under the North Mara
Co-Exstence Plan throughout the year The execution of
Village Benefit Agreernents and Village Benefit Implementation
Agreements with all seven vitlages surrounding the mme
during the first half of the year represented a ssgmificant step
m the agreement and identification of key social legacy 1ssues
with these commumties The imtial wnvestrnent under these
agreements was estumated at US$8 5 million over the first
three years, and we estumate that 1t could take a further three
years to fully umplement them, with a similar financial
cornmmtmnent over the second three-year period The form of
mvestment wn each of the wilages differs, but includes the
development of schoo! mfrastructure, improvements in
access to water supply, the upgrading of the Sungu-Sungu
Chintc, so that it may quahfy for ongomg government hospital
funding, rehabihtation of willage offices, and improvements to
road and electnaity supply infrastructure. In addition to this,
we have also committed approximately 51% of ABGS total
community tnvestment for 2012 to projects in North Mara's
surrounding areas The remaiming components of the North
Mara Co-Existenrce Plan have been combined wath the North
Mara social management plan and will be taken forward as
part of this plan

Group-wide community investments in 2012 amounted to
approxumately US$14 4 mullion, almost a 95% tncrease on
2011 Approved community investment projects principally
focus on access to education, healthcare, water and the
development of local snfrastructure

We continued our support for CanEducate 1n 2012, whuch
raised total funds of approximatety CAD$127,000 These
funds wall be used to support approximately 1,461 students in
local commumities around Bulyanhulu, Buzwag and, following
extension of the programme during the year, North Mara, as
well as an orphanage 1n Dar es Salaam.

As part of our plans to enhance our social incident reporting
practices, we developed new procedures for social and
secunty nsk asscssments during the year These procedures
will be used to help to identify potential incidents, which
pose sigmificant soxial and secunity nsks o our operating
environment Procedures are now at implementation stage
and we amm to complete this across all operations by the
end of 2013

A total of 443 new gnevances were lodged under the ABG
community greevance management and resolution procedure
1 2012 The majonity of new gnevances continue to relate to
tustoric land compensation rnalters at North Mara.

TOTAL COMMUNITY Progress in 2012
INVESTMENT + Execution of Village Benefit Agreements and
(US$m)
Village Benefit Implementation Agreements
with local communinhes at North Mara
» Development of social management plans
— for Buzwag and North Mara
= + Development of soctal and security
| risk assessments
uS$14.40e]
O Bulyaahuly uss12 Priorities for 2013
g zo“:’h"ﬂm "ﬁﬁ; » Implementaton of soctal management plans
0 Tulawaka UssL3 at Buzwagi and North Mara
[ Corporate UsS33 4
« Development of a social management plan
BREAKDOWN OF NEW for Bulyanhulu
3&%&;? LODGED » Further progression of social incident
reparting, gnevance and nsk Wdentificaton
443
O Butyenuty 21
0 Burwag 23
O Navth Mara 396
O Tulawaka 3

Case study ABG social management plans

Social management plans, or SMPs as they are commonly referred to, are
site specific framework plans that 1denufy execution strategies for all socual
commtments identified and agreed for implementation as part of ABGS
commurnty mvestment and development commitments The formulation of
SMPs seeks to ensure that social obligations assumed by each ABG operation
are 1dentufied and agreed in a transparent manner o appropnately balance
commitments and the requrements of our operating environment. SMPs are
developed by each site in collaboration with a wide range of stakeholders,
including local communities and government departments, 1n order to ensure
that plans are objectively formulated. Once agreed, SMP implementation

1$ momtored agawnst speafied key performance indicators and project
implementation timetables Compliance with SMPs 15 also evaluated as

part of a social monitoring process conducted by government bodtes.
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Corporate responsibility continued

Employees

Turnover rates for our operations stabilised 1 2012 at 14%,
an mmprovement of 3% on 2011 turnover levels, and a notable
achievement given the continued competition for qualified
personnel across the mimng industry generally During the
latter half of the year we expenenced a spike in resignations,
notably at Bulyanhuiu, as a result of potential changes to
Tanzanian pension lepsslation We wall continue to momtor
developments in this area i1 2013 We have continued to
progress our comnutment to the localisation of our
workforce, with national employment levels amounting to
91% of our operations’ workforce 1n 2012, a 2% umprovement
on 2011

We have further progressed ramng and development
programmes throughout the year, ncreasing front line
supervisor particpation in eur Supervisory Development
Programme and high potennal indmduals’ participation in
our Management Development Programme Overall, 59% of
Group employees participated in technical tramning courses
durning the year, cornpared to 56% 1n 2011

‘We employed 30 graduates from the Integrated Mining
Techmcal Traiming (“IMTT™} programme tn 2012, this being
a vocational training programme developed by ABG 1n
conpunction with other stakeholders withun the Tanzaman
commercial runng mdustry, n order to support and
progress technical tratming for the mining sector ABG
currently sponsors 126 partcipants in the IMTT programme
and reviews employment opportunities for programme

graduates each year

The industnal relations chimale has been stable acrass our
operations and we ended 2012 without any new matenal
sndustrial relations achons being commenced at any of our
operations Overall approximately 41% of our national
employees held unton membership at year end, compared to
48% n 2011 We continue to foster good relanonships with
the Tanzaman Mining and Construction Workers' Union
(“TAMICO") at all of our operattons and we are further
progressmg employee consultation witiatives as part of our
employee communications practices

Progressin 2012

« The estabhishment of the ABG Talent Counal to review
succession planning and employee development requirements

+ Progression of ABG capacity building imihatives to support
employee tocalbisatton targets, particularly at semior level

» Improved employee consultation practices, ncluding the
estabhishment of workplace communication forums

Priorities for 2013
« Aclueving a localisation target of 93% across our operations

« Stabihsing turnover of high polential indmaduals at 5% across
our operations

« Malang further enhancements to employee and industrial
relahons engagement processes
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Case study

Supporting professional devefopment
ABG operates a professional development
education programme which provides
sponsorshup to mdmduals for professional
studies Rachard Ojendo, Construction Manager
at Buzwag) Mine, particrpated wn this
programme, recerving sponsorstup for an MSc
in Constructzon Project Management from
Henot-Watt Unrversity, Edinburgh. He
graduated wath a master’s degree in November
2012 The master’s programme focused on
international best practice as regards the
management of constniction projects, helping
Ruchard to further develop hus knowledge and
skalls in thas area, skalls that wil now be
employed 1n the performance of hus
responsibilities at ABG



Environment

We continued to enhance the ABG Group's environmental
and permitting management systems throughout the year in
order to improve ahignment with operational objectives.

GHG emussions for the year equalled 359,458 metric tonnes
of which 71,010 metnic tonnes represented indirect emussions
and 288,448 metric tonnes represented direct emussions
Overall, this 1s a 24% increase on GHG emussions from 2011
The inereasc 1s prumanly due to increased self generation of
power at each of our sites, notably at Buzwagt, and increases
1 the size of mobile flect across our operatrons We contunue
to review feasible options to improve GHG ernission levels in
the context of the rehability of grid power supply In addition,
we are n1 the process of reviewing appropriate targets i the
context of the new mandatory GHG enussion reporting
requirements that will be introduced i 2013 for UK histed
compantes and will provide an update on thus 1n due course

Our ability to progress efficiencies in energy use and
conservation imtiatives continues to be impacted by ongowng
nterruptions to electricity supply in Tanzansa. In 2012 we
used 592 megajoules of energy per tonne of ore processed,

a 17% increase on 2011 levels Our energy profile for the year
comprised 82% diesel use, 17% electricity use, with our use of
explosives, propane, petrol and other fuels remarning largely
equivalent to 2011 Key energy conservation projects
implemented 1n 2012 mcluded the mstallation of a plant
elliaency programme at Bulyanhulu

In 2012 we used 7 4 mullion cubic metres of water across our
operations, of which 4 3 milhon cubic metres represents fresh
water Overall our use of fresh water remained tn hine with
2011 (4 3 cubsc meters 1n 2011) In addition, we improved
efficencies in water use generally in 2012, using 550 hitres of
water per tonne of ore mulled, a decrease of 3% on 2011 levels
(568 litres of water per tonne milled)

We continued to progress our hazardous materials
management practices throughout the year with the
development of non-muneral waste management plans for all
of our operations These plans will adwise sites on actions
required in order 1o comply with Tanzanan legislabon and
satisfy good waste management practices. In addition,
Bulyanhuly obtamed full recertification under the
International Cyamde Management Code, tn hine with key
priorities set for the year We have also continued to progress
Buzwagy's imtial certification under this code, in comyuncuon
wnth the ongoing commissioming of the Buzwag! detoxfication
plant. We now ain to complete this cerufication process i
the first hatf of 2013

We are contimung to work with the relevant authorities to
progress the hfung of the Environmental Protection Order
(“EPQO") at North Mara mn order to be able to discharge water
NEMC, the Tanzanian environmental regulator, has recently
visited the operation for a final review and we are now

awaiting thewr approval.

Progressin 2012

« Obtamng Bulyanhulu's recertthcation under the Internabonal Cyamde

Management Code

« Improving water usage ethaienaes by 3%

« Completion of closure plan for Tulawaka

Prionties for 2013

« Obtaimng imtal certificatton of Buzwagy under the International Cyamde

Management Code

« Completing the commussioning of the North Mara Water Treatment Plant
for the hfting of the EPQ and obtarung a discharge permut for the site

+ Compleung the implemertatien of all non-minng waste management plans

Y LUSED PER
TONNE OF ORE
PROCESSED
{Megajoules)

592 1 (1 ]2

0O Bulyanhuiu 197
O Buzwag: 542
O North Mara 507
0 Tulawaka 1412

TOTAL WATER USED
(in Wtres used per tanne
of ore produced)

550

I uiyanhudu 873
[ Burwagi 479
7 North Mara 459
O Tulawaka 896

Casestudy Environmental rehabilitation
The Gonzara arcd is a ntatural wetland arcd 1in
the wamty of the North Mara mine This arca
was adverscly affecled by soil contamination

in 2009 as a result of aad rock dramnage and
discharge from seepage contanment ponds
which nccurred after trespassers entered the
mine premises, vandahsed, and 1n some cases
stole, the plastic pond hners designed to prevent
such seepage occurring ABG rectified this hy
excavating and replacing the contaminated souls,
lime dosing the wetland area, nstailing
defensive trenches and sumps 1o cul off any
further actd drainage or seepage and concluding
a re-vegetation exercise of the affected areas. The
results of this exercise were monitored from
2009 to 2012 and showed ongoing restoration
of vegetaton, the return of native wildhife to

the area and, ultmnately, the restoration of a
functioning ecosystern
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Corporate responsibility continued

Health and safety

We achieved an ABG Group-wide total reportable injury
frequency rate (“TRIFR”) of 0.83 for 2012, a 309 improvement
on 2011, far exceeding the 109 improvement target set for
the year We will look to further progress thus in 2013 and am
to improve 2012 achievements by an additional 10% As part
of our review of health and safety metncs, we have deaided to
focus solely on TRIFR going forward, given that this captures
all injuries 1n the workplace and thus a wider range of
mcidents than those captured by monitoring lost ime mjury
frequency rates alone Despite improvements made overall

1 ABG Group TRIFR, we regretfully suffered two fatalities
across our operations 1n 2012 The first involved a contractor
employee at Buzwag: who was mnvolved 1n a vehicle related
madent. ‘The second involved an ABG employee at [ulawaka
who was involved in a mobile equipment accrdent Both of
these incidents have been investigated and the necessary
corrective action taken

We continued to develop and implement critical nsk
standards throughout the year, focused on the prometion
of health and safety best practice across specific mimng
processes and procedures For 2012 we developed five new
cnical rsk standards i the following areas Vehucles and
Drving, Confined Space Entry, Hazardous Energy Isolation,
Woaorlang at Heaghts, and Ground Control The Ground
Control standard was fully implemented duning the year In
2013 we will look to complete the implementation of the
remaining standards and will look to develop addiional
standards for Contractor Safety Management, Cranes and
Lifting, and Critical Infrastructure Mantenance

We continued to develop ABG health standards throughout
the year, which are designed to prevent industrial illness
across our operations In 2012 we developed health standards
for the treatment of sihicosis, cyanide poisorung and
anaphylaxus, all of which are currently under implementation
In 2013 we will look to complete implementation of these
standards and develop additional standards for the treatment
of nowse induced heaning loss and respiratory protection

We also continued to progress community health rmpact
assessments, wiuch assess the potentral impact of our
operations on public health, throughout the year Ultimately,
thes process aims to create communty health management
plans for all of our operations In 2012 we completed
consultaion processes for the creation of a community health
management plan for Buzwag and we are 1 the process of
finabsing plans for North Mara and Tulawaka We will look
to complete these processes in 2013 Commumity health
umpact assessments for Bulyanhulu are scheduled to
commence 1n 2014
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0.83 Lol
O Bulyanhuiu 102
[] Buzwagt as?
3 North Mara 071
O Tulawaka 138

Progress 1n 2012
+ Achieving a 30% improvement 1n ABG
Group TRIFR

+ Developing five critical risk standards to
support mining processes and procedures

+ Developing three health standards to combat
occupational flness in the workplace

» Creating a commumty health management
plan for Buswag

Priortties for 2013
+ Achieving a further 10% improvement 1n
ABG Group TRIFR

» Completing the implementatton of our existing
five cntical nsk standards and developing three
new critical nsk standards

+ Developing two new health standards to combat
occupational illness m the workplace

+ Completing the creation of community health
management plans for North Mara and Tulawaka

Casesstudy Visible Felt Leadership and Courageous Leadership

The Visihle Felt [ eadership and Courageous T eadership programmes are the
primary training tools used throughout our organisatton to promote health and
safety practices Programme objectves focus on ways in which leaders wathun
Our organisation can umprove interactions with erployees m the workplace

in order to promote and teach ABG's vision and values to help drive health

and safety performance In 2012 we set mimmurm targets for management
interaction across the workforce in order to premote the standards set by these
programmes, all of which were largely exceeded



Security and Human Rights

We made a number of enhancements to security and safety infrastructure
across our operations during the year, further umproving our operating
environment At North Mara we completed the installation of the safety
wall at the Nyabirama pit and upgrades to gold plant secunty mecharusms
and securtty personnel accommodaton At Bulyanhulu we commenced
secunity comphance reviews aganst our Gold Secunty Standard and
completed the mstallation of new security premuses for secunty personnel
At Buzwagi we commenced the installation of additional surverllance
equipment, something which wall continue mnto 2013, and completed the
nstallation of crisis control centres We also installed additional
surveillance equipment at Tulawaka

We continued to progress traimung as regards our secunty practices and
expectations for individual performance of secunty related duties
throughout the year Overall we assisted with the training of approxumately
6,367 indviduals on the Voluntary Principles on Security and Human
rights, 6,569 individuals on use of force practices, and 5,927 indnnduals on
the detection and prevention of sexual harassment Participants m ABG
traxmng programmes mcluded members of the Tanzansan Policing Unit
assigned to provide security to our operations, ABG security employees
and contractors and community watchmen

From a governance perspective, we saw a noticeable improvement across
a number of areas relevant to operational security nisk assessments and
audsts, including comphance with our Gold Security Standards, the
Voluntary Principles on Security and Human Rughts, use of force
protocols, mvestigations and use of personal protective equipment

Dunng the year we decided to report security related total reportable
wyury frequency rate as a subsection of overalt total reportable inpury
frequency rate, as part of increased focus on the monitoring of security
incidents umpacting our operations For the year, the secunty related total
reportable inpury frequency rate was 0 16 In thus regard, the majonity of
secunty incidents continue to occur at North Mara. We expenenced a
spike 1n illegal mining activity and related inaidents of trespass during the
year, particularly at North Mara in the latter half of the year, however, this
has now returned to normahised levels

In the context of hurnan rights, in addttion to Voluntary Principles
trarmung, we continued to progress the roll out of our human rights policy
and compleance programme, notably with the further implementation
of reporung and mvestigations procedures fur suspected human

rights vivlateons

In comunction with ABG traming initiatives, Search for Common Ground
{“SFCG™) contmued to progress its human nghts traimng and conflict
resolutton programme, building on progress made 1n 2011 Duning the
year, SFCG held 95 training sessions with commurnuties surrounding ABG
mine sttes, mvolving 1,428 community members overall, in order to
progress understanding of the Voluntary Principles on Secunty and
Human Rights In addition to this, SFCG held 60 youth conflict
management sessions, in which 1,868 commumty members participated,
55 sesstons focused on conflict management as 1t affects women, 1n which
1,570 mdrviduals participated, and 76 participatory theatre productions.
A number of football tournaments, zimed at relationship bulding across
ABG stakeholder base, were also held. All of these initiatives aim to
progress discussion, commurcation and understandings as regards the
effect of confhct and conflict refated 1ssues wathin communities

In 2013, we will continue to develep our security and safety training and
systems In addition, we aim to progress wider stakeholder engagement on
the development of enhanced law and order frameworks for our operating
environment, m particular with regronal and national Tanzanian
authonties and law enforcement bodses

Progress in 2012
« Completing enhancements to security systems across all
ABG operations

= Increasing training on the Voluntary Principles on Security
and Human Rights across ABG stakeholders

+ Progressing implementation of our human rights
comphance programme

Prionities for 2013
» Mamtairung traiming levels on the Voluntary Principles on
Secunty and Human Faghts

+ Progressing dialogue on law and order, parhcularly at North Mara,
with our wider stakeholder group

Case study Working towards effective conflict management

In 2011 we established a partnership with Search for Common Ground,
an mternatienally recogmsed NGO n the field of confhct resolution, to
help strengthen trust and improve collaboration between ABG operations
and local communities 1n the context of conflict management, particularly
at North Mara The ulhimate objective of our partnership 1s to find
culturally appropriate ways to constructively deal with conflicts in arder to
mutigate conflict escalation SFCG use a number of methods of commusmty
engagement 1n order to progress understanding of conflict resolutions In
addition to general community tranng programmes, SFCG's activities
nclude youth conflict tramng management sesstons aimed at younger
members of communities, which focus on the dangers of Wegal muning
and mne site mtrusions, and tramng sessions specifically for women,
focused on identifying pertinent ssues such as harassment and other
unacceptable acttons against women Other engagement tools mclude

the creanen and distribution of educational matenals, such as comcs, to
discuss topics including the Voluntary Principles on Security and Human
Raghts, UN gudehines on use of force by law enforcement officials,
unyversal human nghts and sexual harassment. SFCG also uses theatre
productions in vrder to mghhght conflict scendnos in context and
sporting activities, such as football tournaments involving players from
local communities, the authonties and members of the ABG workforce,
which aim to build relations and teamwork.
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Risk management

Committed to effective risk management

Effective risk management requres collective responsiihity and engagernent across our orgartsation For this reason, our nisk
management practices are structured across our governance framework to ensure that the Board, certain Board comnuttees,
the Semor Leadership Team, General Managers and Functional Heads are accountable for :dentifymng, imitigating and managing
nsk m accordance with the responsibilities of their function and their role within our orgamsation

RISK MANAGEMENT ACROSS THE BUSINESS

BOARD  —
Utimately responsible for effectiveness of internal control systems
defines ABG's risk has overali responsibility approves all key componems
appetite and tolerance for nsk management compliance of nsk management and intemal
contra! systems
. AUDIT COMMITTEE . :lHSf&S °°M”'"EE(
P Plays a key role in reviewing effectiveness esponaible for environmental, secunty, &
health & safety systems

reviews effectiveness of intemal control systems

reviews all matenal findings of the internal
and external audit functions reviews the effectiveness of ABG'Ss environmental managernent
programmes and systems, security systems, health and
approves the annual Intemal and extemal audt plan safety systems and social performance
reviews effectiveness of financial reporting nsk

management systems

SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM
— Accountable for the design and implementation of risk management processes and —
the consistent application of nsk management systems

GENERAL MANAGERS AND FUNCTIONAL HEADS
Ensure nsk management compliance 1s embodied in ABG s culture, practices and operations

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
Assists the Board and Management in executing their responsibiities

a cnyical role in advising
and producing guidance
on nsk-related matters

assists management reviews nsk Interpretation
N conducting nsk studies profites of nsk data
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Risk management

The successful delivery of ABG's strategy depends on our ability to tolerate
and manage risks appropnately in a manner that does not jeopardise the
interests of our stakeholders

For ths reason, we conduct risk assessments throughout the year as part
of business performance and operational reviews, including

» Quarterly business reviews

+ Group level risk workshops to consider overall strategic nisks to
the business

» Operational risk workshops focused on speafic operational nisks
1 the context of each of our operations

« Funcuonal risk workshops to assess key matters which could affect
underlying support furtctions, such as treasury, tax and technical
services, requured for our long-term business plans

= Monthly uperatiunal and inanaal performance reporting

Our annual business plan and budgeting process incorporate nsks
wdentified through the above reviews Residual rnisks are then idennified
hased on the effectiveness of existing controls and mitgating action plans
prepared for all hugh impact areas When compiled, all nsk assessments
are assessed by the Servor Leadership Teamn in the first instance, the Audit
and EHS&S commuttees, where relevant, and ultimately form the basis of
a detailed Board review Further details as regards the outcome of the
Board's internal control and risk management review for the year I
provided on page 63

2012 Risk Review

Generally, the overall makeup of our prinapal nsks has not sigmificanty
changed from 2011 However, duning the year there have been changes

m certamn risk profiles as a result of developments in our operating
environment and continuing uncertainties and trends withun the wider
global economy and/or the muning industry Where approprate, risk
ratings have been reviewed against risk management controls and other
mitigating factors In this regard, we have removed nsks relating to health
and infectious diseases from the 2012 principal risks table, grven that our
controls in these areas continue to mutigate potential impacts of such risks
to an acceptable level In addition

+ Increases in operating costs and capital expenditure due to continued
mdustry cost pressures and increased cash costs at our operations, risks
relating to increases in capital expenditure as well as increases in
operating costs, principally labour, capital equipment and energy costs,
remain high However, as a result of the ongomng implementation of cost
controls and the mtended cost control plans contained within the
ongoing Operational Review our overall risk rating for these areas
remains unchanged.

» Power supply we have continued to invest in power geteration
capabihities throughout the year to help mitigate the effects of stoppages
and iterruptions Therefore, although we have continued to expenence
tssues 1n electncty supply duning the year as a result of ongoing supply
1ssues throughout Tanzania, our nisk rating as regards interruptrons in
key utilities remains unchanged

» Recrwitment and retention of qualified personnel as a result of
continued competinon for qualified personnel across the mining
industry and the uncertainty created within our workforce as a result
of Barnck’s discusstons with China National Gold, we have deaded to
maintain a hagh risk rating for the retention and recnutment of our
slalled workforce In addition, further developments affecung pension

practices tn Tanzama could produce further adverse effects on the
retention of certain long-term employees

« Political, legal and regulatory developments we achieved a number

of posiive outcomes as regards our operating framework in Tanzama,
namely our adoptton of an additional voluntary 1% royalty goung
forward, the renewal of cur Special Mining Licences at North Mara and
the grant of certain PAF permuts to support this operation. However,
our ability to progress our government relations strategy over the latter
half of the year was impeded, and 1n certain instances negatrvely
impacted, by the prolonged Offer Penod to which ARG was subject.
‘We have now resumed efforts in this area, such that our nisk outleck for
political and regulatory developments currently remains unchanged.

+ Rusks relating to security, trespass and vandahsm we have continued
to strengthen our securtty systems throughout the year and refine our
secunty plans Although we experienced a spike in dlegal mmning
activity and related incidents of trespass during the latter half of the
year, particularly at North Mara, this has now returned to normalised
levels, such that our cutlook on securiy risks rematns largely unchanged.

+ Taxation During the year arevised Finance Act was introduced in
Tanzarua that 15 Inconsistent with previous agreements reached between
us and the Tanzanian authorties on the treatinent of VAT relief We
continue to progress discusstons on these inconsistencies n order to
achieve a resolution 1n line with what we had previously agreed under
amemorandum of settlement with the Tanzantan Revenue Authonty
for the treatment of certaun outstanding indirect tax refunds in respect
of fucl lewics and valuc added tax. ABG's finanaal condibon may be
adversely affected 1f we do not achieve a successful resolution to
these discussions

We have also noted the followwng as addihonal nsks to the 2012 principal
nisks table, following certain strategic and operational developments and/
or contnwng developments 1n the mining industry

+ Land acquisitions due to the putenual ramufications of inereases in the
cost of land acqusitions to support the expanszon and contnuation of
our current mining activities and the potential impacts that delays in
completing such acquisitions may have on our operations, particularly
at North Mara, we have decided to introduce land acquusitions as a
stand-alone principal risk.

« Changes affecing the majonty sharcholding although discussions
between Barrick and Chuna National Gold did not ultimately result in
any transaction affecting ABG shares, we are mindful of the impact
that uncertainty created 1n the context of any change in the majonity
ownershup structure could have on ABG and its operations and the
need to flag this nisk to our wider stakeholder base

The following 1able sets out the principal nsks affecting the ABG Group 1n
more detard In addition to those nisks stated, there may be addinonal nisks
unknown to ABG and other nisks, currently believed to be immaterial, that
could turn vut to be matenial to the Group These nsks, whether they
matendlise indadually or simullaneously, could sigrmbicantly affect the
Group’s business and finanaidl results In addition, ABG could also be
affected by nsks relating to the gold mmng industry generally and the
risks and hazards involved in the business of mining metals, which are
largely outside 1ts control. Lastly, due to the very nature of nsks, mitigating
factors stated should not be viewed as assurances that actions taken or
planned will be wholly effective Addiional discussions of certan trends
and uncertantics that may atfect our operatons arc provided as part of

our Operating review
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Risk management continued

Risk Key management responsibility

Strategic risks

Single country nsk

All of the ABG Group's revenue is denived from production at its four faalitres in Tanzama In order to ensure continued growth, the Vice President, Exploration and

Group needs to identify new resources and development apportumties through exploration and acquision targets Tlead of Corporate Devlopment
and Investor Relations

Reserves and resources estimates

The ABG Groups stated mineral reserves and resources are estimates based on a range of assumphons including geolomeal, metallurgcal
and techmical factors, there can be no assurance that the antiapated tonnages or grades will be aclueved

Chief Operating Otheer and
Viw Proeadent T xploratcm

Changes aftecting the majonty shareholding

Members of the Barrick Group hold approxunately 74% of the issued share capital of ABG, making Barmick the majonty sharehalder of
the ABG Group As 4 result of thus shareholding, Barnik as able Lo exerase signubicant influence over all matters requinng shareholder
approval, Induding the electien of Directors, the approval of corporate transactions, the issuance of Ordemary Shares and other equuty
secumities and the payment of dvidends. Furthermore, the concentration of ownership may (1) delay or deter a change of control of the
ABG Groap- (i) deprive sharcholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for ther shares as part of a sale of the ABG Group, and (1)
affect the market price and liquidity of the thares of ABG

Chrf Lxecutive Ofheer

Financial risks

Commodity prices

The ABG Groups finenaul pordfirmance o laghly depondont upom the prc of gold and, 1o a loiser wxent, the prce of opper and sibver
[he prcas of these commaodities are atfecwed by 4 number of facturs beyond ABGs contral Rapid flucigations in pniang of these
commuihities will have 4 comrespunding impact an ABG: finanaal position

¢l Tmanaa) € dhicer and
Vice President, Finance

Costs and capital expenditure

ABG operales a cycheal buniness where fluctuabons in operanng cash flow and caputal expenditure may adversely affect ABGs finanaal
posiion In additian, industry cost pressures, notably as regards labour, catal equipment and energy, may affect ABG' cash flow and
capital expendrtare

Chief Finanaal Officer and
Vice President, Fanance

External risks

Political, legal and regulatory developments

The ABG Group's exploranan, development and aperziomal actmitics are subject to extensive laws and regulaions governing vanous
matters i the jurtsdictions in which it operates Changes to exisuing law and regulations, or more stringent application or nterpretation
of current laws and regulations by relevant government authonbes could adversely affect the ABG Group's operations and development
projects. In paruicular, as ABG s revenue 15 currently derived excluavely from the production from its faciliies in Tanzanta, its business
operations and fAinanaal condition may be adversely affected by legal and regulatory changes and developments in Tanzania, or if emshng
mmeral development agreemients are not honoured by the Tanranian government,

The Group may also be adversely affected by changes in globa! economic conditians, pohiucal and/ar economic instability in Tanzanta or
a0y of 15 surrornding countnes.

Vice Premdent, Corparate Affairs
and General Counse|

Taxation reviews

The ABG Group's financial condition may be adversely affected 1n the event of the introducuon of revised royalty or corporate tax
regimes m Tanzana that go beyond agresments reached and contamed 1n ABG s Miners] Development Agreements.

ABGs finanqial condition may also be adversely affected of 11 15 unsuccessful 10 1ts current appeals and/or discussions with the TRA and/
or the Mimstry of Finance regarding autstanding tax assessments and unresolved tax disputes, particularly as regards the application of
VAT relief 1o the Group’s operations.

Chief Finanaia! Qfficer and
Vice President, Finance
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Potential  Chonge
Mithgation/comment Progress made sn 2032 impact from 2011 further information
ABG assesses a wide range of potentsal growth opporturuties to build = Conhinuing evaluation of corporate High L] A review of exploration actrvities
on tts existing portfolio, including external acquisiion and development development opportunities across 1s set out in the Exploration review
opporturnhes outside Tanzania to maxamise growth potential, the region on pages 28 to 33
« Completion of acquisition of Aviva Mimng

(Kenya} Limuted
ABG management has umplemented a number of processes to + Reserves and Resources commuttee 1n High - Detauls of the ABG Group’s
continuously monitor and evaluate the Company’s life of mine plans place to suppart Semior Leaderthup Team reserves and resources are set out
and production targels The ABG Groups rusouries and restrves are and Hoard on pages 88 0 91
updated snnually ABG fullows NT 43 101 of the Canadian Insutute of Co O alR
Mining Metalinrgy and Petroleum when calculating its mineral reserves  * COTTencement of Operational Review, Detals of ABGs management
and resources mcluding review of management processes committees are provided on

for the momtonng of production largets page 61

and long-term life of mine planmmg
As part of arrangements entered mnto prior to ABGS IPO, ABG entered = Establishment of temporary Transaction High Further detals as regards
o agreemenis with Bamiek for the management of relanonshups committee of the Board 1n connection with discussions relating to the majority
between the ARG Group and the Barnck Group Key to this 15 the the Offer Persod applied to the Company are provided as part of
relationshup agreement, the principal purpose of winch 1s 10 ensure that connection with Barmek’s discussions with the Chatrman and Chuef Executive
ABG 15 capable of carrying on its business independently of the Barrick China National Gold Ofthcer s statements Detabs
Group and that transactions and relationshups with the Bamck Group regarding the relabonship agreement
are conducted at arms length and on normal commercal terms are provided within the Corporate

governance report on page 63
ABGs strategic objective is to provide maximum exposure to the price « Entry mto hedging facihties for copper, High -_— Further tnformation 1s set 0wl
of gold As such, a no gold hedging policy has been adopted. ABG sitver and diesel 1n the market overview provided
has implemented a number of processes (o assess its exposure o other as part of the Financial review on
comeaodity price fluctuations ABG has alsa entered mto hedging pages 35 to 36
facilities in connection with copper siver and diesel price fluctuauons
and 15 reviewang appropriate hedging facilities to assist in the
management of exposure to other commodities
ABG managemen contmuously onitors operational costs and capnal  « Avatlateiny of revolning credut faciuy High - Furiher informaion 1s set ool
expenditure It holds a conservative balance sheet and has a ngorous for workang capital purposes the Fmanaal review generally and
cash How planning process to mitigate hquidity risks Tt also has a as part of the Chuef Executive
commercial credit faciity to support general working capatal purposes, * :;rangemeréts In place to hedge South Officer s statement.
whuch remains undrawn 1can Fand exposure
+ Completed project financng for

Bulyanhulu CIL Expansion project
The Group assesses legal and pohtical risks as part of 1ts evaluatan of « Renewal of Special Miming Licences High — Further information 15 provided
potential projects It actively momators legal and polncal developments at North Mara on page 10
n countnes n which its existing operations are focated, + Grant of certarn waste rock permts
The Group acuvely engages :n dialogue with the Tanzantan at North Mara
government and legal policy makers to discuss all key legal and « Grant of all government approvals for
regulatory developments applicable to 1ts eperations, in particilar Bulyanhulu CIL Expansion Project
developments i connection wath the Tanzanian Mining Act and
apphicable environmenial legislabon
The ARG Group has entered 1nta a senes of angoing discussions with « Mavement 1o addiional voluntary 1% High ”~ Further mformation 15 provided as

the Tarzaruan government with the goat of resolving outstandemg tax
disputes and recovermy amounts owed and continues to review taxation
matters generally on an ongoing basis

royalty rate

« Memorandum of Understanding executed
for the treatment of certan outstanding
wndirect tax refunds in respect of fuel levies
and VAT

part of the Financial review
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Risk management continued

Risk

Key management responsibility

External risks continued

Utilitses supply

Puwer sloppages, fhactuatoms and duisraptions m clectneal power supply or other glihts could adverscly atlect Group operatums and
mpact s financat condibion Tn addiion anoincrease n power wosts would make production mor costly and alloemalig powecr sources

Cheaf Txocutive Ofbicer
Chud Operating Olfuar

may not be avatlable and General Managers

Community relations

A failure to adequately engage or manage relations with local communties and stakeholders could have a direct impact on the ABG Chief Operating Ofhcer,

Groups ability to operate at its existing operations General Counsel,
Vice President, Corporate Affaurs,
Seruor Director for Exvaronment
and Community Relations

Land acquisitions

Progresaon of the ABG Group’s mming actvities is, in certain wnstances, dependent upon the ability of the Group to complete addiional
land acquisibons required to support carrent mine plans Increases in the cost of land acqusitrons required to support the exparision and
continuation of our Aerent smming activities and/or delays i complelng such dacqustons could have 2 maternal adverse effect un
operating condiions, particularly at North Mara

il T xecative Ofheer Chad Upuratang
Ofhicer Viwe Prosidant Corpuraw Adlars
and General Counsel

Operational risks

Vanations to production and cost estimates

The ABG Groups actual production and costs may vary from estimates of future production, cash costs and capital costs for a vanety
of reasons including actual ore mined varying from estunates of grade, tonnage, dilunon and metallurgical and other charactenstics,
short-term operating factors relating to ore reserves, revisions to nune plans, risks and hazards associated with minieg ratural
phonomena, and uncxpeted Rbour shortages or stedkes € osts of prsdacton may also he aflected by 2 vanety of factors, including
changing waste to ore vatues, ore grade metallurgy, labour costs, the wost of commaoditees, goneral intlattonary pressarcs and curroncy
exchange rates Fallure to achieve production or cost estimates could have an adverse impact on the ABG Group's future business,
wash fhews, profitability, results of operations and finanaal vandion

Chief Executive Ofhcer, Chuef Finaricial
Officer Cluef Operating Officer and
General Managers

Loss of critical processes

The ABG Groups mtnng, processing development and exploration actvities depend on the continuous avalability of 1ts operational
infrastructure, iIn addition: to reliable uthires and water supplies and access to roads Any failure or unavalability of operational
infrastructure, for example through equipment failure or disrupion could adversely affect production output and/or impact exploration
and development acuwvities Deficienaes 1n core supply chain avalability could also adversely affect Group operations

Chuef Operating Officer
and General Managers

Environmental hazards and rehabilitabon

The ABG Groups activities are subject to environmental hazards as a result of the processes and chemucals used in s extrachon and
producuon methods The Group may be Liable for losses and costs associated with environmental hazards at s operations have 1ts
licences and permts withdrawn or suspended ag a result of such hazards, or may be forced to undertake extensive clean up and
remediation actron in respect of environmental hazards and inadents relating to sts operations Any such action could have a matenal
adverse effect on the Groups business, operitions and financral condiuon

Chief Operating Officer Senior Director
for Emaronment and Community
Relanons, and General Managers

Employee, contractor and industnal relations

The ABG Groups business ngnificantly depends upon 1ts ability to recrurt and retain quahified persannel, i particular members of the
Semuor Leadershep Teamn and sts skalled team of engineers and geologists The loss of skulled workers and a failure to recrut and train
equnvalent replacements may negatively impact an ABGs operations and production The ABG Groups business alsa depends on good
telahons generally with 1ts employees and employee representative groups, such as trade umons A breakdown in these relatons coukd
result 1n 3 decrease in producton levels and/or increased costs which in turn could have 2 matenal adverse effect on the Groups business
results of operations and finanaal condition

In additron to employees, ABG depends on certain key contractors. Interruptrons in contracted services could result in production
slowdowns and/or stoppages.

Vice President,
Organisational Effectiveness

Security, trespass and vandalism
ARG faces certain risks w1 dealing with trespass theft, corruptian and vandalum atits munes znd unanthorised smalk-scale mimag in

proxmuty to and on specific areas covered by ABG s exploration and muning licences The tmpact of such nsks may have an adverse effect

wpan ABGs operations and financial condition

Chuef Operating Officer, General
Counsel and Drrector of Secunty
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RPitenhial  Charnge
Mitigahoe/cennment Progres made in 2012 impact from 2011 Further information
Capacity of back up or afternative power generation at all of our = Continumg npgrades to back-up power High - Further information on the status
operations has been increased to mantan catical systems. at operations of power supply 15 provided as
part of the Chuef Executrve
» Ongoing review of allemnate power supplies, Oflicer's staternent and the
Operating review
[n addstion to existing corporate social responsility programmes + Development of soc1al management plans High - Details of the Groups community
the Group is truplementing a namber of mtiatives to tmprove and for Buzwagt and North Mara. relatans activities and commumity
buld on local community relations, and contintues to assess and, where . on of funding wtiatives under investments are set ot in the
necessary, increase s socral management leamn's capacity generally u“l '°s’AB“G“ Maendeleo Fund. Carporate responsibility section
The AR Group assesses land acgquisttion regaimements as part of s « Establishment of land acquisition High A discussion of land acquisition
review of life of tune planning and reviews conducted as part of wuorking group requirements m the context
regulatory and Jegal matters. uf North Mara 1s provided as
part of the Chaef Executrve
Officer's statement.
ABG's management has implemented a number of processes to » Commencement of Operational Review, High —_— Further discusgion regarding
continuously monitor and evaluate ABG proctuction and cost meluding @ review of management production and cost esimates
estimates and targets processes for the monttonng of production and the chyecuves of the
targets and long-term life of mine planning. Operational Review 1s provided
s part of the Chidd Txecyglive
Oilcer s statement.
Management assesses the cntical companents of ABG's operational « Further upgrades to inventory management  High - Further discussion regarding
infrastructure an a continuous basis. In addition to external resources procedures and eritical spares procedures nventory movements dunng the
and, when required, ABG has established channels through the support of year are provided as part of the
the Barrick Group network to address entical disruptions 1o 12s technical Financial and Operaling reviews
services and plant equpment Supply chain management and support are
assessed and reviewed against business requirements on a regular basis
The Group has commurtted uself 10 the apphicaton of global standards « Bulyanhulu re-certification under the High -— Details of the ABG Group’s
and rmplementing relevant International Council on Mmmg and International Cyanide Code. environmental activities and
Metal practices, and the International Cyanide Code standards compliance programimnes are
Compliance with apphcable environmental standards 1s assessed « Development ul::: n muneral waste set out 1n the Corporate
on a coptinuous basis. Rermediabhon and rehabilitatron costs ane managerment p responsibaity section
d and d lly + Continuing development of actions
for discharge of EPQ at North Mara
ARG regularly assesses 1ts statf recruitment and retention pohaes 1o = Conunued progression of programmes for High - Further details on employmen
assist with labour stability, and maintains appropriate mrvestinent im workforce localisation practices and retated
traung and development to safeguard the skalls of its workforce. Itis untatves are provided in the
also focused on furthering the nationalisation of its workforce in - F “:h" ;l:mmmrm “l“r mdustral refation Corporate responabality section
Tanzanta and partcipates 1n a number of traning programmes (o and employee consultation Lrtiatrves.
help develop local indusiry expertise Assessments of employee and
key contractor refationships are undertaken on a regular basis to
ensure that the relevant support balances business requrements and
wider expectanons.
Measures have been taken to protect employees, mines and production » Further upgrades 1o security wnfeastruciure. High - Further information on secunty

facihuies from vanions secunty and theft nisks Steps mnchide increasing
existing secunty personnel, the nstallabon of additional perimeter
fenang, surveillance equpment and the mposition of additzonal
secunty checks and procedures Where appropriate, the Growp
contnues to work in collaboration with local law enforcemnent to address
security-related matters In addition, ABG adheres to the Voluntary
Pnnciples as part of its meamberstup of the Barnck Group

« Increased training of secunty
personnel across all operations.

+ Progression of untiauves launched by
Search for Common Ground.

developments and imtatrves
can be found in the Carparite
responsibility section
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Board of Directors

Director biographies
m 1 Derek Pannell, age 66

(Acting Chairman of the Board)

Skalt and Expenience For the reporting peniod,
Mr Pannell was Acting Chasrman of the Board.
Mr Pannell 1s a metallurgicai engineer with over
40 years of experience 1n the mirung and metals
industry He 1s former Charr of the Mining
Association of Canada and a Board member of
the International Council on Mining and Metals.
He holds several other Board appointments,
including Agrium Inc, and 1s Chaurman of the
Board of Directors of Brookfield Infrastructure
Partners LP Mr Pannell was formerly President,
Chuefl Operating Officer and Cluef Executve
Otlicer of Nuranda inc, and Falconbridge Lid,
Mr Pannell holds a Bachelor of Science Degree
in Engineering from tmpenal College London,
England, and 1s a professional engineer
registered i Quebec and Pery He s alsoan
Associate of the Royal School of Mines and a
Fellow of the Canadian Academy of Engineers

@ Executive Directors

2 Greg Hawkins, age 44
(Chief Executrve Otficer)

Skall and Expenence Mr Hawkins 15 the Chuef
Executive Officer of the ABG Group He was
previously employed by Barrick, where since
June 2006 he served as Chief Financial Officer
of the Austraha Paaific Bustness Unit. From
1599 to 2006, Mr Hawkins served n finance
management roles for Barnck Australia/Africa
and for Homestake Mining before its acquisition
by Barrick. Mr Hawkans also previously held
roles as the Finance Manager for Normandy
Mining and as an Audit Manager for Deloatte
He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from
the Unuversity of Western Austrahia. He s a
Chartered Accountant and a member of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors

3 Kevin Jennings, age 43
(Chiel Fwanaial Officer)

EI Skdl and Experience For the reporting period,

MTr Jenmings was the Chief Finanaal Officer of
the ABG Group He was previously employed by
Barnck, where he served from August 2009 as
Vice-President of Corporate Development Mr
Jenmings has held a vaniety of semar
management positions in the munng ndustry
over the last 14 years, mcluding Dhrector,
Business Optimusation at Xstrata ple, Durector,
Strategic Business Analyss at Falconbridge Lid,
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and Chiefl Finanaial Officer at Amencan Racing,
Equipment Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Falconbridge Mr Jennings holds a Bachelor of
Arts Degree in Economucs from the Unrversity
of Western Ontario and a Rachelor of
Admmistrative Studies, with Honours in
Accounting from York University Heis a
Chartered Accountant

Non-Executive Directors

4 Andre Falzon, age 58
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Skall and Expertence: Mr Falzon 1s an
indepenident Non-Executive Drrector of the
ABG Group He1s & setuor finanaal executive
with over 25 years of financial and management
experience within the munng industry,
including a penod as Vice Prestdent and
Controller at Barnck between 1994 and 2006
He 15 a Enrector of Aunzon Mines Ltd He holds
a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from the
Unuversity of Toronto, Canada and 1s a CGA
{Canada} and a CPA, CA {Canada)

5 Ambassador Juma V Mwapachu, age 70
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Skall and Expenence Ambassador Mwapachu is
an independent Non-Executive Director of the
ABG Group Ambassador Mwapachu has held
a number of semor positions 1n both the public
and private sector of Tanzanta and was
appomted as Tanzarua’s Ambassador to France
from 2002 to 2006 He was the founding
Secretary General of the Chamber of
Commerce, Industry and Agniculture and has
served as Chairman of the Confederation of
Tanzama Industries and Chairman of the East
African Business Council He has played a
leading role in the regional tntegration of East
Africa, holding the position of Secretary General
of the East African Community prior to hus
appomntment to the Board and currently holds
the positton of Global President of the Society
for Internanonal Development Ambassador
Mwapachu holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree
with Honours from the Unuversity of East
Africa, a post graduate Degree in International
Law from the Indian Academy, Doctorates wn
Lsterature (Honors Causa) from the University
of Dar es Salaam, and Political Sciences
(Honons Causa) from the National Uruversity
of Rwanda

6 David Hodgson, age 65
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Skall and Experience Mr Hodgson 1san
undependent Non-Executive Director of the
ABG Group He was previously employed by
the Anglo American and De Beers group of
comparues for over 30 years and from
November 2001 through to hus rettrement in
April 2005, he served as the Chief Operating
Officer of AngloGold Ashant: He has also held
a number of previous non-executive public
company drrectorships at Auryx Gold Mines,
Moto Gold Mines Limited, Uranium One Inc
and Goliath Gold Mining Limited. Mr Hodgson
1s currently a non-executive director of Montero
Mining, a rare earth company Mr Hodgson
holds a BSc in Civil Engineering from the
Unuversity of Witwatersrand in Johannesburg,
South Africa, a BSc Mining (Honours) from the
Royal School of Mines in London, and B Comm
(majors in Econemics and Business Economics)
from UNISA mn South Africa. He also attended
an Advanced Management Program at Harvard
University in the USA

7 Michael Kenyon, age 63
{Independent Non-Executive Director)

Skull and Experience: My Kenyon 1s an
wndependent Non-Executive Darector of the
ABG Group Mr Kenyon has more than 35 years
of experience wn the miming industry and 1s a
geologist by traung  He 15 Executive Chairman
of the Board of Directors at Detour Gold
Corporation and Chairman of the Board of
Durectors at Troon Ventures Ltd. He has
previously been President and Chuef Executive
Officer at hoth Camco Resource Corp and
Sutton Resources Ltd, and a Director of
Cumberland Resources Ltd He holds a Master
of Science (Geology) Degree from the University
of Alberta in Canada He was also the recipient
of the 2005 Developer of the Year award from
the Prospector and Developers Association of
Canada n recogrion of tus accomphishments

8 Stephen Galbraith, age 41
(Non-Executive Director)

Skill and Expentence Mr Galbrathisa
Non-Executrve Director of the ABG Group

He has been employed by Barnck since August
2000 1n treasury and finance functions, and

1s currently Managing Director of Barnck
International (Barbados) Corporatton. Mr
Galbraith previously held the role of Audat

Manager for PricewaterhouseCoopers He
holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree m Accountancy
from Strathclyde Uruversity, 1s a member of

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Scotland and 1s a Chartered Financal Analyst
Charter holder

MIAIIAQ |

9 Rick McCreary, age 50
{Non-Executive Director)

Skill and Expenience Mr McCrearyisa
Non-Executive Director of the ABG Group and
Senior Vice President, Corporate Development
of Barnick. He joined Barrick in Apnil 2011 and
has overall responstbility for Barrick’s global
Corporate Development actvires, including
Corporate Development, Fvaluations and
Speaal Projects Prior to joining Barrick, Mr
McCreary worked in mining investment
banlang for over 14 years culmnating as Head
of CIBC World Markets' Global Mining
investment bankung group Prior to hus career in
mirung investment banking, he worked 1n the
Noranda/Falconbridge organsation for 8 years
1n vartous areas, mcluding metals marketing,
geophysics, geological engineering and
technology development Mr McCreary holds
an M B.A i Finance and Strategy from McGill
Unrversity, and a M Sc. and B Sc Eng.Hons tn
Geological Engineening from Queen’s University

oUTULIGHS] I
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10 Kelvin Dushnisky, age 49
(Non-Executive Director)

Skill and Experience Mr Dushnisky s a
Non-Executive Director of the ABG Group and
Senuor Executive Vice President of Barmick. Mr
Dushmisky jowned the legal departrment of
Barnick in April 2002 and presently has global
responsibuity for the Government Relations,
Permitting and Approvals, Corporate
Responsibility, Investor Relattons and
Commumcations functions Prior to jorung
Barnick, Mr Dushmsky was a Managing
Durector at Altara Secunities Inc. and has also
served as Vice President of Sutton Resources
Lumuted and Vice Chair, General Counsel and

a founding Drrector of FurnZmec Miming
Corporation He has served on the boards of
directors of a number of publicly listed
compantes and trade assoctations Mr
Dushnsky holds a B Sc. (Hon } degree from
the Umiversity of Mamtoba and M Sc.and ] D
degrees from the University of British Columbia.
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Senior management

Senior management biographies

In additson to ABG’s Executive Directors listed on the previous page,
the Senior Leadership Team includes the following

Marco Zolezzs, age 57
{ChilOperating Oflcer)

Skill and Experience: Mr Zolezz was previously
employed as Director of Technical Services for
Barrnick’s Austrahia Pacific Regron Pror to that,
Mr Zolezz held a number of senior project roles
m the industry, including five years with Newcrest
Mining, where he was General Manager at the
Telfer Mine, taking it from the proect stage
through to full production, as well es 13 years
with WMC Resources in a number of senior
operational and technical roles In toral, Mr
Zolezzt has over 30 years of expenence in
complex open pit and underground operations
1n Australia and South Africa, with a variety of
operational, technuical and project management
roles In addition to Diplomas in Mining and
Mechanical Engineening from Witwatersrand
Inststute of Technology in South Africa, Mr
Zolezzi holds Bachelor Degrees in Apphed
Science, Mechanical from the New South Wales
Institute of Technology and in Applied Sczence,
Mining from the Western Australian Inshtute
of Technology

Deodatus Mwanyika, age 50
(Vice President, Corporate Affaus)

Skill and Experience Mr Mwanytka was
previously employed by Barnck, which he
jomned n 1999 as a Legal Consultant and where
he occupied various managenial positions over
the last 12 years, culminating in hus appointment
mn 2008 as Executive General Manager,
Tanzania, Mr Mwanyika holds a Bachelor of
Law Degree with Honours from the University
of Dar es Salaam and a Masters 1n Law from the
University of Cambridge Mr Mwanyika 1sa
member of the Tanganyika Law Society and the
East African Law Society
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Peter Spora, age 43
(Vice President, Exploration)

Skall and Experience Mr Spora was previously
employed by Barrick, where he served as
Principal Geologst, Afnica, from 2006 to 2008
and Exploration Manager, Africa, from 2008 to
2010 Mr Spora has over 18 years of expenence
as a geologast in Australia and Africa He holds
a Rachelor of Apphed Science i Geology
Degree from the Unnversity of Technology,
Sydney, Austraha He 1s a member of the
Australian Institute of Mimng and Metallurgy
(AusIMM), a member of the Tanzaman
Chamber of Minerals and Energy, a member of
the Kenyan Chamber of Mines, and 1s a member
of the Society of Economic Geologists

Katrina White, age 37
{General Counsel and Company Secretary)

Skiil and Experience: Ms White was previously
employed by Barrick, where she served as
Regional General Counsel and Company
Secretary for Barrick Australia Africa,
subsequently Barrick Australia Paaific from
2005 to 2010 Prior to Jouung Barrick, Ms White
was employed as a seruor associate at Hunt &
Humphry i Australia. Ms Whte has an
Honours Degree in Law from the University of
Western Australia She 1s admutted to practice
ds a barrister and sohator in Western Australta,
the High Court of Austrahia and the Federal
Court of Australia.

Andrew Wray, age 49
{Head of Corporate Development
and Tnvestor Relations)

Skill and Experience Mr Wray was previously
employed by JP Morgan Cazenove, where he
was a Director n the Corporate Finance team
Mr Wray has over 14 years of experience 1n
advismng a range of mining and other compames
in their capital-raising activities and i other
strategic objectives Prior to jomng JP Morgan,
MTr Wray worked for the Kuwait Investment
Office in T ondon, dealing with their portfalio of
investments 1 Spain Mr Wray holds a Bachelor
of Arts Honours Degree in Modern Languages
from Unuversity College London

Peter Geleta, age 49
(Vice President Organisational
Effectiveness)

Skill and Experience Mr Geleta has extensive
experience on the African continent, having
worked across a number of African countnes
in various operattonal and corporate roles He
jomned Barnick in 2007, holding a number of
roles across the orgarusation, mcuding
Orgamsational Effectiveness Director for
Barnick Africa, Human Resources Director for
the Austraha Pacific Regron and General
Manager for Barnick's Cowal Gold Mine in New
South Wales Before jorung Barrick, Mr Geleta
worked for AngloGold Ashant for 25 years,
where he held a number of roles including Head
of Hurman Resources and Sustainabality for
AngloGold Ashanti’s Africa Operations and
General Manager of the Navachab Mme in
Narubia. Mr Geleta holds an Executive MBA
quabification from the Umversity of Cape lown




Corporate governance

Effective Governance

Dear Shareholders,

As previously noted, 2012 has been a challenging year for ABG, the latter
half of which bewng impacted by the prolonged Offer Period apphicable to
the Company as a result of discussions between Chuna National Gold and
Barnck. Whlst this predominantly impacted the worldoad of management,
it also requered a refocusing of Board and certamn commuttee activities,
notably the Transaction commuttee of which { formed part. Although the
sale process was ultimately unsuccessful there were several positive
outcomes In particular, the intense due diligence process and associated
learrung have been incorporated into several imiatrves which were
underway prior to the Offer Period as part of a major review of the
Company’s structure and costs, cubmnating in the Board's request for
management o perform an Operational Review The key objectives of
thus are to drive unproved returns from the asset base and enhance the
certainty of performance delvery in the future

Tn addition to thus, throughout the year we have continued to refine our
governance and controls processes and achueved a satisfactory conclusion
to our overall annual nsk management and internal controls assessment.
We also completed a performance and effectiveness evaluation for the
reporting pentod, n order to satisfy requiremtents for annual performance
evaluation under the UK Corporate Governance Code

2012 key activities
+ Formation of Transaction commuttee to oversee matters relating to
any potenual offer for the Comparry by China National Gold.

» Review of key requirements and measures for the maintenance of
ardinary business throughout a prolonged Offer Penod

» Rewview of core retention requirements for ABG personnel during
a prolonged Offer Period.

« Comimencement of strategy and nsk profile reviews as part of the
Operational Review

« Further review of requirements for risk management and operational
processes to support business objectives

» Annual performance evalustion and effectveness review

A comnutment to progressing effective leadership
and controls for our business environment.”

Derek Pannell,
Actung Chairman of the Board

During the year Mr Dushmisky and Mr McCreary were appointed to the
Board following the departures of Mr Cross and Mr Regent, both of whom
we thank for their guidance and support in the development of ABGas a
public company Followrng the expiry of the Offer Perrod, ABG s a
position to review options for addiional Director appointments to bwild
on the strengths and calibre of our existing Board members In thus regard
1t should be noted that neither I, nor Mr Jennings, wall seek re-election

at the forthcorming AGM Mr Dushmisky wall succeed me as Charman

of Board.

Loolking forward, in 2013 the Board wall seek to build upen the progress
made m ABG's governance and controls environment, notably through
the implernentation of further measures and procedures to address the
salient aspects of ongoing operational and strategic reviews In connection
with thus, the Board has recently decided to form a Technical commuttee,
the princapal purpose of which will be to supervise and review ABG's
planning and capital allocanion procedures, the procedures underpinmung
ABG's Reserves and Resources commuttee and ABG's exploration
programmes. The Board, under the gmdance of Mr Dushmsky, wall

also review addinonal requirernents intraduced by the new edwion of

the UK Carpaorate Governance Code, which wall apply to the 2013
reporfing process
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Corporate governance continued

ASG BUSINESS MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

COMPLIANCE

REQUIREMENT ABG's Business Management Framework forms an integral

part of our global compliance programme i sets out the key
Mandztory corporate pohcies, procedures, standards and practices that

apply 1o the ABG Group and 1ts business for the management

of economic, social, pohitical, environmental, lega} and
Mandstory governance factors affeching our operations

All members of the ABG Group, our material operations,
Mandatory support functions, and every ABG Director, officer, employee

and all other members of ABG personnel are requured to

comply with the ABG Business Management Framework and
Mandatory all other guidance and standards that apply to their respectyve
Dictated in accordance roles and posittons Speafic obhgations also extend to ABG

Ith stated funcuonal and
e sith fequirements contractors, other associated parties and members of ABG

Guidelinos supply chatns

& Raquirernents

For use In understanding
and implementing
compliance ablgations

BOARD SKILiS

(30 31 31 Docambior 2012) Board composition

Board balance
Asat 31 December 2012, the Board compnised 2 Non-Executive Acting
Chairman, two Executive Directors and seven Non-Executive Dhrectors,

0 Geoiogy of whom four were independent
0 Engineenng

O Financal

O African and regional atfairs Skalls and expenence

The majonty of our Directors have considerahle knowledge and expenence
of the mimng industry and bring other relevant experience to the Board
to assist ABG 1n achieving its strategic goals Dhrector biographies are
provided on pages 56 and 57 An overview of the composiion of Board
skills 1s provided opposite We review Board composition regularly to
ensure the range and breadth of skalls provided as a resut of Director
appointments remains appropriate for our business

BOARD COMPOSITION BOARD INDEPENDENCE

(as &t 31 December 2012) (85 a1 31 December 2012) Diversity
ABG strives to attract a broad mux of indsmiduals from both the tradinonal
and non-traditional muning labour markets in order to create a diverse
workgroup and mamntam a umque company culture Generally, it 1s ABGs
pohicy to hure the best candidates for all positions at all levels, wrrespective
of gender We assess all candrdates or positions i this context, including
candidates for Board appomntments.

Board changes during 2012

As previously noted, Mr Dushnisky and Mr McCreary were appointed
during the year following Mr Regent’s departure 1n June 2012 In addition
Mr Cross stepped down from hus posttton as a Director m March 2012

O Executve [ Norungdependent
O Non-executive O independent
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RESPONSIBILITIES ACROSS QUR GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

ABG’s corporate governance structure 1s founded on the basis of sound business practice and 1n accordance with apphicable
corporate governance standards Accordingly, responsibilities are allocated between our Board, its commattees, our Senior
Leadership Team and other members of senuor management to ensure that our business operates as it should on a day to day basss

Supported by Sernor Leadership Team

BOARD

Responsible for the overall management of our orgarusation and our business

sats standards, values, policies
and strategic aims

ansures we have the resources in
place 10 meal our objectives

monitors and reviews
— matenal strategic issues
- financial performance
- tisk managemaent

BOARD COMMITTEES

Specific review and oversight funclions

AUDIT EHS&S COMPENSATION NOMINATION TRANSACTION
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
- eviews and montors ~ guersees the development . sers, reviews and - makes recommendations - reviewed and monitored
financial stataments of strategy and policy on recommends overall to the Board on s matters in the context
~ gversees relationships emaronmental CSR and compensation compositon and that of any patertlal transaction
with external auditors security matters policy and strategy of its committees relatng to ABG shares
_ oversees external - reviews eflectiveness of - reviews and as o resutt of Bamick
audt process environmental, CSR and approves compensation discussions with
— reviews Internal security management amangements for China Natienal Gold
audt plans programmes and systems Executive Directors

and senior management

SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM
Day to day management of our business and operations, and responsibitity for monitening detailed

performance of all aspects of our business

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

Further support the Board and Serior Leadership Team

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE

THE DISCLOSURE
PANEL

RESERVES & RESOURCES
COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE INVESTMENT

COMMITTEE

GENERAL MANAGERS AND FUNCTIONAL HEADS

Work with the Senior Leadership Team to manage our operations and business and to progress business goals
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Corporate governance continued

Retirement and re-election

Directors appounted by the Board since the 2012 AGM are required to
offer themselves for re-election by the shareholders at the 2013 AGM
under the Company’ articles of association and we are rundful of
requirements for annual re-election under the UK Corporate Governance
Code With the exception of Mr Pannell and Mr Jennings, all Directors
wall offer themselves for re-election at the forthcormng AGM The Board
determunes that all of these Directors are ehgible for re-election

Board leadership

Chasrman and Chaef Executive Officer

In ine wath best pracuce, the roles of Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman, and their related responsibilities, are separated The dvisions
of responsibilities have been set out 1n wniting and agreed by the Board.

ABG's Charrman and any Acting Charman is principally responsible for
the leadership of the Board and ensuring that the Board plays a full and
constructive part 1n the development and determunation of the Company's
strategy and overall commerctal objectives

ABG’s Chief Executive Officer 1s prumanly responsible for all executive
management matters affecung ABG and 15 principally responsible tor
running the Company’s business All members of executive management
report directly to lum

Senuor Independent Dhrector

As noted below, the position of Seruor Independent Director {“SID”)
remained vacant duning the latter part of the year as a result of the
prolonged Offer Pennod. We wall look to recrut for this position 1n 2013

Board effecuveness

Board meetings and attendance

Board decisions are predominantly made by achieving a consensus at
Board meetings In exceptrional circumstances, deasions may be taken
by the maonty of Board members Questiuns ansing 4l any meeung are
determined by a majonty of votes In the case of an equality of votes,
ABG's articles of associabion do not provide the Charman with a second

Board and Commuttee attendance

or casting vote All Directors are required to take decisions objectively
and 1n the best interests of the Company

As part of their duties as Directors, ABG's Non-Executive Directors are
expected to apply mdependent judgement to contribute to 1ssues of
strategy and performance and to scrutimse the performance of
management

Ibe Board 1s scheduled to meet at least four mes a year, and at such uther
tmnes 4s are necessary to discharge its duttes The Board met a total of exght
times 1 2012 Five meetings were held in person at the Company’s London
offices Three mectngs were held by teleconference Detals of ndividual
attendance are provided below Meetings included a formal strategy review
with semor management Going forward, the Board aims to schedule
meetings to allow for at least one scheduled meeting per year to be held in
Tanzana so as to provide the Board with an opportumity 1o further develop
its relationshup with sentor managers and the wider ABG workforce

Board briefings and development

The Board recerves monthly management reports and querterly reportls
outhning all matenal operationdl, finanaal and stratege developments
These ensure that Board members remain properly briefed on the
performance and financal positon of the ABG Group Board and
commuttee papers are circulated prior to all meetings to allow Directors
to be bricfed 1n advance of discussions All Board meetings incude a
quarterly busingss and financial review to ensure that, in addition to
spectfic scheduled matiers and any other business, core operatonal
matters are reviewed on a continuous basis

In addition to scheduled Board meetings, all Directors have access

to members of the Semor Leadership Team and to whatever further
information they need to perform their dizties and to satisfy their
responsibilities ABG’s independent Non-Executive Drrectors and
commmuttee Charrmen meet with members of the Semuor Leadership Team
to receive more in-depth briefings on Board and commuttee matters,
whenever required or requested. In addition, all Directors continue to have
free access to vistt operations outaide scheduled Board arrangements

Board Audit Compensation Nomunation EHS&S5 Transaction

meetings commitiee committee commitiee committee committee
Number Maxinmy — Number Maamum — Number Maxmrm  Nutnber Mammum — Nwnber Maximom — Number Maximum
atended  posuble  sttended  posuble  attended  posible  aftended  possble  attended  possible  attended  possible
Aaron Regent** 2 8 0 N/A 2 6 1 1 4] N/A 0 N/A
Greg Hawkins 8 8 5 N/A 5 N/A 1 N/A 5 N/A 13 13
Kevin Jennings 8 8 5 N/A 0 N/A 0 NIA 0 N/A 13 13
Derek Pannell 8 ] 5 5 2 N/A 1 1 5 5 13 13
Andre Falzon 8 8 5 5 6 6 0 N/A 0 N/A 0 N/A
Stephen Galbraith 8 8 3 N/A 1 N/A ] NIA 5 N/A N/A
Michael Kenyon 7 8 4 5 5 6 0 N/A ) N/A 13 i3
Ambassador Juma V Mwapachu 7 8 0 N/A 0 N/A 1 1 5 5 0 N/A
David Hodgson 8 8 0 N/A 4 6 0 N/A 5 5 12 13
Kelvin Dushnasky* 4 8 0 N/A 2 6 0 0 ¢ 3 0 N/A
Richard McCreary* 4 8 0 N/A 0 N/A 0 N/A 0 N/A 0 N/A

* Directors appointed miud year = Dnrector resigned md year
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Board traamng and development needs are reviewed on an ongoing basis
Crdinanly, trasning standards and requirements form part of Board
evaluation cntena.

Directors may take ndependent professional advice, as necessary, at ABG's
expense tn the furtherance of their duties In addition to ths, each Board
commuttee 1s entitled to seek independent professional advice at ABG's
expense, where necessary, to assist or gwde the commuttee 1n the
performance of 1ts functions

Summary of the Boards work in 2012

The Board focused on the following areas in 2012

+ Strategy management
+ Optrationdl and linanadl performance reviews
+ Corporate pohcy and compliance review

+ Growth opportunities and exploration project reviews

As part of the corporate pohcy and comphiance reviews the Board,
collaboration wath its commuttees, commenced a review of speafic
compliance standards mn order to progress standards that provide for
wmproved alignment with the Company’s operating environment and risk
appette This work wall continue mto 2013 In addition, as part of strategy
and growth reviews, the Board commenced a further evaluation process
of all of the Company’s growth projects to ensure priontsation of projects
that wail drive profitable returns and production levels Agamn, reviews m
this area will continue into 2013 as part of ongotng operational and
stralegy reviews  Succession planmmg, which was previously aflected by
the prolunged Offer Peniud, wall also be progressed further in 2013
Fmndings from the 2012 annual performance review will help us to further
refine Board targets for 2013

Internal control

The Board 1s responsible for the ABG Group’s system of internal control
and nisk management and for reviewing its effecuveness In line with this
responsibility, the Board has established ongomg processes and systems
for dentifying, evaluating and managing those significant nisks that the
Group faces ABG's system of internal controls and risk management takes
nto account the recommendations contained in the Turnbull Guidance
on Internal Systems and Controls pubhshed by the Finanaial Reporting
Counal in October 2005 {the “Turnbull Guidance”) The system s
designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to actueve
ABG’s business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material msstatement or loss

The Board pnnaipally bases 1ts momtoring of internal ¢ontrols on 1ts review
of management reports and assessments and on the quarterly reports it
recerves on the status of ARG mternal control environment. This s
<upported by the nsk prafile reviews that ABG* Internal Audut funchion
carmies out to help the Board 1dentify and manage the most sigrficant ricks
and events that could affect the Company’s operations, Ananaals and
performance Where necessary, the Board 1s assisted by 1ts commuttees in
reviewing mnternal systems and controls, particularly the Audit commuttee,
which 1s responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control and financial nisk management systems An overview of the
governance structure used for ABG’s approach to risk management and
the processes and procedures used in the context of risk management 15
provided as part of the nsk management section of thus report

In comphance with its obligations, the Board conducted an annual
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s nsk management and
internal control systems for the reporting period The review covered

all matenal controls, including financial, operational and comphance
controls In conjunction with ABG's Internal Audit function and members
of the Semor Leadership Team, the Board conducted a speafic assessment
of internal controls, which considered all sigmficant aspects of internal
control for the reporting period. During the course of its review of the
systern of mternal control, the Board did not identify or hear of any
faihngs or weaknesses that it deterruned to be matenial Therefore a
confirmation of any necessary actions undertaken 1s not required

Relationshup with shareholders

Dialogue with the investment community

ABG has a designated investor relations teamn, which acts as the pnmary
pount of contact with the investment commumty and 1s responsible for
maintaining ABG's ongoing relations with investors and shareholders
Generally, ABG aims to meet with investors and analysts at least twice

a year to discuss Group performance and respond to quertes ABG also
conducts penodic telephone calls and meetings with the investment
commumity to discuss results, and particapates in manung conferences to
meet with current and prospective investors In addition to 1ts annual and
half-year reports, ABG publishes quarterly reports to the market, which
prowvide further information on producuon and finanaal results, and
updates on 1ts business and operations

ABG’s investor relations programme was impacted by certain regulatory
restrictions imposed as a result of a prolonged Offer Period during the
second half of 2012

Majonty shareholder

ABG was a wholly owned subsichary of Barnck prior to its [PO i March
2010 Barnick continues to hold approximately 74% of ABG, making it the
Group's majonty shareholder Asa result of this, ABG continues 1o have
access to the Barnick Group for a number of support services and receives
strategic shareholder support for its imitiatrves and goals ABG's relationship
with Barrick 1s governed by the terms of a relationship agreement, the
principal purpose of which 15 to ensure that ABG 1s capable of carrying on
1ts business independently of the Barrick Group and that transactions and
relationships with the Barrick Group are conducted at arm’s length and on
normal commeraal terms The relahinnship agreement will continue for <o
long as ABG 1s listed on the London Stock Exchange and Barnck owns or
controls at least 15% of ABG's 1ssued share capital or voting nights
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Corporate governance confinued

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The annual performance evaluation of the Board and its commuttees was conducted under the guidance of the Company Secretary,
by way of anonymous questtonnaires The questionnaire focused on a range of key topics, the findings of which will be used to help

formulate key targets and actions for 2013

BOARD EVALUATION FOCUS

' Leadership
. Strategic ams and objectives

I Risk management
' Procedures end intemal controls

' Establishment and role

' Compensation, appointments,
skills, experience and training

B Attencance at mastings,
contribution, intemal
relatronships ' Communication with

shareholders and others

\

=

COMMITTEE EVALUATION FOCUS

W Leadership

' Procedures and
internal controls

' Roles and responsibilities

' Composition, appointments,
skllis, exparience end training

' Attandance, contnbution,
internal refationships

1)

[ )
;—:‘: | ——

DISCUSSION WITH COMPANY SECRETARY

Lach Director speafically discussed his cvaluation feedback wath the
Company Secretary for purposes of discussing indivadual performance
and future development needs

1

ASSESSMENT FOR THE COMMITTEES

The evaluation results were used to produce a performance report for
discussion and debate, in order to agree work plans and actions for 2013

IIII

ASSESSMENT FOR THE BOARD

Board evaluation results were used to produce a performance report
for presentation to the Board, for purposes of discussion and debate,
mn order to agree work plans and actions for 2013

il

KEY PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND ACTIONS FOR 2013
- Development of succession planning,
- Further enhancement of nsk management procedures
- Progression of strategic and Operational Review

- Review of requirements for ABG's compliance and
governance enviranment.
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KEY PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND ACTIONS FOR 2013

- Assessment of terms of reference, effectiveness of members® skills,
expenence and quahfications

- Work plans and actrons for 2013 individually set by each commuttee




The relationshap agreement provides Barnck with certain Director
appowntment rights in line with a shiding scale, structured as follows

Barrick Percentage Shareholding Barnck Drector Appomtment Raghts

The hugher of three Non-Executive
Dhrectors and the maxumum that may
be appointed under the UK Corparate
Governance Code

409 or more

25% up to 40% The lugher of two Non-Executive
Durectors and ene less than the
maximum number of Non-Executive
Darectors that may be appointed under

the UK Corporate Governance Code

The lugher of one Non-Executive
Durector and two less than the
maximum number of Non-
Executive Directors

15% up to 25%

In addition to Durector appomtment nghts and subyect to certan
exceptions, as part of the terms of the relationship agreement, Barnck

has undertaken that members of the Bamick Group wall not carry on the
exploration of gold or silver in Afica or acquire, whether through an asset
purchase or the purchase of securities, a gold or silver minung business in
Africa that competes with ABG withou first giving ABG the option to
exercise certawn nghts of first refusal for so long as Barnck holds 30% or
more of the 1ssued share capital or voting rights of ABG ABG has given

a reaprocal non-compete corumitment to Barnck 1 this regard,

AGM

ABG% 2013 AGM wall be held on 18 Apnil 2013 a1 2 90pm (UK ume) the
business of the meettng will be conducted 1n accordance with Companies
Act 2006 requurements and standards promoted by the UK Corporate
Governance Code The Chairman and the chairmen of the Audut,
Compensation and Nomination commuttees will be available to answer
qucstions put to them by sharcholders at the mecting. The AGM Notice
15 included n the documentation that has been provided wath thus report
and s also avarlable on the Company’s website. In accordance with best
practice, the notice has been sent to shareholders at least 20 business days
prior to the date of the meeting

Conflicts of interest

Mr Dushnisky, Mr Galbrarth and Mr McCreary are nommee Directors
dppuinted by Barndk ‘These individuals hold a number of cross-
directorships with members of the Barnck Group, which give rise to
situations 1n which these Directors could have a direct or indirect interest
that confhicts, or possibly may conflict, wath those of ABG In addition, as
a result of thetr employment withan the Barrick Group, these individuals
also hold wnterests under BarricKs restricted stock unut plan and other
employee incentive plans

Mr Hawkuns, Mr Jennings and certain other members of ABG's senior
management hold interests under Barricks restricted stock unst plan
These mterests were acquired prior to joining ABG as part of previous
employment within the Barrick Group and are not deemed to be
material interests

The Comparues Act 2006 requires Directors to avoud situatzons where
they have, or can have, a direct or indirect interest that confhets, or may
posstbly conflict, wath Company interests However, the Act does allow
Directors of public companies to authorise conflicts and potential conflicts
of interest where a company’s articles of association contain a provision

tu that effect, ABGY artwcdes of asspaation wntdmn such provision and 4
procedure for ths. In accordance with this procedure, the conflicts outhned
above were declared and authorised by the Board.

The momtoring and, 1f appropnate, authorisation of any actual or potental
conflict of interest 1s an ongoing process Dhrectors are requred to noufy
the Company of any matenal changes in positions or situations that have
already been considered and any new situations In additzon, Directors are
requured to declare interests in potential or actual transactions and are
requured to abstain from voting on such transactions, subject to permutted
exceptions If a question arises as to whether any interest of a Director
prevents hum or her from voung or being counted in a quorum in the
context of a potential or actual transaction, the matter 1s referred to the
Chairman, whose findings are final and conclusive In the context of
questions relatmg to any such cenflict of the Chairman, the question may
ultimately be decided by a resolution of the other Directors

speaically as regards nominee Directors appointed by Barmick, the
relabonship agreement provides that if any transaction or arrangement
anses durectly between a member of the Barnck Group and a member

of the ABG Group and docs or could, i the opimon of a majonty of
Directors (excluding any Director{s} appeinted by Barrck), give rise to

a conflict of interest between ABG and any Dhrector appointed by Barnick,
any such matter must be approved and authorised at a duly convened
Board meeting or in wrsting by a majority of Directors (excluding any
Director(s) appented by Barnck) prior to the Company taking further
action 1n relation to such matter

The Board reviews confhcts of interest on a periodic basis and maintains
arecord of all declared conflicts Dunng the Offer Period applicable to the
Company n the latter half of 2012, the Board speafically reviewed the
rules applicable to conflicts of interest, takeng advice where necessary from
external counsel, in the context of the discussions between China National
Gold and Barrick and Barrick nominee Directors’ participation in

Board meetngs

Save for the matters sct out above, no other conflicts of interest were
disclosed to the Board durning the reporting period
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Corporate governance confinued

Corporate governance comphance

For the year under review, as a UK company with 2 premium Lsting on
the Main Market of the London Stock kxchange, ABG 1s required to make
certain statements regarding the way it 1s governed, as requured by the UK
Corporate Governance Code. Accordingly, this report explamns how ABG
has applied and complied with the Main Principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code dunng 2012

Generally, ABG seeks to apply the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code wherever possible However, during the reporting
penod the structure of the Board and its commttees was impacted by the
departure of Mr Cross and Mr Regent and, more fundamentally, by the
imposition of the Offer Pertod and related restrictions as a result of the
discussions between China Nauonal Gold and Barreck, something which
ultemately restricted the Company from recrwiting additzonal independent
Non-Executsve Directors In particular

« Balance of Board appontments Durmng the second half of the year,
less than half of the Board {excluding the Chairman) was comprised
aof independent Non-Lxecutive Directors We are currently exploning
opporturuties 1o appoint additional independent Non-Executive
Directors to address this

+ Status of Chatrman For the first half of the year, the posiion of
Chairman was held by Mr Regent, former President and Chuef
Executive Officer of Barnck Though not deterrmined to be independent
on appomntment for UK corporate governance purposes, Mr Regent's
appointment was deemed to be in the best interests of the Company
given hus industry expertise and hus famuliarity with the Company's
assets Following lus departure, Mr Pannell was appomnted as Acting
Chatrman of the Company, satisfying rutial independence
requurements under the UK Corporate Governance Code.

+ Appomtment of Sentor Independent Drrector Mr Panmell’s assumption of
the role of Acting Chairman required hum to siep down from the position
of Semor Independent Director Recruitment for an appropriate
replacement was impacted by the prolonged Offer Period We are 1n the
Pprocess of reviewing opportunities to appont a replacement to ths role.

« Audtt commttee composthon Mr Pannell was appointed to the
commmuttee to peplace Mr Cross in the first half of 2012, followang which
he assumed the position of Acting Chairman of the Board Though UK
corporate governance standards discourage the appowntment of the
Chaurman as a member of audst commuttees of FTSE 350 comparues,
the Board felt « appropriate to mamntam Mr Pannells Audit cormmattee
appomntment tn order to safeguard adequate representation and
participation 1 Audit committee matters throughout the latter half
of the year
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+ Nomnation commuttee composition The majonity of members of the
Nomunation comnuttee may not stnictly be viewed as independent
for UK corporate governance standards i hight of Mr Pannell’s status
as Acung Chairman Nevertheless, the Board behieved Mr Pannell’s
continued committee appaintment to be 1n the best interests of the
Company given the importance of his role 1n the context of succession
planming Agan, overall compositzon of the Nominahon commuttee will
be reviewed as part of wider Board and commuttes composition reviews
to be conducted 1n 2013

In addstion to reviewing the speaific matters hsted above and as prevously
indicated, overall composition of the Board and 1ts commuitees will be
reviewed 1n 2013 as part of governance reviews to ensure that the
appropriate balance of responsibiliues and skill sets 1s mantained.
Furthermore, the Board and its commuttees will review the requirements
of the new edition of the UK Corporate Governanice Code which applies
to all reporting periods from October 2012 onwards as part of its activities
for 2013

ABG's external auditor has reviewed those parts of this statement, which
1L1s required Lo review under the Listng Rules of the United Kingdom
Listing Authority

In addition to comphance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, as
part of commutments given in connection with ABG's secondary listing
on the Diar es Salaam Stock Exchange, the Board has undertaken to
comply with the Corporate Governance Guidelines 1ssued by the
Tanzanian Capital Markets and Securities Authority to the extent that
these requirements are equivalent to applicable UK corporate governance
standards In the case of any conflict between the two, the requirements
of the UK Corporate Governance Code prevail




Our committees

Audit committee

Andre Falzon, Audit commuittee chair

1 am the chair of the comrmuttee and have over 25 years of financial

and management expetience within the mmng industry [ am a CGA
(Canada) and CPA, CA (Canada} Together, thus provides me with the
relevant financial expenence required for my position under applicable
governance standards Michael Kenyon and Derek Pannell comprise the
other commuttee members James Cross stepped down from the
commuttee folfowing his resignation from the Board Under the terms of
reference, we are required to meet at least four times a year The Chuef
Executive Officer, Chuef Finanaal Officer, the ABG Group Finanaal
Controller, members of the Treasury function, the Head of Risk and
Internal Audit and the external auditors also atiend commuttee meetings
on a regular basis We also hold individual meetings with ABG's external
auditors and the Head of Risk and Internal Audit without management
present to discuss matters withan our remut of responsibilitses

Key responstbilities

Our key responsibihities include oversight of finanaial reporting and
mternal controls over finanaial reporting, overseeing the Group's
relationshup with its external auditors and ABG's internal audst function,
overseeing the external and internal andit processes generally and
reviewing the effectiveness of the ABG Group’s systems of internal
control and financial reporting nsk management

Further details regarding the commuttee and 1its terms of reference
are available for inspection on ABG’s website

Activities in 2012 and plans for 2013
‘We met five tmes dunng the year, members mdmdual attendance 1s pronded
onh page 62. The commuttee’s key actnatics focused on the following.

« Reviewing our terms of reference, effectiveness and the skalls,
expenence and quakficaton of committee members in the context of
commitiee COMpOSILION reviews

+ Reviewing the external auditor terms of engagement, plans and scope of
wark, compensation and the findings ansing from all external audit work

+ Rewiewing ABGS penodic fimanaia] reporting

Rewewing key accounting pobeacs and developments i the financal
reporting and regulatory environment

Reviewing the internal audit plan, together with nternal audst reports,
findings and momtoring related action plans

»

Reviewing succession planning, compensation and remuneration for
all direct reports to the CFO and the Head of Internal Audst

Reviewing enterpnise risk registers, tax disputes and other hitigation

Reviewing whastle blowing arrangements to support reporang
requirements under ABG's Code of Conduct and Anti-Fraud and
Anu-Corruption policies

Identifying and reviewing speafic focus areas, induding Non-IFRS

measurements, segment accounting and disclosure, impairment testing
and deferred stnpping accounting matters

All of the above areas will be further progressed in 2013, these being

the prionity areas identified within the wider rermt of the commuttee’s
responsibilities In addition to this we will continue to review the
requrements of the new editvons of the UK Corporate Governance Code
and the revised FRC Gudance on Audit Commmuttees, speaificatly m the
context of enhanced public reporting requurements for Audit commuttess
and matters relevant to the appouitment and review of external auditors
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Corporate governance continued

EHS&S commuittee

David Hodgson, EHS&S commuttee chair

[ act as chawman of the commuttee as a result of my years of expenience
within the operatmg environment of the African murung industry Derek
Pannell, Ambassador Mwapachu and Kelvin Dushnusky comprise the
other members of the commuttee Stephen Galbraith stepped down from
the commuttee during the reporting period. Under the terms of reference,
we are required to meet at least twice a year The Chuef Executive Officer,
Chief Operaung Ofticer and members of senior management within our
security, environmental and community relations teams also attend
commuttee meetmgs on a regular basis to discuss matters withun our rerit
of responsibiities

Key responsibihities

Our key responsibihities focus on the oversight and review of ABG
actrvities that are of core importance to ABG's social licence to operate
and responsible miming practices These include ARG’ strategy and
pohcy on environmental, accupational health and safety, corparate social
responsibility (("SR) and security matters, reviewing the effectiveness of
Group environmental, health and safety and securnty (“EHS8S") systems
and controls and generally overseeing management’s monitoring and
evaluation of emerging CSR 1ssues to assess the potential impact on ABG'S
business and operations

Further details regarding the commuttee and uts terms of reference
are available for inspection on ABG's website.
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Activities m 2012 and plans for 2013

We met five imes duning the year, members’ individual attendance
15 provided on page 62 The commuttee’s key activities focused on
the following,

« Reviewing our terms of reference, effectiveness and the skills,
expenence and quahficavon of commiitee members 1n the context
of cormimtiee composttion reviews

» Reviewing EHS&S and CSR strategy and priorities, performance,
metrics, trends and wncrdent reports

* Rewviewing key nsks in ABG’s operating environment as regards EHS&S
and CSR

+ Reviewing ABG management systems and processes as regards EHS&S
and CSR

Reviewmng key regulatory and other developments relevant to the
EHS&S and CSR operating environment

+ Identifying and reviewing speaific focus areas, including ABG's
permitiing management systems, environmental management system,
securnty systems, procedures and controls, dlegal mimung strateges,
government and public relations strategies and closure planming

+ Reviewing and morutoring the status of occupational, health and safety
targets and systemns

+ Further refimng the framework for the commmttees review of areas
of focus

All of the above areas will be further progressed 1n 2013, these being
the prionty areas identified withun the wider remut of the commuttee’s
responsibultties,



Nomunation committee

Derek Pannell, Nomnation commuttee chair

I act as charrman of the commuttee Kelvin Dushmsky and Ambassador
Mwapachu comprise the other commuttee members, Mr Dushmisky having
replaced Mr Regent following lus departure from the Board.

Transaction committee

Michael Kenyon, Transaction commuttee chair

The commttee wis formed dunng the latter half of the year to oversee
matters relating to any potental transactton that could have resulted from
the discussions between China National Gold and Barnck. [ acted as
Chairman of the commuttee, with David Hodgson and Derek Pannell
comprising the other members of the committee

Key responsibilities

We play a leading role in reviewing the structure, size and composiien of
the Board and 1n reviewing prospective new Board appointments We have
primary responsibility for making recommendations to the Board on its
composition and the composition of Board commuttees generally We also
manage recommendations for the retrement and replacement of
Directors Under the terms of reference, we are required to meet at least
oncea year

Further detads regarding the commuttee and its terms of reference
are available for inspection on ABG's website.

—_

Activities n 2012 and plans for 2013

We met once durning the year, members’ indnadual attendance 1s provided on
page 62. The comimuttee’s key actnaties were umpacted in the latter half of the
year as a result of the uncertanty surrounding the requerernents for Board
suwcession and wmpusition planning as 4 result of the prolunged Offer Perod.
During the year we focused on the following key areas within our remit of
responsibilities, all of which wall be further progressed in 2013

+ Reviewing the Board's structure, size and composition i the context
of the Comparry’s posibon and strategy

+ Developmng recommendations for Board appomtments and the
reappowuntment of Directors in accordance with the Board assessment
and skills matrix

Identfying candrdates for Board appontments

Reviewing the performance of the commuttee, 1ts composition and
terms of reference

« Reviewing key regulatory and other developments relevant to the
commuttee’s role and responsibihities

+ Developing formal succession planming procedures for Directors

and senior ma.nagcmenl

Activities in 2012 and plans for 2013

We met 13 times during the year, members’ indnidual attendance 1s
provided on page 62 Our remit of responsibilities and key actvittes focused
on the following

+ Determmning the terms of engagement for the professional advisers
appointed to act for ABG 1n the context of any potential transaction

» Taking advice from our professional advisers as regards the duties and
responsibiities of the Company and the Board 1n the context of 1t being
a potential target for UK takeover rule purposes

« Overseeing and supporting management in the conduct of due
diligence exercises and other matters relating to Barnick's discussions
with China National Gold

Assisting management 111 the evaluation and referral to the Board
of matters affecung the ordinary course of business as a result of the
imposition of the Offer Period

Providing regular and timely updates to the Board on the status of any
potential transaction, developments and requirements imposed during
the Offer Period

The commuttee has now been dissolved, following termunation of the Offer
Pericd and wall be replaced by the newly constituted Technical commuttee.
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Drrectors’ report

ABG 15 tncorporated and registered as a public limited company
mn England and Wales Its headquarters are in London and 1t 1s
listed on the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange and
the Dar es Salaam Stock Exchange under the symbol ABG

Principal activities

ABG s Tanzamas largest gold producer and one of the five largest gold
producers tn Africa. We have four producing mines, ail located i
Northwest Tanzama, and several exploratton projects at vanous stages of
development. We have a lugh quality asset base, sohid growth opportunities
and a clear strategy to optumse, expand and grow our business

Qur four mines are

« Bulyanhuly an underground gold nmune, which began production n
Apnl 2001,

» Buzwagi an open pit gold mine, which began production in May 2009,

» North Mara. an open pit gold mne consisting of three open pit deposits,
which began preduction in Apnl 2002, and

» Tulawaka. an open pit gold mine, which has transitioned toan

underground operation It began production in June 2005 and 15
scheduled to close in 2013

Further detals of ABG Group's activities are provided 1n the Overview and
Perfarmance sections of this report. Detals of ABG's registered athee and
busness locations are provided on the back cover

Business review
The requirements of the business review are contaimed 1n the Overview
and Performance sections of this report.

An overview of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the ABG
Group 1s provided as part of the sk management section of thus report

See the corporate responsibility section for informatton on
environmental, employee, social and commumty matters

All of the matters above are incorporated by reference i this
Directors' report

Drtrectors

The names and hographies of the Directors serving as at 31 December
2012 are provided on pages 56 and 57
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An overview of Directors’ appomtments for the duration of the year under
review 1s provided below

Date of appotntment Date of termunation
Aaron Regent 15 February 2010 6 June 2012
Greg Hawkuns 15 February 2010 N/A
Kevin jennmngs 12 January 2010 N/A
James Cross 15 February 2010 8 March 2012
Andre Falzon 15 February 2010 N/A
Stephen Galbraith 19 January 2010 N/A
David Hodgson 18 October 2011 N/A
Ambassador Juma V Mwapachu 14 July 2011 N/A
Michael Kenyon 15 February 2010 N/A
Derek Pannell 15 February 2010 N/A
Rick McCreary 19 July 2012 N/A
Kelvin Dushnusky 6 June 2012 N/A

Save for Mr Pannell and Mr Jennungs, all Directors appornted as at year
end will put themselves forward for re-election at the forthcorming AGM
Detatls of Darector re-election requirements are provided on page 62.

Directors' indemmnuty insurance

In accordance with ABG's articles of associabion and to the extent
pernutted by the Compames Act 2006, ABG may indemmnufy its Directors
out of 1ts own funds to cover hathities incurred as a result of their office
The relevant prowision contained 1 the Artacles can be categonsed as a
“qualifying third party indemnity proviston” under the Comparues Act
2006 ABG has adopted Directors’ and Officers’ iabihty insurance This
provides insurance cover for any claim brought against Directors or
officers for wrongful acts \n connection with their positions The insurance
provided does not extend to claums arsing from fraud or dishonesty and
it does not prowide cover for avil or crimunal fines or penalties imposed

by law

Directors interests

Details of the interests of Directors and thewr connected persons in ABG’s
shares or in related denvatives or financal instruments are guthned in the
Darectors’ Remuneration Report

Employee share schemes
Detatls of ABG's employee share plans and long-term incentrve plans are
contaned on pages 80 and 81

Employees

Information relatmg to employees 15 contaned on page 115 in Note 6 to
the consulidated financal statements and the corporate responsibibly
section ABG abides by anti-discrimination legistation 1n all jurisdictions
m which it operates These pnnaples are also set out in ABGS Business
Management Framework and Code of Conduct, which ser out the
framework in which ABG expects all staff to operate This 1s supported by
anti-discrimmation standards and tramng in offices and mine sites which
wdentfy the required standards and provide mecharusms io raise any
concerns with management




Dividends

An (ntenim drvidend of US4 0 cents per share was pad to shareholders
on 24 September 2012 The Directors recommend the payment of a iinat
dividend of US12 3 cents per Ordinary Share Thus represents a total
dividend of US16 3 cents for 2012 Subject to the shareholders approving
this recommendation at the AGM, the final dividend wall be pard on 24
May 2013 to sharcholders on the register at 3 May 2013 The ex-drndend
datc1s 1 May 2013 ABG will declare the final dvdend 1n US dollars
Unless a shareholder has elected or elects to recerve divadends in US
dollars, drvidends will be pard i pounds sterling with the US dollar
amount being converted 1nto pounds sterhing at exchange rates prevaling
on or around 8 May 2013 Currency elections must be made by return of
currency elechon forms The deadline for the return of currency election
forms 1s 7 May 2013

Annual General Meeting

ABGs AGM wall be held on 18 Apni] 2013 at 2 00pm (UK Time) The
notice of AGM and all accompanying detals of business to be conducted
there are included wn a separate document accompanying ths report, they
are also available on ABG's website: www africanbarmckgold.com

The right of a shareholder to participate i the business of the AGM shall
inchede without limutation the right to speak, vote on a show of hands,
vote on a poll, be represented by a proxy and have access to all documents
which are requred by the Companies Act 2006 or the articles of
assocratton will be made available to the meeting.

Share capital

Asat 31 December 2012, ABG's 1ssued share capital comprised
410,085,199 Ordinary Shares of 10 pence cach The voung nghts of all
ABG shares are identical, with each share carrying the right to one vote
ABG holds no Ordinary Shares in Treasury and does not have any class of
share other than its Ordinary Shares. Further details on votng rights and
nghis relating to the transfer of shares are provided below

ABG’s articles of assoctation provide the authonty for ABG to purchase its
own shares (induding any redeemable preference shares), prownided that st
comphes with any applicable requirements contamned 1n the Companies
Act 2006, the CREST regulations or any other applicable law As part of
resolutions passed at the 2013 AGM, ABG obtained shareholder approval
to make market purchases of up to 41,008,550 of its Ordunary Shares,
equivalent to 10%, of the 1ssued share capital at the ume of approval The
authonty was granted subject to stated upper and lower Limuts m accordance
with Listing Rule requirements and expires at the forthcoming AGM The
authornity was not exercised during the year under review An equivalent
shareholder resolution wall be sought as a marter of ordinary business at
the forthcoming AGM

Details of ABG's 1ssued share capital and any movemenits dunng the year
are ncluded on page 126 1n Nate 23 to the consohdated finanaal statements.

Major shareholdings
‘The following persons as at 1 March 2013 are interested m the following
percentages of ABG's issued ordinary share capital

Percentage of

Number of issued share

Name shares capital
Barrick Internatronal (Barbados) Corp 179,609,530 43 80
PDG Bank Limated 37,378,450 91t
PDG Sona (Cayman) Ltd. 86,258,970 2103
“Towal 303,246,950 7394

All of these shareholders are members of the Barrick Group

Relationshup with major shareholder

An overview of ABG? relationship with Barnck and the relationship
agreement that has been executed in respect of their ongoing relationshup
15 provided on page 63

Poliical and chantable donations

ABG does not make pobtical donations Information as regards ABG's
soctal and communuty contributions for the year 1s provided on pages 44
and 45 and as part of our Fnancal reiew

Credttor payment policy

It 1s ABG policy to settle all debts with creditors on a tumely basis and
n dccordance with terms and condiions dgreed in advance with each
creditor Further details on trade creditors are provided on page 128
in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements

Suppliers

It1s ABG's policy that, subject to compliance with trading terms by the
suppher, payments are made 1n accordance with terms and conditions
agreed in advance with the supplier

As at 31 December 2012 the ABG Group had an average of 59 creditor
days compared to 58 1n 2011

Policy on denvatives, financial instruments and financial

nisk management

ABGS5 poliaies on finanaal nisk management, derrvatives, financal
wnstruments and information on 1ts exposures to foreign currency,
commodity prices, credst, equity, iquidity and interest rates can be found
in Nutes 2, 25 and 29 to the comuhdated finanal statements comaned
on pages 98 to 138 of thus report
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Directors’ report confinued

Matenal agreements containing change of control provisions

Ihe Directors constder the following as matenial agreements and
arrangements for ABG’s business and operations, which contan provisions
whuch alter or termunate on a change of control of ABG

« Services Agreement as part of its TPO preparations, ABG entered 1nto
a services agreemnent with Barnck under which Barnick provides certam
services to ABG and the other members of the ABG Group for the
ongoing operation of the business These services include support for
information technology, technucal services, security and other
admirustrative and corporate functions The services agreement
provides that the services were to be provided to the ABG Group for an
imtial period of 12 months and wall continue wn force unless termunated.
The agreement’s termination events include a basis for erther party to
termunate the agreement with immediate effect in the event of speafied
breaches of the agreement, insolvency or analogous events or a change
of control

Relatsonship Agreement see page 63 of ths report for an overview of
the Relationshup Agreement.

+ Credit Agreernent an overview of the credit agreement between, among
others, ABG and Citibank Internatsonal plc as admunistrauve agent, 1s
provnided on page 130, Note 28 to the consohdated finanaal statements
A change of control of ABG 1s a mandatory prepayment event under the
credit agreement and, subject to certain exceptions, a termmnatton event

ABG'’s minng concessions are held by its operating companies 1n
Tanzama Under applicable law, a change of control of the operating
comparnues requires the consent of the Minister of Energy and Minerals
1 Tanzania.

An overview of the provisions contained 1n Executive Director service
agreements as regards change of control 15 provided wath the Directors'
Remuneration Report Special provisions also allow the early exercise of
awards made under ABG's Stock Option Plan and early vesting of awards
made under ABG’s Long-Term Incentive Plan (‘'LTTP"), in the event of

a takeover, reconstruction or winding up In such arcumstances, the
Compensation commttee determines whether and to what extent options
or awards become exercisable, by taking into account all relevant facts and
curcumstances ncluding, but not linuted to, satisfaction of any applicable
performance condition.

When determunung the vesting of LTIP awards or options, the
Compensation commuttee may proportionately reduce the award
depending on the me which has elapsed between the first day of the
performance period and the date of change of control Alternatively,
awards may be exchanged for new equivalent awards where appropniate

Significant relationships

ABGs relationshup with Barrick as its majonty shareholder 1s summarised
on page 63 of thus report [n addition to this relationshup, the Directors
consider the following contractual relatronships and arrangements as
essential for the conduct of ABG's business

« Tulawaka Agreement. although the Tulawaka mmne 15 100% owned and
operated by Pangea Minerais Limited, the economic interest in the mine
15 drvaded on a 70 30 basis following a 1998 contractual jomnt venture
agreement between Pangea Goldfields Inc, an ABG Group company,
(PGT) and MDN Inc (MDN) The Tulawaka Agreement prowides that
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all capital and operating costs associated with the Tulawaka mine are
funded by PGl and MDN on a 70-30 basis, and that PGI 1s contractually
obligated to pay MDN an amount equal to 3% of the net cash
generated by the Tulawaka mine, less any applicable withholding

« Mneral Development Agreements each ABG Group operating mune
has a Mineral Development Agreernent (MDA) with the Tanzaman
government The matenal terms and conditions of each MDA
are substantially similar and include provasions geverming royalty
payments, taxes and other charges, banking arrangements, local
procurement ohligations, and import nghts The MDAs also provide
for no expropriation or natronalisation nights Broadly these rights
provide that the Tanzanian government will not nationalise or
compulsorily acquure the whole or any part of ABG' mnterest in
the applicable special miming hicences or any of 1ts property or its
contractors’ or subcontractors’ property used for the purpose of
muning operations or in relation to the applicable special muning
licences, without adequate compensation Each MDA 1s governed by
Tanzanian law Adherence to the terms and conditions of the MDAs
1s of sgnificant importdnce 0 ABG business, gven the agreements
overall importance to our operations

» TANESCO relationshup the North Mara, Buzwagi and Bulyanhulu
munes rely upon electrical power generated by the state power unlity
company, TANESCO ABG has entered into a nurnber of agreements
and arrangements with TANESCO n respect of power supply and
purchase prices These agreements are reviewed on a regular basis
As manonal elecintity generation and transmission systems in
Tanzania are imited, ABG's ongoing refationshsp with TANESCO
15 of sigmuficant importance to its operations and business Any
adverse change ar development in this relationship could produce
a matenal adverse effect on ABG's operations, performance and
finanaial condiion

All other materal contracts and arrangements are summanised above,
under “Materral agreements containing change of control provisions™

Going concern
The Directors’ statement on going concern is contaned on page 41
of this report

Corporate governance comphance
The statement on compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
for the reporting period 13 contained on page 66 of this report

Articles of assocation
The Company’s articles of assoaation may be amended by special
resolution of the shareholders

Shareholder nghts
The nghts and obligations attaching to the (rdinary Shares contamned
in ABG’s articles of association are as follows

Voung nights

Subyect to any specrat nghts or voting restrictions contamed 1n the srticles
of association for any class of share, at any general meetng every member
who s present in person or by proxy shall on a show of hands have one
vote and every member present in person or by proxy shall on 2 poll have
one vote for each share of which he or she 1s the holder




A resolution put to a vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of
hands, unless a poli 1s duly demanded. Subject to the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, a poll may be demanded by the Chairman, by at
least five members who have the night to vote at the meeting, by a member
or members representng not less than one-tenth of the total voting nghts
of all the members having the right to vote at the meeting, or by a member
or members holding shares conferring a nght to vote at the meeting, being
shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not less than
one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the shares confernng that right

Unless the Direciors otherwise deterrmne, a shareholder 1s not enutled to
vote at a shareholders’ meeting, erther in person or by proxy, or to exercise
any other nght conferred by membership in relation to a shareholders’
meeting, unless and until all catls or other sums presently payable by hum
1n respect of that share with interest and expenses (1f any) have been paid
to ABG or if he or any other pesson appearing to be interested in shares
has been 1ssued with a notice pursuant to Sectzon 793 of the Companies
Act 2006 (requinng disclosure of interest 1n shares) and has failed to
provide the required information withun 14 days from the service of

the notice

Dividend nights

The Board may declare and pay dividends on any class of shares carrying
afixed dvidend expressed to be payable on fixed dates and may from ume
to ume pay imertm divadends as 1t thinks fit Final dividends shall be
declared by ordinary shareholder resolution, 1n accordance with Board
recommendations No dividend declared by sharcholders shall exceed the
amount recommended by the Board

Provided that the Board acts in good faith, it shall not incur any hiability to
shareholders for any loss that they may suffer by the lawful payment of any
tixed or intenm dvdend on any shares ranking after or pan passu with

those shares,

Except as otherwise provided by the nghts attached to shares, all diwvidends
shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid up on
the shares dunng any portion or porttons of the period 1n respect of whuch
the dvidend 1s pad, but 1f any share 1s 1ssued on terms providing that 1t
shall rank for dmdend as from a particular date, 1t shall rank for dividend
accordingly No amount pard up on a share in advance of the date on whach
a call 15 payabte shall be treated as paid up on the share

Payment of any dividend declared may be satisficd wholly or partly by
the distribution of speaific asscts, and in particular of paid up shares or
debentures of ABG, with shareholder approval

The Directars may retain any dividend or other money payable on or
in respect of a share on which ABG has a hen and may apply the same
towards satisfaction of the momes payable to ABG mn respect of that share

Unless the Directors otherwise determine, the payment of any dovidend or
other money that would otherwise be payable in respect of shares will be
withheld, and ABG shall have no obhgation to pay mterest on it, if such
shares represent at least 0 25% of the nominal value of the 1ssued share
capital of their class and the holder, or any other person appeartng to be
interested an those shares, has been 1ssued with a Section 793 notice and
has faited to supply the mformatton required by such notece within 14
days Furthermore, such a holder shall not be entitled to elect to recerve
shares instead of a dvidend

The payment by the Board of any unclaimed dividend or other monies on
or 1 respect of a share mto a separate account shall not constitute ABG a
trustee in respect thereof All dividends unclaimed for a penod of 12 years
after having been declared or become due for payment shall be forfeited
and shall revert to ABG

Transfer of shares

Subject to any apphcable restrictions, each member may transfer all or

any of his or her shares, which are in certithcated form, by instrument of
transfer 1n wnting in any usual form or 1n any other form acceptable to the
Board and may be under hand only Such instrument shall be executed by
or on behalf of the transferer and (1n the case of a transfer of a share whach
15 not fully paid up) hy or on hehalf of the transferee The transferor shall
be deemed to remain the holder of such share until the name of the
transferee 1s entered in the regster mn respect of it

All transfers of shares which are in uncertificated form shall, unless the
CREST regulations otherwise provide, be effected on a relevant systern

The Directors may, in therr absolute diserction and without gwang any
reason, refuse to reprster any transfer of 4 share 1n certificated form (or
renunctation of a renounceable letter of allotment) unless

(1) 1tisan respect of a share which 15 fully pard up,

(u) 1t 1510 respect of only one class of shares,

{w) 1t 15 1n favour of not more than four jomt transferees,

(v} islodged duly stamped (if so required) at the transfer oflice,

{v} 1tisaccompaned by the relevant certificate for the shares to which
1t relates and such other evidence as the Directors may reasonably
require to prove the title of the transferor and the due executron of
the transfer or, 1f the transfer 15 executed by some other person on his
behalf, the authority of that person to do so, and

(v1) 1 the case of partly paid shares listed on the London Stock Exchange,
such refusal would prevent dealings tn such shares from taking place
on an open and proper basis

Unless the Board otherwise determines, a transfer of shares will not be
regustered if the transferor or any other person appearing to be interested
1n the transferor’s shares has been issued wath Section 793 shares in
respect of shares representing at least 0 25% of therr class and the relevant
information has not been supplied within 14 days Thus restriction on
transfer will not automatically apply if the member 15 not personally n
default as regards supplying the information required and the proposed
transfer 1s only part of the member’ holding, prowided that certain
requirernents are satisfied at the ume of presenting the transfer

for regastrauen

Division of ABG assets on a winding up

If ABG 1s wound up, the iquadator may, with the sanction of a shareholder
special resolution, divide the whole or any part of ABG's assets between
shareholders In such circumstances the Liquidater may value any assets
and determine how the division shall be carnied out as between the
shareholders or different classes of sharcholder Subject to certan
requirements, the hquidator may also vest any part of the assets in trustees
on such trusts for the benefit of the shareholders, but no shareholder shall
be compelled to accept any assets on which there 1s a habahty
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Directors’ report continued

Vanation of rights

If at any time the share caprtal of ABG 1s donded into shares of different
classes, nghts attached to a class may only be varted in such manner (if
any) as may be provided by prescribed nghis or, in the absence of any such
provision, etther with the consent in writing of the holders of not less than
three-quarters 1n nomnal value of the 1ssued shares of the class or with the
sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate general meeting of the
holders of shares of the class duly convened and held.

Powers of Directors

Managing the business

ABG's business 1s managed by the Board, and the articles of association
permut the Board to exerase all of ABG's powers in this regard These
powers may be exercised by any meeting of the Board at which a quorum
of two Directors is present Fhe power of the Board to manage the business
1s subject to any hmitatrons imposed by the Companies Act, the articles of
assoclation or any direcuons given by speaal resolution of the
shareholders apphcable at a relevant tme

The articles contain an express authonty for the appaintment of Frecutive
Drrectors and provide the Directors with the authonity to delegate or
confer upon such Directors any of the powers exercisable by them upon
such terms and conditions and with such restrictions as they see fit The
articles contain additional authonties to delegate powers and discretions
to commltees and subcommuttees

Borrowing powers

Subyect to the provisions of the Compames Act 2006, the CREST
regulations and any other applicable law, the Directors may exercise all
the powers of ABG to horrow money, guarantee, indemmify, mortgage or
charge its undertaking, property (present and future} and uncalled capital
or any part or parts thereof and 1ssue debentures and other securities,
whether cutnight or as collateral security for any debt, hability or obligation
of ABG or of any third party up to a maximum amount of two times the
aggregate of the ABG Group's adjusted total equity, calculated
accordance with the procedure contamed in the arncles of associatton
Borrowings in excess of thts amount require prior shareholder approval

New issues of shares

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, the CREST
regulations and every other enactment for the time being in force relating
to the Directors” authority to allot shares andfor the disapphcation of
pre-emption rights and to any resolution of the Company i1n general
meetug regarding the same, the Directors may allot {with or without
couferning a right of renunciation), grant options over or otherwise

dispose of them to such persons, at such times and on such terms as they
thunk proper

ABG’s shareholders passed the following resolutions relating to the
allotment and pre-emption nght disapphcations at the 2012 AGM

(1) The Directors have been granted an authanty to allot new shares and
to grant nights to subscribe for or convert any security into shares up
to a nominal value of £13,532,821, which was equivalent to
approxumately 33% of the total ssued ardinary share caputal of ABG
at the tume of passing the resolution, exclusive of treasury shares
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(u) Pre-empuon rights were disapplied over new shares allotted for
cash pursuant to the authonty granted at {1) above but only (a) 1n
connection with a pre-emptive offer or nights 1ssue, or {b} otherwise
up to a nomnat value of £2,050,427 equivalent to approximately
5% of the total issued ordinary share capital of ABG at the time of
passing the resolutton

These authorities have not been exercised dunng the reporting persod and
will expire on the date of the forthcoming AGM Equuvalent resolutions
for a renewal of these authorities will be put to the shareholders at the
forthcomung AGM

Appointment and replacement of Directors

Shareholders may appoint any person who 1s willing to act as a Director by
ordinary resolution and may remove any Director by ordinary reselution
The Board may appoint any person to fill any vacancy or as an addsional
Director, provided that they are submutted for re-election by the
shareholders at the AGM following their appomntrnent.

Spealfic conditions apply to the vacation of office, including cases where

a Director becomes prolibited by law or regulatton from holding oflice,
or 1s persisiently absent from Directors’ meetngs, or if three-quarters of
appomwted Directors request his or her resignation or in the case of mental
incapacity or bankruptcy

Barnicks nghts to appount Directors are summarnised on page 65

Related party transachons
Details of related party transactions undertaken during the year are
contamned i Note 32 on page 136 of the consohidated financial stetemnents.

Post balance shect events

Particulars of any important events affecting the Company or the ABG
Group since the year-end are contained i Note 34 on page 138 of the
consohdated financeal statements

Audit information

Having made the requisite enquiries, 5o far as the Directors are aware
there 15 no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418(3) of the
Compantes Act 2006) of which the auditors are unaware and each Director
has taken all steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Durector to make
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to estabhish that the
auditors are aware of that mformation

Auditors

ABG’s auditors are PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC} A resolution to
reappoint PwC as audstors will be proposed at the forthcorung AGM
Refer to page 93 as part of the consohdated financial statements for the
Independent Auditors’ report




Drrectors’ responsibilities statement

Under apphcable UK law, the Durectors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report, the Directors’ Report, the Remuneration Report and the
financial statements in accordance wath apphcable law and regulation

Responsibility for financial statements

The Comparucs Act 2006 requires the Directors to prepare financial
staternents for cach finanaial year Under that law the Dhirectors have
prepared the Group and parent company financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS}) as
adopted by the European Union Under company law the Directors must
not approve the financal staternents unless they are sausfied that they
g've a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the ARG Group and

the Company and of the profit or loss of the ABG Group for that penod
In preparing these financial staternents, the Directors are required to

« Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

+ Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

= State whether apphicable IFRS as adopted by the European Union have
been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and

explamed in the finanaal statenents, and

Prepare the financal statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 15
wnappropriate to presume that the Company will continue n business

The Durectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Cornpany’s transactions and
disclose wath reasonable accuracy at any ime the finanaial posiion of
the Compadny and the ABG Group and enable them to ensure that the
(manaadl statements and the Direciors’ Remuneration Report comply
with the Compames Act 2006 and, as regards the ABG Group’s financal
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also respomsible fur
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the ABG Group and hence
for takang reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other arregulantics

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integrity of the
Company’s website and legislation in the United Kingdom goverming the
preparatton and dissemination of financaial statemnents may differ from
lepsslation in other junsdictions

Responsibility statement required by Disclosure and Transparency Rules -_—
The Durectors confirm to the best of their knowledge that g
3

« The financial statemnents, prepared 1n accordance wath apphcable
accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets, habilittes,
finanaal position and profit or loss of ABG and the undertalangs
included in the consolidation as a whole; and

«+ The management report, which 1s mcarporaied into the Directors’
Report, includes a fair review of the development or performance of the
business and the positton of ABG and the undertakings included in the
consolidation as a whole, together with a description of the prinaipal
nisks and uncertainties that they face

Approval of Directors’ report
Thus report has been approved by the Board and signed on 1its behalf by

DUBULIOYR] |

Katrtna Whte,
Company Secretary
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Remuneration report

Continued development of
our compensation practices

“Maintaiming compensation arrangements
to support business continuity and retention
of talent”

Michael Kenyon,
Chairman of the Compensation commttee

7 March 2013
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Dear Shareholders,

Overall, 2012 has been an unusual year for ABG, notably as a result of

a number of key developments 1n cur operating environment and the
umpact of discussions between China National Gold and Barnick, both of
which required a refocusing of commttee actmvities, In particular, much

of the commuttee’s work 1n the latter half of 2012 focused on ensunng we
had appropriate retention and compensatton arrangements in place in
order to mamtan workforce levels to provide for bustness continuation
duning a prolonged penod of uncertainty As we emerge from thas, the
commuttee will resume tts focus on developing our compensation practices
in hne with our strategic business objectives, 1n order to support long-term
growth and returns

Generally, compensation practices throughout the global mining sector
have remained hughly competitive throughout the year It 1s emportant that
we ensure our approach to compensation and icentives remains broadly
competitive within thus sector in order to attract and retan the talent
requured to drive our business In conjunction with this, we are mndful of
the evolving trends and practices applicable to compensation generally

[n 2012, the committee decided to replace awards under the Company’s

Share Option Plan with awards of commensurate fair value under the

Long-Term Incentve Plan (“LT1P”) LTIP awards will continue to be

subject to the Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) performance condition

established for thus plan In addiuon, the commuttee has approved the

introduction of Executive Director shareholding guidelines, pursuant

to which Executive Directors will be required to establish & mummum

shareholding in the Company equal to two times base salary over a peniod ‘
of 5 years The comumurtee will continue to review developments in

remuneration in order 10 ensure appropriate alignment between the

interests of executives and shareholders in the context of compensation |
and performance

More generally, ongomng regulatory developments in the context of
executive compensation and content requirements for the Directors’
Remuneration Report have remained a key focus for the commuttee 1n
2012 We continue to monutor the proposals and awa:t the ultimate
outcome of requirements under the Enterprise and Regulatory Reform
Bull and the effects that this will have on future reporting periods and
the formulation of the Company’s remuneration policy gomng forward,




Summary of Executive Director remuneration pohicy and structure

Component

Objeclive

Detals

Base salary

To provide appropriately competitive level of
hase salary with due regard to the size and nature
of the responsibihities of each role, as well as an
mdrvidual executive’s expenence

Any adjustments effective 1 January

Benchmarked against international gold mining, general mining
and I'TSE-hsted compames of similar size and complexity

The commutiee also takes 1nto account corporate and indwndual
performance and experience; general market conditions, and salary
increases applied within the Company as a whole

Short-Term I[ncentive

To align annual reward with annual performance,
e rewnforce the delvery of key short-term
operational objectives

Annual opportunity of up to 150% of salary, with 75% of salary
payable for target performance

Based on performance agamst a balanced scorecard of Group targets
and individual objecteves together with the commuttee’s view of the
overall performance of the business

Long-Term Incentive

To provide strong alignment with shareholders’
long-term mnterests, 1 €. reward good long-term
deasions that help deliver outperformance,
absolute share price growth and support the
retention of critical executives

(a) Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”)
Annual award of restricted stock uruts (*RSUs”) up to 200% of salary

RSUs vest based on ABG's three-year TSR outperformance of
international gold mining sector peers

(b) Share Option Plan (“SOP”}
Annual award of options up to 200% of satary

Options vest annually over four years, in equal tranches based on
continued employment

Pension To help provide for an appropnate Executrve Directors recewve contributions of 25% of base salary into
retirement benefil a personal pension scheme of the Fxecutive Director’s chnice, or a
cash supplement of commensurate value
Audit notes « Approving the rules, and launch, of any Company share, share option

In accordance with Section 421 of the Companies Act 2006 and Schedule
8 of the Large and Medium Sized Companzes and Groups (Accounts and
Reports) Regulations 2008 (the “Regulations™), the following sections

of the Annual Report have been audited. Directors’ Remunerabion,
Directors’ Interests wn Shares under the ABG Long-Term Incentive Plan,
Dhrectors’ Interests 1n options under the ABG Share Option Flan,
Non-Executive Directors’ [nterests in wnits under the ABG Deferred
Share Unut Plan The remaiung sections are not subject to audit.

Compensation commuttee
The commuttee’s pnnapal responsibilitics are

« Setting, reviewing and recommending to the Board for approval
the Company’s overall remuneration policy and strategy,

+ Setting, reviewing and approving individual remuneration
arrangements for the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Finanaal Officer,

+ Settung, reviewing and approving individual remuneration
drrangements {ur the semyor managentent team, afler considenng
the recommendattons of the Chief Executive Oflicer,

or cash-based incenuve scheme and the grant, award, allocation or 1ssue
of shares, share options or payments under any such scheme;

Setting, reviewing and approving the corporate and individual
performarnce goals for the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Finanaal Officer,

Setung, reviewing and approving the corporate and indmdual
performance goals for the senior managernent team based on the
Chief Cxecutive Officer’s recommendations,

Assessing the achuevement of corporate and indivadual performance
goals of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and
SETILOT Managers,

Ensuring that all provistons regarding disclosure of remunerauon,
including pensions, as set out 1n the UK Corporate Governance Code
and the Listing Rules and as required in connection with the preparation
of the Dhrectors’ Remuneration Report, are fulfilled, and

Establishing selection entena for the selection, appointment and the
terms of reference for any remuneration consultants who adwise the
commuttee, and obtawng reliable, up-to-date mnformation about
remuneration n other peer group and FTSE companues
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Remuneration report continued

The full terms of reference of the Compensation commuttee can be
found on the ABG website and copies are avalable on request. As of
31 December 2012, the commuttee compnsed the following:

+ Michael Kenyon (Chairman)
+ Andre Falzon

+ Dawvid Hodgson

« Kelvin Dushrusky

Mr Dushnisky was appemnted mid-year, following Mr Regent’s departure
from the commuttee and Mr Hodgson was appointed to the commuttee
to fill ndependent Non-Executive Director vacanaies The follawing
individuals attended meetings by invitation during the year and provided
advice to the commuttee to enable 1t to make mnformed decisions,

o Greg Hawkans, Chief Execuuve Oflicer,
« Peter Geleta, Vice President Orgamsational Effectiveness, and

« Kobus van Vuuren, Head of Human Resources

No Director 1s present when his or her own remuneration 1
bemng determined.

The commuttee also meets without management and receives information
and advice from Kepler Associates, an independent executive remuneratron
consultancy firm Dunng 2012, Kepler Associates provided adwice to the
commuttee on its review of market trends, remuneration benchmarking
and remuneration issues 1n general Kepler Associates does not advise

the Company on any other 1ssues Kepler Associates1s a member of the
Remuneration Consultants Group and adheres toits code of conduct.

‘The commttee also recerved legal adwice from Shearman & Sterhng 117
during the year on speaific matters relating to restrictions placed on the
use of the Company's long-term incentive schemes during the Offer Peniod
and the adoption of the Executive Director retention arrangements during
the Offer Penod

Remuneration policy
Ihe Company’s remuneraton policy 15 designed wath the fullowing
objectves 1n mund.

+ toahgn the interests of Executive Directors wath the short- and
long- term interests of shareholders,

= tolink executive remuneration to the performance of the Company
and the indmdual,

= to leverage performance through emphasis on vartable remuneration
to reinforce key business imperatives and strategy,

» to renforce the key elements of the Company’s strategy and align the
Senior Leadershup Team with the strategy, and

« toremunerate the Chief Fxecutive Officer, Chief Finanaial Officer and
Seruor Leadershup Team at a level and 1n a manner that ensures that
ABG 15 capable of attracting, motivating and retaiming talent
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In defining the Company's remuneration policy, the Compensation
commuttee takes into account advice recerved from external consultants
and also best practice gmdehines set by institutional shareholder bodies,
including the principles and guidelimes on executive remuneration 1ssued
by the Association of British Insurers (ABI) and the provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code In 2013, the commuttee will continue its
review of remunerstion disclosure against the requirernents of the
Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Bill and the Company’s remuneration
pohicy which, based on the current proposals, will be subject to a bindng,
shareholder vote at the 2014 AGM

To imptement the policy, ABG has the option of using three performance-
related incentrve schemes for the Senior Leadershap Teamn

« the Short-Term Incentrve — 1s designed to focus executives on the
business prioriues of the finanaal year and to reinforce the indmdual
and Company performance ethic;

+ the Long-Term Incentive Plan - aims to mouvate participants to
maxirmise total shareholder return as measured against a comparator
group of mternational gold mining companies over a penod of three
years, and

+ the Stock Option Plan - aims to drive shareholder value over the long
term and encourage retention

The commuttee considers that the three-year vesting penod for the TTIP s
appropriate as a measure of long-term performance. In addition, hustorically,
the phased vesting period over four years for the SOP was viewed ag
appropriate to encourage retention In ths regard, it should be noted that
the committee has decided not to grant any awards under the SOP for
2012 or any future penods.

Actrvities in 2012

The Compensation commuttee met six imes duning the year Details of
members’ attendance at meetings are provided on page 62 As noted
above, the focus of the commuttee actrvities in 2012 was impacted by the
prolonged Offer Period imposed on the Company as a result of discussions
between China National Gold and Barnck, whach required consideration
of appropriate employee and management retention plans durng a period
of ongomng uncertainty As a result, principal comnuttee actrvities focused
on the following

» Reviewing and adopting appropnate retention packages for Company
employees and management,

» Rewviewing the Company’s redundancy policies,

+ Review and approval of 2012 indwidual performance and pay
recommendatons for the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Finanaal
Officer and other members ot the Sentor Leadership Teamn, and

« Approval of 2013 salary increases for the Chiefl Executive Ofhicer, Chiel
Finenaal Oflicer, Semtor Leadership Team and viher sentor {uncuuns

Ongoing reviews of compensation arrangements and market positiomng
aof pay for the Chiefl Frecutive Officer, Chuef Financial Officer and Senor
Leadershup Team will continue into 2013, n conyunction with the
outcomes and considerations relevant to the Operational Review




Components of remuneration

The current remuneration package for Executive Dhrectors comprises
perfuormance-related and non-performance-related components The
performance-related components are the incentive schemes referred to
above and the non-performance-related components are base salary,
taxablc benefits and pension cntitlemnents Pay and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group have been taken 1nto account by the commuttee

m determining the remuncrabion packages for Cxecutive Directors This
includes the commuttee regularly reviewing information provided by the
Human Resources function.

The proportion of each Executive Thrector’s total remuneration that is
performance-related 1s ssgmficant even for target performance For stretch
performance, the proportton of total remuneratton that 1s performance-
related 1s hugher, as 15 the total amount of remuneration payable.

The average proportuon of remunerauon (inclieding penston) that was
performance-related in 2012 1s dlustrated by the following chart In
estimating the relattve importance of those elements of remuneration that
are, and those that are not, performance-related, a number of assumptions
have had to be made about the Company’s share price growth and TSR,
relative to the Company’s comparator group, over the next three years

Composition of remuneration package for Executive Directors

AS A % OF TOTAL REMUNERATION AT TARGET

AND STREFCH PERFORMANCE
CEO CFO
arget arget
stratch stretch

[0 Fxed base salary benefts and pension
[Jvanable cash and sharebased incenines

Base salanes

Executsve Directors’ salanes are reviewed each year with any changes
normally taking effect from 1 January This review takes into account
individual performance and market competitiveness Penstonable salary
15 derved from base salary only

In hine with cur remuneration policy, the commuttee benchmarks
Executive Darectors’ salanes against comparator groups, whuch, for the
2012 salary review, were international geld mining, general menung and
FTSE-listed companzes of ssmilar size and complexity In 2012, the
committee nated the Chief Fxecutive Officer’s salary was between lower
quartile and median and the Chief Finanaal Officer’s salary was hetween
median and upper quartile

The Commuttee approved the following 2013 salary increases for
Fxecutive Threctors

Increase on

2011 salary 2012 salary 2013 salary 202 salary

Chief Executive Officer £450,000 £475,000 £490,000 316%
Chief Finanaial Officer £327,000 £359,700 £370,500 3%

The salary increases for 2013 are between lower quartite and median for
the Company’s comparatur groups The average salary increase acruss the
rest of the Group was 6 5%

Short-Term Incentive (STI)

The Group operates a cash-hased $TT, which 1n 2012 provided for an
annual borus opportunuty m the range of 09% to 1509 of base salary for
Executive Dhrectors For 2013 the commuttee has approved the following
STT opporturuties for the Executive Directors, thus being equal to that
for2012

2013 target bonus 2013 maxenuty

opportanty _bonus opportunity

Chuef Executive Officer 75% 150%
Chief Finanaial Officer 75% 150%

Awards under the STI are earned based on Group and individual
performance For the Executive Directors, the Group performance
measures for the 2012 wincentave year were based on five categones
financial, operations, growth and CSR (captunng safety, environment,
security, government retations and commumty relations), and personnel
For each of the categones, the commttee sets stretching targets for speafic
performance measures The review of individual performance takes into
consideration achuevements against the indiadual’s personal performance.

In 2012, the Group scorecard assessment reflected a mixed year largets
fur pruducuon, cost, cash flow and earmings performance were not met,
however, growth was strong across exploration, notably with our entry
into Kenya, and we continued to make good progress with capital projects.
In the CSR areas, although we continued to make good progress in key
areas, namely in the context of community relattons, environmental,
security and government relations, overall safety performance was marked
with two fatalities. For the 2012 incentwve year, taking tnto account overall
business and individual performance, the comnuttee has awarded the
Chuef Executrve Ofhcer an STT payment of approxmately 64% of base
salary and the Chief Finanaal Officer an STT payment of approximately
71% of hase salary These payments reflect, not only the fair analysis of
acluevernents when considering Group performance measures, but also
the additional requirements placed on management as a result of the
prolonged Offer Period applicable to the Company i the second half of
2012 Entitlement to the STI may be forfeit if the individual 1s on notice

at the time of payment

The Commuttee will continue to monitor trends and developments in
corporate governance and market practice to ensure the bonus structure
Fenains appropriate.
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Remuneration report confinued

The following table iltustrates the Group measures used to deterrmine the achievernent of the 2(H2 STT Naote, the exact targets themselves are not
disclosed for reasons of commercial sensitivity but performance in relation to thresheld, target and stretch levels 1s detailed below

Achsevement
Below Between threshold Between target Ator

Category Overall weight Measure threshold and target Al target and stretch above stretch
Financial 20% Earnings v

Cash flow v
QOperations 20% Production v

Costs v
Growth 25% Exploration v

Capital projects v
CSR 25% Community relations v

Environment v

Health & safety e

Secunity s

Government relations v
Personnel 10% Capacity building v

Long-term incentives

The Company operates fwo share «chemes in which the Fxecutive
Directors, other members of semior management and hugh potential
individuals within the organisation are eligible to partictpate: the LTIP and
the SOP The commttee recogmses that some of the features of the LTIP
and SOP, whuch are based on the same structure of long-term incentive
awards granted by Barrick, are not fully consistent with general UK market
practice Therefore, we adopted the follownng key amendments to the LTIP
1n 2012, in order to reach an appropnate compronuse between UK market
requurements for such awards and the need to ensure the competitiveness
of the ABG LTIP relauve to the incentives offered by many of our global
sector peers

« mechamcs for the clawback of LTIP awards {or their proceeds) made
o Execative Directors in the exceptional arcumstances of individual
msconduct or finanaal misstatement/misrepurting, and

» mechancs that allow the commuttee to grant awards to participants who
are not Executrve Directors etther (a) wathout a performarnce condition
or, (b) subject to a performance condition, which 13 measured overa
performance period of less than three years

The rules of the LTIP and SOP each perrmit a maxunum award with a
value equal to 200% of salary in each year under normal circumstances
‘The commttee may exceed this limut in exceptional circumstances The
commuttes generally intends for awards to be delivered on a “fair value”
baus. As a result of regulatory restrictions applicable to the Company as
aresult of the Offer Period, no awards were made under the SOP or LTIP
1 2012 Following year end, and subsequent to the kfung of Offer Penrod
related restrictions, the commuttee granted LTTP awards 1n respect of 2012
equivalent to ¢ 150% of base salary for the Cluef Executive Ofhcer and the
Chief Finanaal Oflicer respectively The Committee made these awards
on the basis that both the LTIP should be looked at m overall terms of

(1) incentivisation, and (u} retention. No awards have been made in respect
of 2012 under the SOP
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Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Under the LTIP, awards of conditional shares, options or restricted stock
unuts (RSUs) may be granted. To date, only RSUs have been granted under
the LTIP

The Executive Drrectors and the other members of our Sentor Leadership
Team are ehigible to receive annual awards under the LTIP Awards vest on
the Company’s TSR performance (share price and dividends) against the
market cap-weighted average TSR of a comparator group of compantes
over a three-year performance period commencing on the date of grant
There 15 no retest proviston The commttee considers that TSR 15 an
appropriate performance measure for the LTIP because 1t captures the
shareholder return delsvered over the long term objectrvely and s less
sensitive (o short-term changes m the gold price than many alternatrve
measures commeonly used.




The commuttee reviews the comparator group agamnst which TSR For awards made n respect of 2012, the Executive Directors were granted -
performance 1s measured from tsme to tume to ensure it remains RSUs wath a value of 150% of salary, which wall vest in full if the Company’s i
appropriate During the year, the commuttee reviewed the exestng TSR 15 1n line wath the comparator index. |
comparator group and decided to replace Zyin Minung Group with :

New Gold Tnc and to remove Palyus Gold Tnternational Timited from Whilst permutting partial vesting for TSR performance below median s

the comparator group for I TIP awards made in respect of 2012 not consistent with UK market practice, we believe 1t 15 important to

mantain this vesting schedule 1n order to balance disproportionate TSR

Year of award 2012 2011 volathty, resulting from the lirmited free float and thus hquidity in the
Agnico-Eagle Mines Lid v v Companys shares
AngloGold Ashant Ltd v v
Buenaventura Mining Company* v v Stock Option Plan (SOP)
Centarmn ple y ,  Pursuantlo the terms of the SOP, the Company may grant options over s —
Centerra Gold Inc v ’ shares with the option price set at least at the fair market value at the ume
f the grant, Grants vest in equal parts over four years and expire seven E
Eldorado Gold Corp y s OB P ¥ P g
years from the date of grant. Irutially, a four-year vesting penod was 3
Gold Fields Ltd v Y selected to md 1n the retenuon of key talent In a recent review of E
Harmony Gold Mining Co Ltd. v ¥ appropnate ncentive arrangements for Executive Directors and members 8
IAMGOLD Corp v v of semor management, the commuttee has decided to replace awards under
Kunross Gold Corporation v v the SOP with awards of commensurate fair value under the Company's |
New Gold Inc v LTIP Historically, the commuttee considered ime-only share option
Petropaviovsk PLC v o awards helpful in supporting retentton ’and recrustment as well as 1
Polyus Gold International Limuted / providing alignment with shareholders’ long-term interests However,
Randgold Resources Ltd v P followng 1ts recent review of compensation practices, the commuttee has
decided that greater emphasis on the Company’s LTIP, whuch rewards
Semafo Inc v Y ABG's long-term outperformance, will be more motvational and further T
Yamana Gold Inc ¥ enhance alignment with shareholder interests ]
Ziyin Munung Group Co Ltd v E
*  Translation of company name into Enghsh LegaCY Barrick mcentive plans 8
Many members of our Seruor Leadershup Team, who were previously
The commuttee has set the following performance conditions for employees of Barrick, retained stock options and restricted share wnits
allocations made under the LTIP under Barrick’s remuneration arrangements on joining the Company
Further details of these plans and any holdings of Directors are disclosed
ABGs TSR % outperfarmance of comparatar on pages 85 and 86 ABG Executive Directors and management are no
group weghted mean over three years % of allocated shares transferred longer eligible for further awards under the Barnick incentive plans.
+20% 2x target
0% target Pensions —
-125% 0 5x target Executrve Directors recerve contributions equal to 25% of gross base salary £
Below -12 5% All allocated shares are forfeted  into a personal pension scheme of the Executive Dhrector’s choice, ora E
cash supplement of commensurate value Itis separately idenufied in the E
Where performance 1s between the above levels, the percentage of shares emoluments table on page 83 The Group does not operate any defined §
to be transferred 13 deterruned on a proportionate basis benefit schernes 'g' |
This performance condition can be 1llustrated as follows Dilution o
In the event of all options and shares outstanding as at 31 December 2012
LTIP PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS under ABG share-based schemes (which could be satistied by the 1ssue
% of allocated shares transfensd uf new shares) becoming exerasable, the resulting wsue of shares would
00 represent approxxmately 0 5% of the 1ssued share capital as at that date. As
an alternative to satisfying the relevant awards by 1ssuing new shares, the :—
150 Company may enter into arrangements with the Afnican Barrick Gold
Cmployce Benefit Trust to satisfy awards using market purchase shares g
100 =
“ Executive retention arrangements g
- Grven the uncertainty caused by the prolonged Offer Penod umposed 3
. on the Company, an addiional discretionary short-term performance E
. . p— incentive bonus was put i place in 2012 for the Executive Directors ]
averege 125% rerage verage +20% n order to appropriately incentivise these key staff to rernan with the
3year TSR Company The short-term incentive bonuses were subject to the
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achievement of vanous performance critena which were designed to
ensure that the Executive Directors mamtained the stability and morale
of the warkforce, asmsted 1 the discussions between Bamick and China
National Gald and mammised shareholder returns from any offer recerved
for the Company The amount of any award made to either Fxecutive
Director under these arrangements would be determmed by the
Compensation commuittee wn 1ts absolute discretion The manmum
potential payment under these arrangements was £2,125,000 for the Chuef
Executive Officer and £1,650,800 for the Chief Financial Ofhcer These
retention arrangements were cancelled without payment to the Executive
Directors in carly 2013 following expiry of the Offer Period and replaced
by virtue of the amendments made to Executive Director service contracts
as regards change of control, exptained below

Service contracls

The Exccunve Directors’ service contracts, including arrangemnents for
early termunatton, are carefully considered by the comnuttee and are
designed to recrut, retain and motivate directors of the quality requred
to mandge the Company The commuttee considers that appomtments of
mdefinute term and with a notice penod of one year to be appropnate

The Executive Directors’ service contracts provide for compensation of 12
months’ salary in the event of early termmation In addition, 1n early 2013
the Board approved arnendments to the Executive Director service
contracts in connection with the cancellahon of retention arrangements
put n place dunng the prolonged Offer Peniod, 1n order to ensure that the
Company mamntains appropriate retention and compensation arrangements
to support bustness continwity at this stage The arnendments prownde for
an entitlement to a severance payment in the event of an Executive
Directors being dismussed without cause or resigning for good reason

n the 12 months following a change of control of the Comipany Such
payment would be equal to two tumes the combined value of an Executive
Drrector’s base salary, one year of performance incentive; any Cornpany
pension contributions and a Company car allowance mn each case Any
payment made under this arrangement would replace the entitlement to
recerve payment under the Executive Director’s 12 month notice pertod
m each case

Semior Leadership Team (exchiding Executive Directors)

The policy and practice with regard to the remuneration of senior
employees below the Executive Directors 1s broadly consistent with that
for the Executive Directors These individuals all have a sigmficant portion
of thewr reward package linked to performance They all qualify for annual
bonus and LTIP and SOP awards, and their performance targets are the
same as, or cascaded from, the targets for the Executrve Directors In
additton, awards of ime-vesting RSUs are granted to members of the
Serior Leadership Team to help ensure their retention The commuitee
reviews and approves the individual remuneration packages for each
member of the Seruor Leadershup Tearn 1n accordance with the overriding
objectives of our remuneratton policy Their indindual performance 1s
reviewed and thew base salary increases, annual bonus payments and LTIP
and SOP awards are subyect to approval by the commuttee each year

Non-Executive Directors

The Board aims to recrust Non-Fxecutive Dhrectors of a high calibre wath
broad commercial, mternational and other expertence relevant to muung
operations. Non-Executive Directors are appomnted by the Board on the
recommendation of the Nomination comrmittee Their appomntment 1s for
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an inutial term of three years, subject to election by shareholders at each

AGM 1n accordance with the requurements of the UK Corporate |
Governance Code Upon the recommendatron of the Noymination

commuttee, they are reappomted for a second term of three years, agan

subject to annual re-election by shareholders

The terms of engagement of the Non-Executive Directors are set out 1n
a letter of appoimiment ‘These letters do not contain any provision for
compensation for early termmnation of office, nor do they contan any
notice periods

The basic annual fee pad ta Non-Uxecutive Directars for 2012 was

£65,000 per annum Additional fees of £15,000 were also payable for acting

as Senuor [ndependent Director and £10,000 for acting as chawrman of the

Compensation commuttee or EHS&S commutiee, respectively A fee of

£20,000 was payable for acting as chairman of the Audit commuttee In

addition to thus, during the year the Board approved the payment of a fee

of £200,000 per annum to Mr Pannell for assuming the role of Acting

Charrman As regards the Transachion commuttee formed by the Board for

purposes of overseeing matters relevant to the Compary’s status asa

potenual target for UK takeover purposes, the Board approved addinonal

fees of £1,500 and £2,600 payable per meeting of this committee to eack

member and the chairman respectively The Board beheves that such fees '
represented reasonable fees due in connection with the assumption of i
additional respongbiliies ansing from the appointment to thus commuttee

|
Non-Executive Director fee levels for 2013 will be reviewed pnor to the i
2013 AGM Any changes wall take effect from 1 Apnil 2013

Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to parbicipate under the
Company’s SOP or LTIP [n 2012 the Company established a Deferred
Share Unut Plan, pursuant to which Non-Executive Directors may elect to
warve some or all of their annual fees it return for a deferred nght to a
cash payment, payable only after a participant ceases to hold office with
the Company Broadly, cash payments under this plan are calculated by
reference to the farr market value of the Company’s shares at the ime of
payment and reman subject to market fluctuations in the context of the
Company’s share price unt the e of payment. This plan was adopted
to address certain practices and trends of North Amencan mining
companies, which provide for simular elections to be made i order to
ensure that our practices for non-executive compensation structures
remain flexble and competiive aganst our global peers. Elections under
the plan are made annually, usually in Aprl of each year Current
outstanding awards are summansed in the table entitled Audited
Non-Executive Directors’ Interests i units under the ABG Deferred
Share Unit Plan below

Chairman |
Mr Pannell was appointed as Acting Chairman following Mr Regent’s ‘
departure The Comparniy agreed to pay an additional fee of £200,000 per

annum for the assumption of this role during 2012




Performance graphs

The following graphs show (1) ABGs 18R performance for the pertod from the IPO to 31 December 2012 {calculated 1 accordance wath the regulations)
against the FTSE 350 and ABG's LTIP comparator group, and () ABG's TSR performance (calculated m accordance with the regulations) aganst the
FTSE 350 and ABG’s LTIP comparator group during the reporting period The FTSE 350 was chosen on the basis of 1t being 4 recognised bread equity
market index, of which ABG was a member for the reporting period

HISTORICAL TSR PERFORMANCE

Growth in the vatue of a hypathetical £100 holding from IPO to 31 December 2012

HISTORICAL TSR PERFORMANCE

Grawth 1n the value of a hypathetical £160 holding from 31 December 2011 to

31 December 2012
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Assumptions

LTIP comparatar group 15 based on a waighted mean, wath weightings calculated based

on spot market cap at 18 March 2010

All data 1s based on spot share prices, 1 ¢ no averaging 1s used.

B Afncan Barnck Gold

Assumpuions

EFTSEIS0 W 2012 LTIP comparator group

LTIP comparatar group 1s based on a waghted mean, with weightings calculated based

on spot market cap at 31 December 2011

All data 15 based on spot share prices, 1 e no averaging 15 used,

The following section of this report provides detatls of the remuneration, service contracts or letters of appontment and share nterests of ali the
Durectors for the year ended 31 December 2012

This part of the Remuneration report has been audited by ABG? external auditors

Salary/fees Pension Tuxable benefits® Bonus®™ Total'®
W12 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 912 2011 2012 2011
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Derek Pannell 165,890 75,000 - - - - - - 165,890 75,000
Greg Hawkins 475,000 450,000 118,750 112,500 385,790 35,543 302,813 337,500 1,282,353 935,540
Kevin Jennings 358,700 327,000 89,925 81,750 127,710 35,544 256,286 245520 833,621 689,810
Andre Falzon 85,000 70,000 - - - - - - 85,000 70,000
Stephen Galbratth - - - - - - - - - -
David Hodgson 96,000 13,886 - - - - - - 96,000 13,886
Ambassador
Juma V Mwapachu 65,000 26,087 - - - - - - 65,000 26,087
Michael Kenyon 116,600 70,000 - - - - - - 116,600 70,000
Kelvin Dushinsky - - - - - - - - - -
Ruck McCreary - - - - - - - - -
Former Directors
Aaron Regent - - - - - - - - -
James Cross 12,097 60,000 - - - - - - 12,097 60,000

(a) Taxable benefits mnclude car allowance, private medical msurance RSU related payments and ouwtstanding relocation expenses
{b) Payment of Greg Hawkins' bonus for 2012 1s deferved to April 2013 Payment of this banus 1s subject to beng in continued employment at the ime of payment.

(¢) Certan mdependent Non-Executive Directors elected to covert a proportion of therr annual fee for 2012 mnto deferred share unts, pursuant to the terms of the Company’s Deferred Share
Uit Plan as follows. Derek Pannell elected to convert an amount of approxamately £40,000 of the total of hus fee for 2012 into deferred share umits Andre Falzon elected to convert an
amount of approximately £21 720 of the total of hus fee for 2012 into deferred share units, David Hodgson elected to convert an amount of approxumately £37,500 of the total of lus fee for
2012 wnto deferred share units and Michacl Kenyon elected 0 convert an amount nf approimatety £75 000 of the tatal of s fec for 2012 mto deferred share units: The number of share
units granted and market pnce of Ordinary Shares at the date of grant are summarsed in the table below entitled Audited Non-Executive Directors’ interests in units under the ABG

Deferred Share Unit Plan
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Remuneration report confinued

Directors service contracts

Executive Dtrectors
Detauls of the service contracts of the Executive Directors who served during the year are set out below

Contract date Unexpired term Notice penod
Greg Hawluns 23-Mar-10 indefinite 12 months
Kevin Jenmings 23-Mar-10 indefinite 12 months

The Lxccutive Dhrectors’ service contracts provide for compensation of 12 months’ salary m the event of carly termmaton A summary of payments due
under these service contracts on a change of control 1s provided on page 82

Chaurman and Non-Executive Directors

Details of the service contracts of the Non-Executive Directors who served dunng the year are set out below

Contract Expury of
commencemertt date current term
Derek Pannell 01-Feb-10 18- Apr-13
Andre Falzon 01-Feb-10 18- Apr-13
Stephen Galbraith 01-Feb-10 18-Apr-13
David Hodgson 20-Oct-11 19-Oct-14
Ambassador Juma V Mwapachu 14-Jul-11 13-Jul-14
Michael Kenyon 01-Feb-10 18-Apr-13
Rick McCreary 19-Jul-12 18-Jul-15
Kelvin Dushinsky 06-Jun-12 05-Jun-15
Aaron Regent left the Board on 6 June 2012 James Cross left the Board on 8 March 2012
Audited Directors' interests in shares under the ABG Long-Term Incentive Plan
Shares aver Shares aver Shares over
whuch awards which awards Market price which awards
held as at granted dunng at date of End of held as at
Avrard date 01-Jan-12 the year award performance penod Vesting date 31-Dec 12
Greg Hawluns
25-Nov-10 40,219 - £512 24-Nov-13 24-Nov-13 41,357
30-Nov-11 90,543 - £4 97 29-Nov-14 29-Nov-14 93,105
Kevin Jennings
25-Nov-10 22,482 - £512 24-Nov-13 24-Nov-13 23,119
30-Nov-11 65,795 - £497 29-Nov-14 29-Nov-14 67,657

The shares over which awards held histed in the table represent the target award at the date of grant. Addinonal RSUs are credited 1o reflect dmdends
paid on ABG Ordinary Shares prior to the vestung date. Such additional RSUs are subject to the same vestmg provisions as the underlying RSUs that were
actually granted, Following year end, the following RSU awards were granted to Executive Directors representing RSU awards for 2012 Greg Hawkans
recerved awards £qual to 235,099 Ordinary Shares and Kevin Jenmungs recerved awards equal to 178,808 Ordinary Shares on 13 February 2013 The
narket price of Ordinary Shares at the time of these awards was £3 02 The end of the applicable performance period and the vesting date for these

awards ts 12 February 2016

Audited Directors interests i options under the ABG Share Option Plan

Shares over Shares aver Shares aver

whuch awards which awards Exercised/  Market pnce which awards

heldasat  granted denng {lapsed) dunng at date of Earliest Final held as at

Award date 0l-fan-12 the year  Exercise price Lhe year EXETLISE Expury date vesting date vesting date 31-Dec 12
Greg Hawkuns

27-Apr-10 125,000 - £568 - N/A  26-Apr-17  27-Apr-11  27-Apr-14 125,000

25-Nov-10 142,501 ~- £512 - N/A  24-Nov-17  25-Nov-11  25-Nov-14 142,501

29-Nov-11 135,202 - £4 97 - N/A  29-Nov-18 29-Nov-12  29-Nov-15 135,202
Kevin Jenmngs

27-Apr-10 100,000 - £568 - N/A  26-Apr-17  27-Apr-11  27-Apr-14 160,000

25-Nov-10 79,659 - £512 - N/A  24-Nov-17 25-Nov-11 25-Nov-14 79,65%

29-Nov-11 98,247 - £4 97 - N/A  29-Nov-18  29-Nov-12  29-Nov-15 98,247

No awards were made under the SOP for 2012
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Audited Non-Executive Directors interests in unuts under the ABG Deferred Share Unit Plan

Units over
Units over  which awards Uuts over
which awards granted  Marketprnce  which awards
hebd as at dunng the at date of held as at
Awand date 0Ol-Jan 12 year award 31 Dec-12
Andre Falzon
27-Apr-12 - 6,000 £362 6,034
David Hodgson
04-May-12 - 10,684 £351 10,744
Michael Kenyon
01-May-12 - 20,604 £3 64 20,720
Derek Pannell
01-May-12 - 10,989 £3 64 11,051

Awards granted under the Deferred Share Unit Plan are not allocated vesung dates In accordance with the terms of the plan, awards may only vest
followmg the date on which a plan partscipant’s appointment ends Following thus, payment under the plan 1s made at any time until 31 December of
the year following the appointment termuination date Additional DSUs are credited to reflect dividends pard on ABG Ordinary Shares

Share price information

The mid-markel price for the Company’s Ordinary Shares at 31 December 2012 was £4 406 The range during the year was £3 098 to £5 315

Durectors interests in options under the Barrick Share Option Plan

Shares over Shares over Shares over
whyuch awards  which awards Exercrsedf  Market price which awards
heldasat  granted dunng (lapsed) dunng at date of Earhest Final held as at
Award date Gl-Jan 12 the year  Exercise pnice the year exereise Expiry date vesting date vesting date 31 Dec-12
Rick McCreary
26-April-11 88,595 - US$s186 N/A N/A  25-Apr-18  26-Apr-12  26-Apr-15 88,595
14 Feb 2012 - 33,276  USS4B45 N/A N/A  13-Feb-19 14-Feb-13 14 Feb-16 33,276
Kelvin Dushmsky
04-Dec-07 84,515 - USs41 08 N/A N/A  03-Dec-14 04-Dec-08 04-Dec-11 84,515
09-Dec-08 86,169 - US$27 25 N/A N/A  08-Dec-15 0(9-Dec-09  09-Dec-12 86,169
08-Dec-09 68,494 - Uss424 N/A N/A  (07-Dec-16  08-Dec-10  08-Dec-13 68,494
07-Dec-10 74,758 - US854 83 N/A N/A 06-Dec-17 07-Dec-11  07-Dec-14 74,758
14-Feb-12 - 102,414 US548 45 N/A N/A  13-Feb-19  14-Feb-13 14 Feb-16 102,414
07-Aug-12 - 56,408 US$33 36 N/A N/A  06-Aug-19  07-Aug-13  07-Aug-16 56,408
Stephen Galbraith
30-Jul-08 7,500 - US$42 58 N/A N/A 29-Jul-15  30-Jul-09 30-Jul-12 7,500
07-Dec-10 5,000 - 5554 83 N/A N/A  06-Dec-17 (07-Dec-11 07-Dec-14 5,000
Kevin Jennungs
08-Dec-09 21,215 - US$42 44 N/A N/A  07-Dec-16  08-Dec-1¢  08-Dec-13 21,215

Following year end, the following Barrick share option awards were granted to representing share option awards for 2012 Rick McCreary recerved

awards equal to 54,193 Barrick common shares and Kelvin Dushmisky recewved awards equal to 113,685 Barrick common shares on 12 February 2013
The exercise price for these awards 15 US$32 30 The expiry date for these awards 1s 11 February 2020, the earhest vesting date 1s 12 February 2014 and
the final vesting date 15 12 February 2017

Barrick Stock Options

Grants vest in equal parts over four years and expire seven years from the date of grant subject to continued employment, commensurate with

competitive practice in North America.
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Remuneration report continued

Directors’ interests in Barrick Restrnicted Share Unit Plan (PRSU and RSU)

Shares over
Shares over  which awards Shares aver
whuch awands granted  Market price End of Market price Lapsed which swards
Incentive held as at durning the atdateof performance Vested during atdateof  during the held as at
Award date plan 01-Jan 12 year award penod Vesting date the year vesting year 31-Deec-12
Rk McCreary
14-Feb-12 PRSUs - 4,519 C$47 97 14-Feb-15 14-Feb-15 - N/A N/A 4,606
26-Apr-11 RSUs 25,0615 - C$50 39 N/A 26-0ct-13 - N/A N/A 25,497
14-Feb-12 RSUs - 4,519 C347 97 N/A 14-Aug-14 - N/A N/A 4,606
Kelvin Dushmisky
08-Dec-06* PRSUs 10,135 - C544 63 08-Dec-12 08-Dec-12 10,330 C$33 41 N/A -
07-Dec-10 PRSUs 10,579 C8$5525 07-Dec-13 07-Dec-13 - N/A N/A 10,783
14-Feb-12 PRSUs - 13,907 C$47 97  14-Feb-15 14-Feb-15 - N/A N/A 14,175
08-Dec-09 RSU 10,135 - C344 63 N/A  0B-June-12 10,222 C$42 49 N/A -
28-Jul-10 RSU 24,461 - C842 46 N/A 28-Jan-13 - N/A N/A 24,932
07-Dec-10 RSU 10,579 C$55 25 N/A 07-Jun-13 - N/A N/A 10,783
14-Feb-12 RSU - 13,907 C347 97 N/A 14-Aug-14 - NI/A N/A 14,175
07-Aug-12 RSU - 15,230 C83283 N/A 07-Feb-15 - N/A N/A 15,350
Stephen Galbraith
08-Dec-09 RSUs 2,427 - C$44 63 N/A 08-Jun-12 2,448 C842 49 N/A -
07-Dec-10 RSUs 1,805 - 8§55 25 N/A 07-Jun-13 - N/A N/A 1,840
09-Dec-11 RSUs 2,957 - C850 82 N/A 09-Jun-14 - N/A NIA 3.014
Greg Hawlans
08-Dec-09 RSUs 4,627 - C3$44 63 N/A 08-Jun-12 4,667 Cs42 49 N/A -
Kevin Jennings
08-Dec-09 RSUs 2,452 - C8$44 63 N/A 08-Jun-12 2,473 C$42 49 N/A -

Note* The payout for the December 2009 PRSU award, which vested 1n 2012, was calculated based on a payout percentage of 112 35% of the

outstanding unuts (number of umts granted plus accurnulated dnvidend equrvalents} and an average closing share price of C$33 41

Following year end, the following awards were made under Barriclds RSU plan representing awards for 2012 Rick McCreary receved an RSU award
equal to 13,007 Barrick common shares and a PRSU award equal to 26,013 Barrick common shares, Kelvin Dushnisky recerved an RSU award equal to
27,285 Barnick common shares and a PRSU award equal to 54,569 Barrick common shares and Stephen Galbraith recerved an RSU award equal to 3,424
Barrnick commeon shares and a PRSU award cqual to 1,142 Barnck common shares These awards were granted on 12 Tebruary 2013 The market price of
a Barrick common share at the time of these awards was C$32 34

Barnck Restricted Share Units (RSUs)

R5Us vest and dre pasd out i ¢ash 30 months afier the date of grant Pursuant to the RSU plan, at vesting, ¢ach KSU wall have a value equal (o the then
current average dosing market price m Canadian dollars of une Barnck commuon share on the Toronto Suck Exchange on the five trading days prior
to the vesting date, converted to US dollars based on the Bank of Canada noon rate of exchange on the day preceding the vesting date Additional
RSUs are credited to reflect divndends pad on Barnck common shares and are subject to the same vesting provisions as the underlying RSUs that were

actually granted
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Barrick Performance Restricted Share Uruts (PRSUs)

Vesting of PRSUs 1s determined by reference to the achievemnent of specific
performance conditions over a three-year performance peried. Following
the apphication of the relevant performance conditron, the value of vested
PRSUs 1s deterrmned by multsplying the number of PRSUs that vested by
the average of the closing share price of Barrick common shares on the
Toronto Stock Exchange on the five trading days prior to the vestng date,
converted to US dollars based on the Bank of Canada noon rate of
exchange on the day preceding the vesting date. Additional PRSUs are
credited to reflect dindends pard on Barnick common shares during the
performance pentod. PRSUs resulting from dividend equivalent creduts are
subject to the same vesting provisions as the undertying PRSUs that were
actually granted.

The performance condition for PRSU awards granted prior to February
2013 was based solely on BarricK’s total shareholder return (share price
apprectation plus remnvested dividends) over the three-year period
(beginning the date of the grant and ending on the third anniversary}
compared to the total shareholder return performance for a selected

peer group

For awards made 1n February 2013, Barrick has amended the performance
condition applicable to 1ts PRSUs as follows

+ 50% of the performance condition 1s based on BarricKs total
shareholder return (share price appreciation plus reinvested drvidends),
relative to that of its selected peer group,

« 25% of the performance conditton 1s based on Barricks adjusted annual
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization {"Adjusted
EBITDA"} performance as at 31 December of each year measured
against EBITDA performance forecasted at the beginming of each year
{1 January), controlling for average gold and copper pnices in the perrod,
with each year’s performance contributing one-thurd of the target, and

25% of the performance condition 1s based on Barricks adjusted annual
free cash flow ("Adjusted FCF”) performance as at 31 Decemnber of each
year measured agamnst adjusted FCF performance forecasted at the
beginning of each year (1 January}, controlling for average gold and
copper prices in the period, with each year's performance contributing
one-third of the target

To ahgn with Barriels finaneial reporting tmeframe for the EBITDA
and I'CT metncs, performance for the PRSU awards granted in [ebruary
2013 will be evaluated over three calendar years, as opposed to a three-
year performance period beginming from the date of grant Accordingly,
performance for the PRSU awards granted on 12 February 2013 will

be measured over the three-year penod from 1 January 2013 to

31 December 2015

As regards the total shareholder return component of the performance
condition, the following gold mining companies comprise the Barrick

peer group

Year i respect of which award was granted 2012 2011
AngloGold Ashant Lid. v v
Eldorado Gold Corp v

Goldeorp Inc v v
Gold Fuelds [1d v
Kinross Gold Corporation v v
Newerest Mimng Limited v v
Newmont Miung Cerporation v v
Yamana Gold Inc v v

Directors interests in ABG Ordwary Shares or denivatives or financial
instruments refating to such shares

Asst Asat

31-Dec-12 Ol-an-12

Derek Pannell 20,000 15,000
Greg Hawkins N/A N/A
Kevin Jennings 44,000 44,000
Andre Falzon 9.000 9,000
Stephen Galbraith N/A N/A
Dawvid Hedgson 13,000 N/A
Ambassador Juma V Mwapachu N/A N/A
Michael Kenyon N/A N/A
Kelvin Dushnasky N/A N/A
Rick McCreary N/A N/A

Aaron Regent did not acquure any interests in ABG shares whalst
appounted as a Director James Cross held interests in 20,000 ABG
Ordinary Shares prior to his departure from the Board. Information
regarding Non-Executive Directors’ interests held under ABG’s Deferred
Share Urut Plan 1s provided above

There have been no viher changes in Direciors’ shareholdings between
31 Decerber 2012 and 7 March 2013

External appointments
None of the Executave Directors currently holds an appo:ntment as
a non-executive of another FTSE 350 company

By order of the Board

(j- W den 0 KM()‘“»-

Michael Kenyon,
Charman of the Compensation conumittee

7 March 2013

Regstered office
6 St James's Place
Londen

SWI1A INP
United Kingdom
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Reserves and resources

Muneral reserves and mineral resources estimates contamed i s
report have been calculated as at 31 December 2012 1 accordance
with National Instrument 43-101 as required by Canadian secunties
regulatory authorities, unless otherwise stated Canadian Institute of
Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum (CIM) definitions were followed
for mneral reserves and resources Calculations have been reviewed,
verified (including estimation methodology, sampling, analytical and
test data) and compiled by ARG personnel under the supervision of
ABG Qualified Persons Nic Schoeman, Director Operations Support,
Enc Acheampong, Corporate Manager, Geology and Samuel Eshun,
Corporate Manager, Mine Plantung However, the figures stated are
estimates and na assurances can he given that the mmdicated quantities
of metal will be produced In addition, totals stated may not add up
due to roundmg

Mineral reserves have been calculated using an assumed long-term
average gold price of US$1,500 00 per ounce, a silver price of

US$28 Q0 per ounce and 4 copper price of USS3 00 per pound.
Reserve caleulations incorporate current and/or expected mine plans
and cost levels at each property

Mineral resources al our mines have been calculated using an assumed
long-term average gold price ol US$1,650 00 per ounce, a silver price
of UJS530 00 per ounce and a copper price of US$3 50 per pound while
mineral resources tor our exploration properties have been calculated
using an assumed long-term average gold price of US$1,100 00 per
ounce Resources have been esumated using varying cut-off grades,
depending on the type of mine or project, 1ts matunty and are types
at each property Reserve estimates are dynamic and are influenced
by changing economic conditions, technical wsues, environmental
regulations and any other relevant new information and therefore
these can vary from year to year Resource estimates can also change
and tend to be influenced mostly by new information pertaming to
the understanding of the deposit and secondly the conversion to ore
reserves [n addition, esumates of inferred minera! resources may not
form the bagsis of an economic analysis and 1t cannot be assumed that
all or any part of an inferred mincral resource wall cver be upgraded
to a hugher category Therefore, investors are cautioned not to assume
that ali or any part of an inferred mineral resource exists, that 1t can
be econorucally or legally mined, or that it will ever be upgraded to

a lugher category Likewisc, investors are cautioned not to assume
that all or any part of measured or indicated mineral resources walt
ever be upgraded to mineral reserves

Tulawaka muneral reserves and resources are stated as ABG's 70%
attributable portion

Definibions

A muneral resource 1s 4 concentration or occurrence Ofdid.l'noﬂds,
ratural solid tnorganic material, or natural sohid fossihsed organtc
materal including base and precious metals, coal, and industral
minerals in or on the Earth’s crust in such form and quantity and

of such a grade or quality that 1t has reasonable prospects for economic
extraction The location, quantity, grade, geological charactenstics and
contmumty of 2 mmeral resource are known, estimated or interpreted
from speaific geological emdence and knowledge Minerzal resources are
sub-diwided, i order of increasing geological confidence, into nferred,
indicated and measured calegories
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An inferred mineral resource 15 that part of a mineral resource for
which quantity and grade or quality can be estimated on the basis

of geological evidence and hmuted sampling and reasonably assumed,
but not venified, geological and grade continuity The estimate 15 based
on iimited information and sampling gathered through appropriate
techruques from locations such as outcrops, trenches, pus, worlungs
and dnll holes

An indicated mineral resource 1s that part of a muneral resource

for which quantity, grade or qualily, densities, shape and physical
characteristics, can be estimated with a level of confidence sufficient
to allow the appropnate application of techmical and economue
pdramelers, Lo support mine planning and evaluation of the economic
vighihty of the deposit FThe estimate 15 based on detailed and rehable
exploration and testing information gathered through appropriate
techniques from locations such as outcrops, trenches, pits, workings
and dnll holes that are spaced closely enough for geological and grade
continuity to be reasonably assumed.

A meastred nineral resource 1s that part uf ¢ mineral resource

for which quantity, grade or quality, densities, shape and physical
charactenstics are so well established that they can be esiimated with
confidence sufficient to allow the appropnate apphication of technical
and economic patameters, to support production planming and
evaluation of the economic viabality of the deposit The estimate

15 bascd on detailed and rchable exploration, samphing and testung
mformation gathered through appropnate techmgues from locations
such as outcrops, trenches, pits, workings and dnli holes that are
spaced closely enough to confirm both geological and grade continuity

Mineral resources which are not mineral reserves do not have
demonstrated economic viability

A miuneral reserve 1s the economically mineable part of a measured
or indicated mineral resource demonstrated by at least a prehiminary
feasmibihity study This study must include adequate mnformation

on mimng, processing, metallurgical, economic and other refevant
factors that demonstrate, 4t the izme of reporting, that economic
extraction can be justified. A mineral reserve includes diluting
matertals and dliowances for lusses that may veewr when the materidl
1s mined Mineral reserves dre subdmnded in order of increasing
confidence nto probable mineral reserves and proven mineral reserves

A probable mineral reserve 1s the economically mineable part of an
indicated and, i some circumstances, a measured minerat resource
demonstrated by at least a preliminary feasthility study This study
must include adequate information on mining, processing,
metallurgical, economic and other refevant factors that demonstrate,
at the time of reporting, that cconomic extraction can be justified

A proven mineral reserve 1s the econormczily mneable part of a
measured mneral resource demonstrated by at least a prehmnary
feasibibity study Thus study must include adequate information on
mining, processing, metallurgcal, ecenomic end other relevant factors
that demonstrate, at the ttme of reporting, that economic extraction

15 Justified




Mine gold 1eserves and resouces

2012

2011

Mimne Classification Tonnes (000%s)  Grade Au(g/t)  Ounce (000°s)  Tommes (000's) Grade Au(gh}  Ounce (000%)
Bulyanhulu - Underground  Proven and probable 28,990 1t 335 10,564 28,189 11731 10,632
Mineral Resource 10,672 9475 3,320 9,792 B 585 2,703
Inferred 8,465 11 949 3,252 3,318 12003 3,210
Bulyanhulu - Tahings Proven and probable 7.974 1229 315 - - -
Mineral Resource - - - 7.974 1229 315
Infenned - - - - - -
Buzwag Proven and probable 63,333 1325 2,697 61,424 1476 2,915
Mineral Resource 14,875 1m9 4R7 35,490 1124 1,282
Inferred 7,211 1101 255 10,299 1 156 383
North Mara Proven and probable 34,207 2739 3,012 35,596 3045 3,485
Mineral Resotrce 19,117 a9 2,410 15,99¢ 2 800 1,440
Inferred 1,077 3663 127 1,558 2557 128
l'ulawaka (70%} Proven ¢nd probable P 16 814 16 166 1218 64
Mincral Resource 663 6 580 140 613 5458 108
Inferred 129 4 671 19 1é 5723 21
Total Proven and probable 134,533 383y 16,604 125,375 4241 17,095
Mineral Resource 45,327 4362 6,357 69,859 2 603 5,847
Inferred 16,882 6 731 3,654 20&92 5736 3,742
Fxploration property gold roserves and resources
Mme Classification Tonnes (000°s} Grade Au(git)  Ounce (000°s) Tonnes (000s) Grade Au(ght)  Ounce (000 1)
Tusker (Nyanzaga) Proven and probahle - - - - - -
Mincral Resource 78,163 1443 3,627 73,884 | 165 3481
Inferred 13,003 1912 799 9,061 2054 598
Kilimani (Nyanzaga) Proven and probable - - - - - -
Mincral Resource 3,753 0998 120 - - -
Inferred 1,661 0992 53 - - -
Golden Rudge Proven and probable - - - - - -
Mineral Resource 7,417 2837 677 7.417 2 B37 677
Inferred 1,221 2371 Y3 1,221 2 371 93
Tatal Fxplaration Proven and prohable - - - - - -
Mineral Resource 89,333 1 540 4,424 81,301 1 591 4,157
Inferred 15,885 1851 945 10,282 2092 691
Total ABG Proven and probable 134,533 3839 16,604 125,375 4241 17,095
Muneral Resource 134,660 2 490 10,782 151,160 2059 10,005
Inferred 32,767 4 365 4,599 30,574 4511 4,434
Contaned copper reported within gold reserves and resources
Mine Clasaficabon Tonnes (090's)  Grade Cu{%) Pounds (000's)  Tonmes (000's) Grade Cu (%)  Pounds (000 5}
Bulyanhulu - Underground Proven and probable 28,990 0655 418,703 28,189 0 669 415,958
Mineral Resource 10,672 0614 144,480 9,792 0543 117,221
Inferred 8,465 0716 133,681 8,318 0717 131,535
Bulyanhulu - Tailings Proven and probable 7.974 0036 6,329 - - -
Mancral Resource - - - 7.974 0036 6,329
Inferred - - - - — -
Buzwag: Proven and probable 63,333 0104 144,752 61,424 0114 154,082
Mincral Resource 14,875 0083 27,172 35,490 0099 77,090
Inferred 7,211 H075 11,979 10,299 ) (189 20,119
Total Proven and probable 100,297 0258 569,784 89,613 0289 570,040
Mineral Resource 25,547 0305 171,652 53,256 0171 200,640
Inferred 15,676 0421 145,660 18,617 0 369 151,654
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Reserves and resources confinued

Contained silver reported wathin gold reserves and resources

2012

20

Mine Classification Tonnes ((00s) Grade Ag(g)  Ounce (0605}  Tonmes {000s)  Grade Ag (gh) Ounce (000 5}
Bulyanhulu -~ Underground  Proven and probable 28,990 9159 8,537 28,189 9385 8,506
Mineral Resource 10,672 8149 2,796 9,792 7 545 2,375
Inferred 8,465 9 837 2,677 8,318 9 §59 2,637
Bulyanhulu ~ Taihngs Proven and prohahle 7,974 3848 987 - - -
Mineral Resource - - - 7,974 3848 987
Inferred - - - - - -
Total Proven and probable 36,964 8013 9,523 28,189 9 385 8,506
Mineral Resource 10,672 R 149 2,796 17,766 5 888 3,362
Inferred 8,465 9837 2,677 8,318 g 85% 2,637
Mine gold 1eserves
Mine Classtfication Tomnes Grade Au{g/t)  Contaned Au (07)
Bulyanhulu - Underground Proven 827,129 10013 266,261
Probable 28,162,758 11373 10,298,162
Total (P-+P) 28,989,887 11335 10,564,423
Bulyanhulu - Tailings Proven - - -
Probable 7,974,020 1229 315,080
Total (P+P) 7,974,020 1229 315,080
Buzwag) Proven 5,871,720 1079 203,827
Prubable 57,458,687 1350 2,493,423
Total (P+P) 63,333,407 1325 2,697,250
North Mara Proven 11,324,467 2624 §55,257
Prabable 12,882,035 2795 2,056,478
Total (P+D) 34,206,502 2739 3,011,735
Tulawakd (70%) Proven 6,868 2200 186
Probable 22,541 21 267 15,412
Total (P+P) 29,408 16 814 15,898
Total mine gold reserves Proven 18,033,184 2459 1,425,831
Probable 116,500,041 4052 15,178,555
Total {P+1) 134,533,224 383 16,604,386
Containcd copper reported within gold reserves
Auine Classificonon Tonnes Grude Cu (%) Contamned Cu (Ths}
Bulyanhulu ~ Underground Proven 827,129 0325 5,934,565
Probable 28,162,758 0665 412,768,864
Total 28,989,887 0655 418,703,429
Bulyanhulu — Tailings Proven - - -
Probable 7.974,020 0036 6,328,629
Total 7,974,020 0 036 6,328,629
Burwag: Proven 5,874,720 0074 9,608,881
Probable 57,458,687 0107 135,143,305
Total 63,333,407 0104 144,752,186
Total copper reported within gold reserves Proven 6,701,849 o105 15,543,446
Probable 93,595,465 0269 554,240,798
Total 100,297,314 0258 569,784,244
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Contaned silver reported within gold reserves

Mine Classification Tonties Grade Ag (g/t)  Contained Ag (02}
Bulyanhulu - Underground Proven 827,129 6 807 181,020
Probable 28,162,758 9 228 8,355,749
Total (P+P}) 28,989,887 9159 8,536,769
Bulyanhulu — Tailings Proven - - -
Probdble 7,974,020 3 848 86,514
Total (P+P) 7,974,020 3 348 986,514
Total sitver reported within gold reserves Proven 827,129 6 807 181,020
Probable 36,136,778 8 041 9,342,263
Lotal 36,963,907 8013 9,523,283
Mne resou: ce (Measured & Indicated, exclusive of reserves)
Mine Classification Tornes Grade Au{g/t)  Contamed Au{ar)
Bulyanhulu - Underground Measured - - -
Indicated 10,672,358 9 675 3,319,673
Total {M+1) 10,672,358 9 675 3,319,673
Bulyanhulu - Tailings Measured - - -
Indicated - - -
Total (M+1) - - -
Buzwag: Measured 74,074 1219 2,503
Indicated 14,800,514 1018 484,220
Total (M+1) 14,874,588 1019 487,123
North Mara Measured 3,030,080 4100 399,443
Indicated 16,087,187 3 888 2,010,797
Total (M+1} 19,117,267 3921 2,410,240
Tulawaka (70%) Measured - - -
Indicated 662,643 6 580 140,174
Total (M+]) 662,643 6 580 140,174
Total Mine Resource (M+[) Measured 3,104,154 4031 402,345
Indicated 42,222,702 4 387 5,351,864
Total (M+1) 45,326,856 4 362 6.357,210
Contained Copper within gold resources
Mine Classification Tonnes Grade (%) Pounds
Bulyanhulu - Underground Measured - - -
Indicated 10,672,358 0614 144,480,118
Total (M+1) 10,672,358 n614 144,480,118
Bulyanhulu - Tailings Measured - - -
Indicated - - -
Total (M+1) - - -
Buzwagm Mcasured 71,074 0098 159,127
Indicated 14,800,514 0 083 27,012,590
Total (M+]) 14,874,588 0083 27,172,017
Total Copper within gold resource Measured 74,074 0098 159,427
Indicated 25,472,872 0305 171,492,708
Total (M+1) 25,546,946 0305 171,652,135
Contamed Silver within gold resouices
Minc Clasaifieabion Tunnes Grade Ag(gi) Contuned Au (o7)
Bulyanhutu - Underground Measured - - ~
Indicated 10,672,358 8149 2,796,104
Total (M+1) 10,672,358 8 149 2,796,104
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Financial statements

Detailed financial information for the year ended 31 December 2012

Independent auditors’ report on the consohdated

financial statements
Consnlidated financial statements
Consolidated imcome statement

Consolidated statement of comprehensive imcome

Consolidated balance <heet

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Consolidated cash flow statement

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General informanon

Significant accounting policies
Segment reporting

Revenue

Cost of sales

Employee benefits

Exploration and evaluation cosis
Other charges
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of African Barnick Gold ple

We have audited the group finanaal statements of African Barnck
Geld plc for the year ended 31 December 2012 which compnse the
Consolidated income statement, the Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the Consolidated balance sheet, the
Consohdated statement of changes in equity, the Consolidated
cashflow statement and the related notes The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation s applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union

Rospective responsibalitics of dircctors and auditors

As explamed more fully in the Directors” Responsibilities Statement set
out on page 75, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the

group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view Qur responsibality 1s to audit end express an opinion
on the proup financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law
and International Slandards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Ths report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only
for the company’s members ds 4 body i accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Compantes Act 2006 and {or no viher purpose We
do not, in grving these opintons, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
b)’ our preor cansent in wrniing

Scope of the audut of the financal statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sutficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financal statements are free from materzal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the group’s circumstances and have been consistently applted and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of ssgnificant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the
financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information in the Annual Report to identify matenial
mconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become
aware of any appdrent matenal musstatements or inconsistencres we
consider the imphcations for our report

Opimon on financial statements
In our opmion the group financial statements

« gve a true and far view af the state of the group’s affairs as at
31 December 2012 and of :ts profit and cash flows {or the year
then ended,

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the Curopean Union, and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and Article 1 of the TAS Regulation

Opimon on other matters prescribed by the Companes
Act 2006

In our opimon

» the information given 1 the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the group financial statements are prepared 1s consistent
with the group financial statements

Mallers on which we are required to report by exeeplion
We have nothing to repart 1n respect of the following

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are requured to report to you if,
n our opinion

» certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

« we have not recewved all the mformation and explanations we
require for our audt

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

« the Directors’ statement, set out on page 72, n relation to
gong concern,

« the part of the Corporate Gavernance Statement relating to the
company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the ‘UK
Corparate Governance Code’ specified for our review; and

= certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on
directors’ remuneration

Otlier matter

We have repurted sepdrately on the parenl company financial
statements of African Barnick Gold pic for the year ended

31 December 2012 and on the information in the Directors
Remuneration Report that 1s descrtbed as having been audited.

O%w

Jason Burkatt,
Seror Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Pricewaterhouse( oopers 1T P
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

7 March 2013

Notes

(a) The mawtenancz and integnty of the Afncn Barnck Gold ple website 13 the responsibibity of the
directory, the work carnied put by the auditers does ool involve conaderatan of these matters and.
accordingly the suditors sccept ae responsbility for any changes that may have accurred to the
financal statements since they were minally presented on the webste

th} Legislabion in the United hmgdom governung the preparagon and disseminauon of fnanoul
statemenits may duffer from legistation 1n cther Junsdichions
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Censolidated income statement

For the For the
year cnded year ¢ended
31 December 3t December
{in thousands ot Uruted States dollars) Notes 2012 2011
Revenue 4 1,087,339 1,217,815
Cost of sales 5 {802,709) {704,114}
Gross profit 284,630 513,801
Corporate admsnistration 24 {51,567) (49,148)
Exploration and evaluation costs 7 (28,961) (30,339)
Corporate social responstbihity expenses (14,445) (7.376)
Impairment charges 19 (44,538) -
Other charges 8 (17,671) (15,639)
Profit before net {inance expense and taxation 127,450 411,259
Finance mcome 10 2,102 1,484
Finance expense 2a,10 {10,305) (10,082)
(8,203) (8,598}
Profit before taxation 119,247 402,701
Tax expense 11 (71,063) (117,924)
Net profit for the peniod 48,184 284,777
Net profit/(loss) attnibutable to
- Non-controlhing interests {11,287) 9,882
- Owners of the parent 59,471 274,895
Larnings per share
— Basic earmings per share {cents) 12 145 670
- Diluted earnings per share (cents} 12 145 670
Consohdated statement of comprehensive income
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 Decetnber 31 December
{in thousands of Umted States dollars) 2012 2041
Net profit for the penod 48,184 284,777
Changes 1n fair value of cash flow hedges 363 -
Fola cumprehensive income for the period 48,547 284,777
Attributed to
- Non-controlling nterests {11,287) 9,882
- Owners of the parent 59,834 274,895

The notes on pages 98 1o 138 are an tegral part of these consohdated financial statements
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Consolidated balance sheet

Asat il Asat 31
December December
{in thousands of United States dollars) Notes 2012 2011
Asscts
Non-current assels
Goodwill and intangible assets 19 278,221 258,513
Property, plant and equipment 18 1,963,924 1,823,247
Deferred tax assets 20 2,399 55,529
Non-current portion of inventory 15 118,554 78,022
Dervative financial instruments 467 213
Other assets 21 137,565 110,658
2,501,130 2,326,182
Current assels
Inventones 15 335,497 316,947
Trade and other receivables 16 44,227 29,858
Denvative financial instruments 2,207 4,050
Other current assets 16 44,314 33,271
Cash and cash equivalents 17 401,348 584,154
827,593 968,280
Total asscts 3,328,723 3,294,462
Equty and Liabidities
Share capttal and share premium 23 929,199 929,199
Other reserves 1,823,202 1,832,032
Towl owners' equity 2,752,401 2,761,231
Non-controlling mterests 22,580 37,473
Total equity 2,774,981 2,798,704
Non-current habilities
Neferred tax habilities 20 173,574 149,544
Denvative financial instruments 294 36
Prowvisions 26 180,548 157,582
Other non-current habilities 27 21,064 18,988
375,480 326,170
Current habiinies
Trade and other payables 25 169,904 161,916
Dertvative financial instruments 429 58
Provisions 26 1,040 1,034
Other current habilities 27 6,889 6,580
178,262 169,588
Total liabuities 553,742 495,758
Total equity and habiitzcs 3,328,723 3,294,462

The notes on pages 98 to 138 arc an integral part of these consohdated finanaial statements

The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 138 were authonsed for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2013 and were signed

on s hehalf

pa
e

Greg Hawkins
Chief Executive Officer
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Consohdated statement of changes 1n equity

Contnhuted Cash flow Stock Total Total

Share surplus/ hedging optwmn Retaned owmers  non-controling
(in thousands of United States dollars)  Notes Share capital premium  Other reserve reserve reserve eamnmgs equty wnterests  Total equity
Balance at 1 Ianuary 2011 62,057 867,102 1,368,774 - 640 214,711 2,513,324 29,761 2,543,085
Total comprehensive income
for the penod - - - - - 274895 274,895 9,882 284,777
Conversion toc contnbuied
surplus - - {61) - - - (61} - {61)
Stock option grants - - - - 1,401 - 1,401 - 1,401
Dindends to equity holders
of the Company - - - - —  (28,328) (28.328) - (28,328)
Dhstnibutions to non-
controlling interests - - - - - - - (2,170} {2,170)
Balance at 31 December 2011 62,097 867,102 1,368,713 - 2,041 461,278 2,761,231 37,473 2,798,704
Tolal comprehensive incume
for the period - - - 363 - 59,471 59,834 (11,287) 48,547
Stack option grants - - - - 1,461 - 1,461 - 1,461
Midends ta equity holders
of the Company 13 - - - - - (70,125) {70,125} - (70,125}
Distnbutions to non-
controlhing interests - - - - - - - (3,606) {3,606}
Balance at 31 December 2012 62,097 867,102 1,368,713 363 3,502 450,624 2,752,401 22,580 2,774,981

The notes on pages 98 to 138 are an integral part of these consohdated financial statements
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Consohdated cash flow statermnent

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 Decernber
(10 thousands of Umied States doflars) Nates 2012 2011
Cash flows from aperating achivities
Net profit for the penod 48,184 284,777
Adjustments for
Taxation 11 71,063 117,924
Depreciation and amortisation 168,514 135,683
Finance items 24,10 8,203 8,598
Impairment charges 19 44,536 -
(Profit}/loss an disposal of praperty, plant and equipment 8 (616) 179
Worlkung capital adjustments 14 (80,336) (42,880}
Other non-cash items 14 3,088 (704)
Cash generated from operations before interest and tax 262,636 503,577
Finance income 10 2,t02 1,484
Finance expenses 23,10 (6,284) {6,738}
Income tax pa:d {551) -
Net cash penerated by operating activities 257,903 498,323
Cash flows used 1 investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (312,675) (273,207}
Investments 1 other assets (24,473) (8,645)
Acquisttion of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 22 (22,039) -
Other investing activities 14 (1,468) 320
Net cash used 1n mvesting activities (360,655) {281,532)
Cash flows used 1n financing activities
Dhvidends pawd 13 {70,125) (28,328)
Distributions to non-controlling interest holders {3,606) (2,170)
[inance lease instabments {3,708) (2,184)
Net cash used 1n findincing aclivities (79,439) {32,682)
Net (decrease}/increase 1n cash and cash equivalents (182,191) 184,109
Net foreign exchange difference 14 {615) (967)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 584,154 401,012
Cdsh and cash equivdlents at 31 December 17 401,348 584,154

The notes on pages 98 to 138 are an integral part of these consohidated financial statements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 General information

Alrnican Barrick Gold ple (the “Company”, “ABG” or coltecuvely with 1ts subsidianies “the Group™} was incorporated on 12 January 2010 and re-
registered as 4 public imited company un 12 March 2010 under the Companies Act 2005 Itis registered 1 England and Wales wath registered
number 7123187

On 24 March 2010 the Company’s shares were adimitted to the Official List of the Unmited Kingdom Listing Authonty ("UKLA™} and to trading
an the Main Market of the I ondon Stock Fxchange, hereafter referred to as the Imtial Public Offering {“IPO”) The address of s registered
office 1s 6 St James’s Place, London SW1A INP, United Kingdom

Barnick Gold Corporation (“BGC”) currently awns approximately 73 9% of the shares of the Company and 1s the ultimate parent and
controlling party of the Group

The consolidated financial stalements for the year ended 31 December 2012 were approved for 1ssue by the Board of Directors of the Company
on 7 March 2013

The prnncipal activittes of the subsidiartes and joint ventures included 1n the consohdated financial statements are as follows

Equity interest at Exqunty imnterest at

31 Necermber 1 Negember

Company Prinaipal actsvity Country of Incorporation  Relationship w12 2011
Alrncan Barnck Gold ple Holding Company UK 100% 106%
BUK HoldCo Ltd Holding Company UK Subsidiary 100% 100%
BUK East Africa Linmted Holding Company UK Subsidiary 100% -
1816962 Ontdrte Inc Hoelding Company (dnadda Substdiary 100% 100%
African Barnick (Barbados) Corp Ltd*™*  Group Finance Company Barbados Subsidiary 100% 100%
BAPL Holding Ltd Holding Company Mauritius Subsidiary 100% 100%
Awviva Mining (Kenya) Ltd* Exploration Kinya Subsidiary 100% -
CayCo Tr Ltd Holding Company Cayman Istands Substdiary 100% 100%
ABG Exploration Afnca Lumited*** Exploration Tanzania Subsidiary 100% 100%
Matmye Exploration Ltd Exploration Tanzania Subsidiary 75% 75%
Itobo Expluraten Lid Expluration 1dnsantd Subsidiary 75% 75%
Mkum Exploration Ltd Exploratton Tanzanta Subsidiary 80% 80%
Sekenke Exploranon Ltd Exploration Tanzania Associate - 20%
Nyanrsaga kxploration Company Ltd - Explorauon Tanzama Subsidiary 100% 150%
Barrick Tanzaman Holdings Lid Explorauion Cayman Islands Subsidiary 100% 100%
Barsun Fxploraton ftd Fxploraton Tanzama Subswdrary - 75%
Safani Exploration Lid Exploration Tanzanw Subsidiary - 75%
Prime Gold Exploration 1.td Explarauon Tanzanwu Subsidiary 75% 75%
Kasubuya Fxploratiom Company1td  Fxploration Tan7ama Subsidiary 60% 60%
KMCL [Toidings Ltd LCxploration Cayman Islands Subsidiary 100% 100%
Bulyanhulu Gold Mine Lid Operating Gold Mine [anzana Substchary 100% 100%
North Mara Gold Mine Ltd Operating Gold Mine Tanzania Subsichary 100% 100%
Pangea Goldfields In¢ Holding Company Canada Subsidiary 100% 100%
Pangea Minerals [ 1d Operaung Gold Mine lanzania Subsidiary 100% 100%
1051694 Ontano Inc Holding Company Canada Subsidiary 100% 100%
Barnck Africa (Proprietary} T td Shared Services South Africa Subsidary 100% 100%
East Afnca Gold Mines Ltd Holding Company Australia Subsidiary 100% 100%
Tusker Gold Lid Holding Company Australia Subsidiary 100% 100%
Indago Autan (Propretary) Ted® Holding Company Austraha Subaidrary 100% 100%
IDG Aurum Tanzania Lid* ITolding Company Tanzania Subsidiary 100% 100%
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Equnty interest at Equty interest at

31 December 31 December

(‘ompany Prinapal actwvity Country of [ncarporation  Relatanship 012 2011
IDG Aurum Holdings Lid* Holding Company Tanzania Subsidiary 100% 100%
IDG Kitongo lanzanta I d? Dormant Company lanzama Subsidiary 100% 1004
Vulcan Resources Tanzania Ltd* Dormant Company Tanzama Subsidiary 100% 100%
Aptian Resources Tanzama Ltd* Dormant Company Tanzania Subsidiary 106% 100%
Sub-Sahara Resources Tanzania Lid*  Exploration Tanzanta Subsidiary 100% 100%
Kahama Project Joint Venture Exploration Tanzama jont Venture 49% 49%
Nyakafuru Project Joint Venture Exploration Tanzana Joint Venture 51% 51%

June year end

The Conpany changed 115 rame during the year fmm Barhco (me Tad ta Afrcan Barrck (Barbadns} Carp [ i

" * The Company chauged 135 name duning the pear irom Barnck Exploration Afnca Lid to ABG Exploration Afnca Limuted

There are no restrictions on the ability of subsiharies to transfer funds to the parent in the form of cash dividends or to repay loans or advances
The joini ventures included in the table above are currently immatenal to the Group

2 Sipmficant accounusny policus

The principal accountmg policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below These polictes
have becn comaistently applied 1o ¢lf the yedrs presented, unless
otherwise stated

a)  Basis of preparabion

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared
11 accordance with Tnternational Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Unwn ("TFRS™), [FRS Inlerpretations
Commuttee (“IFRS IC.”) inlerpretation dnd thuse parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companics reporting under ITRS
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention basis, as modified by the revaluation of
finanaal assets and financial habilities (tncluding derivative
mstruments) at fair value through profit or loss

The consohdated financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (US$) and all values arc rounded to the nearest thousand
(UUSS°000) except when otherwise indicated

The Group’s primary business is the muning, processing and sale of gold.
The Group has four operating mines located in Tanzanw The Group
also has a portfolio of exploration projects iocated across Africa.

Where a change in the presentational format between the prior year
and current year financial statements has been made during the
peniod, comparative figures have been restated accordingly The
following presentationel charges were made during the current year

+ Bank charges previcusly included m corporate admnistration
expenses have been reclassified to finance expense (2012 US$1 2
milhon, 2011 US$1 4 millhon)

The preparation of financial statements i conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estumates It also
requires management Lo exercise 1bs judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accuunting policies  The areds involving a hgher

degree of judgement or complexity, ot areas where zssumptions and
estimates are significant to the consohdated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 2d

b) Newand amended standards adopled bv the Group

There are no new I+RSs or TFRIC interpretations that are elfective for
the first me for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January
2012 that would be expected to have a material imipact on the Group

¢} Newand amended standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
nterpretations are effective for annual peniods hegmning after 1
January 2012, and have not been applied wn preparing these
consolidated financial statements None of these are expecled to have
d s1ignificant effect on the consuhdated financial stalements of the
Group, except the fullowing set vut below

« IFRIC 20, “Stnpping costs 1n the production phase of a surface
mne” This interpretation addresses the following issues
recognihion of production stripping costs as an asset, 1mual
measurement of the stnpping activity asset, and subsequent
measurement of the stripping activity asset. This interpretation
considers when and how to account for the benefit arsing from the
siripping activity, as well as how 1o measure these benefits both
mitilly and subsequently The interpretation 1< effective from 1
January 2013 When published in the Group’s 2013 annual report,
the Group's restated 2012 financial statements are expected to show
4n ncredse i mineral properties and mine development costs of
Ussil milhon, a decrease in inventory of US$6 milon and an
increase n net ncome of US$5 million and a deerease of US$9 per
ounce 1n total cash costs There will be no transitional adjustment as
a result of applying IFRIC 20 The Group expects the impact to be
more significant 1n 2013

+ Amendments to IAS 1, “Financial statement presentation”™
regarding other comprehensive income The main change resuiting
from thesc amendments 1s a requirement for entitics to group items
presented tn “other comprehensive income™ ("OCI™) on the basis of
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contimued

2 Sigmficant accounting pohcies continued
whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit orloss
subsequently (reclassification adjustments) The amendments do
not address which items are presented in OCI

« Amendments to IFRS 7, “Financial instruments Disclosures” on
derecognmuan This amendment will promote transparercy in the
reporting of transfer transactions and 1mprove users’ understanding
of the risk exposures relating to transfers of financial assets and the
effect of those risks on an enuty’s financidl postion, particularly
those involwing securttisation of hinancial asscts

« IFRS 9, ‘Financial mstruments”, addresses the classification,
measurement ¢nd recognition of financial assets and financial
lhabilities IT RS 9 was 1ssued in November 2009 and October 2010
It replaces the parts of [AS 39 that relate to the classification and
measuremient of financial instruments TFRS 9 requires financial
assets to be classified 1nto two measurement categonies those
measured al fatr value and those measured at amortised cost The
determination 1 made atmitial recogmbion The classification
depends on the entity’s business model tor managing its financial
mstruments and the contractual cash flow charactenistics of the
mstrument Tor financial liabihties, the standard retains most of the
IAS 39 requurements The main change 1s that, 1n cases where the
fair value option 1s taken for financial habihtes, the part of a fair
value change due to an entity’s own credst risk 1s recorded 1n other
comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless
this creates an accounting mismatch The Group 1s yet to assess
ITRS 9's full impact and ntends to adopt I'RS @ no later than the
accounting period beginming on or after | January 2015, subject
to endorsement by the EU The Group will also consider the
impact of the remaining phases of IFRS 9 when completed by
the International Accounting Standards Board

» IFRS 10, “Consohdated financal statements”, bwilds on existing
principles by identifying the concept of control as the determining
factor m whether an entity should be included within the
consolidated financial statements of the parent company The
standard provides additional guidance to assist in the determimation
of control where this 15 difficult to assess The Group s yet 10 assess
TERS 10% full impact and intends to adopt TFRS 10 no later than the
accounting penod beginmng on or afler | January 2013, subject 1o
endorsement by the FUJ

« [FRS 11, “Jomt drrangements”, 1s o reflection of joint arrangements
which focuses on the nghts and obhgations of the parties to the
arrangement rather than us legal form There are two types of joint
arrangements joint operations and joint ventures Joint operations
arse where 4 Joint operator has rights to (he assels and obhigations
relating to the arrangement and therefore accounts for its share of
assets, labilitics, revenuce and cxpenses Joint ventures anse where
the joint venture has nights to the net assets of the arrangement and
therefore equity accounts for 1ts interest Proportional consolidation
of joint ventures » no longer allowed The Group 1s Yet 1o assess
ITRS 11’s full impact and intends to adopt ITRS 11 no tater than the
accounting period beginming on or after 1 January 2013, subject to
endorsement by the FU
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s [FRS 12, “Disclosures of interesls 1 other entities”, includes the
disclosure requirements for all forms of interests i other entities,
including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles
and other offbalance sheet vehicles The Group is yet to assess ITERS
12's full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 12 no later than the
accountmg pertod beginning on or after 1 January 2013, subject to
endorsement by the EU

+ IFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”, aims to umprove consistency
and reduce complexity by providing 4 precise definition of fair
value and a single source of fair value measurement and cisclosure
requirements for use across IFRSs The requirements, which are
Targely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend the use
of fair value accounting but provide gurdance on how 1t should he
applied where its use 1 already required or permtted by other
standards withan TFRSs or US GAAP

» Amendment to JAS 32, “Financial Instruments Presentation”,
clanfies some of the requirements for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities on the balance sheet

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet
effective that would be expected to have a material impact on the Group

d) Sigmficantjudgements n applying accounting pohicies and hey sources
of estunation uncertanty
Many of the amounts included in the consolidated finanaial
statements require management 1o make judgements and/or
cstimates These judgements and estimates are conlinuously cvaluated
and are hased on management’s expenence and best knowledge of the
relevant facts and circumstances, but actual results may duffer from
the amounts mncuded 1n the consohidated financial statements The
Life of Mine plans dre central Lo 4 number of key estimates
Information about such judgements and estimations are included in
the accounung policies and/or notes to the consolrdated financial
statements, and the key arcas are summansed below

Areas of judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements include

Estimates of the quantities of proven and probable gold reserves -
Note 2h),

The capitalisation of production stnpping costs - Note 21),

-

«+ The capitalisation of exploration and evaluation expenditures -
Notes 21y and 7,

+ Review of goodwill, property, plant and equipment and mtangible
assets’ carrying value, the determination of whether these assets are
impaired and the medsurement of impairment charges or reversals
- Notcs 20), 2p), 2q), 2r), 18 and 19,

» The estimated far values of cash gencrting units fur impairment
tests, including esimates of future costs to produce proven and
prabable reserves, future commodity prices, foreagn exchange rates
and discount rates — Notes 2r) and 19,

= The estimated useful hves of property, plant and equipment and the
measurement of depreciation expense — Notes 20) and 18,



Property, plant and eguipment held under finance leases — Notes
20) and 18,

« Recogmuion of ¢ provisiwon for environmental rehdbilitatton and the
estimation of the rehabilitation costs and tming of expenditure -
Notes 2u) and 26,

» Whether 10 recogmse a habihty for loss conungenaies and the
amount of any such provision — Notes 2u), 26 and 31,

Whether to recognise a provision for accounts receivable - Notes
2w), 16and 21,

= Recognition of deferred income tax assets, amounts recorded for
uncertain tax positions, the measurement of income tax expense
and indirect taxes — Notes 2y}, t1 and 20,

= Determinahion of the cost incurred in the productive process of ore
stockpiles, gold in process, gold dore/bullion and concentrate, as
well as the associated net realisable value and the split between the
long-term and short-term portions - Note 2n) and 15,

» Determmation of fair value of derivative instruments — Note 2w)
and 29, and

« Determnation of fair value of stock opuions and cash-settled
share-based payments — Note 2v) and 24

¢} BRasis of consohdation

The consolidated financial statements set out the Group’s finanaal
puosition as at 31 December 2012 and 2611, and operating results and
cash Rows for the years then ended. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and compames controlled by the Company (its subsidianes)

Subsidiartes are entinies over which the Company has the control,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies in
order to obtain benefits from their activities Control 1s presumed to
exist where the Company has more than one half of the voting nights
unless it can be demonstrated that ownership docs not constitute
controk Control does not extst where other parties hold veto nghts
over significant operating and financial decisions In assessing control,
potential voung nghts that are currently exercisable or convertible as
well as other contractual arrangements that enable the Company to
exercise control are taken into account The ¢onsohdated financal
statements include all of the assets, halities, revenues, expenses and
cash flows of the Company and its subsidianies after eliminating
ilercompany transact:ons as noted abave Accounting policies of
subsidharies have been changed where necessary Lo ensure consistency

The following cxchange rates to the US dollar have been applicd

with the policies adopted by the Group Subsidianies are included in

the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control
passed to the Group, and have been excluded from the date on which
control transferred out of the Group For partly-owned subsicharies, the
net assets and net earnings attnbutable to non-controlling interests are
presented as “Cquity attnibutable to non-controlling interests® m the
conschdated balance sheet and “Profit attributable to non-controlhing
mterests” i the consohdated mcome statement, respectively

()  Business combinations

On acquinng a business, the acquisition method of accounting 15 used,
whereby the purchase consideration 1s allocated to the identifiable net
assets on the basis of fawr value at the date of acquisivon  Provisional
fair values allocated at a reporting date are finalised wathin 12 months
of the acquisiion date Acquisition costs are expensed.

When purchase consideration is coniingent on future events, the
tnihial cost of the acquisition recorded tncludes an estimate ot the fair
value of the contingent amounts expected to be payable in the future
The cost of the acquisition 15 adjusted when revised estumates are
made, wath corresponding adjustments made to goodwll

When the cost of acquisihon exceeds the fair values of the identifiable
net assets, the difference 15 treated as purchased goodwill, which 1s
reviewed for impairment annually or when thereas an indication of
impdirment T the {air value attributable to the Group's share of the
dentifiable net assets exceeds the cost of acquisiton, the difference 1s
recognised 1 the consohdated income statement

g)  Foreign currency translation

The Group’s transactions are denominated wmn a number of duferent
currencies {(pnmanly Ub dollars, Tanzanian Sinllings (“Shillings”),
South African Rands (“Rands”), UK pounds sterbing (“Pounds”) and
Austrahan dellars The Group has liabihtics that are primanly
derominated in US dollars The US dollar 1s the Company’s {and s
man subsidianes’) functional currency, as well as the Group's
presentation currency Transactions in currencies other than the US
dollar are translated at the exchange rates as at the date of transacten
Monetary assets and habilities denominated it currences other than the
US dollar are translated ta US dollars at year-end exchange rates All
differences that arise are recorded n the income statement Non-
manetary assets measured at historical cost 1n 4 currency other than US
dollars are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the imitial
transactions Where non-monetary assets are measured at fair vatue n a
currency other than US dollars they are translated into US dollars using
the exchange rates on the date when the fair value was determined.

Average Average

Asat Year ended Asat Year ended

31 December 31 December 31 December 3) December

2012 012 2011 2011

South African Rand (US$ 7AR) R5 82 & 08 7123
Tanzaman Shilling (US$ TZS) 1,572 1,572 1,582 1,558
Australian Dollar (US$ AUD) 096 097 098 097
UK Pound (US$ GBP) 062 063 064 062
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Notes to the consohidated financial statements continued

2 Sigmhicant accounting policies continued

h)} Determination of ore reserves

The Group estumates its ore reserves and mineral resources based on
nformation compiled by Competent Persons as defined in accordance
with the Canadian Securities Administrators’ National Instrument
43-101 “Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects” requirements
Reports to support these estimates are prepared cach year Proven and
probable (2P) reserves, and for certain mines other mineral resources,
determined 1n this way are used 1n the caleulation of depreciation,
amortisation and impairment charges, the assessment of hie of mine
stnpping ratios and for forecasting the timing of the payments related
1o the environmental rehabihitation provision

In assessing the life of a mine for accounting purposcs, mineral
resources arc anly taken tnto account where there 1s a high degree
of confidence of economc extraction

There are numerous uncertainties inherent 1n estimating ore reserves,
and assumplions that are valid at the time of estimation may change
significantly when new information becomes avarlable Changes n the
furecast prices of commodities, exchange rates, pruduction and capital
costs, grades or recovery rates may change the cconomuc status of
reserves and may, ultimately, result in the reserves being revised

1) Stnipping costs

In upen pit mining operdliuns, il 1s necessary to remove overburden
and other waste materials to access ore from which minerals can be
cxtracted cconomically The process of miming overburden and waste
materials 1» referred to as stnipping Stripping costs incurred 1n order
to provide 1nitial access to the ore body (referred to as pre-production
stripping) are capitalised as mine development costs

Stripping costs mcurred during the production stage of a pit are
accounted for as the costs of the mventory produced during the period
that the strippmg costs were incurred, uniess these costs provide a
future econemic benefit Production phase stnpping costs generate

a future economuc benefit when the related stripping actreity (1)
provides access to ore to be muned in the future, (1) increases the fair
value of the mine (or pit) &s access to future mineral reserves becomes
less costly, (in) increases the productive capacity or extends the
productive hife of the mine {or pit) For production phase stnpping
costs that generate a future economic benefit, the current peniod
stripping costs are capitalised as open pit mine development costs

Where a mine operates several open pats that are regarded as separate
operatiuns for the purpose of mine planmng, stnpping cosls dre
dccounted for separately by reference to the ore reserves from each
scparate pit (1 ¢ the imnial stnpping of the second and subsequent
pits 1s considered to be pre-production stnipping) If, however, the
pits are hughly integrated for the purpose of mine planning, the second
and subsequent pits are regarded as extensions ot the first pit 1n
accounting for stnipping costs In such cascs, the mual stnpping of
the second and subsequent pits s considered to be production
stnipping relating to the combined operation

Capitalised open mine development costs are depreciated on 2 units
of production basis whereby the denominator 1s the esimated ounces
of gold 1n the associated open pitin proven and probable reserves and
the portion of resources considered probable of being extracted
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cconommcally Capitalised open pit mine development costs are
depreciated once the open pit has entered production and the future
economic benefit is being derived.

1 Revenue recogrution
Revenue 1s recognised when persuasive evidence casts that all of the
follownng criteria are met

the significant nisks and rewards of ownership of the product have
been transterred to the buyer;

- neither continwing managenal involvement to the degree usually
assoctated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold
has been retained,

« Lhe amount of revenuc can be measured reliably,

11 15 probable that the economic benefits associated with the sale will
flow to the Group, and

« the costs incurred or to be incurred i respect of the sale can be
measured reliably

Gold dorc <alcs

Gold dore 15 unrefined gold buthan bars usually eonsisting of 90%
gold that 15 refined to pure gold bulhon prior to sale to our customers
Revenue from gold dore sales 1s recognised exther at the time of sate to
d third pdrty or, n relation to quarter end settlements, at the time of
shipment should the Group have received confirmation of sale to the
third party The sales price 1s based on the gold spot price at the ime
of sale

Concentrale sales

Concentrate 1s a processing product contaymng the valuable ore
muneral gold, copper and silver from which most of the waste mineral
has been ehimunated, that undergoes a smelting process 1o convert 1t
tnto gold bullion, copper and silver concentrate Under the terms of
concentrate sales contracts with independent smelting companies,
gold, copper and silver in concentrate 1s sold at traiting monthly
average spot prices based on contract quotational periods

Revenue 1s recorded, net of selling costs, at the shupped on board date,
which 1s also when nisks and rewards pass to the smelting companies,
using market prices on the expected date that final sales prices will be
fixed. Vanations hetween the price recorded at the shipment date and
the actual final price set under the smelting contracts are caused by
changes in market prices, and result 1n an embedded derivative 1n
accounts receivable The embedded dervative 15 recorded at fair value
each pertod untit final settlement oecurs, with changes 1n fair value
classtfied as provisiondl price adjustments and included as a
component of revenue Co-product revenues from the sale of other
products, such as copper and silver, contained in the concentrate are
recogmsed in revenue

Co-produts
Revenue from the sale of co-products, such as copper and silver,
contained in concentrates are recognised 1n revenue

k)  Costof sales

Cost of sales consists of direet mining costs (whuch include personncl
costs, general and admunistrative costs, energy costs (pnincipally diesel
fuel and electnicity), maintenance and repair costs, operaling supples,




external services), third party smelling, refining and transport fees,
and depreciation related to sales as well as producuion tates and
royalty expenses for the period Cost of sales 1s based on average
casting for contaired or recoverable ounces sold as well as production
taxes and royalty expense for the period All costs are net of any
mmpatrment to reduce inventory to its net reahsable value

1} Exploration and evaluation

Exploration expendutures

Taploration expendttures relate to the imihal search for mineral
deposnis with economnc potential as well as expendutures incurred for
the purposes of obtatning more information about exisung mineral
deposits Exploration expenditures typically comprise costs that are
dircctly attnbutable to

« researching and analysing existing exploration data,
= conducting geological studues,

« exploratory drilhing and sampling for the purposes of obtaining core
samples and the related metallurgtcal assay of these cores, and

« dnlling to determine the volume and grade of deposits i an darea
known to contarn minerdl resources or for the purposes of
converting muncral resources nto proven and probable rescrves

[Cxploration ¢xpenditures ncurred at greenficld sites {sites where

the Group does not have any mineral deposuts that are already being
mined or developed) are typically expensed as mcurred, unless 1t can
be demonstrated that the related evaluation expenditures will generate
a future cconomc benefit. Cxploration expenditures incurred at
hrownfield <ite< (uites that are adjacent to & rmineral deposit that 1<
classified within proven and probable reserves and are already being
muned or developed) are capitalised 1f the following enteria are met

» the drilling 1s being done 1n an inferred or measured and 1ndicated
resource, and

= there s an existing proven and probable reserve that 1s contiguous
or adjacent to where the drilling 1s being done, and

« 1t1s probable that the resource will be converted to a proven and
probable reserve

The assessment of probability 1s based on the following factors results
frum previpus dnll programmes, results from a geological study,
results from a mine scoping study confirming economic viabihity of
the resource, and preliminary estimates of the volume and grade of
the deposit, and the net cash flows expected to be generated from its
development Costs incurred at brownfield sites that meet the above
critena are capitahised ¢s 4 component of property, plant and
equipment {*mne development costs™) pursuant to [AS 16, “Property,
Plant and Equipment” All other dnlling and related exploration costs
incurred at these sites are expensed as mine site exploration
Exploration expenditures incurred for the purposes of determining
addittonal information on a mineral deposit that is classified within
proven and probabie reserves or for the purposes of extending an
exisiing muneral deposit that 1s classified within proven and probable
reserves and 1s already being mined or developed are also capitalised
ds mine development costs

Fyaluation expenditures

Evaluation expenditures arse from 4 delailed assessment of deposits or
ather projects that have been identified as having economic potenbial in
order to determine thew techmeal feasibility and commercial viability
They typically include costs directly attnbutable 1o

» detailed engineenng studies,

« examination and testing of extraction methods and
metallurgical/treatment processes,

= surveyag transportauion and infrastructure reguirements,

permutling activitics, and

+ detailed economuc evaluations to determine whether development
of the reserves 1s commeraally justified, including the preparation
of scoping, pre-feasibihity and final feasibihity studies

Evaluation expenditures incurred at greentield and brownfield sites are
expensed as incurred, unless 1t can be demonstrated that the related
evaluation expenditures will generate a future economic benefit

Evaluation expenditures incurred at operaiing mmes/development
prujects are capilabised ds a compunent of property, plant and equipment,
“Mineral praperties and mine development costs™, respectively

Acqurred explorahon ind evaluation propertiec

Exploration and cvaluation stage properties dcgquired erther ds &n
acquisition of individual assets or 4s part of a business combination are
capitalised as an intangible asset, “Acquired exploration and evaluation
propertes” Exploration and evaluation stage properties represent
nterests 1n propertics that do net have mineralised matenal classthed
within proven and probable reserves The value of such properties 15
prmanly drven by the nature and amount of mineralised matenal
contained 1n such properties, including value attributable 1o the nghts to
explote or develop 1) a property containing mineralised material
classified as a measured, indicated or mferred resource, or u) ¢
prospective greenfield property with sigmificant explorabion potential
Exploration and evaluation expenditures incurred on such properties
subsequent to their acquisition are expensed as imcurred until the
technical and commercial viabiity of developing the property has been
demonstrated under the same cnteriz described above for exploration
and evaluation expenditures

m) Earnungs per share

Basic earmings per share 1s computed by dividing net profit for the
period attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of Ordmary Shares outstandimg for the period
Diluted earmings per share reflect the potental dilution that could
occur 1f additvonal Ordinary Shares are assumed to be 1ssued under
secunties that entitle their holders to obtain Ordinary Shares in the
future For stock options, the nember of additional shares tor
inclusion in diluted earmings per share calculations 1s determined
using the treasury stock method Under this method, stock options,
whose exercise price 1s less than the average market price of our
Ordinary Shares, are assumed 1o be exercised and the proceeds are
used to repurchase Ordinary Shares at the average market price for the
penod The mcremental number of Ordinary Shares issued under
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Sigmficant accounting poltcies continued

m) Earmungs per share continued

stock options and repurchased from proceeds 1s included 1n the
calculatton of dituted earnings per share

n} Imsentorv

Matenal extracted from the Group's mines 1 classified as erther ore
or waste Ore represents material that, at the tme of extraction, 1s
expected to be processed into a saleable form and sold at a profit
Waste represents matenal that 1s required to be removed to access ore
bodies Ore 1s recorded as an asset that is classified wathin inventory as
material 1s extracted from the open pit or underground mine Ore 15
accumulated in stockpiles that are subsequently processed into gold
1n a saleable form under 2 mine plan that takes into consideration
optimal scheduling of production of our reserves, present plant
capacuy, and the market pnce of gold and copper Work 1n process
inventory represents gold, copper and silver in the processing aircwt
that has not completed the production process, and 1s not yet in a
saleable form Fimished goods inventory represents gold n saleable
form that has not yet been shipped. Mine operating supplies represent
commodities and other raw maternials consumed 1o the production
prucess, ds well as spare parts and other maintenance supphes that are
not classificd as capital items Inventories are vatued at the lower

of cost and net realisable value, with cost being deterrmined en a
weighted average cost basis Average costs are calculated by reference
to the cost of inventory at the beginning of the penod together with
the cost of mventory produced 1n a peried

Gold, cupper and silver ore contained m stockpiles v measured by
estimating the number of tonnes added and removed from the
stockpile, and the associated estimate of gold contained therein (based
on assay data) and applying estimated metallurgical recovery rates
(based on the expected processing method) Stockpile ore tonnages
dare vertlied by pertodic surveys Cosls dre allocated to ore stockpiles
based on quantitics of matenial stockpiled using current mimng costs
ncurred up to the point of stockpiling the ore and include direct
labour costs, matertals and contractor expenses which are directly
attributable to the extraction of ore, including an allocation of
sinpping costs attributable to current period production, an allocation
of mine site overhead costs, and depreciation of muning properties and
property, plant and equipment used n the extraction of are, reduced
by an allocation of capitalised stripping costs As ore 1s processed,
costs are removed based on recoverable quantities of gold and the
stockpile’s average cost per unit Ore that is not expected to be
processed 1 the 12 months following the balance sheet date 15
classified as non-current

Costs capitahised in process and (inished goods inventory include
the cost of stockples processed, the cost of commaodities and raw
materials consumed 1n the production process, direct labour, repair
and mamnienance cosls, energy costs, depreciation of property, plant
and equipment used n the producuon process, and an allocation of
mine site overhead costs Costs are removed from finished goods
mventory and recorded in cost of sales based on the average cost
per ounce of gold, copper and silver sold 1n the period

Cost of mine operating supphes s the purchase cost, including
allocated (reight costs where apphicable
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Provisions arc recorded to reduce ore stockpiles, work 1n process

and finished goods inventory to net realisable value where the net
rezlisable value of the inventory s lower than its cost at each balance
sheet date Net realisable value 1s determined with reference to
relevant markel pnces less applicable vanable selling expenses
Provisions recorded also reflect an estimate of the remaiming costs of
completion to bring the inventory into its saleable form Prowisions
are recorded to reduce mine operating supplies to net realisable value,
which 15 generally calculated by reference Lo s salvage or scrap value,
when 1115 determined that the supphies are slow moving and/or
obsolete Provisions are reversed to reflect subsequent recovencs in
net realisable value where the inventory 1s sull on hand at the halance
sheet date

o)  Property, plant and equipment

Muweral properties and mune development costs

Mineral properties and mine development costs are stated at cost,
less accumnulated depreciation and applicable accumulated
impawrment losses The acquisiion cost of a mineral property 1s the
estimated fair value of proven and probahle reserves acquired as a
result of a business combination or asset acqusition Capitahsed
mne development costs mclude pre-production stripping costs,
production stripping costs that result i a future econoruc benefit
(refer to Note 2i) for capitalisation critenia for stnipping costs), costs
incurred to access reserves at underground mining operations, and
exploration and evaluation expenditures that result in a probable
future economc benefit (refer to Note 21} for capitalisation cniteria
for exploration dand evaluation expenditures)

Development costs incurred at underground runes to busld new shafts,
dnits and ramps that provide physical access to the underground ore are
capuabsed as incurred. These costs can be incurred throughout the hfe
of the underground mme

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment 15 recorded at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and applicable impairment losses Cost includes all
expenditures mcurred Lo prepdre an dsset for is mtended use
mcluding the purchase price, brokers’ commissions, capitalised
borrowing costs and installation costs mcluding architectural,
design and engmneering fees, legal fees, survey costs, site preparation
costs, freight charges, transportation insurance costs, and duties

Costs Lthat extend the productive capacity or useful economuc hife of an
asset are capitalsed Costs incurred that do not extend the productive
capacity or useful economic hife of an dasset are considered repairs and
maintendnce and expensed as incurred

The Group enters into leasing arrangements and arrangements that
are 1n substance leasing arrangements The determination of whether
an grrangement 15, or contains, a lease 15 based on the substance of
the arrangement at inception date, including whether the fulfilment
of the arrangement 1s dependent on the use of a specific asset or
dsaels or whether the drrangement conveys 4 nght 1o use the asset.

A reassessment after inception 1s only made n specific circumstances
Leasing arrangements that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to the Group are classified as
finance leases




Fndnce leases dre recorded ds an assel with 4 corresponding labibity
4t an amount equal to the lower of the fair value of the leased property
and the present value at the beginning of the lease term of the
minimum lease payments over the term of the lease Each lease
payment 15 allocated between the habihty and finance costs using the
elfective interest method, whereby a constant rate of interest expense
1s recognised on the balance of the abihity outstanding The interest
element of the lease 15 charged to the income statement as a finance
expense The property, plant and equipment assets acquired under
finance leases are depreciated over the shorter ot the useful Lfe of the
asset and the lease term

All vther leases are classified as operating leases Operaung ledse
pdymients are recognised ds an expensc in the iIncome statemenlt on
a strayght-line basis over the lease term

Assets under construction

Assets 1 the course of construction at both our development projects
and operating mnes are capitalised in the “assets under consiruction™
account The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises 1its
purchase price and any costs directly attnibutable to hnnging it into
working condition fur it intended use, at which point it s Lransferred
to property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences
Development projects are recorded at cost, less apphicable accumulated
impaument losses Development projects represent interests 1n
propertics that contdin proven and probable reserves and whert
development activities are ongotng The cost of development projects
1s composed of the esiimated fair value of developmient stage asscts
acquired as a result of ¢ business combination or an asset acquisition,
and costs associated with the construction of tangible assets, such as
processing plants, permanent housing facilities and other tangible
mfrastructure associated with the project Assets under construction
also contains depostis on long lead items  Assets ynder construction
are not depreciated

Deprecmtion

Praperty, plant and equipment 1s depreciated, net of residual value,
over its useful life, or over the remaining hife of the rmne if shorterona
straight-line basis For mineral properties and mune development costs,
the economic benefits of the assets are consumed in a patiern which i
linked to the production level Such assets are depreciated on a unit of
production basis Depreciatton commences when assets are available
for their intended use In applying the units of production method,
depreciation 1s normally calculated using the quantity of gold extracted
from the mme {or p1t} 1n the penod as a percentage of the total quantity
of material expected (o be extracted 1 current and future periods based
on estimates of recoverable proven and probable reserves and, for some
munes, muneral resources Such non-reserve matertal may be included 1n
the depreciation calculaions where there s a hugh degree of confidence
n 1ls economic exirachon and the production of the non-reserve
matenat 15 reftected in the life of mine plan

Development costs that relate to a discrete section of an ore body
and which only provide benefit over the hfe of those reserves are
depreciated over the recoverable proven and probable reserves of that
discrete section Discrete sections include capitalised underground
development costs or production sinipping costs incurred for the
purposes of providing access (o specific ore blocks or areas of the mine

and which only provide an economtc benefit over the period of
mumng that ore block or area Development costs incurred which
benefit the entire ore body are depreciated over the recoverable
proven and probable reserves of the entire ore body

The expected depreciation rates of the major categories of assets are
as follows

Mineral properties and rmine development costs uop*
Plant and equipment 4% - 25%
Underground mole equipment 14 3% - 20%
Light velucles and other mobile equipment 33 3% - 50%
Furmiture, computer and office equipment 33 3% - 50%

HOM adreates axsts whch re deprecated on the bamsal umits of prodaction (*TIOPT) 1o thes cas
aurces of gold produced w12 period dimded by the total recaverable reserves and resources of gold
wxpeciud to he tmined hased on the cartent Wi of meee plans

Lach asset’s csumated residual value and useful hfe are reviewed, and
adjusted 1f appropnate, on anannual basis The estrmate of residual
value and useful life 18 hased on the physical condition and hfe
limitations of builldings, plant and equipment and the present
assessment of economically recoverable reserves of the mune for the
mning property and development cost assut Changes (o the estimated
residual values or useful lives are accounted for prospectively

P} Guodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of the identifiable assets, labihities and contingent habilities
dcquired at the date of aequisiion Goodwalk 1s wnsally determaned
based on provisional fair values Fair values are finalised wathin 12
months of the acquisition date For non-wholly-owned subsidianes,
non-controlling interests are imally recorded based on the non-
controlling mnterests” proportion of the fair values for the assets and
habilities recognised at acqunsition

Goodwill that 1s acquired through business combinations 15 allocated 1o
cash generating umts (“CGUS™), or groups of CGUS, thal are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the business combination Cach of the
Group’s CGUs that has an allocation of goodwall s also an operating
segment as defined by [FRS 8 Consequently, goodwall 1s tested for
mmparrment at the individual CGU level

Goodwill 1s not amorused, rather 1t 1s tested annually for impairment
in accordance with accounting policy Note 2r) Goodwnll 1s stated at
cost less accumulated impatrment lnsses Goodwill impairments are
not reversible

q) Intangible asseis

Intangible assets acquired by way of an asset acquisition or business
combination are recognised if the assct1s separable or anses from
contractual or legal rights and the fair value can be measured rehably
on mmitial recognition On acquisition of a mineral property in the
exploration stage, an estimate of the fair value attributable to the
exploration potenteal 1s prepared, including mineral resources, if any,
of that property The {air value of the exploration potental 18 recorded
as an intangible asset (acquired exploration potential) as at the date
of acqmsition When an exploration stage property moves into
development, any acquired exploration intangible asse balance
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Sigmificant accounting pohcies contiued
attributable to that property 1s transferred to mineral propertes
within pruperty, plant and equipment

Impairment testing and the reversal of impairments are conducted
i accordance with accountmg policy Note 2r)

1) Tmparment of non-current assets
Goodwill s reviewed for impairment annually or at any fime dunng
the year if an indicator of impatrment 1s considered to exist

We review and test the carrymng amounts of mntangible assets when
events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount
may nut be recoverable

Property, plant and equipment 1s reviewed for impairment if there 1s
any mdecation that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

An impairment loss shall be recogmsed for a CGU 1f, and only i, the
recoverable amount of the unit 1s less than the carrying amount of the
unit The impairment loss shall first be allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each
assctn the umt

An impairment luss recognised in prior years {or non-financial assets
other than goodwill shall he reverced if, and only if; there has been a
change in the estimales used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised Thus reversal 1s
recognised n the consoldated statement of income and 1s hmited to
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of any
depreciation, had no impairment been recognised in prior years After
such a reversal, any deprectation charge 1s adjusted prospectively

The recoverable amount of an ascet 1s assessed by reference to the
higher of value 1n use ("VIU”), being the net present value (“NPV”) of
future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset, and fair value
less costs 1o »ell (“FVLUS") Impdirment asscasments dare condueted at
the level of CGLs, which s the lowest level for which identifiable cash
flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets Each
operating mine and development project represents a CGU for
mpairment testing purposes An impairment loss 1s recogmised for
any excess of carrying amount of a CGU over its recoverable amount

The FVLCS of a CGU 1s based on an estimate of the amount that the
Group may obtdin 1n a sale transaction on an arm’s length basis There
15 no active market for the Group’s CGUs Consequently, FVLCS 1s
derived using discounted cash flow techniques (NPV of expected
future cash flows of a CGU), which incorporate market participant
assummplions Cost (o sell 15 based on management’s best esimates of
future selling costs at the tme of caleulaung F'VLCS Costs attnbutable
to the sale of a CGIJ are not considered sigmficant

The expected future cash fiows utilised in the NPV model are derived
from estimates of projected future revenues, future cash costs of
production and capital expenditures contained in the hife of nuine
(“LOMT) plan for each CGU, which are generally updated m the
fourth quarter of each fiscal year The Group's LOM plans reflect
proven and probable reserves and convertible resources and are based
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on detailed rescarch, analysis and modclhing to opumise the internal
rate of return for each CGU As such, these plans consider the optimal
level of investment, overall production levels and sequence of extraction
taking 1nto account all relevant characteristics of the ore body,
m¢luding waste-to-ore tonnes, ore grades, haul distances, chermical
and metallurgical properties ympacting process recovenes and
capacities of available extraction, haulage and processing equipment

Projected future revenucs reflect the forecasted future production
levels at each CGU as detailed in the LOM plans Included in these
forecasts 15 the production of mineral resources that do not currently
qualify for inclusion in proven and probable ore reserves where there
1s a lugh degree of confidence in their economic extraction This s
conswistent with the approach that a market participant would utihise
in prepanng a forecast of expected production levels Projected future
revenues also reflect the Group’s estimate of long-term gold prices,
which 1s determined based on current prices, an analysis of the
expected total production costs of producers and forward pricing
curves and forecasts of expected long-term pnces prepared by
research analysts These estimates often duffer from current price
levels, but this methodology 1s consistent with how a market
participant would assess long-term gold prices

The estimates of future cash costs of production and capual
expendilures are denved from the LOM plans for each CGU Costs
mcurred in currencies other than the US dollar are translated 10 US
dollars using expected long-term cxchange rates based on the relevant
forward pricing curve for that currency Oil prices are a significant
componen, both directly and indirectly, of the expected cash costs of
production Estimates {or long-term ol prices used in the LOM plans
are based on the current spot price, the forward pricing curve and
long-term o1l price forecasts prepared by analysts

The discount rate apphed ta present value 1s based upon the real
weighted average cost of capital applicable to the CGU The discount
rate reflects equity risk premiums over the nsk-free rate, the impact of
the remaining ¢conomtc hfe of the LG and the risks assoctated with
the relevant cash flows based on the country in which the CGU 1s
located. These sk adjustments are based on observed equity risk
premiums, historical country risk premiums and average credit
default swap spreads for the period.

In determining FVLCS, a market multiple 1s applied to the NPV of
each CGU Gold compames typically trade at a market capitalisatiion
that 1s based on « muluple of thewr underlymg NPV Conseguently,
a market participant would generally apply an NPV multiple when
estimating the fair value of a gold property The NPV multiples
utilised in the determmation of the FVLCS of a CGU consider the
NPV multiples observed i comparable compantes (hese observed
muluples are pnmanly denved from research analyst reports and
take 1nto consideration the following i} estimate of underlying NPV
prepared by the analyst, u) esimate of target market capitalisation
prepared by the analyst, ti1) market capitalisation on the date ot the
analyst report, and 1v) market capitalisation on the date of the
unpairment test. The NPV multiple applied alse takes into
consideration the remawning econamic hife of the CGU




The VIU of a CGU 1 generally lower than it FVLCS, due primanly w
the application of a market multiple to the underlying NPV of a CGU
when determuuing its FVLCS Consequently, the recoverable amount
of a CGU for impairment testing purposes 1s determined based on

s FVLCS

s} Contributed surplus

The Company did not exsst untid 12 January 2010, and did not become
the parent company for the Group until 22 February 2010 when the
transfer of the members of the Group pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Reorgamisation was completed. Contributed surplus represents the
diffurence between the cumulstive mvestment in the entities and
businesses which form part of the consolidated Afncan Barnck Gold
plc Group and non-controlhing interests

1) Share cepuial

Ordinary Shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly
atiributeble to the sssue of new shares or options are shown n equaty
4s a deduction from the proceeds

u) Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive} as a result of a past event, il 1s probable that

an oulllow of resources will be required 1o settle the vbligation and

4 rehiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obhigation 1f the
cffect of the time value of moncy 1s matenal, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and,
where appropnate, the nsks specific to the liability Where ducounting
15 used, the increase n the provision duc to the passage of time 1
recognised as a finance cost

Rehubilitation costs

The minmng, extraction and processing acuvities of the Group
narmally give rise to obhigations for environmental rehahiltiation
Rehabilitation works can mclude facihty decommissioning and
dismanthing, removai or trestment of waste mdtenals, site and land
rehabilitation The extent of work required and the associated cosls
are dependent on the requirements of relevant authornties and the
Group's environmental policies

Provisions for the cost of each rehatnlitation programme are
recognised at the time that environmental disturbance occurs When
the extent of disturbance increases over the hfe of an operation, the
provision 1s 1ncreased accordingly The major parts of the carrying
amount of provisiuns relate 1o tathings pond cosure/rehabilitation,
demolition of bulldings/mune facilities, ongotng water treatment, and
ongowng care and mantenance of closed mines Costs mcluded in the
provision encompass all closure and rehabiditation activity expected
1o veeur progressively over the hife of the operation and at the tme

of closure 1n connecuon with disturbances at the reporting date
Estimated costs included in the determinauen of the provision
reflect the nsks and probabilities of alternative esumates of cash
flows required to settle the obligation at each particular operation
Routine operating costs that may impact the ultimate closure and
rehabilitabion activitres, such as waste matenal handhing conducted

45 an mtegral part of a miming or production process, are not mcluded
m the provision Costs ansing from unforescen arcumstances, such
as the contamination caused by unplanned discharges, are recognised
as an expense and lhability when the event occurs that gives nse toan
obligation and relable estimates of the required rehabilitation costs
can be made

The umng of the actual rehabilitation expendtiure 1s dependent
upon a number of factors such as the hife and nature of the asset, the
operating licence condilions and the environment m which the mme
operates Expenditure may occur before and after closure and can
continue for an extended penod of ime depending on rehabihitation
requirentents The majority of the expenditure 1s expected to be pard
over penods of up to 30 years with some payments mto perpetuty
Rehabilitation provisions are measured at the expected value of future
cash flows, discounted to their present value using a current, market-
based estimate of the real risk-free pre-tax discount rates The
unwinding of the discount 15 mcluded 1n finance expense dnd results
m anncrease 1n the amount of the provision Provistons are updated
each reporting period for the eflect of a change 1n the discount rate
and the change in estimate 15 added or deducted from the related asset
and deprecrated prospecuvely over the asset’s useful Lfe

Significant judgements and estimates are involved i forming
expectations of future activities and the amount and terning of the
associated cash flows Those expectations are formed based on
existing environmental and regulatory requirements or, 1f more
stningent, Group environmentat policies which give rise toa
constructive obhgation

‘When provisions for closure and rehabilitation are initially recogmsed,
the correspondimg cost 1s capitalised as an asset, representing part of
the cost of acquining the future cconomic benefits of the operation
The capualised cost of closure and rehabihitation activities 1s recogmsed
i property, plant and equrpment and depreciated accordingly

It 15 possible that management s esimates of provisions could change
as a result of changes n regulations, the extent of rehabilitation
required, and the means of reclamation or cost estimates
Rehabihiation provisions are adjusted as a result of changes in
esttmates Those adjustments are accounted for as a change in the
corresponding value of the related asset, except where a reduction
in the provision 1s greater than the remaining net book value of

the related assets, sn which case the value 1s reduced to mi and the
remdining ddyustment s recognised in the income slalerment In
the case of closed aites, changes to estimated costs are recagnised
immedately in the income statement Changes to the capitahsed cost
result i an adjustment to future depreciation and finance expense
On an annudl basis, the Group reviews for changes n cost estimates,
discount rates or hfe of operauons

v) Emplovee benefits

The Group operates an equity-seitled, share-based compensation
plan (the "Stock Gption Plan”}, a long-term ncentive plan (the
“L11P"), a legacy restncted share unit plan (the “Legacy RsU Plan™)
dnd a deferred share unit plan (the “DSU” Plan)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Sigmficant accounting policies continued

Shui e bused compensation

Issue of Stock Options

Stock options can be granted under either the Company LTIP or the
Stock Opuon Plan The Company recerves services from cmployces as
consideration for equity instruments (opuons) of the Group The fair
value of the employee services recerved in exchange for the grant of the
opltions 15 recognised as an expense The total amount to be expensed
1s determined by reference to the fair value of the opions granted

= ancluding any market purformance conditions,

« excluding the impact of any service and non-marke! performance
vesting condiions (for «xample, profitabihity, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time

period), and

+ excluding the 1mpact of any non-vesting conditions {for example,
the requirement for employees to save}

Non-market vesting conditions are included 1n assumptions about
the number of aptions that are expected to vest The total expense 15
recognised over the vesting period, whtch 15 the period over which all
ol the spealied vestung conditions are (o be satisfied At the end of
cach reporting penod, the Company revises 1ts estumatces of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market
vesting condrtrons H recognises the impact of the revision to onginal
estimates, 1f any, 1n the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity

When he uptions are exercised, the Company may 1vsue new shares
ur procure the trans{er of exssting shares Lo satisfy the exercise Where
shares are 1ssued, the proceeds recerved net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credhited to share capial (nomnal value) and
share premium when the options are exercised. The grant by the
Company of oplions over 11s equity 1mstruments to the employees

of subsidiary undertakings in the Group s treated 4s a capital
contribution The fair value of employee services recewved, measured
by reference to the grant date fair value, 1s recogmsed over the vesting
penod as an 1ncrease 10 investment 1n subsidiary undertakings, with

a corresponding credit to equity

I'Tip

The Company has a cash-settled, Restricted Share Unit (*RSU”) plan for
select employees Under the terms of the RSU plan, sclecled employees
are granted RSUs where each RSU has a value equal to one Qrdnary
Share of the Company RSUs granted to Executive Directors and the
other members of the Senior Leadership Tearm vest based on the
Company's I'otal Shareholder Ruturn (*TSR*) perfurmance against the
market cap-weighted T5R of a comparator group of companies over the
vesting pertod (referred to as Performance BSUs) RSUs vest over a two-
and-a-half or three-year period and are setiled in cash Additional RSUs
are credited to reflect dindends pard on Ordinary Shares of the
Company durnng the vesting perniod with a corresponding charge to the
compensation cxpense A habihity for RSUs 1s measured al fair value on
the grant date and 1s recogmised on a straight-lne hasis over the vesting
penod, with a correspanding charge to the compensation expense Al
the grant date the fair value of the awards 1s determined from the market
value of the shares at the date of award and adjusted for any market
based vesung conditions attached (o the award ¢ g relative 18R
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performance Changes in the fair value of the RSU habiiity, dee to
changes m the pnee of Ordinary Shares of the Company, are recorded
each period, with a corresponding charge to the compensation expense
Compensation expenses recognised for RSUs incorporate an estimate
for expected forferture rates The expected forferture 1s estimated based
on historical forfetture rates of the Group and expectauons of future
forferture rates Adjustments to compensation expense are recogmsed
m penods where the actual forfeture rate differs from the expected rate

Legacy RSU Plan

Histoncally, the Barnick Group has manlained a Restricted Share
Unu ("RSU ) plan for select employees who now work for the Group
This plan operates 1n an incidental manner to the Company RSU plan
Ihese existing legacy restnicled share umits will continue Lo be
administered and accounted for based on the movement of the fair
value of the Barrick Ordinary Share for recording of habihties and
compensation expense

Deferred share unts

Under the Deferred Share Umt (*DSU”) plan, the Nor-Executive
Durectors can elect to recerve all or a part of thewr annual Director fees
it DSUs Each DSU has the same value as one ABG Ordinary Share
D5Us must be retained untll the Director Ieaves the Board, at which
time the cash value of the DSU 1< paid out Additronal DSUs are
credited to reflect dividends paid on ABG Ordinary Shares A liabihty
for DSUs 1s measured at fair value on the grant date and 1s recogmised
un a stratght-line basis over the vesuing penod, with ¢ corresponding
charge to the Direclors’ compensdlion expense At the grant date, the
fair value of the awards 1s determined from the market value of the
shares at the date of the award Changes in the fair value of the DSU
liabulity, due to changes in the price of Ordinary Shares of the
Compadny, are recorded each period, with 4 corresponding charge

to the Directors’ compensation expensc

Deftned contribution plun

The Group’s Tanzanian employees are members of pnmanly either
the National Socat Secunty Fund (*“NSSF”) or of the Parastatal
Pension Fund ("PPF7), which are defined contnbution plans A defined
contnibution plan 1s 2 plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions mlo a separate entity The Group has no legul or
constructive obligation to pay {urther contribution if the fund does
not hold <ufficient assets ta pay all employees the henefits relating

to the employee service in the current and prior periods The Group
and employees both contribute 10% of the employees’ gross salanes to
the schemes  The contributions are charged (o the income statement
when they are due

Termtination benefils

Termination benefits arc payable when employment ts termindted by
the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these henefits The
Group recognises termination benefits when 1t 1s demonstrably
committed to either terminating the employment of current
employees according o 4 detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal, or prondtng terminatian benefits as a result of an offer
made 1o encourage voluntary redundancy Benefits falhng due more
than 12 months afier the balance sheet date are discounted to their
present value




Romus plans

I'he Group recognises 4 lability and dn expense fur bonuses where
it 15 contractually obhged or where there 15 a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation

Otlier entitlemerts
The estimated monetary liabality for employees” accrued annual leave
entitlemnent at the balance sheet date 1s recognised as an expense accrual

w)  Fimancia mstruments

Cash and cush equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carned in the balance sheet at fair vafue
For the purposes of the halance sheet, cash and cash equivalents
mclude cash, and money market funds For the purposes of the cash
flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above

Loans und recervubles

Loans and recervables are non-dervatne financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted 1n an actrve markel,
do not qualify as trading assels and have not been designated as
etther fair value through profit and loss or available for sale These
are imtially recogmised at fair value, and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method They are included
it current dssels, excepl for matunties gredler than 12 months
after the balance sheet date These are classified as non-current
assets, where the recervables are discounted and held at their net
present value

Loans and receivables compnse {rade and ather receivables, other
assets and cash and cash equivalents at the balance sheet date

A provision for impairment of trade recervables 1s established when
there 15 objecuve evidence that the Group will not be able 1o collect
all amounts due according to the onginal terms of recetvables The
amount of the proviston 1s the difference between the carrpnng
amount and the expected cash flows discounted at the effective
mterest rate The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through use
of an allowance account The amount ot the provision 1s recognused
i the income statement

Derivatives

Denvatives are imtially recognised at fair value on the date a
denvative contract 15 entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at thewr fair value The method of recognising the resulting gan or loss
depends on whether the dertvative ts designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the ndlure of the tem being hedged The Group
designates cerlan denvatives as

a} hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or habiltiies
or a firm commitment (fair value hedge),

b) hedges of the income/cost of a highly probable forecast
transaction or commitment {cash flow hedge), or

¢} hedges of a net investment 1n a foreign operation
(net mvestment hedge)

The Group documents at inception of the transaction the relationship
between hedging mstruments and hedged items, as well as 11s nisk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking vanious hedging
transactions The Group also documents its assessmeni, both at hedge
incephion and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derrvatives that are
uscd 1n hedging transactions arc haghly effectve 1n offsetting changes
n fair values or cash flows ofhedged 1tems

The fair values of various denvative instruments used for hedging
purposes are disclosed in Note 29 Movements in the hedging reserve
are shown in other comprehensive income The full farr value of a
hedging dertvative s classified as a non-current asset or habahity when
the remamning maturity of the hedged item 1s more than 12 months,
and as a current asset or hability when the remaming matunty of the
hedged 1tern 15 less than 12 months Trading denwvatives are clasafied
as a current assel or hiabiity

(a) Fpir value hedge

Changes 1n the fair value of denvatives that are designated and quahfy
as fair value hedges are recorded 1n the income statement, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that
are attnibutable to the hedged nsk The gain or loss relating to the
effective portion 1s recogmsed in the 1ncome statement within
“fimance costs” The gan or lass relabing to the neffective portion 15
recognised 1n the income statement within “other gains/(losses) ~
net” Changes in the fair value of the hedge atirtbutable 10 interest rate
sk are recogrmised in the income statement within “finance costy”

1f the hedge no longer meets the cnitenia for hedge accounting, the
adyustment to the carrying amount of a hedged wtem for which the
effective interest method 15 used 1s amortised Lo profit or loss over
the perind to matunty

{1) Cash flaw hadge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of denvatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 1s recognused 1n other
comprehenstve income The gawn or loss relating to the meffective
portion 1s recogmised immedhately in the consohidated income
statement within “Non-hedge denvative gains/(losses) - net”

Amounts accumulated 1 equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the
penads when the hedged item affects profit or loss (for cxample, when

the forecast sale that 1s hedged takes place) The gan or loss relanng to the
effecttve portion 1s recognised in the income statement However, when
the {orecast transaction that 1s hedged results in the recogmtion of a non-
financial asset {for example, inventory or fixed assets), the gans and losses
previously deferred in equity are transferred frem equity and included in
the imitial measurement of the cost of the asset. The deferred amaunts are
ultimately recognised m cost of goods sold in the case of nventory or m
depreciation 1n the case of property, plant and equpment

When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, or when a hedge no
longer meets the criterta for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
loss existing 1n equuty at that time remains in equity and 15 recognised
when the forecast transaction 1s ulimately recogmised 10 the income
statement When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur,
the cumulatve gain or loss that was reported in equity 15 immedately
transferred o the income statement within “other gams/Qlusaes) - net”
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Sigmificant accountmg policies continued
(¢} Net ihvestment hedge
Hedges of net investmenis in foreign operations are accounted for

sumilarly to cash flow hedges

Any gaim or loss en the hedging mstrument relating to the effective
portion of the hedge 15 recognised i other comprehensive income
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recogmised in
the income statement

Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the ncome
statement when the foreign operation 1s partially disposed of or sold.

Embedded derivatives

Contracts are assessed for the existence of embedded derrvatives at
the date that the Group first becomes party 1o the cuntract, with
reassessment only if there 15 a change to the contract that significantly
modifics the cash flows Embedded derivatives which are not dlearly
and closely related to the underlying asset, ltrabihty or transaction are
separated and accounted for as stand-alone derivatives

Frnancial habiities

Borrowings are recogmsed imitially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently carmed at amortised cost,
any difference between the pruceeds (net of transaction cosls) and the
redemption value 14 recognised in the Income statement over the
penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
cusls of the loan to the extent that it 1 prubable that some or all of the
facility wall be drawn down In this case, the fee 1s deferred until the
draw-down cccurs To the extent there 1s no evidence that 1t 1s
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee 1s
capuialised as a pre-payment for hquidity services and amortuised over
the period of the factlity to which it relates Borrowings are classified
as current habihities unicss the Group has an unconditional nght to
defer settlement ot the hiability for at least 12 manths after the balance
sheet date

1} Finance income and finance expense

Interest income 1s recognised on a time-proportion basts using the
cfecuve interest method. When a recervable 1s impatred, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the onginal effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
nterest income

Interest 1s recognised as a borrowing cost on a tume proportion basis
using the effecuve mterest method Borrowing costs that relate
dircctly to the construction of property, plant and eqtupment during
the ume that it 1s required to complete and prepare the assel for its
intended use are caprtalised as part of the cost of the asset

¥} Taxes

I'he tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax
Tax 1s recognised m the income statement, except to the extent that 1t
relates to items recogmsed 10 other comprehensive mcome or directly
m equity In this case the tax 1s also recognised 1n other comprehensive
tncome or directly n equity, respectively
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Current income fax

Current income L4x dssets and habibities for the current and prior
pennds are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities Management periodically evaluates
posttions taken 1n tax returns with respect to situations in which
appheable tax regulation 1 subject Lo interpretation It establishes
provisions where appropnate on the basis of amounts expecled to be
paid to the tax authorities The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax 1s provided using the iabiity method on
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the 1ax bases
of assels and liabalities and their carrying amounts for financial
reparting purpases Deferred income tax s determimed using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and are
expected 10 apply when the related deferred income tax Lability 15
seltled Delerred income Lax assels are recognised only to the extent
that 1015 probable that future takable profits wall be available against
which the temporary differences can be wthsed

Deferred imcome tax babilities are recogmsed for all taxable temporary
chfferences, except

« where the deferred income tax hability arses from the tnitial
recogmbion of goadwill or of an asset or habihity 1n a transaction
that 15 not a business cormbinanon and, at the ume of transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit/loss, and

1n respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
mvesiments in subsidianes where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it 1s probable that the
temporary differences wall not reverse n the foresecable future

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, 1o the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised except

where the deferred income tax asset relating to deducuible
temporary differences arises from the 1nitial recognition of an asset
or liabihity 1n a transaction that 1s not a business combination and,
al the itme of the transaction, affects nerther the accountng profit
nor taxable profit or loss, and

« m respect of deductible temporary differcnces associated with
investments in subsidianes deferred iIncome tax assets are
recognised enly to the extent that it1s prebable that the temporary
differences will reverse 1n the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utihsed

Ihe carrying amount of deferred income Lax assets 1s reviewed al
cach balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avarlable to allow afl

or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utihsed



Unrecognised deferred income 1ax dssets are reassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recogmsed to the extent that 1t has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the year when the asset 15 reahised or the
habihity 1 settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacled ur substantively enacted at the balance sheel date

Uncertainties regarding availabihity of tax losses, n respect of
cnquirics raised and additional tax assessments issued, have been
measured using the single best estimate of likely outcome approach

Deferred mcome tax relating to tems recogmsed directly in equuty 13
recagmsed in equity and not in the income statement

Deferred income lax assets and deferred income tax hahilities are
offset, 1f a legally enforceable nght exasts to set off current income tax
assets against current income tax liabulities and the deferred income
taxes relate 1o the seme Laxable entily and the same laxation duthonty

Induect tax

Indirect tax dssels dnd habilities for the current and prior penods are
measured at the amount expected Lo be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authoriies Management pertodically evaluates positions
taken in indirect tax returns with respect to situations i which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation It establishes
provisions or receivables where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to or recarved from the tax authornuies The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date If the
receivable 15 expecied to be received 1n more than 12 months from
year-end, the receivable 15 discounted and held at 1ts present value
Amounts expected to be payable or recervable in more than 12 months
are classified as non-current assets or habihities i the balance sheet,
as appropriate

2} Royalties

Royalty arrangements based on mineral production are 1n place at
each operating mine The primary type of rayalty 1s a net smelter
Teturn {"NSR”) royalty Under this type of rayaliy the Group pays the
holder an amount calculated as the royalty percentage multiphied by
the value ot gold production at market gold prices less selling costs

The North Mara mmne 15 also subject to a land royalty {land tenements
(“LT")) based on the net revenue derived from the open pit mines

Royalty expense 15 recorded when revenue from the sale of gold,
copper and siver production 1s recogmised

The following percentages apply

Bulyanhulu 1% NSR**
Tulawaka 4% NSR**
North Mara - Nyabirama and

Nyabigena pits 4% NSR*™, 1% TT
North Mara - Gokona prt A% NSR*™*, 1 1% LT
Buswag 49 NSR™, 3u%NPI*

*  The NFI s calcubated as a perceittage of profits reahised from the Buzwag mune after all captal
expleration and developroent costs and interest insurred 1n relation to the Buzwagm mune have been
recouped and il gperatmg costs relaung to the Burwag pune have been pud Mo ameaont
cuzrently payable

* The Group dgreed to a volurgtary 1% increase m the NSE royalty rute in 2012

aa) Leases

Leases m which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operatung leases
Payments made under operating leases (net of any mcentives receved
from the lessor) are charged 1o the income statement on a straight-lime
basis over the pened of the lease

The Group leases certam properly, plant and equipment Leascs of
property, plart and equipment where the Group has substantially
all the nisks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the [a1r value of the leased property and the present value
of the mmimum lease payments

Each lease payment 1s allocated between the liability and finance
charges The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are mncluded in other habilities The interest clement of the finance
cost 1s charged to the income statement over the lease penod so as lo
produce a constant peniodic rate of interest on the remaintng balance
of the liability for each penod The property, plant and equipment
acquired under findnce leases 15 depreciated over the shorter of the
useful life of the asset and the lease term

bb) Dividend distribution

Drvidend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised
ds d llability 1n the cunsolidated {inancial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s sharcholders
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3  Segment reporuing

The Group hes only ene pnimary product produced 1n a single geographic location, being gold produced 1n Tanzania In addition the Group
prodisces copper and silver 4s 4 co-product Reportable operating scgments are based on the mternal reports provided to the Chiel Qperating
Decision Maker {("CODM?”) (o evaluate segment performance, decide how to allocate resources and make other operaung decisions After
applying the aggregation critena and quantitative thresholds contained in IFRS 8, the Group's reportable operating segments were determined
tobe North Mara gold mine, Tulawaka gold mine, Bulyanhulu gold mne, Buzwag: gold mune, and a separate Corporate and Exploration
segmenl, which primarily consists of costs related Lo corpordle admimistration and exploration and evaluation activities {*Other”)

Segment results and assets include tems directly attributable to the segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis Segment
assels consist primarily of property, plant and equipmenl, mventones, other assels and recervables Capitdl expenditures compnise addittons Lo
property, plant and equipment Segment hahities are not reported since they are not conadered by the CODM as mater:al to cegment
performance The Group has also included segmenl cash costs

Segment information for the reportable operating segments of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 15 set
out below

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(in thousands of Uruted States dollars except references W ouriges) Naorth Mara Tulawaka Bulyanhulu Buzwag: Other Total
Gold revenue 310,549 75,458 393,347 259,954 - 1,039,308
Co-product revenue 549 143 24,311 23,028 - 48,031
Total segment revenue 311,098 75,641 417,658 287,982 - 1,087,339
Segment cash operating cost®* (180,601) {57,992) (213,350} (191,883) (80,528) (724,354)
Other charges and corporate soial respansibility expenses (12,921) (1,995) 40 {4,944) (12,296) {32,116}
EBITDA? 117,576 15,614 204,348 86,155 (92,824) 330,869
Impairment charges - (44,536) - - - (44,536)
Depreciation and amortisation {54,958) (19,831) (33,064) (47,387) (3,643 {158,883)
EBIT? 62,618 (48,753} 171,284 38,768 {96,467) 127,450
Total segment finance income 3,102
Total segment finance expense® (10,305)
Profit before taxation 119,247
Tax expense (71,083)
Net profit for the peniod 48,184

Capital expenditure

Sustaining 47,759 13,157 35,193 56,441 8,988 161,538
Expansionary 10,091 2,522 36,814 52 - 49,889
Capitalised development 25,706 7,258 45,605 31,057 - 109,626
Rehabilitation asset addition/(reduction) 7.540 1,251 (43) 10,494 - 19,242
Total caputal expenditure 91,096 24,588 117,569 98,054 8,988 340,295
Cash costs

Segment cdsh operating cost! 180,601 57,992 213,350 191,883 - 643,826
Deduct Co-product revenue (549) {143) (24,311) (23,028) - (48,031)
Total cash costs 180,052 57,849 189,039 168,855 - 595,795
Sold ounces® 186,600 45,600 235,410 155,322 ~ 622,932
Cash cost per ounce sold- 965 1,269 803 1,087 - 956
Equnty ounce adjustment* (7
Attributable cash cost per ounce sold? 949
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For the year ended %1 December 2011

(1 thousands of L ruted States dollars except references to ounces) North Mara Tulawaka Bulyanhulu Buzwag: Other Total
Gold revenue 272,026 131,435 129,528 317,036 - 1,150,025
Co-product revenue y17 316 35,509 31,148 - 67,890
Total segment revenue 272,943 131,751 465,037 348,184 - 1,217,915
Segment cash operating cast'= (139,204) (60,952) (200,072) (169,737) (75,487) (649,452}
Other charges and corporate socsal responsibility expenses {5,112} (2,826) (8,161} {12,334) 5718 (23,015)
CBITDA? 128,627 67,973 256,504 166,113 {73,769) 545,448
Depreciation and amortisation {34,724) (17,251) (32,320) (46,029} {3,825) {134,149}
LBIT? 93,903 50,722 224,184 120,084 {77,594) 411,299
Total segment finance income 1,484
Total segment finance expense® (10,082)
Profit before taxation 402,701
Tax expense {117,924)
Net profit for the pertod 284,777
Capntal expenditure
Sustaining 30,567 3,101 42,749 56,992 11,802 145,211
Expanstonary 47,381 8,346 6,626 920 - 63,273
Capitalsed develupment 26,407 4,252 32,748 15,583 - 83,990
Rehabilitation asset addition 18,791 10,953 13,309 9,708 - 52,761
Total capital expendlture 123,146 31,652 95,432 83,203 11,802 345,235
Cash cosls
Segment cash operating cost* 139,204 60,952 200,072 169,737 - 569,965
Deduct Co-product revenue (917) (316) (35,509) (31,148) - {67,890)
Tatal cash costs 138,287 6,636 164,563 138,589 - 502,075
Sold vunces® 170,625 83,430 269,981 200,518 - 724,574
Cash cost per vunce sold? 81u 727 610 691 - 693
Equity ounce adjustment* ()
h92

Attributable cash cost per ounce sold?

1 The Cluef Operitmg Deoson Maker reviews cash operating costa for the foor operatiag mine tcs scparitely from corporate sd

thiese costs 1o this manner

- N

Reflects §00% of ounces sold

¢ Teflects the adjustment for non-controlling interest at Tulawaka

These are non IFRS finanaal performance

5 TRestated due to reclassificalion of bank charges from corparate admimsiration to finance expense

(11 thousands of United Stztes dollara)

—anon casts and expl costs. Co

ty the Group has reported

g under [FRS Refer to ““on IFR$ measures” on page 157 for defimuions,

q

Asat Asat
31 December 31 December
2012 w0on

Segment assets
North Mara
Tulawaka
Bulyanhulu
Ruzwag:
Other®

772,819 727,552

58,060 131,193
1,130,728 1,128,992
931,607 830,790

435,509 475,935

Total segment assets

3,328,723 3,294,462

6 Inthe current yrar assets to the vilue of US$33 6 mifbon were acquired 1 the purchase of Avive Miung (Kenyu) Limited {"AMKXL"} Refer ta Note 22 for further detanls.
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

4 Revenue

For the Far the

year ended year ended

31 December 31 Decemnber

{in thousands of United States doflars) 2012 2011
Gold dové sales 709,321 699,843
Gold concentrate sales! 329,487 450,182
Copper concentrate sales!' 41,123 57,529
Silver sales 6,908 10,361
Total 1,087,339 1,217,915

1 Gold and copper concentrate sales includes provennnal pnce adjustinents to the accounts recewzhle hafance duc e changes in market pnces for gald and copper prior to final settlement as fnliows 17534 1 mllon

for the year ended 31 December 2012 {US35 5 m Ihon for the yeur ended 31 December 2u11)

For the For the
year ended 31 year ended
December 31 December
(in thousands of Uruted States dollars) 2012 2011
Revenue by location of customer®
Furope
Switzerland 568,061 702,563
Germany 114,471 88,054
Asia
China 162,140 290,469
Japan 98,871 136,829
India 143,796 -
Total revenue 1,087,339 1,217,915

2 Ruovenu by hacatum of custumer s dotermmed based on the coaniry W which the gold s dohivered

Included 1n revenues for the year ended 31 December 2012 are revenues of approximately US$927 multon (2011 US51,130 milhion) which arose
fram sates to four of the Group’s largest custamers No other customers individually account for more than 109 of the Group’s revenues

5 Coslof sales

bor the For the

year ended year ended

31 December 31 December

{in thousands of Unsted States dollars) 2012 2011
Direct mining costs 581,483 510,465
Third party smeltng foes 18,574 21,400
Deprectation and amorisation! 158,883 134,149
Royalty expense 43,769 38,100
Total? R(2,709 704,114

1 Depreciation amd araottissbun ncades the deprecation and amorwatian componcnt relatiag, lo the cost of Inventory sold

2 Costof sales less depreciation and amortisation equals cash operating costs
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L
6. Emploveebenefits 2
Far the Far the
year ended year ended i
31 Decentber 31 Deceraber 2
{n thausands of Cruted States doflars) 2012 2011
Wages and satanes® 142,100 134,624
Other employee benefits's 92,445 87,582
Stock-based compensation charge® 4,668 1,735
Total 239,213 223,941
1 Othet emnployee benefits include beryuses, leave pay penuons, medical expenacs, soverance costs and ather benefits.
2 Further detals of the Group s stock aptions and other stock based comg plans are provided 1n Note 24
3 The prior year wages and salines ind other employee benafits bas been restated due 1o a change in the other smployee benefils defimiuon —
For the Far the
year ended year ended
At erage number of employees 31December 33 Decernber g
{(1n thousands) 2012 2011 E
Operations 5,230 4,815 "
Exploration 80 64
Adminstration 358 303
Total average headcount 5,668 5,182

7 Exploration and evaluation costs
The following represents a summary of exploration and evaiuation expenditures incurred at each mine site and stgnificant exploration targets

. ————
{1f applicable) E’
For the For the 2
yedr ended year ended g
3t Deceminet A MNewmber g
{1 thousands of Urited States doltarsy 2012 201 2
Lxpensed dunng the year
North Mara 5,814 4,543
Buzwag 967 934
Tutawaka 2,208 531
Bulyanhulu 2,215 1,250
Other! 17,757 23,081
Total expensed 28,961 30,338 m
C apitahised during the year E
(Y
North Mara 5,259 14,329 B
Burwagm - 314 g
Tulawaka 2,883 2,880 E
Bulyanhulu 5,191 231 &
Nyanzaga 3,241 -
Total capitalised 16,574 17,754
Total 45,535 48,093
1 Included 1n "other” are the explaration activibies condusted through ABG Exploranon Alrics Limted All primary greenheld exploration and evaluzucn acknnes are conducted in thes Company —
|
=3
-9
=
B
g
|23
5
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Notes to the consohidated financial statements continued

8 Otherchaiges

For the For the
year ended year ended
31December 31 December
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2012 2611
Other expenses
Loas on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 179
Discounting of indirect tax recervables 4,185 -
Severance payments 4no 1,646
Forcign exchange losses {net} - 6,001
Non-hedge dertvative losses (net} 1,719 -
Construction and consumable inventory write-down 1,461 4,684
Bad debt expense 740 1,098
Disallowed indirect taxes 2,952 7,123
Legal costs for Iitigation 1,655 -
Asset wnite-downs 897 1,252
CNG related costst 6,676 -
Other 1,945 1,696
Totat 22,630 23,679
Other income
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (616) -
Foreign exchange gans (net) (4,343) -
Non-hedge derrvative gams (net) - (7,901)
Other - (129)
Totat (4,959) (8,040)
Total other charges 17,671 15,639

L 4 osincrted a2 dieeet rosult ot the Chind N atonud tald interest m ARG wire s udedd is uthur charges The s costs include advisary foes, travct and accommdation costs and retention suheme pruvisans

9 Auditors remuncration

During the year the Group (including its subwdianes) obtamned the fallowing services from the Company’s auditor(s)

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 Deceraber 31 December
(m thousands of Unated States doltars) 2012 2011
Audif fees
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and 1its associates for the audut of the parent company and consolidated
financial statements 396 464
Tees payable to the Company’s audttor and its associates for ather services
Audnt of the Company’s subsiaries 489 514
Audit related assurance services 360 309
Other assurance services 100 87
Tax comphance services 214 157
Other services 12 4
Total 1,571 1,539
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10 Finance income and finance expense
2)  Frnance ncome

For the Far the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
(1n thousands of United States dollars) 2012 2011
Interest on time deposits 1,231 1,030
Other 87t 454
Total 2,102 1,484
b)  Financeoxpense
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 DNewember
(in thousands of Umted $1ates dollars) 2012 2011
Unwinding of discount! 4,021 3,344
Interest on bank overdraft 12 199
Revolving credut facility charges? 3,014 4,570
Interest on finance leases 841 210
Bank charges® 1,216 1,357
Other 1,201 402
Total* 10,305 10,082
1 The unwinding uf diswwnnt is calculeted on the enmaronmental rehebilitativn provision presented in Note 26
2 Incuded in credsc facility charges are the amornsatian of the fres related 1o the revolving credit faciliry as well as the monthly interest apd (agkty fees, refer to Note 28
3 Bunk charges previoudy included in corporile adminstration expenses huve been reclagnfied to finance experse
4 For cush flow purposes unwinding of discount 1s excluded from the finance expense movement.
1t Tax expense
Faor the For the

year ended year ended
31 December 31 Decemiber

(in theusands of Umted States dollars) 2012 2011
Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year - 10,162
Adjustments in respect of pror years' 120 28,663
Tolal current tax 120 38,825
Deferred tax

Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 70,943 79,099
Total deferred tax 70,943 79,099
Income tax expense 71,063 117,924

1 Dunng 2031 4 binding Mcmorandum of Scitkement {*MO3 ) wnth the Tanzarun Revenue Authonty ("TRA™) was executed to address the treatment of certam outstanding indsrect tax refunds i respect ot tuel
Tencs and value added laxation ["VAT™) The krms ol the MO atlow the Grcap to oftact i me ax payshk gginst ootaamdicg cotunds for VAT 20 fadlloves Ax 2 rasult of those changes, PAEL, wiich 1s the
wopaying entity holdeng Tubowaka ind Buzwag, bas agreed to teul both muanes a5 separats tax enbtes Thers was no otisel of indsrect taE recrvables m 2012 due to assessed Josses carned forward and taxable
Judk s incusred at Talawals.
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Nates to the consolidated financial statements continued

11 Tax expens continued

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the thearetrcal amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to

the profits of the consohdated enlities s follows

For the Far the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2012 2011
Profit before taxation 119,247 402,701
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective countries 36,849 114,199
Tax effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes/{non-taxable mecome) 5,483 {1,219}
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recogmsed 23,660 7,302
Prior year adjustments 8,258 (2.391)
Effect of tax rates 1n foreign junsdictions {3,187) 33
Tax charge 71,063 117,924

The tax rate 1n Tanzana 1s 30% and m South Africa 28% for both years presented.

lax periods remain open Lo review by the TRA 1n respect of income taxes for five years (ollowing the date of the filing of the corporate tax
return, duning which trme the authorities have the right 1o raise addibonal tax assessments mcluding penalties and wnterest Under certam
circumstances the reviews may cover longer periods Because a number of tax periods remain open to review by tax authorities, there 1s a risk
that transactions that have not been chaltenged in the past by the authonties may be challenged by them 1 the future, and this may result in

the raany of additional tax assessments plus ponalies and nterest

12 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) 1s calculated by dividing the net profit for the period atinibutable Lo owners of the Company by the weighted

average number of Ordinary Shares 1n issue during the period

Diluted earnings per share 1s calculated by adpusting the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutve potential Ordinary Shares The Company has didutive potential Ordinary Shares t the form of stock vptions  ['he weighted average

number of shares 1s adjusted for the number of shares granted assuming the exercise of stock options

At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, carnings per share have been calcutated as follows

Far the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
(1n thousands of United States dollars) 2012 2011
Earnings
Net profit from continuing operations attributable to owners of the parent 59,471 274,895
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in 1ssue 410,085,499 410,085,499
Adjusted for ditutive effect of
- Stock uptions - 10,606
Waghted avirage number of Ordinary Shares fur diduted earnings per share 410,085,499 410,096,105
Earnings per share
Basic carmings per share from continwing operations (cents) 145 670
Dduted edrnings per share from continuing operations (cents) 145 67 0

13 Didend

The final dividend declared in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 of US$53 7 milhon (USI3 1 cents per share) and the 2012 intermm
dividend of US$16 4 rmlhion (US4 0 cents per share) were pard during 2012 and recognised in the financial statements Refer to Note 34 for

detads of the final dividend declared subsequent 1o year-end
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14 Cash flow - other wems
a)  Operaung cash flows ~ gther tlems

Adyustments for working capital stems
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 Urcemnber 31 December

{1 thritand« of United States dollars) 2012 2011
Trade and other receivables (14,368) 29,355
Inventones! (59,081) (97,873)
Other current assets? {21,259) (7,238)
Other labihities? 1,157 {3,924)
Trade and other payables* 8,257 41,833
Other working capital items® 4,958 {5,034)
Total {80,336) (12,880)

1 The waventory adjustmrent includes the movement in current as well as the nan current portian of wiventery

2 In Seplember 2011, & MOS was agreed with the Tanzanian government regarding the tecovery of indirect wx recewvable The sect ement agreement allaws for the offset of income Wixes payuble from the indirect
taxes recervable During 2012 the Tanzen.an government abolished the VAT relief practice resulting in an screase in VAT recenables from the government of US$17 6 mellion

-

The ather Inbiliies adjustment includes the movement in hoth ather current and ather non current Lahitiies bt excludes finance lease instalments.

.

The rade and other payables adjustment exciudes statutory hiabihues tn the form of income tax payable

”

Other warlang camtal wems ynclude exchange losses exsnciated with warkag eapitat

Otirer non-cash rems

For the Forr the
year ended yedr ended
31 NDecernher 31 Decemrber
(i thousands of Urated States dollars) 2012 2011
Adjustments far non-cash income statement items
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (net) (4,958) 5,034
Dhscountuing of indirect tax recervables 4,185 -
Provision added 6 -
Loss/(gain) on non-hedge dervatves {net) 1,719 {7,901)
Stock option expense 1,461 1,401
Other non-cash items 60 (205)
Exchange loss on revaluation of cash balances 615 967
Total 3,088 (704)
b) Investng cash flows - other stems
For the Fot the
year ended year ended
31 Decemnber 1 December
{1n thousands of Unzted States dollars) 2012 2011
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 4,607 1,602
Other long-term receivables 746 2,103
Village housing recervable 70 145
Rehabilitation expenditure (297) -
Settiement of Jong-term hamhties {6,594) (3,530)
Total (1,468) 320
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Notes to the conschidated financial statements continued

15 Inventornes

Asat Ag at
31 Decemtber 31 December
{in thousands of Uruted States dollars) 2012 2011
Raw matenals
Or m stockpiles 21,202 56,052
Mine operating supplies 258,214 215,733
Work wn process 31,307 30,397
Fiushed products
Gold doré/bullion 19,592 9,912
Gold, copper and silver concentrate 5,182 4,853
Total current portion of inventory* 335,497 316,947
Non-current ore in stuckpiles? 118,554 78,022
Total 454,051 394,969

1 Bunng the yrar a write down of inventory to net reahsable valuz was recognised 2t Tatiwaka (1552 7 mllion)
2 Dunng 2012 USS118 swmlhon (201} 178578 0 mlhon) of ore at Buzwag and Morth Mara was clusiafied as long term following management & assessmend that these stockmies will be pracessed afier 2013

The cost of inventories recogmsed as an expense and included in the cost of sales amounted to US$198 5 mulhon (2011 US$152 7 millon)

16 Trade and other cureent assels

Asat Asat
3t December 31 December
{in thousands of Umted States dollars) 2012 011
Trade and other recervables
Amounts due from dore and concentrate sales 33,103 21,053
Other recervables! 12,079 9,157
Due from related parties (Note 32) 3y3 354
Less Provision for doubtful debt on other receivables (1,348) (706)
Total 44,227 29,858

1 Other accovabkos lates o supphbcr backcharny related and employes sooavahles

Trade receivables other than concentrate recervables ave non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 90 day terms Concentrate recervables are
generally on 60-120 day terms depending on the terms per contract Trade receivables are amounts due from customers in the ordinary course
of business If collection 1s expected 1n one year or less, they are classified as current assets If not, they are presented as non-current assets The
carrying value of trade receivables recorded in the financial statements represents the maximum exposure to credit nsk. The Group does not
hold any collateral as securnity

Agat Asat
31 Decemmber 31 December
{in thousands of Unated States dollars) 2012 2011
Other current assets
Current portion of indirect tax recetvables? 26,023 22,370
Other debtors and advance payments® 18,291 10,593
Insurance receivable - 308
Total 44,314 33,271

z The wieh ndieut G revavable s US98 7 mullivn of whuch U572 7 mullion 15 inchuded i nun current assews Thas recersable: s due teom the TRA and 1t anucpated W be uffsel sganst (ulure sorpuralion Lx
mayments Toreflect the ime valur of maney the king term parten of this recevable has heen discounted at a rate of 5% {2011 5%)

3 Other debtors and advance payments relate 1o prepaymerts for insurance imcome kxees offset against owtstanding refunds tor VAT and [ae] Jevies and current ameunts recervable from the N SsF of US36 4 mullion
(2011 nd)
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17 Cash and cash equivalents

Asal Asat
31 December 31 December
{1nn thousands of United Stutes dollars) 2012 2011
Cash at bank and on hand 186,530 252,988
Money markel funds 214,818 331,166
Total 401,348 584,154
18 Property, plant and cquipment
Mineral
properics
For the year ended 31 December 2012 Plant and drv:{:::l\::::!;i Atsets under
(n thousands of United States dollars) equpment sl consiructon’ Totd
Al 1 January 2012, net of accumulated depreciation 894,869 765,51y 162,859 1,823,247
Additons - - 340,295 340,295
Disposals (1,028) - - (1,028)
Impairments? (16,714) (14,0186} - {30,730)
Depreciation (99,359) (65,501) - {164,860)
Transfers between categeries 170,350 121,945 (292,295) -
Al 31 December 2012 945,118 807,947 210,859 1,963,924
At 1 January 2012
Cost 1,316,602 1,117,311 162,859 2,566,772
Accumulated depreciation (421,733)  (351,792) - (773,525)
Net carrying amount 894,869 765,519 162,859 1,823,247
At 31 Becember 2012
Cost 1,475,374 1,239,256 210,859 2,925,489
Accumulated depreciation and impairment {530,256) (431,309) - (961,565)
Net carrying amount 945,118 807,947 210,859 1,963,924
Muneral
properties
For the yedr ended 31 December 2011 Plant and drv:;::s:l:nct Assets under
(it thousands of Umted States dollars) exrupoont comls constructn Tutal
At ] January 2011, net of accumulated depreciation 756,999 693,834 124,285 1,615,118
Additions - - 345,235 345,235
Disposals {1,423) - - (1,423)
Depreciation (95,336) (40,347) - {135,683)
Transfers between categories 194,629 112,032 (306,661) -
A1 31 December 2011 R94,869 765,519 162,859 1,823,247
At 1 January 2011
Cost 1,125,072 1,005,279 124,285 2,254,636
Accumulated depreciation (328,073) (311,445) - {639,518}
Net carying amount 796,999 693,834 124,285 1,615,118
At 31 December 2011
Cost 1,316,602 1,117,311 162,859 2,596,772
Accumulated depreciation (121,733) {351,792) - (773,525)
Net ¢arrying amount 894,869 765,519 162,859 1,823,247
1 Assets under construction ey (a) & capital expenditures incurred condvucting tangble fixed acsets related ta cperatang runes and advance deponts made tovwards the purchase af tnghle fixed

assets and (b) cxpansiomary expenditure allocated io 3 project on a buk.ness combination or asscl acqLisinon. and Lic subsequent costs iocurred (o develop the mine Once these assets are ready for ther witend-d

use the halance 1z tranclerred 1o plant and equipment, and/or mineral properiesand mine develnpment costs

1 The tmpaitment relates ta non current assets at Tulawaka Refer to Note 19 For further detals
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements confinued

18 Property, plant and equipment contmued

Leases

Property, plant and equipment includes assets relating to the design and construction costs of power transmission lines and related
infrastructure At completion ownership was transferred to TANFSCO in exchange for amortised repayment n the form of reduced electrieity
supply charges No future lease payment obligations are payable under these finance leases

Property, plant and equipment also includes emergency back-up generators leased at Buzwag: mune under a three-year lease agreement, with an
option to purchase the equipment at the end of the lease term. The lease has been classified as a finance lease

Property, plant and equipment firther includes spinning puwer generators leased at Buzwagl mine under a one-year lease agreement, with an
optien to cxtend the lease for 36 months and an option to purchase the equipment at the erd of the lease term The lease has been classified as
a financc leasc

Propcrty, plant and equipment includes two dnll nigs purchased under & shor(-term finance lease The dnll rigs have been paid in {ull

The following amounts were included 1n property, plant and equipment wherc the Group 1s a lessee under a finance lease

Asat Asdt
31 December 31 Deternber
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2012 2011
Cost - capatalised finance leases 68,846 67,223
Accumulated depreciation {14,603) (7.582)
Net carrying amount 54,243 59,641
19 Guoodwill and imlangble asscts
Acquired
For the year ended 31 December 2012 “pM::;:_]‘:"ni
{rn thousanads of United States dodlars) Goodwnll properues Total
At | January, net of accumuldated imparrment! 178,420 80,093 258,513
Additions? 6,216 27,297 33,513
Impaurment® (13,805) - (13,803)
At 31 December 2012 170,831 107,390 278,221
At 31 December 2012
Cost 401,114 107,390 508,504
Accumulated impairment (230,283) - (230,283)
Net carrying amount 170,831 107,390 278,221
Acquired
For the year ended 31 December 2011 “pim:;‘;::““i
{in thousands of United States dallars) Goodwnlt properties Total
At I January, net of accumulated impairment 178,420 80,093 258,513
Additions - - -
AL 31 December 2011 178,420 80,093 258,513
AL 31 December 2011
Cost 394,893 80,093 474,991
Accumnulated mmparment (216,478) - {216,478)
Net carrying amount 178,420 80,093 258,513

E The Group s operang goodwill arose from Pre PO acquininons by Barnck Gold Corporahon and 4fnican Barrick Gold s aequahon of Tusker Gold L1d on 27 Apn] 2010 The goodwall allocated (o the Group kas
been presen.ed asif the Group acquired thns busness 25 of the acquinuon date

2 Add ta acqumred exph and evalurtion properties and goodwall relaie to the acquuaton of AMKL and are provisional pending receipt of the final valuaucn Refer to Note 22 for further detals
3 The annual impairment review resulted 1n an imparrment of U$$13.8 milion t goodwill i ‘Tulawaks (2011 ne irmpairment charge)
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Guodwill and accumulated npairment kesses by operating segments

{10 thousands of United States dollars) North Mara Bulyanhuly Lulawaka Other Tutal
A1l Janudry 2011 21,046 121,546 13,805 22,023 178,420
Al January 2012 21,046 121,546 13,805 22,023 178,420
Additions - - - 6,216 6,216
Impairments - - (13,805) - (13,805)
At 31 December 2012 21,046 121,546 - 28,239 170,831
Cost 237,524 121,546 13,805 28,23y 401,114
Accumulated impatrments (216,478) - (13,805) - (230,283)

Annual impairment review
In accordance with TAS 38 “Intangtble Assets” a review for impairment of goodwill was undertaken The review compared the recoverable

amount of goodwall for cach cash generating umt (*CGU") 1o the carrymg valuc of the CGU including goodwill The key cconemic assumptions
used in this review were

Asat Asal

31 December 31 Decomber

2012 2011

Gold pnice per ounce US$1,700 US$1,600
South Afrnican Rand (US$ ZAR) 800 700
Tanzaman Shilling (US$ TZS) 1,600 1,600
1ong-term o1l price per barrel Uss90 Usseo
Discount rates 4 16%-566%  502%596%
NPV multiples 0 90-130 100-140

The annual goodwill impairment review resulted in an impairrment of US$13 8 million to the goodwill of Tulawaka using the methodology and
assumptions descrnibed above due to a review of Tutawaka'’s mine plan, which resulted 1n the downward revision of reserves Non-current assets
are tested for impairment when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may not be recoverable Tor the year
ended 31 December 2012, tmpairment charges of USS$30 7 million were recorded for non-current assets at Tulawaka as a result of the short
remawmng hfe of the mine, resulting in a total impairment charge of US344 5 million Refer 1o Note 18 for {urther details

For purposes of testing for impairment of non-current assets of the Group’s operating mines, a reasonably pessible change i the key
assumptions used to estimate the recoverable amount could result 1n an imparrment charge The carrying valie of the net assets of Buzwag: are
maost sensitive to changes i key assumptions in respect of gold price, cash costs and discount rate Based on the assessment of farr value less
costs to sell, the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying value by approximately US$165 million (23%) The caleulation 1s highly sensitive to
changes 1n the key assumptions, and a 5% decrease 1n the long term gold price or a 9% wncrease tn cash costs or a 3% increase n discourit rate,
n 1solation, would lead to the recoverable amount of Buzwagi being equal to its carrying amount
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

20 Deferred tax assets and habilities
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items

Asul Asal

31 December 31 December

{in thousands of Uiiled States doltars) 2012 21
Tax losses 304,324 218,455
{otal 304,324 218,455

The above tax losses which translate into deferred tax assets of approxmmately US$89 mullion (2011 US865 million) have not been recognised
respect of these stems due to uncertamties regarding availabihity of tax losses, or there being uncertainty regarding future taxable income agamst
which these assefs can be utihsed.

Recognised deferred tax assets and abilities
Deferred tax assets and liabihities are attributable to the following

Balance sheel classifications Assets Libdlitics et

{in Lthousands of Umted States dotlars) 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Property, plant and equipment - - 498,790 475,834 498,790 475,834

Provisions (11,244) (6,342) - - (11,244} (6,342)
Interest deferrals (19,454) {12,999} 562 - (18,932) (12,999)
Tusker acquisition - - 17,313 22,023 17,313 22,023

Aviva acquisition - - 6,216 - 6,216 -

Tax loss carry-forwards (320,968) (384,501} - - {320,968) {384,501}
Net Jdeferred tax (assets}luabilities {351,706) (403,842) 522,881 447,857 171,175 94,015

Legal entities Asiels Liabilities Nt

(i1 thousands of United States dollars) 2012 2011 2012 2011 012 2011
North Mara Gold Mine Lid - - 53,958 36,404 53,958 35,404

Bulyanhulu Gold Mine Lid (383) (54.974) - - (383) {54,974)
Pangea Minerals Ltd - ~ 97,807 95,828 97,807 95,828

Other {2,016) {555) 21,809 17,312 19,793 16,757

Net deferred tax (asscts)/habalties {2,399) {55,529) 173,574 149,514 171,175 94,015

Uncertainties regarding availablity of tax losses, in respect of enquuiries raised and additienal tax assessments 1ssued by the TRA, have been
measured using the single best esumale of likely outcome approach resulting in the recogmition of substantially all the related deferred tax assets
and habilities Alternative acceptable measurement policies (e g on a weighted average expected outcome basis) could result 1n 4 change to
deferred tax assets and habilities bemng recognised, and the deferred tax charge in the meome statement

No deferred tax has been recogmised 1n respect of temporary differences associated with investments in substdiaries, where the Group 1s1n a
position to controf the tuming of the reversal of the temporary differences and 1t 1s probable that such differences will not reverse 1 the foreseeable
future The aggregale amount of temporary differences associated with such imvestments i subsidianes 1s represented by the contnibution of
thase investments to the Group's retained carnings and amounted to US$134 mithon (2011 US$141 million)
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21 Other assets

Asat Asat

31 December 31 December

{in thousdnds of Unated States dollars) 2012 2011
Amounts due from government! 23,426 28,211
Operdung lease prepayments = TANESCO powerlines 2,512 2,643
Prepayments - Acqusition of nghts over leasehold land? 37,248 14,289
Non-current portion of indirect tax receivable? 72,655 62,976
Villege housing 250 32
Deferred finance charges 1,474 2,218
Total 137,565 110,658

1 acluded 1n this armoutst sre amounts recervable from the NSSF of US$7 3 milhon (2611 US$12 0 ullion) as well a5 amounts dve from TANESCO of US$10 6 oullion (2011 US$12 3 muthaon)
T Propayment made Lot landownaron ropeet of sequisition of the nphis ower the wse of leaschobd ind

3 The non current partion of the indirect tax recetvables has bren ducounted o 1ts current vilue using an cifective interestrate af 5% (201! 5%) This resultedina discounting charge of USS4 2 mlhon (2013
T.5%m1i) to the income statement, refer 10 Note d

22 Business combination

On 26 October 2012, the Company, through BUK Holdco Lid and BUK Fast Africa Lid, immediate subsidianes, purchased 100% of the 1ssued
share capital of Aviva Minuing (Kenya) Lid { AMKL”) by way of 4 takeover offer for an imtial consideration of US$22 milien AMKL1sa
Kenyan based exploratton company with a focus on gold All of AMKI s assets are located in Kenya and consist of exploration ground and
1nlerests 1n (wo joint ventureg agreements

Detads of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows

{in thousands of Unyled States dollars) 2012
Contractual purchase price 20,700
Exploration funding advanced prior W acqtusttion date 1,340
Contingent consideration 5312
Total purchase consideration 27,352
The assets and habiluies as of 26 October 2012 recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows '
{(1n thousands of United States dallars) Fair value mrm:i\;;{;:ro:;:
Cash and cash equivalents I 1
Current assets 36 36
Property, plant and equipment 32 32
Exploration intangible asset 27,297 6,576
Liabtlitics (11) (11)
Deferred 1ax (6,216) -
Fair value of net assets 21,136 6,631
Goodwll 6,216

Total purchase consideration 27,352

Tatal purchase consideration 27,352
Centingent consideration not yet payable {5.312)
Cash and cash equivatent in subsidiary acquired (1)
Net cash outllow on acquisition 22,039

Lhe goodwill aruse after the application of TAb 12 “Income taxes™ and 1s atinbutable principally lo expanding growth opportunities in Africa
None of the goodwill 1s expected to be deductible for tax purposes The fair value of the acquired 1dentifiable intengible 2ssets, goodwill and
deferred tax habilhiry 1s provisional pending receipt of the final valuations for thosc assets

Included 1n total purchase consideration 1s the fair value of a contingent consideration payable of 1UJ$$5 3 mithon This refates to a USS10 4 nullon
payment required to he made to Aviva Corporation upon declaration of a N143-101 compliant indicated resource of at least three milhon ounces
of gold from the muning areas
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

22 Business combmation continued
Included 1n exploration and evaluation costs in the consohdated income statement 1s acquisitron costs incurred relating to the Aviva acquisition
amounung to Us$0 5 milhion

Txpenses

The acquired business contnbuted expenses of US$1 1 milhon to the Group for the penod trom 27 October 2012 to 31 December 2012 Tithe
acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2012, pro-forma conselidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 would have been US$47 7 million
These amounts have been caleulated using the Group's accounting policies

23 Share capital and share premium
Shar¢ capital  Share preminm

Number £000 USs$ 0600 U'Ss 000
ALl January 2011 410,085,499 41,009 62,087 867,102
At 31 December 2011 410,085,499 41,009 62,097 867,102
At 31 December 2012 410,085,499 41,009 62,097 867,102

The nomuinal value of each Ordinary Share 1s 10 pence No share movements have taken place in the current year

24 Stock-based compensation

a)  Stock opuions

Stock options are granted to Executive Directors and o selected employees The exercise price of the granted options is determined by the
Compensation commuttee before the grant of an option provided that this price cannot be less than the average of the middle-market quotation
of such shares (as dertved from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List) for the three deahng days immediately preceding the date of
grant All uptions outstanding at the end ol the yedr expire 1n 2017 and 2018 723,674 of the opions granted were exercisable at 31 December
2012 at an average exercise price of 529 pence per share The vesting period of the oplions is four years, with an exercise peniod of seven years
from the date of grant

Movements tn the number of optinns outstanding and their refated weighted average exeraise prices are reflected 1n pence as follows

012 2011
Average exercise Average exercise
Price 10 pence PrILe 171 pence
Fowr the year ended 31 December prer share Optons per share Opuoms
All January 524 1,710,628 536 1,221,459
Granted - - 497 511,669
Forfeited - - 568 (22,500)
Expired 568 (7.,500) - -
At 31 December 524 1,703,128 524 1,710,628

A summary of the awards of the Group's equuty-settled stock options at 31 December 2012 15 presented below

Weighted Weighted ‘Wieighted
dverage exercise average averige fair
price mn pence remamng  value in pence
Number per shure  contractual bfe per share
Awards made 1n 2011
29 November 511,669 497 69 166
Awards made in 2012
None - - - -

The fair value of each award on the day of grant was estimated using a Lattice valuation approach The expected future volathity has been
determined by reference to the histonical volathity
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b) LTIP- Restricted Share Unuts
Included 1n other non-current hiabtlities 1s RSUs with a fair value of 1JS82 2 mullion as at 31 December 2012 (2011 US$3 5 mullion)

Number of Faur value
RSUs LSS 000
At 1 January 2011 569,037 7,694
Settled for cash (93,223) {4,259)
Porfeited {1,121) (5)
Granted 410,415 109
Credits for dividends 2,894 54
Change mvalye | - {116)
At 31 December 2011 £E8,002 3,477
Settled for cash {49,479) (2,050)
Forferted (324,768) {236)
Granted 65,857 55
Credits (or dividends 21,803 54
Change in value - 929
At 31 December 2012 601,417 2,229

Thus table shows both the Legacy RSU and RSU plans The units granted during the year were solely as part of the RSU plan based on ABG shares

¢} LTIP - Performance Restricted Share Units
Included 1n other non-current hiabihties are PRSUs with a fanr value of US$2 5 milhion as at 31 December 2012 (2011 US$0 1 million)

Wumber of Fur value

PRSUs 'S8 000

At January 2011 144,612 L]
Granted 389,366 112
Credits for dinidends 929 2
Change 1n value - 179
At 3] December 2011 534,907 402
Crodits for dividends 15,217 3y
Change in value - 2,105
Al 31 December 2012 550,124 2,546

d) LTIP - Deferred Share Units
Included 1n other non-current habihttes are DSUs wath 4 fair value of US$0 3 mullion as at 31 December 2012 (2011 USSml)

Nurnber of Fasr value

DsUs L3000

At 31 December 2011 - -
Granted 48,283 260
Creduts for dividends 272 1
At 31 December 2012 48,555 261
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

25 Trade and other payables

Asat Aszat

31 December 31 December

{in thousands of Umted States dollars) 2012 011
Trade payables 83,038 55,790
Accrucd expenses 43,377 71,357
Payroll-related payables 26,539 19,854
Contract retentions 414 1,056
Royaelty payable 3,771 9,438
Income tax payzble - 431
Trade payables to related parties (Note 32) 12,765 3,990
Total 169,904 161,916

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers Trade
payables are classified as current habihities if payment 15 due within one year or less If not, they are presented as non-current habihities

Terms and conditions of the above payables liabihues

= Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day of statement terms

» Accruals and other payables are non-mnterest bearing and have an average term of 30-60 days

26 Prowisions

Rebabiblaton® Other® Futal

{in thousands of Uniled States dollars) m32 2011 2 2mi 012 201
At January 157,582 101,477 1,034 11,167 158,616 112,941
Change tn estimate 19,242 52,761 6 (2,904) 19,248 49,857
Utilised during the year (297) - - {7,529) {287) {7,529)
Unwinding of discount 4,021 3,344 - - 4,021 3,314
AL 31 December 180,548 157,582 1,040 1,034 181,588 158,616
Lurrent porion - - (1,040} (1,034) {1,040) (1.034)
Non-current puriion 180,548 157,582 - - 180,548 157,582
1 Rehabibtabon p s relate to the dec g costs expected o be incurred for the operaung mines. This expendiiure anses at different umes over thr bfe of mine tor the differeni mme nies and is

expected to be sulised i terms af cash outitows berween vears 2014 and 2050 &nd beyond varymg from nine 4t to mine ate

2 {Jther provisiuns relake o pruvisons for legal and Lx 1eldied habibues whery (he vuleeme 1s cot et cevtan bii 1 s expesied that it will lvad e o probable vuidlow of econumic benefis in futore

Rehabililation ubligatiuns anse [rom the dcguusition, development, construction and normadl operation of mimny property, plant and equipment,
due to government controls and regulations that protect the environment on the closure and reclamation of mining properties The major parts of
the carrymg amount of the obhigation relate to taihings and heap leach pad closure/rehabilitation, demohtion of butlldings/mune faciltties, ongoing
water treatment, and ongoing care and maintenance of closed mmes The fair values of rehabilitation provisions are measured by discounting the
expecied cash flows using a discount factor that reflects the credit-adjusted risk-free rate of nterest We prepare estimates of the iming and amount
of expecled cash flows when an obligation 15 incurred 'We update expected cash flows to reflect changes in facts and arcumstances The principal
faclors that can cause cxpected cash flows to change are the construction of new processimg facihties, changes m the quantiics of matenaln
reserves and a corresponding change in the life of mine plan, changing ore charactenstics that impact required environmental protection measures
and related costs, changes in water quality that impact the extent of water treatment required, and changes n laws and regulations governing the
protection of the environment

Each period we assess cost esumates and other assumptions used 1n the valuation of the rehabilitation provision at each of our mineral
pruperties to reflect events, changes in arcumstances and new mfonmation available Changes in these cost esumates and assumplions dre
recorded as an adjusiment to the carrying amount of the corresponding asset Rchabihtation provisions are adjusted to reflect the passage of
tme (accretion) calculated by applying the discount factor imphcit in the imuial fair value measurement Lo the beginning-of-period carrying
amount of the provision Settlement gains/losses will be recorded in ather (ncome)/expense

Other environmentat remediation costs that are not rehablitation provisions are expensed as incurred
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27 Other habihties

Asat Asat

31 December 31 December

{in thousands of Lruted States dollars) 2012 2011
Finance lease habilities 14,133 18,217
Employee benefit RSU Tiability 5,036 3,87y
Other! 8,784 3.472
Total 27,953 25,568
Current portion 6,889 6,580
Non-current portion 21,064 18,988

1 lecluded uy yther abibiies 15 the contingent comsideration b abitibies recugaised i the capreat e on the awguisition uf Aviva Miing (Keays) Lamsted (U535 3 anlhon) and the 2010 acquisnbivn of 1 asker Gold
Ttd (15§73 5 rmulhion)

T'inance lease habilitics arc capitahised at an cffective interest rate of 5% per annum The lease terms dre three and four yedrs, with purchase

options at the end of the term [nstalments are payable weekly Lease habilities are effectively secured as the nghts to the leased asset revert to

the lessorin the event of default

Asat Asat
31 Pecember 31 December
{tn thousands of Umied States dollars) 2012 2011
Graoss finance lease habuities — minimum lease payments
- Nolater than t year 4,645 4711
~ Between | and 3 years 10,487 13,113
- Between 3 and 5 years - 2,380
15,132 20,204
Future finance charges on finance leases (999) {1,987)
Present value of finance lease liabilities 14,133 18,217
Asat Asat
31 Mecember 31 Necember
{1n thousands of Lmted States dollars} 2012 2011
Present value of finance lease habilities
— Nolater than } year 4,030 3,862
- Between 1 and 3 years 10,103 12,028
- Belween 3 and 5 years - 2,327
Present value of findnce lease habilities 14,133 18,217
28 Financal assets and Labilities
a}  Financial assets
Carrying value Fair value
(in thousands of Unated States dollars) 012 2011 2012 2011
Cash and cash equivalents 401,348 584,154 401,348 584,154
Trade and other recervables 44227 29,858 44227 29,858
Denivative financial instruments 2,674 4,263 2,674 4,263
Total other assets 181,879 143,929 181,879 143,929
fotal financial assets 530,128 762,204 630,128 762,204
Less Current financial dssets
Cash and cash equrvalents (401,348) (584,154) (401,348) (584,154)
Trade and other recervables (44,227} (29,858) (44,227) {29,838)
Denvative findancidl instruments (2,207} (4,050) (2,207) {4,05()
Other current assets (44,314) (33,271) (44,314) (33,271)
Total other non-current financial assets 138,032 110,871 138,032 110,871

The fair value of financial assets, excluding other assets, equal thewr carrying amount as the impact of discouniing 1s not significant Included in
other assets are indirect 1ax receavables from the 'l anzanian Revenue Authonty, which have been discounted (o their present value, refer Lo Nole
16 and Note 21
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contrnued

28 Fimancial assets and liabalities contimued
b) Financial habilities

Carrying, value Fawr value

{in thousands of Urutes States dollars) 2012 2011 2012 201
Dernvative financial instruments 723 114 723 114
Trade and other payables 169,904 161,916 169,904 161,916
Other liabtlities 27,953 25,568 27,953 25,568
Total 198,580 187,598 198,580 187,598
Less Current financial habilities

Denvatve financial nstruments (429) {58) (429) (58)

Trade and other payables {169,904) (161,918) (169,904) (161,916)

Other current habilities (6,889) (6,580) (6,889) (6,580)
Total non-current portion of financial habilities 21,358 19,044 21,358 19,044

Other habihities relate to cash-settled share-based plans and their valuation 1s based on unadjusted quoted prices 1n active markets for identical
financial mstruments Also included m other liabilines are the finance lease liabilities and their valuation 1s based on observable market data
Denvative financial instruments are valued based upon inputs that are observable for the financial instruments which includes quoted prices for
stmiar instruments or identical instruments in markets which are not considered to be active or either directly or indirectly based on ohservable

markets data

Revolving credit faciity

On 24 November 2014, the Group concluded negotiations with a syndicate of commercial banks, led by Catibank, for the provision of a
revolving credit factlity n a maxrmum aggregate amount of US$150 milion The facility has been provided to service the general corporate
needs of the Group and to fund potential acquisiions  All provisions contained n the credit facility documentstion have been negotiated on
normal commercial and customary terms for such finance arrangemenis The term of the facility was extended to 2014 and when drawn the
spread over LIBOR wall be 350 basis ponts At 31 December 2012, none of the funds were drawn under the facthty The shares of all significant
subsidiaries have been pledged as secunty for the loan Costs associated with the revolving credit facihty have been included 1n finance expenses

Refer 1o Note 10

29 Financial nsk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks through its commercial and financial operations

a) market risk, including commodily price, foreign currency and interest rate nsks,

b) credit risk, and
¢} hquudsty nisk

Thus note presents imformation sbout the Group’s cxposure to cach of the above risks and the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for
assessing and managing risk Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout the financial statements

The Board of Directors has overall responsility for the estabhshment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework.

The Group’s risk management policies are estabhished to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to sel appropnate nsk lumts and

controls, and to montor nsks and adherence to hmits Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
canditions and the Group’s actvities The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to mantain a disciphined
and construcuive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations

The Board of Directors has responsibility for overseeing how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk management pohicies and
procedures and reviews the adequacy of the nsk management framework 1n relation to the risks faced by the Group The Audit commttee is
assisted n 1ts oversight role by Internal Audit which undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures,

the results of which are reported to the Aedit commuttee
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4 Market sk nduding commodity price foreign currency and mterest rate risks
Market nsk 1s the nsk that changes 1n market factors, such as commodity prices, foreign exchange rates or interest rates will affect the Group's
income or the value of its financial instruments

Gold price

The market price of gold 1s one of the most significant factors 1n determining the profitability of the Group's operations The price of gold 1s
subject te volatile price movements over short periods of time, especially in the carrent markel environment, and 15 affected by numerous
industry and macro-economuc factors that are beyond the Group’s control Tn 2012 the price ranged from US§$1,540 to US$1,790 per cunce,
with an average market price of US$1,669 per ounce (2011 US$1,572 per ounce) The Graup’s policy 15 to sell gold at prevailing market prices

The table below summanses the impact of changes in the market price on gold The impact is expressed m terms of the resultng change 1n the
Group’s profit after tax for the year or, where apphicable, the change in cquity The sensitivities are based on the assumption that the market
price changes by 10% with all other vanables held constant The impact of a similar change in copper and silver 1s not material to the Group’s
profit after tax

Effect on profit after wax
For the year For the year
nded ended
Gamn/loss assuciated with 10% increase/decredse from year-end price 3 Dec:mb:r 11 Decemnber
(in thousands of Unted States dollars) 2012 2011
Gold 69,841 78,087

Copper price
The market price of copper impacts on co product revenuc included 1n total revenuc and cash costs In 2012 the price ranged from USS3 29
to U533 93 per pound, with an average market price of US$3 61 per pound (2011 US$4 00 per pound) and closing at US$3 59 per pound.

Silver prece
The market price af sitver smpacts on co-product revenue included 1n total revenue and cash costs In 2012 the silver price ranged from
US$26 38 to USS36 91 per ounce, with an average market price of US53! 17 per pound.

In 2011, the Group entered into zero cost collars to manage the impact of copper and silver pnce fluctuations The Group does not use such
dervative instruments for speculative trading purposes These contracts had matunty dates 1in 2011, 2012 and 2013 These transactions are
economic hedges and do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment Changes 1n the fair value of these options are recorded as a component
af other Income/expense In the income statement

AL 31 December 2012, the Group had no copper collar contracts vutstanding (2011 10,582 thousand pounds of collar contracts vutstanding
containing purchased put and call options with an average strike price of US$3 34 per pound and US54 84 per pound respectively)

Al 31 December 2012, the Group had 24 thousand cunces of silver collar contracts outstanding contaming purchased put and sold call options
with strike prices of US$31 per ounce and US$55 per ounce respectively {2011 216 thousand ounces of purchased put and sold call options with
average strike prices of USS28 per ounce and US$49 per ounce respectively) These contracts mature in 2013

Odd price

Diesel fuel 1s refined from crude oil and 15 therefore subject to the same price volatility affecting crude o1l pnices Duning 2011 and 2012 the
Group entered into Brent o1l optton contracts to manage the impact of o1l price fluctuations It 2012, o1 prices traded between USS89 and
L8126 per barrel with an average market price of US$112 per barrel

The table below summarises the impact of changes in the market prices of crude ol The impact 15 expressed in terms of the resulting change in
the Group's profit after tax for the year ended 31 December 2012 The sensitivities are based on the assumption that the market price changes by
US$10 per barrel with all other vaniables held constant The effect on profit after tax (before hedging) 1s calculated based on actual consumption
for the year and does not address the indirect impact of a change in the ml price on other costs

Effect on profit after tax
For the For the
ended ded
Gainfloss associated with US$10 decrease/increase from year-end price B ileaN oo
(in thousands of Urated States dollars} 2012 2011
Ot 4,231 3,098

Dunng the year, the Group added 144 thousand barrels of Brent ol three-way option contracts for catendar year 2013 The designated contracts
acl as a hedge against vanizhihty m market prices, in a pre-defined range, of the cost of fulure fuel purchases aver the next year At 31 December
2012, the Group had a total of 234 thousand barrels of Brent crude o1l net purchase options outstanding Al of the contracts mature 1n 2013
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

29 Financial nsk management contimued
Each contract consists of sald put options, bought call options and sold call options with average sinike pnices of USS85 per barrel, US§110 per
barrel and US$135 per barrel respectively

These transactions are cconomic hedges and do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment Changes in the farr value of these options are
recorded as a component of other income/expense 1n the mcome statement

Rusks reluating to the use of derivatives

By using derivatives, 1 addition to credit nsk, we are affected by market nisk Market risk 1s the risk that the fair value of a denivative might be
adversely affected by a change 1n commodity prices, interest rates, or currency exchange rates, and that this in turn affects our financial condition
We manage market risk by establishing and momtoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may be undertaken

Torewn curremy rnk

The Group’s transactions are denominated in s number of different currencies (primarily US dollars, Tanzanian Shillings, and South Afncan
Rands) The Group has hatnhties that are primarily denomunated in US dollars The US dullar i the Company’s (and 1ts subsidiaries”) functiunal
currency, as well as the Group’s presentation currency Therefore, transactions wn currencies other than the US dollar give nise to foreygn currency
translation nsk. The Group’s prnimary exposure to this sk anses from direct mine operating costs and corporate administration costs that are
transacted in Shillhings and Rands, respectively Consequently, fluctuations in the US dollar Shilhing/Rand exchange rates increase the volatility
of cost of sdles, corporalc admimstration costs and overdll net earnings, which are reported in Us dollars The vast majonity of 4ll dircet munimmg
conls and corperate administration costs dre denomindted and setiled 1n US dollars Consequently, the effect of foreign exchange fuctuations
on the Group’s reported direct muming and corporate administration costs 1s not significant

The exchange rates at the end of each financial year are detailed 1n Note 2g)

Historically, the relationship between the gold price and the value of the Shilling and Rand provide a natural hedge against fluctyations 1n the
exchange raic of these currencies agamnst the US dollar Generally, a strengtheming of the Shilhag/Rand, which would cause an increase in reported
US dollar operating costs, corresponds with an increase in the US dollar gold price, which results in an increase in reported US dollar revenues.

Dunng 2011 and 2012 the Group entered mnto Rand/US doltar collar contracts to manage the mpact of currency fluctuations on Rand-denominated
operating and capital expenditures In 2012, the Rand traded between R7 40 and R8 90 per US dollar, and averaged R8 20 per US dollar

During the year the Group added R515 mullion of Rand collar contracts to hedge forecasted Rand-denominated capital spend 1n 2012, 2013 and
2014 Each contract consists of a bought put option and a sold call option with average strike prices of R8 50 and R9 33 respectively (2011 there
were no Rand capital hedges outstanding) The contracts act ay a hedge aganst the variability 1n the Rand/US dollar exchange range over the
penod These contracts arc treated as accountmng hedges m accordance with TAS 39 Iledged stems are identified as the first stated quantity of
Rand spent durning the month Hedge effectiveness s assessed using regresston analysis ubhsing the concept of the hypothetical denvative
method The effective portion of changes 10 intninsic vatue of the currency contracts 15 recorded in other comprehensive tncome until the
forecasted expenditure impact occurs

During the year the Group also added US$56 milhion of Rand collar contracts to hedge forecasted Rand denominated operating expenditures
The transactions are economic hedges, and do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment Changes n fair value of these options are recorded
as 4 component of other income/cxpense 1n the income statement

At 31 December 2012, the Group had Us$57 milhwon of Rand coliar contracts outstanding contaming purchased pul options and sold call
opuons with average strike prices of R8 31 and RY 26 respecuively (2011 Us$63 mullion of Rand collar contracts with purchdsed put and sold
call options with average strike prices of R8 10 and R9 10 respectively) The contracts mature i 2013

The Group does have sigmficant financial assets denominated 1n a currency other than 1S dollars These financial assets are as follow

Asat As sl

31 Decemnber 31 December

(1n thousands of United States dollars) 2012 2011
Indrrect tax recervables (denominated 1n Tanzanian Shilhngs) 98,678 85,347
Teatal 98,678 85,347
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Uhe following senstivily analyses give the estimated cffect of 4 reasonably possible changt 1n the full year closing US dullar exchange rate on

the value of the financial assets
Effect on profit after tax

Tar the For the
Increase/(decrease) assaciated with 10% change of the US dollar as at 31 Necember 2012 and 31 December 2011 31y,;ﬂ:;tf 31’;;;”:::
{tn thousands of United States dollars) 2012 201t
Increase/{decredse) dssocrated with 10% change of the U dollar
US dollar strengthens by 10% to the Tanzanian Shilling
Increase in total indirect tax recervahles 10,964 9,483
US dollar weakens by 10% to the Tanzaman Shilhing
Decrease in total mdirect tax receivables (8,971) {7.759)

Tnterest rate rik

Interest rate nisk refers to the nsk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associdled with the instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market mterest rates Borrowings issucd at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow wnterest rate risk Borrowings issued at fived
rates expose the Group Lo fair value interest rate nsk The Group 15 also exposed to interest rate nsk on its cash and cash equivalents

Al present, avalable funds are held with finanaial snstitutions at varable rates and primarity denominated in US doltars, interest tncome 15 not
muaterially affected by changes 1n short-term interest rates The amount of interest expense recorded m the Group’s consolidated income statement
15 not matenally impacted by changes 1n short-term interest rates, due to the Group's low levels of interest-bearing debt at present If drawn,
the revolving credit facility’s spread over LIBOR will be 350 basis puints Group debt levels are impacted by the amount of operating cash flow
generated by its operating mines, as well as capital expendsture requirements related to existing operations and develapment projects The
Group currently has no interest rate hedging 1n place as the interest income 1s not matenally affected by changes in short-term interest rates

b)  Credit nsk
Credut nisk 15 the risk that a third party maght fail to fulfil its performance obligations under the terms of a financial instrument For cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other recevables, credit risk represents the carrying amount on the balance sheet, net of any uverdrafi posttions

Credut nsk arises from cash and cash equuvalents, and deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables The Group's financial assets
are held with counterparties whom the Group considers have an appropriate credit rating Location of credit risk 1s determuned by physical
location of the bank branch, customer or counterparty The mamimum allowable term of matunty for any individual secunty is three months
Tnvestment counterparties must have a credit rating of at least Baal or hetter by Mondy’s Investor Services or BBB+ by Standard and Poor’s

No mare than 25% of the aggregate market value of the investment portfolio 1s maintained 1n any one country, with the exception of the United
States of America or the United Kingdom, or 1n any one industry group [nvestments are held matnly 1n United States dollars Cash and cash
equivdlents in other foragn currencies dre maimntained {or operational requirements

With respect to other receivables, the most significant debtor 1 the TRA Throughout the past three years, ABG has been actively involved 1n
discussions with the Tanzaman government and the TRA to resolve the status of fucl excise levies and VAT refunds for its operations These
155ues have been outstanding for some ime and were further complicated by amendments made to certam tax laws which were passed 1n 2009
The amendments conflicted with certain provisions contatned in the Group’s existing Mineral Development Agreements (*“MDAs”) which
guarantee the fiscal stability of 1ts operations The government has adopted legislation to reverse the amendments, which should allow for

the fiscal and tax terms of our MDAs to be honoured Asat 31 December 2012, the discounted outstanding amounts due to the Group were
approximately UsS98 7 milhon During the third quarter of 2011, the Group signed ¢ MOS with the | RA 1o address the treatment of certain
outstandtng indirect tax refunds in respect of fuel levies and value added taxation The terms of the Memorandum of Settlement atlow ARG to
offset income tax payable agaimnst outstanding refunds for VAT and fuel levies as 1t becomes payable As a result of these changes, Tulawaka
and Buzwag will effectively be treated as two separate entities for tax purposes, with effect from 2007 Further detail 1s included 1 Notes 16,
21 and 31b)

Group policies are aimed 4t mintmusing losses as a result of counterparty’s farlure to honour its obligations Indrvidual exposures are monitored
with trade customers subject to credit himits 1o ensure that the Group'’s txposure 10 bad debts 15 nut significant The Group’s exposure to credit
nsk manfluenced mainly by the indindual charactenstics of each of the counterparties The Group's finanaal assets are with counterparties who
the Group cansiders have an appropriate credit rating During the year, recewvables to the value of J55149 mullion were advanced by a financial
institution under a factonng agreement This agreement reduces the nsk of default of recervables

Maximum expasure to credit risk at each reporting date 1s the carrytng value of each class of financial assets m Note 28 The Group does not
hold collateral as security for any trade recewvables The Group does not grade the credit quality of receivables
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contirtued

29 Finanaal nsk management contimued

¢} Ligqudity rish

Liguidity risk is the risk of loss from not having access to sufficent funds to meet both expected and unexpected cash demands The Group
manages 1ts exposure 1o hquidity risk by ensunng that 1ts operating and strategic hquidity levels are well above mimimum internal requirements
Prudent hiquidity risk management includes mamtaining suffictent cash balances, and the avadability of funding from an adequate amount of
committed credit facihttes At the end of both 2012 and 2011 the Group was 1n a positive net cash position, as disclosed i Note 17 Details of
the undrawn revolving credit facility are given 1n Nole 28

In the urdinary course of business, the Group receives cash procecds from s vperatiuns and 15 required Lo fund working capital and capital
expenditure requirements The cash 1< managed to ensure surplus funds are invested to maximise returns while ensuring that capital 15
safeguarded to the maximum extent possible by investing only with financal institutions with a strong credit raung Insigmficant uncommitted
overdraft facilities are maintained with several banking counterparties to meet the Group’s normal funding requirements The Group's pnmary
source of hquidity s operating cash flow, and over the past iwo years the Group has gencrated an average of about US$378 mullion per year
The principal risk factor affecting operating cash flow 1s market gold prices

The principal uses of iquidily are sustdining capital expenditures ol exsling operating mines, construction aclivities al development projects,
and interest payments Sustmming capital expenditures hzve averaged about USS153 milhon per year over the past two years

The following table outhines the expected matunty of the Group’s sigmificant financial assets into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaimng penod from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date As the amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, these balances may not agree with the amounts disclosed 1n the balance sheet

For the year ended 31 December 20612

(in thousands of United States dollars) Less than | year 1to 3 years 3 ta 5 years Over 5 years Totat
Cash and cash equivalents 101,348 - - - 101,348
Accounts receivable 44,227 - - - 44,227
Dervative financial instruments 2,207 467 - - 2,674
Other receivables 14,3141 18,824 122,926 - 186,064
Lotal 492,496 19,291 122,926 — 634,313

For the year ended 31 December 2011

{in thousands of Uruted States dollars) Less than 1 year 11ta3years 3to Syears (ver 5 years Total
Cash and cash equivalents 584,154 - - - 584,154
Accounts recervable 29,858 - - - 29,858
Denvative financial instruments 4,050 213 - - 4,263
Other recervables 33,271 80,326 30,332 - 143,929
Total 651,333 80,539 30,332 - 762,204

The following table outhnes the expected maturity of the Group's significant financial habilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period from the balance sheet date to the contractual matunty date As the amounts disctosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, these balances may not agree with the amounts disclosed 1n the balance sheet

For the year ended 31 December 2012

{in thousands of Umied States doltars) Less than 1 year 1103 vears 3 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
Denvative habilities 429 294 - - 723
Other habilities 6,889 12,280 8,784 - 27,953
Trade and other payables! 165,904 - - - 169,904
Total 177,222 12,574 8,784 - 198,580

For the year ended 31 December 2011

{in thousands of Unuted States dollars) Less than 1 year 1to 3 yeans 1to 5years Qver Syears Total
Denvative liabilities 58 56 - - 114
Other habihities 6,580 13,188 5,800 - 25,568
Trade and other payables 161,485 - - - 161,485
Total 168,123 13,244 5,800 - 187,167

1 Trade and other payables exclude statatory hahahtiex 1n the form af ncome tax payable
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Management considers that the Group has adequdte current dssels and forecast cash flow from operativns Lo manage hiquidity rsks ansing
from settlement of current habilities and non-current habiliues

Capitul rish management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensurce that it maintawms & strong balance sheet and low geaning ratwo to support
1ls business and provide [inancial flexibility 1 order to maximtse shareholder value In order to ensure a strong balance sheel and low geanng
ratio, management thoroughty evaluates all matenial projects and potential acquisitions and 1s approved by the Semor Leadership Team before
submission to the Board for ultimate approval, where applicable

30 Operating lease arrangements

Tor the lor the

year ended year enided

31 Decumber N December

{10 thousands of Unated States dollars) 212 2011
Minmimum lease payments under operating leases recognised 1in income for the penod 2,197 1,736
Total 2,197 1,736

At the balance sheet date, the Group had cutstanding commitments for futare mimmum lease paymenis under non-cancellable operating
leases, which fall due as follows

Asat Asat

31 December 31 December

(10 thousands of Lnited States dollars) 2012 2011
Within one yedr 4,137 1,442
In the second to fifth years inclusive 7,733 3,701
After five years 691 1,188
Total 12,561 6,331

Operating lease payments relate mamnly to rental of office space by regional busirtess units of the Group

31 Commitments and conlingencies
The Group 1s subject to various laws and regulations which, 1f not observed, could give rise to penalties As at 31 December 2012, the Group has

the following commutments and/or contingencies

a)  Tegal contingencies

As at 31 December 2012, the Group was a defendant in approximately 235 lawsuits The plantffs are claming damages and interest thereon for
the loss caused by the Group due to one or morc of the following unlawful eviction, termimation of services, wrongfuf termination of contracts
of service, non-payment {ar services, defamation, and negligence by act or omssion in fathing to provide a safe working environment, unpaid

overtime and public hohday compensation

The total amounts claimed from lawsuts in which specific monetary damages are sought amounted to US$51 6 milhon The Group’s Legal
Counsel 15 defending the Group’s current position, and the outcome of the lawsuits cannot presently be determined However, in the opinion of
the Directots and Group’s Legal Counsel, no material liabitities are expected o matenalise from these lawsuits Conseguently no provision has
been set aside against the claims 1n the books of account

Included tn the total amounts claimed of US$51 6 million 1s an appeal by the TRA intended for the tax assessment of US$21 3 mulhon 1n respect
aof the acquesition of Tusker The case was awarded 1n favour of ARG however the TRA have served a notice of appeal The calculated tax
assessment 15 based on the sales price of Nyanvaga property of US571 oulhon multiphed by the tax rate of 30% Management are of the nprmon
that the assessment 15 1nvald due to the fact that the acquisition was for Tusker Gold Limited, a company incorporated 1n Australia The
shareholding of the Tanzanian related entities did not change and the Tusker Gold Lumited Group remains the same 4s prior 0 the acquisition

Also mcluded 1n the total amounts claimed of USS51 6 mallion 1s a clarm of USS2 8 million against North Mara Gold Mine betng compensation
for uncaused improvements, disturbance and accommodation allowance, rich gold land current value, interest and costs Management are of
the opinion that the defence 1s likely to succeed
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Notes to the consohidated financial statements continued

31 Commutments and contingencies contmnued

b)  Other tax-related contingencies

1 On 26 October 2009, the TRA 1ssued a demand notice against the Group for an amoun! relating to withholding tax on technical services
provided to Bulyanhulu Gold Mine Ltd. The claim amounts to US$5 4 milllon Management 1s of the opinton that the Group complied with
all of the withholding tax requirements, and that there will be no amount payable Therefore no provision has been raised

1

=

The TRA has 1ssued a number of tax assessments to the Group relating to past taxation years from 2002 onwards The Group believes that
these assessments are incorrect and has filed objections to each of them The Group 1s attempting to resolve these matters by means of
discussions with the TRA Management 1s of the opinion that this wall not result in any material liubihitzes to the Group

¢)  Exploration and development agreements - Minung Licences

Pursuant to agreements with the Government of the United Republic of Tanzania, the Group was 1ssued Mining [ 1cences for Bulyanhuly,
Buzwagi, North Mara and Tulawaka mines and Mining [ wenses for building matenals at Bulyznhulu and Buzwagi Mines The agreement
requires the Group lo pay to the Government of Tanzama annual rents of US$5,000 per annum per square kilometre for as long as the Group
holds the Special Mining Licences and US$2,000 per annum pet square kilometre for so long as the Group holds the Mining Licences for Bulding
Materials The total commutment for 2013 based on Miming Licences held as at 31 December 2012 15 US$0 8 mulhion (2011 USS0 8 rmithon)

d) Purchase commiments
At 31 Decernber 2012, the Group had purchase obligations for supphies and consumables of approximately US$65 milhion (2011 US$31 nullion)

e} Caprtal commitments
In addition to entering into vanous operational commitments m the normal course of business, the Group entered inlo contracts fur capital
expenditure for approximately USs51 rmillion (2011 US$32 mihon)

32 Related party balances and transactions
The Group had the following related party balances and transactions dunng the years ended 31 December 2612 and 31 December 2011
Related parties are those entities owned or controlied by BGC, which 1s the ultimate contralling party of the Group

Transacuons wath related parties are as follows

a)  Transactions

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 Ducembar 31 Decemnber
{in thousands of United States doflars) 012 2011
Provision of goods and services 273 507
Purchase of goods and services {10,177) (8,426)
Dividend payments (51,822) (20,924)
Total (61,726) (28,843)

Provision and purchase of goods and services to/from related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions Prowision of services relates
1o cost incurred by the Group and recharged to related parties Purchase of goods and services relates to cost curred by related parties and
recharged to the Group Services purchased relate mainly to insurance and software licences Goods purchased relate mainly to consumables and
capital equipment

b)  Balances due from related parues

Asal As at

31 December 31 December

{in thousends of United States dollars) 2012 611
Due from fellow subsidiaries

Placer Dome Exploration 247 247

Placer Dome Techmical Services 37 37

Other 189 70

Total 393 354

The recevables are unsecured in nature and bear no interest. There are no provisions hetd agamnst recervables from BGC
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¢)  Balances due to related parties

Asat As al

31 December 31 December

(n thousands of United Mates dollars) 2012 201
Due to Holding Company

Barnick Gold Corporation 11,962 3,638
DNue to fellow subsidianes

BIBC i5 3

Barnick Gold Austrahia Ltd 293 -

Barmck Gold North Ameyica 188 203

Other 307 146

Total 12,765 3,990

The payables Lo Barnck anse manly from purchase (ransactions noted above The payables are unsecured and bear no interest

d) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel include the members of the Board of Directors and the Senior Leadership Team who recerve remuneration

Compensation for key management personnel (inctuding Directors) was as follows

For the For the

year ended 31 year entded

December 31 December

{1n thousands of Urzted States dollars) 2012 2011
Short-term employee benefits 8,724 10,647
Post-employment benefits 746 1,103
Other long-term benefits - -
Stock-based compensation 1,029 2,114
Total 10,499 13,864

33 Prospecting hcences

The Group holds exploration mineral rnghts in the United Republic of Tanzama These rights are held in the form of prospecting hcences 1ssued
by the Mimistry of Tnergy and Minerals and arc held aither directly by the Group or indirectly pursuant to third party agreements The Licences
held by the Group as at 31 December 2012 are summarised in the following table The total commitment to exploration expenditure on these

licences for 201315 17882 5 mithion

Prospecting licences

Number of Appronmate

Held by ABG Exploration Afnica Limited
Held by Mkunu Exploration Ltd

Held by North Mara Gold Mine Ltd

Held by Nyanzaga Exploration Compadny Ltd
Held by Pangea Minerals Lid

eld by Pnme Geld Cxplorauon Ltd

Held by bub-5dhara Resources anzanua Lid
Held by Vulcan Resources Tanzania Ltd
Prospecting hicences — indirectly held!

Licences Km®
105 1,296 80

2 18 20

5 57 87

5 91 52

80 74394

3 12 82

2 1534

15 237 26

7 2970

Total

224 2,533 45

1 Vi exploration joint venture with third parties.
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

34 Post balance sheet events
A final dividend of US12 3 cents per share has been proposed, which will result 1n 4 total dwidend of US16 3 cents per share for 2012 The final
dividend 1s 1o be propused at the Annual General Meeting on 18 Apnl 2013 These financid) statements do not reflect this dividend payable

ABG announced on 22 January 2013 that 1t concluded negotiations with a syndicate of commercial banks, led by Standard Bank, for the
provision of an export credit backed term loan facihity (“Facility™) for the amount of US$142 mifhon The Facility has been put in place to fund
the bulk of the costs of the construction of one of our key growth projects, a new Carbon in 1 each circunt at the process plant at Bulyanhalu
("Project”) The Facility 1s secured upon the Project, has a term of seven years and when drawn the spread over LIBOR will be 250 basis points
The Facility 1s repayable 1n equal tnstalments over the term of the Facihity, after a two-yedr repayment hohday pencd.

Subsequent to year end, a legal claim was instituted against ABG 1n relation to the termination of 2 lease agreement 1n Dar es Salaam The
plamntifts claim payment of US§11 4 million purportedly being rent for the remander of the lease period, rent that they would have recerved
from other prospective Lenants, costs incurred for alierations made on ABG's instructions and general damages Management are of the opinion
that the defence 15 hikely to succeed

ARG announced on 8 January 2013 that Barnick had ended discussinons with ONG aver the potential sale of its 73 9% stake in ABG Asa result,
ABG 15 no longer in an Offer Penod under the Takeover Code Management has mtiated a full Operational Review with the mm of recalibrating
operations so as 1o drive improved returns from the asset base whilst enhancing the certainty of delivery and mitial detail on specific initiatives
has been provided withun these results
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of African Barnick Gold plc

We have audited the parent cumpany financual statements of
African Barnck Gold ple for the year ended 31 December 2012 which
compnse the parent company income slatement, parent company
statement of comprehensive income, parent campany balance sheet,
parent company stalement of changes in equity, parent company
cash flow statement and the related notes The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law
and [nternanional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union

Respeetive responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Threctors’ responsibilities statement set
out on page 75, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the parent company financidl statements and for being sausfied that
they grve ¢ true and fair view Our responsibility 1s {o audit and
cxpress an opmion on the parent company finanaial statements in
accordance with apphcable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Thus report, including the opimons, has been prepared for and only
for the Company’s members as a budy 1n accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We
do not, in giving these opimions, accept or assume respansibihity for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s
shown or nto whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent 1n wnung

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and
drsciosures 1 the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statemenis are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the
parent Company’s circumstances and have been consntently apphed
and adequately disclosed, the redsonableness of significant accounting
estimales made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the
financial statements In addition, we read all the finanaal and non-
financial information 1n the annual report to 1dentify matenal
mnconsisiencies with the audited financial statements 1f we become
aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies

we consider the implications for our report

Opimon on finanaial statements
In our opinion the parent company financial staiements

» give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as
at 31 December 2012 and ot its loss and cash flows for the year
then ended,

have been properly prepared 1n accordance with TFRSs as adopted
by the European Umon, and

have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescnibed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion

« the part of the Remuneration report to be audited has been
properly prepared 1 accordance with the Compantes Act 2006, and

« theinformation given in the Direclors’ report for the finanaal year
for whach the parent company financial statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report bv exception
We have nothing o report m respect of the following matters where the
Companics Act 2006 requires us Lo report to you 1, In our opmton

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
comp4ny, or relurns ddequate for our audit have nut been recaved
from branches not visited by us, or

the parent company financial statements and the part of the
Remuncration report to be audited are not in agreement with the
dccounting records and returns, or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made, or

= we have not recerved all the infermation and explanations we
requare for our audit

Other malter
We have reported separately on the Group financral statements of
African Barrick Gold ple for the year ended 31 December 2011

Q._/\ﬁ%
Jason Burkatt,

Semuor Statutory Auditor

For and on behall of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Charlered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

7 March 2013

Noles

(a) The mamtenanc and mtegnity of the Afncan Barnck Gold ple website 1s the
responstlicy of the Directors, the work amed out by the avditors does not involve
consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accepl no responsibility for
any changes that may have occurred to the finenaal statements snce they were nulally
presented on the website

(b) Lemslation i the Urated Kingdom governing the preparanon and dissermnation of
finanadl statements may duffer from lepilavon m other junsdictions

Annual Report and Accounts 2062 139

SIUSWINES [MIUTLTY I DUTLIIA0S) I DUTWIcR] I MI[ABAD I

uoRULIOJU] [3P|OYEYS I



Parent company income statement

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 11 Decetrber
(en thousands at Unrted States dollars) Notes 2012 20011
Corporate admimmistration 3 (12,923) (18,950)
Project evaluation costs {454) -
Other (charges)/income (5,674) 177
Finance income 162 193
Finance expense (6) ()
Loss before taxatiocn {18,895) (18,626)
Income tax ) - -
Net Joss fur the period (18,895) (18,626)
Parent company statement of comprehensive income
For the Far the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 Decemnber
{in thousands of Unatcd Statcs dollar<) 2012 o011
Net loss for the period (18.895) (18,626)
Other comprehensive tncome for the period - -
Total comprehensive loss far the penod (18,895) {18,626)

The notes on pages 144 to 154 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Parent company balance sheet

Asat Asat
31 December 31 December
(10 thousands of Uruted States dollars) Noles 012 201
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equpment 7 373 370
Investment 1n subsicianes 8 1,346,608 1,324,568
Non-current recervables 18 772,694 772,680
2,119,675 2,097,618
Current asscts
Other receivables 9 3,444 663
Cash and cash equivalents 10 36,525 145,870
39.9q9 146,533
Total assets 2,159,644 2,244,151
Equity and lrabiliiies
Share capital and share premum I 929,199 929,199
Other reserves 1,221,897 1,309,391
Total equnty 2,151,086 2,238,590
Non-current habihties
Other non-current liabilities 2,230 1,197
2,230 1,187
Current hiabilittes
Other current habilities 14 6,318 4,364
6,318 4,364
Total liabilities 8,548 5,561
Total equity and liabilities 2,159,644 2,244,151

The notes on pages 144 to 154 are an integral part of these financial statements

The financul statements on pages 140 1o 154 were authonsed for ssue by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2013 and were signed on its behalf

Greg Hawlans,
Chief Executive Officer
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Parent company statement of changes in equity

Loninbuted
surplus/Other Stock Retaned
{1n thousands ot United States dollars) Nols Share cupital  Sharc pramum FLSLAALS  opOGR reserve cdrtongs Lutal equty
Balance at | January 2011 62,097 867,102 1,368,774 640 (14,406) 2,284,207
Net loss {or the penod - - - - (18,626) (18,626)
hvidends to shareholders 13 - - - - (28,328) (28,328)
Stock options - - - 1,337 - 1,337
Balance at 31 December 2011 62,097 867,102 1,368,774 1,977 (61,360) 2,238,590
Net loss for the penod - - - - {18,895) {18,895)
Thvidends to shareholders 13 - - - - (70,125) (70,125)
Stock options - - - 1,526 - 1,526
Balance at 31 December 2012 62,097 867,102 1,368,774 3,503 (150,380) 2,151,096

The notes on pages 144 to 154 arc an intcgral part of these financial statements
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Parent company cash flow statement

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
(in thousands of Uruted States dollars) Nates 2012 2011
Cash flows used 1n operating activities
Net lass for the penod (18,895} (18,626)
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 7 146 134
Finance items 4 (156) (187}
Working capital adjustments 6 408 3,941
Other 6 1,277 1,248
Cash used by operations before interest and tax (17,220) {13,490)
Finance inecnme 162 193
lnance expense (6) (6)
Nt cash used 1n uperating activities {17,064) {13,303)
Cash flows used 1 investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 7 (149) (79)
Investment n subsidiary 8 (22,039) -
Net cash used i investing activities (22,188) (79)
Cash flows used i financing activities
hvidends pad 13 (70,125} (28,328)
Net cash used 1n financing activities (70,125) (28,328)
Net decrease 1n cash and equivalents (109,377) (41,710)
Net foreign exchange difference 32 89
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 145,870 187,491
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 36,525 145,870

The notes on pages 144 to 154 are an mtegral part of these finanaal statements
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Notes to the company financial statements

1 Corporate informatton

Afncan Barnck Gold ple {the "Compdny™) was incorpurated on
12 Janiuary 2010 and re-regstered as a public imited company on
12 March 2010 under the Companies Act 2006 It is registered in
England and Wales with registered number 7123187

On 24 March 2010 the Company's shares were admutted to the Official
List of the United Kingdom Listing Authonity (“UKLA™) and to trading
on the main market of the London $tock Exchange, hereafler referred
1o s the Imual Public Offering ("IPO®) The address ol 1ts registered
office s 6 St James’s Place, London SWIA INP, Untted Kingdom

Barnck Gold Corporation (“BGC") currently owns approxumnately
73 9% of the shares of the Company and 1s the ulimate controlling
party of the Group

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
were appraved for ssue by the Board of Directors of the Company
on 7 March 2013

The primary activity of the Company 1s as holding company for the
Afncan Barnck Gold Group of companies

2 Sigmificant accountmg policies

The principal accounting policies apphed i the preparation of these
financial statements are sct out below

a)  Basis of preparation

The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union (“[FRS7s), IFRIC interpretations and those parts of
the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under TTRS

e financial statements of the Compdny have been prepared on a
hustorical cost basis

The Company’s forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably
possible changes in trading performance, show that the Company
should he able to nperate wathin the level of its current financing

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
exwstence for the foreseeable future The Company therefore adopts
the gowng concern basis in preparing s financial statements

The financial staterments are presented in US dollars (US$) and all
values are rounded 1o the nedrest thousand (US$'000} except when
otherwise indicated

Where a change i1 the presentational format between the prior year
and current year financial statements has heen made dunng the
penod, comparative figures have been restated accordingly The
followng presentauonal changes were made during the current year

= Bank charges previously included in corporate admimistration
expenses have been reclassified Lo finance expense (2012 USS6
thowand, 2011 USS6 thuusdand)
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« Management fees previously included in travel and administration
costs have been reclassified and separately disclosed in the
corporate admmistration note (2012 gaan of US$3 5 muithon, 2011
expense of U$$2 4 million)

The basis of preparation and accounting policies used i preparing the
financ:al statements are set out below

b}  New and amended standards adopted by the Company

There are no new IFRSs or IFRIC Intlerpretauons that are effective for
the first time for the financial year beginming on or after 1 January
2012 that would be expected to have a material impact on the Company

¢} New and amended slandards, and inferpretations noet yet adopled
A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning afler

1 January 2012, and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements None of these are expected to
have a sigmficant effect on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group, except the following set out below

« Amendments to [AS 1, “Financial statement presentation”
regarding other comprehensive income The main change resulting
from these amendrments 15 a requirement for entities to group stems
presented in “other comprehensive income” {“OC I”) on the basis of
whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently (reclassification adjustments} The amendments do
not address which ttems are presented in OCI

« Amendments to IFRS 7, *Financial instruments thsclosures”™ on
derecogniion This amendment will promote transparency in the
reporting of transfer transaclions and improve users’ understanding
of the nsk exposures relating to transfers of financial assets and the
effect of those nsks on an entity’s financial positon, particularly
those involving securthisation of finanaial assets

« [ERS 9, “Finanaal instruments”, addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities TFRS 9 was 1ssued 10 November 2009 and October 2010
It replaces the parts of TAS 39 that relate to the clasaification and
measurement of financial instruments ITRS 9 requires financial
assets to be classified mto two measurement categones those
measured at fair value and those measured at amortised cost. The
determination 1s made at ininial recognition The classification
depends on the entity’s business model for managing its financial |
instruments and the contractual cash flow charactenstics of the
instrument For financial hahilites, the starndard retains most of the
TAS 39 requirements The main change 1s that, in cases where the
fair value option 15 taken for financial habihties, the part of a fair
value change due Lo an enty’s own credit nisk 1s recorded in other
comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless
this creates an accounting mismatch The group 1s yet Lo assess
IFRS 9's full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 9 no later than the !
accounting penod beginning on or afier 1 January 2015, subject to
cndorsement by the U The group wall also consider the impact of
the remaining phases of IFRS 9 when completed by the
Internauonal Accounting Standards Board




» IFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”, aims Lo improve consistency
and reduce complexity by providing a precise defimtion of fair
value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across IFRSs The requirements, which are
largely aligned between [FRSs and US GAAP, do not extend the use
of fair value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be
applied where is use 1s already required or permutted by other
standards within [FRSs or US GAAP

« Amondment to IAS 32, “TNingncial Instruments Presentation”,
clanfies some of the requirements for offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities on the balance sheet

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet
effective that would be expected to have a materal impact on the Group

d) Significant judgements in applymg accounting policies and key
sources of esumation uncertanty
Many of the amounts included in the parent company financial
statements require mandgement to make judgements and/or estimates
These judgements and estimates are continuously evaluated and are
based on management's expenence and best knowledge of Lhe relevant
facts and circumstances, but actual results may differ from the
amounts mcluded 1 the parent company financial statements
Information about such judgements and esumation 1s included 1n the
accounting poheies and/or notes to the financdl statements, and the
key areas are summansed below

Arcas of judgement and key sources of csimation uncertainty that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recogmised in the parent
company financial statements nclude

« Whether to recognise a provision f{or accounts recervable - Notes
2h)and s,

« Recogmtion of deferred income tax assets, amounts recorded for
uncerlamn tax positions, the measurement of income tax expense
and indirect taxes — Notes 2j) and 5, and

+ Review of property, plant and equipment and investments in
subsidianes, the determination of whether these assets are impaired
and the measurement of impairment charges or reversals — Notes
2f), 7 and 8

¢)  Foreign currency translation

The Company's transactions are denominated in a number of different
currencies (pnimarily US dollars and UK pounds sterling) The
Company has liabilities that are primanly denominated in US dotlars
The US dollar s the Company's functional currency, as well as the
Company's presentation currency Transachions in currencies ather
than the US dollar are translated at the exchange rates as at the date of
transaction Monetary assets and habilities denomimated i currencies
other than the US dollar are translated to US dollars at year-end
exchange rates ANl differences that arise are recorded m the income
statement Non-monetary assets measured at hustoncal cost in a
currency other than US dollars are translated using the exchange rates
al the date of the mital transactions Where non-monetary assets are
measured at fair value in 4 currency other than US dollars they are
translated into US dollars using the cxchange rates on the date when
the fair value was determined.

The {olowing exchdange rates to the US dollar have been applied

Average Average

Asul  Year ended Asal Yo ended

31 Decembser 31 December 31 December 31 December

012 2012 2011 2011

UK pound {US$ GEP) 062 063 064 062

0 Iovestment m subsidianes

Subsidianes arc cntiies over which the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating pohcies in
order to obtain benefits from thewr activities Control 1s presumed to
exwst where the Company has more than one half of the voting rights
unless il can be demonstirated that ownership does not constitute
control Cantrol does not exwst where nther parties hold veto nghts
aver significant operating and financial decistons In assessing contral,
potential voung nights that are currently exercisable or convertible as
well as other contractual arrangements that enable the Company lo
exercise control are tdken o account

At each reporting date, an assessment 1s made to determine whether
there are any indrcators of impairment Where an indicator of
mpairment exists, a formal estimate of the recoverable amount of the
nvestmeni in subsidiary 15 made, which 15 considered to be the higher
of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use Fair value s
determined as the amount thal would be obtatned from the sale of the
mvestment in 4n 4rm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and
willing parues If the carrying amount of an investment exceeds the
recoverable amount, a provision 1s recorded in the income statement
to reflect the investment at the recoverable amount

Where an impairment charge has previously been recognised, an
assessment 15 made at the end of each reporting penod whether there
1s any mdication thas the impairment loss may no longer exist or may
have decreased If any such indication exists, an estimate of the
recoverable amount s made An impairment loss 1s reversed to the
income statement to the extent that the increased carrying value of the
invesiment i subsidiary does not exceed the onginal carrying vatue

g)  Sharecapital

QOrdinary Shares are classified as equuty Incremental costs directly
attnbutable to the issue of new shares or aptions are shown 1n equaty
as a deduction from the proceeds

h) Financial instruments

Canh und unlr equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carned n the balance sheet at fair value
Cor the purposces of the balance sheet, cash and cash equivalents
include cash, and money market funds For the purposes of the cash
flow statement, cash and cash equivalents conwist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined sbove
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

2 Sigmfcant accounting policies contmued

Lonns and recetvables

Luans ¢nd receivdbles are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, do not
qualify as trading assets and have not been designated as either fawr
value through profit and loss or available for sale These are initially
recognised at fair value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method They are included 1n current
assets, excepl for maturnittes greater than 12 months after the balance
sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets

Loans and recervables comprse other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents at the balance sheet date

A pravision forimpairment of trade receivables 1s estabhshed when there
s objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the onginal terms of recervables The carrying
amount of the asset s reduced through use of an allowance account
The amount of the pravision 16 recognised in the income statement

Financut habibities
Other payables are recognised nitially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amorlised cost using the effectrve interest method

1} Finance inconte and finance expense

Interest income 1 recognised on a tme-proportion basis using the
eflective interest method When 4 recervable 1s impaired, the
Company reduces the carrying amotnt to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the ongnal
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income

) Taxes

I'he tax expense for the pertod comprises current and deferred tax
Tax 1s recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
relates to items recognised 1n other comprehensive income or directly
o equity In thus case the tax 1s also recogmised 1n other
comprehensive income or directly 1n equity, respectively
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Current mcome lux

Current income Lax assels and habiliies for the current pertod are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authonties Management penodically evaluates positions taken
1n tax returns with respect to situations n which applicable tax regulation
15 subject to interpretauon L estabhishes provisions where appropnale
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authornities The
tax rates and tax laws used (o compute the amount arc those that are
enacted or substantrvely enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred mcome tax

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each halance
sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset 1o be recovered.

Indsrect tas

Indirect tax assets and liabihties for the current and prior periods are
meastred at the amount expected to be recuvered from or paid to the
taxation authonties Management periedically evaluates positions
taken 1n 1ndirect tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation 1s subject to interpretation It establishes
provisions or recervables where appropnate on the basis of amounts
cxpected te be paid to or recaved from the tax authonties The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date if the recevahle s
expected to be received in more than 12 months from year-end, the
receivable 1s duiscounted and held at 1ts present value Amounts expected
10 be payable or recetvable in more than 12 months are classified as
non-currenl assets or habilities in the halance sheet, as appropnate

k) Dindend distnbution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders 1s recogmsed
as a liability 1n the Company’s financial statements 1n the period in
which the dividends dre approved by the Company’s sharehulders




3 Corporaie admirustration
Included 1n corpurate admimstration cosls are the following

Far the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
{0 thousands of Uruted States doflars) 2012 2011
Salaries 4,061 3,941
Other employee henefits 2,651 1,767
Stock-based compensation 2,923 2,739
Dhrectors’ fees 685 580
Professional and consultancy fees 2,936 4,298
Toreign exchange gain (249} (103)
Travel and administration! 2,012 1,802
Net management fees* {3,454} 2,446
Depreciation 146 134
Audst fees? 396 464
Other 816 922
12,923 18,990

b Mamyement s proviogshy indduded in irav and sdmipistration eosts have buen nedassifiod and sepazately dasclosed

2 Audit tees relating 1o the atdit of the Compary for the pear ended 3) December 2012 amounied to US55 thousand (2011 US$50 thousand) The difference relates to audit fees incwrred for the aadit of other

Group comparnies

Details of Directors’ remuneration can be found 1n the Remuneration report on pages 76 to 87 Details of the auditors’ remuneration can be

found in Note 9 of the Group financial statements

Average number of employees

Far the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 11 December
2012 2011
Administration 9 6
Total average headcount 9 6
4 Finance income and finance expense
a) Finance income
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
{101 thotsands of Urnted States deflars) 2012 2011
Interest on time deposits 162 193
Total 1562 193
b)  Finance evpense
For the Far the
year ended year ended
31 Decemnber 31 December
{1t thousands of Umted States dollars} 2012 2011
Bank charges 6 6
Total 6 6
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

5 Incometax

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 December 11 December

{in thousands of United States dollars) 2012 2011

Corporation taxes - -
Total - -

The statutory income tax rate in the United Kingdom 1s 24% for 2012 The tax on the Company’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would anse using the statutory tax rate as follows

¥ar the For the

yedr ended vear ended

31 December 31 December

(i thousads of United States dollars} 2012 2011
1 0ss before tax {18,895) (18,626)
Tax calculated at statutory tax rates 4,535 5,215

Tax effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes - -

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recogmsed {4,535) {5,215}
l'ax charge - -

Deferred tax assets have not been recogmised 1n respect of the tax lnsses amaunting to US$40 5 milhon as at 31 December 2012 (2011 US$23 mullion),
as there 1s not sufficient certainty over future profits

6 Cash flow - other items
a)  Operating cash flows - other items

For the For the
year ended year ended
11 December 31 Decemnber
(in thousands of United States dellars) 012 2011
Adjustments for non-cash income statement items
Foreign exchange gains (217) (192)
Exchange (gain)/loss on revaluation of cash balances (32) 89
Other expenses 1,526 1,351
Total 1,277 1,248
Adjusiments lor working capitd ilems
Torthe jorthe
yeur ended year ended
31 Dicember 3! Decembur
{m thousands of United States dollars) 2012 2011
Other recevables (2,794) 361
Other current lialilities 2,169 2,710
Other non-current habihties 1,033 870
Total 408 3,941
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7 Property, plant and equipment
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Furntture and

(1 thousands of Umted States dollars) equipment Totwal
At ] January 2012, net of accumulated depreciation 370 370
Additions 149 149
Depreaiation (146} {146)
At 31 December 2012 373 373
At 1 January 2012
Cost 545 545
Accumulated deprecration {175) {175)
Net carrying amount 370 370
AL 31 Decumber 2012, net of accumulated depreciation
Cost 694 694
Accumulated depreciation (321} {321)
Nel carrying amount 373 373
For the year ended 3t December 2011 Furmture and
(1n thousands of L nated States dollars} equipment Tatal
At 1 January 2011, net of accumulated depreciation 425 425
Additions 79 79
Depreaiation {134) {134)
At 31 December 2011 370 370
At ] January 2011
Cost 466 466
Accumulated depreciation (41) {41)
Net carrying amount 4125 425
At 31 December 2011, net of accumulated depreciation
Cost 545 545
Accumulated depreciation (175) (175}
Net carrying amount 370 370
8 Investmentin subsidranes
For the For the
year ended year ended
11 December 31 December
(tn thousands of Unuted States dollars) 2012 2011
Opening balance 1,324,568 1,324,568
Addiions 22,040 -
Closmg balance 1,346,608 1,324,568

The subsidiancs 1n whach investments arc held as at 31 December 2012 are as follows

T.quity mterest

Fquity interest

Company Prinaipal activaty Country of mcorporation 2012 2011
BUK Hotdeo Lid! Holding Company L00% 100%
1816962 Ontann Inc Holding Company 100% 110%
Awvivg Miming (Kenya) Ltd® Lxploration 1% -

1 BUK Holdww Lid and BLK East Afreea Lid are exgmpt {rom the requirements of the Companies Act refatng, w the audit of indsndual sccounts by varue of 87 201242301

2 On 26 October 2012, the Company m conjunction with BUK East Afnea Ltd perchased §00% of the ussued dhare capital of Avva Mg (Tenya) Lad (CAMKL") by way of 9 akeover offer for 2o bl
considetation of US$22 miflion The foll urvestment value was incurred by the Company AMKL s 3 hemyan based exploration company with a focus on goid All of AMRL 5 assets are located i henya and
connst of exploration ground and interests 1n two jount venture agreements Refet o note 22 of the Group financial statements for further details
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

9 Other recervables

Asat Asut

31 Decermber 31 Decernber

{in thousands of Urnuted States dollarsy 2012 2011
Indirect tax recervables 348 129
Advance payments 271 177
Oher recetvables 169 103
Due from related parties (Note 18) 2,656 254
Total 3,444 G663

Al 31 December 2012, no other recervables were either past due or impaired In determining the recoverability of a receivable, the Company
performs a nsk analysis

10 Cash and cash cquvalents

Asat Asul

31 December N December

{in thousands of Unted States dallars) 2m2 2611
Cash at bank and on hand 14,864 2,007
Money market funds 21,661 143,863
Tolal 356,525 145,870

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three maonths, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company, and carn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates

11 Sharc capital and share prenmum
Share capatal Share caputal  Share pre;aum

Number £000 USS$ 0 Us$ 000
At | January 2011 110,085,199 11,009 62,097 867,102
At 31 December 2011 410,085,499 41,009 62,097 867,102
AL 31 December 2012 410,085,499 41,009 62,097 867,102

12 Stock-based compensation

Stock options are granted to Executive Directors and to selected employees The exercise price of the granted options 1s determined by the
Remuneration commuttee before the grant of an option provided that this price cannot be less than the average of the middle-market quotation
of such shares {as denived from the London Stock Exchange Daly Official List) for the three dealing days immediately preceding the date of
grant All options outstanding at the end of the year expire in 2017 and 2018 424,049 of the options granted were exercisable at 31 December
2012 The vesting period of the upttens 1s four years, with an exercise penod of three years

Movements in the number of options outstanding and their related weighted average exerase prices in pence are as follows

Average exercise Average exercise

price 10 perce PrEen pence
per share Ophons per share Opuons
For the period ended 31 December 2012 2012 2011 2011
At 1 January 522 943,006 532 876,075
Granted - - 497 266,931
Al 31 December 522 943,006 522 443,006

There were no options granted during the current year

13 Dmdends paid

The final dividend declared 1n respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 of Us$53 7 midhon (US13 | cents per share) and the 2012 intenm
dividend of U5$16 3 mullion (US4 0 cents per share) were paid duning 2012 and recognised in the financial statements Refer to Note 19 for
detaus of the final drvidend declared subsequent to year-end

150 wewafneanbarrckgold.com



14 Other current habilities

Asat Asat
31 Decernber 31 December
{in thousands of Unated States dollars) 2012 2011
Trade and other payables 2,882 1,647
Accrued expenses and taxes 1,647 156
Payables to related parties (Note 18) 1,789 2,561
Total 6,318 4,364
15 Financial assets and labilities
a)  Financial assets
Carrying value Farrvalue  Carrying value Fair value
{1n thousands of Uruted Stales dollars) 2012 2012 2011 2011
Cash and cash equivalents 36,525 35,525 145,870 145,870
OLher recervables 3,444 3,444 663 663
Non-current receivables! 772,694 772,694 772,680 772,680
lotal financial assets 812,663 812,663 919,213 919,213
Less Curremt financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents {34,525) (36,525) {145,870) {145,870)
Other recervables (3,444) (3,444) (663) (663)
Total non-current portion of recervables 772,694 772,694 772,680 772,680

! Related party Joans zre interest free and have ao fixed repayment tems

The fair value of finanaal assets equal therr carrying amount as they were repayable on demand

b)  [inancial abalitics

Revolving credul fautiity

On 24 November 2010, the Group concluded negotiations with a syndicate of commercial banks, led by Citibank, for the prowision of a revolving
credit facihty in a maximum aggregate amount of USs150 million The facility has been provided to service the general corporate needs of the
Group and to fund potential acquisttions All provisions contained in the credit fachity docurnentation have been negotiated on normat commercial
and customary terms for such finance arrangements The term of the facility was extended to 2014 and when drawn the spread aver T TROR will
be 350 basis points At 31 December 2012, none of the funds were drawn under the faciity The shares of all significant subsidianes have been
pledged as secunty for the loan

16 Financral nsk management
The Company has exposure (o the following nsks through 1ts commercial and financial operations

a) credn nsk, and
b} hqudity nsk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above nisks and the Company’s ohjectives, pohicies and processes
for assessing and managing nsk Further quantitative disclosures are included througheut the financial statements

The Board of Iirectors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s nisk management framework

The Company’s sk management pohcies are established to dentify and analyse the nisks faced by the Company, to set appropriate nisk hits
and controls, and to monitor nsks and adherence to limits Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company’s acivities The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, auns to maimntain
4 disciphined and constructive control environment 1n which all empluyees understand thewr roles and vbligations

a) Creditnsk
Credtt risk 15 the risk that a third party rmght fail to fulfil its performance abligations under the terms of a financial instrument  For cash and
cash equivalents and other recervables, credit risk represents the carrying amount on the balance sheet
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

16 Financial nsk management continued

Credit risk anises from loans 1o two subsidiaries, recervables, cash and cash equivalents, and depuosits with banks 1he (.ompany’s financial asscls
are wilth counterpartics whom the Company considers to have an appropriate credit rating. Location of credit nsk 18 determmined by physical locauon
of the bank branch, customer or counterparty The maximum allowable term of maturity for any indiwvidual secunty 1s 12 months Investment
counterparties must have a credit rating of at least Baa2 or better by Moody’s Investor Services or BBB by Standard and Poor’s No more than
25% of the aggregate market value of the investment pertfolio 1s mamtained in any ane country, with the exception of the United States of
Amenca, United Kingdom and Barbados, or in any one industry group Investments are held mainly mn Umited States dollars and cash and cash
equrvalents mn other foreign currencies are mamtamed for operatioral requirements

Compadny policies are aimed al minimising losses as a result of d counterparty’s failure 1o honeur ity obhgations The Company's exposure 10
credit niskas influenced mainly by the indrdual charactensties of each counterparty The Company’s financidl assets are with counterpdrties
whom the Company considers to have an appropnate credit rating

Maximum exposure to credit nisk at each reporting dale 15 the carrying value of each class of financial assets in Note 15 The Company does not
hold collateral as secunty for any recervables The Company does not grade the credit quality of receivables

b} Liqudity nsk
Liquidity risk 15 the risk that the Company will not be abte to meet 1ts financial obligations as they fall due The Company monitors its risk of
a shortage of funds using projected cash flows and by monitoring the matunty of both its financial asscts and habilities

The following 1able vutlines the expected matunty of the Company’s significant financia] ltabilities mto relevant matunty groupings based on
the remainmg penod from the balance sheet date to the contractual matunty date As the amounts disclosed 1n the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, these balances may not agree with the amounts disclosed 1n the balance sheet

For the penod ended 31 December 2012

{an thousands of Uruted States dollars) Tess than 1 year 1ta 3 years 3t § yeurs Ower 5 years Total
Other non-current habilities - 2,230 - - 2,230
Other current habihities 6,318 - - - 6,318
Total 6318 2,230 - -~ 8,548

For the period ended 31 December 2011

(wn thousands of Untted States doflars) Tesa than 1 year 1 to 3 years 3tn 5 years Ohver 5 years Todal
Other non-current habilities - 1,197 - - 1,197
Other current habiiies 4,364 - - - 4,364
Total 4,364 1,197 - - 5,561

Management considers that the Company has adequate current assets and (orecast cash flow from operationa lo manage hquidity risks arnsing
from settlement of current habilities and non-current habihties

Cumtal risk management

The pnmary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that 1t maintains a strong balance sheet and low gearing ratio ta
support 1ts business anid provide financial flexibility in order to maximise shareholder value In order to ensure a strong balance sheet and low
geanng ratio, management thoroughly evaluates all matenal projects and potential acquisitions and approves them at 1ts Executive committee
before submussion to the Board for ultimate approval, where applicable
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17 Operating leasc arrangements
For the year For the year

ended ended

31 Decernber 31 December

{in thousands of Uruted Stdates dollars) 2012 2011
Mimtmum lease payments under operating leases recognised in income for the period 276 264
278 264

Total

Al the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding commtments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases, which fall due as follows

Asat Asal

31 December 3 Necember

{1n thousands of Lted States dollars) 2012 2011
‘Witliun one year 276 264
In the second to fifth years inclusive 1,106 1,056
Alfter five years 691 1,188
Total 2,073 2,508

18 Related party balances and transactions

The Company had the following related party balances and transactions during the year ended 31 December 2012 Related parties are those
entities owned or controlled hy Barnck, which s the ulimate controlling party of the Company

Transactions with related parties are as follows

a) Transactions
For the year For the year

ended ended
31 December 31 December
(10 thousands of Uruted States dollars) 2 2011
Management fees 3,454 1,503
Irovision of goods and services 1,005 663
Purchase of goods and services {2,085) {6,224)
Dwidends paid (51,822) (20.924)
Total {49,448) (24,982)

Management fees relate to an allocation of cost incurred based on tme spent by management for the benefit of the related party, a 5% mark-up
1s apphied to these costs Provision and purchase of goods and services to/from related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions
Provision of scrvices relates Lo cosls mcurred by the Cumpany and recharged Lo releted parties with no mark-up  Purchase of goods and services
relates to costs meurred hy related parties and recharged to the Company wath no mark-up Services purchased relate mamly to insurance,
software licences and professional services

b) Balances due trom related parhes

As at Asat
31 December 31 December
{1n thousands of United States dollars} 2012 2011
Due from subhsidianes
Bulyanhulu Geld Mine Ltd 363 36
Panges Minerals Lid 391 140
North Mara Gold Mine Ltd 260 36
Rarmnick Afnca (Pry) Tid 772 -
Awviva Mining (Kenya) Lid 815 -
African Barnick (Barbados) Corp Lid 33 28
Other 22 14
Tatal 2,656 254

The receivables from related parties anise mamnly from the provision of goods and services The receivables are unsecured in nature and bear no
nterest There are no provisions held against receivables from related parties
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

18 Related party balances and transactions continued
¢} Baances due to related parties

Asat Asat
31 Decernber 31 December
{m thousands of Uinted States dollars) 2012 2011
Due 1o Holding Company
Barnick Gold Corporation 1,789 191
Due 10 fellow subsidianes
Barrick Africa (Pry) 1td - 2,356
Barnck Gold of North America Inc - 14
Total 1,789 2,561

The payables to Barrick anse mainly from purchase transactions, noted above The payables are unsecured and bear no interest

d)  Balances due from related parties (funding i nature)

Asat Asat

31 December 31 December

{in thousands of Umted St ites dollars) 2012 201
BUK (Subsidiary) 772,694 772,680
Total 772,694 772,680

Related party borrowings relate 1o amounts due from BUK Holdco Ltd These amounts are interest free and have no fixed repayment terms but
are treated as long-term loans as there 1s no ntention to recall the loan within 12 months

19 Post balance sheet events

A final dwvidend in respect of the yedr ended 31 December 2012 0f US12 3 cents per share hasbeen propused, which wall result in a total dsidend of
US16 3 cents per share for 2012 The final dividend 1s to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 18 Aprl 2013 These financial statements do
not reflect this dividend payable

ABG announced an 8 January 2013 that Barnick had ended discussions waith ONG over the potential sale of its 73 9% stake m ARG As a result, ABG s
no longer n an offer pertod under the Takeover Code Management has imtiated a full Operational Review with the aim of recalibrating operations so
as to drive improved returns from the asset base whilst enhancing the certasnty of delivery and iniuial detatl on speafic inttiatives has been provided
within these results
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Glossary of terms

The following defintuons and terms are used throughout thus report.

In addition, speafic terms and defimtions relating to mineral reserves Co prodct 2 seool :t;l)a.ry met;l;ra?:;x;ifﬁm] uhe
and resources can be found on page 88
CREST the computerised setlement system operated by Eurodlear
ABG or the Company  Afncan Barnck Gold plc, a company mcorporated under UK & Ireland Limated to faciltate the transfer of nile w
the Compames Act 2006 and registered in England and shares 1n uncerbficated form
Wales with registered number 7123187
Crushing breaking of ore from the size delivered from the mune into
ABG Group the Company and #s subaichary undertakangs smaller and more uniform fragmients to be then fed to
or the Group gnnding mills or to a leach pad
AGM annual general meeting CSR carporate soctal respanstbibiry
AMKL Avrva Minung (Kenya) Lumuted Cu capper
Amortisatron and has the meanung grven to it on page 158 Cut-off grade the rmmmurm metal grade at which matenal can
other costs per be econormeally mined and processed {used in the
ounce sold calculation of ore reserves)
Artigles the articles of association of the Company Development work carnied out for the purpose of opening up a runeral
deposit In an underground mmine the mcludes shaft
Assay a chermucal test performed on a sample of sinking, crosseutting, dnfung and rasing. In an open pt
ores or mnerals to determine the amount mune, develepment includes the removal of overburden
of valuable metals contaned
Dhrectors the directors of ABG for the reporting period, details of
Au gold whom are set out on pages 56 and 57 of thus report
Average head grade average are grade fed 1o the mult Drselosure and the disclosure and transparency rules made by the FSA
T Rul der Part VI of FSMA
Average reahsed gold  has the meznung given w it on page 157 ranspareney e oo °
prvce per ounce sold Dollaror US$or$  Uuted States dollars
Barnick Barrick Gold Corporation, a company exsting under the Doré doré bullion 1s an impure alloy of gold and alver and s
laws of the Province of Ontano, Canada generally the final product of minung and processing, the
dure bulk vl be Lr: d o be relined 4
Barrick Group Barnick and its subsidiary undertakings P::‘Y m:::] v aaspontecio med o hugh
Board the board of durectors of ABG Dnft a honzontal underground openung that follows along the
length of a vein or rock formanion as opposed to a crosscut
Cash cost per has the meaning grven to it on page 157 frach crosses the rock formatzon
ounce sold
Drifi-and-fill a method of underground mining used for flat-lying
Cash cost per has the meaning grven to 1t on page 158 mmeralisation or wh J conditions are
tonnie mulled
less compelent
321:{3, atiomat Gold Chuna Nationa! Gold Group Corporstion Dnlimg: core dnlling with a hollow bit with a diamond cutting rim to
produce a cylindncal core that 1s used for geological study
CIL carbon m leach, a method of recovering gold and silver, and assays. Used n rmuneral exploration
in whicha sharry of gold/skver bearing ore carbon and Drillig- ur-fl any methad of drilling intervals between exsting holes,
cyande are muxed together The cyamide dissalves the used to eol etarl and to b
gold, whuch 1s subsequently absorbed by the acovated provide greater geological an elp
carbon whose hase 15 usually ground coconut shells establish resérve estmates
Canad M Dnllmg reverse dnlhing method that uses a rotating cutting bit within a
ciM m Petrol Insumute of Metallurgy arculation double-walled drill pipe and produces rock chups rather
than core Aur or water s arculated down to the but
Cade of Conduct ABG? Code of Business Conduct and Ethucs between the mner and outer wall of the énll prpe The
chips are forced to the surface through the centre of the
Compames Act 2006 the Comparues Act 2006 of England and Wales, dnll pipe and are collected, examuined and assayed
as amenxled
EBITDA has the meaning grven (o 1t on page 158
Concentrate a fine, powdery product of the milling process contaiming
a hugh percentage of valuable metal EPOQ Environmental Protection Order
Contamed ounces represents total ounces in a mineral reserve before Executve Drectors the cxecutrve directors of the Company,
reductian to account for aunces not able 1o be recovered Greg Hawlansand Kevin Jenmings
by the applicable metaliurgical process Explomtion prospecting, sampling, mapping, diamond dnlhng and

other work invotved 1n searching for ore
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Glossary of terms confinued

Fnancial Services the Financial Services Authonty of the Unuted Kingdom Non-Executrve the Non-Executrve Directors of the Company being as at
Authonity or FSA Drrectors year end Derek Pannell, Andre Falzon, Stephen Galbrauh,
Dawid Hodgson, Michael Kenyon, Ambassador
Flotation a mulling process in whuch valuable mineral particles Mwapachu, Rick McCreary and Ketvin Dushnusky
are mduced to become attached to bubbles and float as
others aink Offer Pertod means the penod of ume dunng which an offer or a
possible offer for a company may be made under the UK
FSMA the UK Finanaal Services and Markets Act 2000 Takeover Code, commenang from the announcement
(zsamended) of 4 possible offer and ending on the date uf one of the
Grade the amount of metal in each tonne of ore, expressed as ;‘m;g {ulli uwm] f::;ﬁ:;;;f :’;c:;t ofan Ld'fcc;an
Lroy GUNCES PET tonne OF grams per tonne for precous {1) an announcement that all offcrs have been wathdrawn
metals and as a percentage for most other metals or have lapsed; or () following certamn other
apnouncements having been made, such as an
g Brams per metne toane announcement that no offer will be made or discussions/
IAS Lternationat Accounting Standards negotiations n connection wath a potentiat offer have
been terrunated
IFRS Intenational Finanaal Reporting Standards,
as adopted for use 1n the Furopean Union Officrat List the Offtcral List of the Financial
Services Authonty
IPO ABGs imuial public offering on the Main Market of the
London Stoek Exchange Open ptt a mune where the mmerals are mined ennrely from
the surface
150 Internationat Standards Orgamsation
Operattonal cash has the mearung given to 1t on page 158
Koz thousand ounces Jlow per share
KPLs key performance indicators Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares of 10 pence each n the captal of
the Company
Kt thousand metnc tonnes
Ore rock, generally containing metallic or non-metallic
LIBOR The British Bankers’ Association Interest Settiernent Rate munerals, which can be muned and processed at a profit
for the relevant currency and penod displayed on the
appropriate page of the Reuters screen Ore body 4 sufficiently large amotint of ore that can be
muned economcally
Lasting Rudes the rules relatmg to admssion to the Official List made
n wccordance with section 73A(2) of FaMA Over burden 15 the matenal that bes above the area of econormue
mnterest, such as soll and anaflary materal, that 1s
Lendon Stock London Stock Exchange plc removed during surface muning
Exchange or LSE
Ouade ore muneralised rock n which some of the oryginal minerals
Mayonily Sharcholder  Barmck have been oxidised. Oxadauon tends to make the ore more
MDA a mineral development agreement :;;‘in;umtcrz:;ydﬁd&u:;dm so that munuee particles of
MDN MDN lnt.:o,fa(.:2 czén;zca.ny existing under the laws of the Oz troy ounce (31 1035g)
Mill a plant in which ore 15 treated and metals are recovered or FAF dump Potential Aad Formung waste rock durnp
prepared for smelting: also a revobving drum used for the PGI Pangea Galdfields Inc , 2 Canadran subsidiry of ABG
gnnding of ores in preparanon for treatment
Pre-IPO the recrganisation of the comparues comprising the ABG
Moz rulhion ounces Reorgamsation Group 1nto a separate corparate group pror to the IPO
Mt million metnc tonnes Reclamation the process by which lands disturbed as a result of mumng
actmty are modified to suppart beneficiat land use
NAF dump Non Aad Formung waste rock dump Reclamation actrvity ma inchude the removal of
. bualdings, equipment, machinery and other physical
NGOs nong ental orgamisations remnants of minng, closure of tuhngs storage faalites,
Ni 43-101 Canadian Nananal Instrument 43-101 teach pads and other mune features, and contounng,
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Recovery rate a term used i process metallurgy to indicate the
proportion of valuable matenal physically recovered in
the processing of ore It 1s generally stated as a percentage
of the matenial recovered compared to the total matenal
onginally present

Refining the final stage of metal production 1n which mmpurities are
removed from the molten metal

Relationship the relationstup agreernent between Barnck and ABG

Agreement

ROM run-of-mine, a term used loosely to describe ore of
average grade

Services Agreement the services agreement between Barrick and ABG

Seruor Leadershup the individuals bsted on page 58

Team or Serior

Management

Shuft avertical or inclined excavation 1n rock for the purpose of
providing access to an ore body Usually equipped with a
honst at the top, which lowers and rarses a conveyance for
handhng workers and matersals

Shareholders holders of Ordinary Shares

Spot or the purchase price of a commodity at the current price,

spot price normally this1s at a discount to the long-termn contract price

Stripping removal of overburden or waste rock averlying an ore
body in preparation for mining by open pit methads

Tanlngs the matenal that remains afler dll econormucally and
techrucally recoverable precious metals have been
remuoved from the ore during processing

Taslmgs storage a natural or man-made confined area sutable for

Sacility depositing the matenal that remans after the treatment
of ore

TANESCO Tanzaran Electrc Supply Company Limited

TRA Tanzaman Revenue Authonty

TRIFR total reportable ijury frequency rate

Tulawaka Agreement  the jomnt venture agreement dated 15 Septernber 1998
{as amended from time to time) between PGT and MDN

TZ8 Tanzanian shiling

UK Corporate the UK Corporate Governance Code dated June 2010

Governance Code wssued by the UK Finanaal Reporang Council

UK Takeover Code means the Ciry Code on Takeovers and Mergets

Untted Kingdom or the Unuted Kingdom of Great Britain and

UK Northem Ireland

Unirted States or US the Urnuted States of Amenca, 1ts territortes and
possessions, any state of the United States of Amenca
and the Distnict of Columbia

VAT value-added tax

VBIAs willage benefit implementation agreements

VBAs village benefit agreements

Voluntary Principles means the Voluntary Principles on Security

and Hurman Rights

Non-IFRS measures

ABG hasdentified certain measures in this report that are nat measures
defined under TFRS Non-TFRS finangal measures disclosed by management
are provided as addiional mfermation to investors i order to provide
them with an alternanve method for assesstng ABGS financal condion
and operating results ‘These measures are not 1 accordance with, or

a substtute for, IFRS, and may be different from or inconsistent with
non-IFRS finannial measures used by other compames These measures
are explained further below

Average realised gold price pet ounce sold 1s a non-1FRS finanaial
measure whch excludes from gold revenue

« Unrealised gawns and losses on non-hedge dervative contracts,

= Unrealised mark to market gains and losses on provisional pricing
from copper and gold sales contracts, and

« Export duties.

Cash cost per ounce sold is a non-IFRS financial measure Cash costs
include all costs absorbed 1nto mventory, as well as royalues, by-product
credits and production taxes, and exclude capitalised production stripping
costs, nventory purchase accounting adjustments, unrealised gains/losses
from non-hedge currency and commodity contracts, deprectation and
amortisation and corporate social responsibility Cash cost 1s calculated
net of co-product revenue

The presentation of these stabistics in this manner ailows ABG 1o monitor
and manage those factors that impact production costs on a monthly basis
ABG calculates cash costs based on 1ts equity interest in production from
its munes Cash costs per ounce sold are calculated by drviding the
aggregate of these costs by gold ounces sold. Cash costs and cash cost per
ounce sold are calculated on a consistent basis for the periods presented.
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Glossary of terms continued

The table below provides a reconcihation between cost of sales and total
cash cost to calculate the cash cost per ounce sold.

Year ended 31 December
(LSS 000) 2012 2011
Total cost of sales 802,709 704,114
Deduct Depreciation and amortisation (158,883) (134,149)
Deduct Co-product revenue (48,031) (67,890)
Total cash cost 595,795 502,075
Total ounces sold* 622,932 724,574
Consolidated cash cost per ounce 956 693
Equity ounce adjustment? (7) (1)
Attrtbutable cash cost per ounce sold 949 692

1 Reflects 100% of ounces sold
2 Reflects the adjustment for non-controllng interests at Tulawaka.

EBITDA 15 a nun-TFRS financtal medsure ABG calcoulates EBIL DA
as net profit or loss fur the pernud excluding,

» Income tax expense;

« Finance expense;

= Finance income;

« Depreciation and amortisation, and

+ Impairment charges of goodwill and other long-lived assets

EBITDA 1s intended to provide additional information to vestors and
analysts [t does not have any standardised meaning prescribed by IFRS
and should not be considered in 1solation or as a substitute for measures
of performance prepared in accordance with IFRS EBITDA excludes the
wmpact of cash costs of finanang activities and taxes, and the effects of
changes 1n operating working capital balances, and therefore 1s not
necessarily indicative of operating profit or cash flow from operations

as determuned under [FRS Other companzes may calculate EBITDA
differently Prior year EBITDA was restated by US$1 4 mullion 1o reflect
the reclassiftcation of back charges from corporate admnstration charges
to finance expenses

A reconcihiahion between net profit for the perind and FBITDA
1s presented below

Year ended 31 December

(US$ 000) 2012 2011
Net profit for the penod 48,184 284,777
Plus income tax expense 71,063 117,924
Plus depreciation and amortisation 158,883 134,149
Plus inpairment charges 44,536 -
Plus finance expense 10,305 10,082
Less finance income (2,102) (1,484}
EBITDA 330,869 545,448
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EBIT 1s a non-IFRS finanaial measure and reflects EBITDA adjusted
for depreciation and amortsation and goodwill imparment charges

Adyusted net earmings 1s a non-IFRS financial measure It1s calcutated
by excluding one-off costs or credits relating to non-routine transactions
from net profit attributed to owners of the parent It includes other credit
and charges that indvadually or in aggregate, if of a siular type, are of

a nature or size that requures explanation i order to provide additional
insight into the underlying business performance

Adjusted net earnungs per share 1s a non-ITRS finanaal measure and
15 calculated by dmding adjusted net carnings by the weighted average
number of Qrdinary Shares i ssue

Adjusted net earnings and adjusted earnings per share have been
calculated by excluding the following

Year ended 31 December

(LSS 000) 2012 2011
Net earnings 59471 274,895
Adjusted for

Impairment charges 44,536 -

Prior year Bulyaniulu tax positions recognised 8,855 -

CNG related costs 6,676 -

Discounting of indirect taxes 4,185 -

Tax and minority interest impact of the above (18,239) -
Adjusted net earnings 105,484 274,895

Amortesation and other costs per ounce sold 15 a non-IFRS finanaal
measure Amortisation and other costs include amortisation and
depreciation expenses and the inventory purchase accounting adustments
at ABG's producing mintes ABG calculates amortisation and other costs
based on its equity interest in production from s mines Amortisation
and other costs per ournce sold 1s calculated by dividing the aggregate of
these costs by ounces of gold sold Amortisation and other cost per ounce
sold are calculated on a consistent basis for the periods presented.

Cash cost per tonne nulled 15 a nun-1FRY financial medsure Cash costs
inchude all costs absorbed into inventory, as well as royalties, by-product
credits and production taxes, and exclude capitahised production stripping
costs, inventory purchase accounting adjustments, unrealised gains/losses
from non-hedge currency and commodity contracts, depreciation and
amortisation and corporate socal responsibility charges Cash cost 15
calculated net of co-product revenue. ABG calculates cash costs based on
1ts equuty snterest n production from its munes. Cash cost per tonne milled
are calculated by divading the aggregate of these costs by total tonnes mulled.

Cash margin 1s a non.IFRS financial measure The cash margin 15 the
average realised gold price per ounce less the cash cost per ounce sold.

Operating cash flow per share 1s a non-IFRS financial medsure and 15
calculated by dmding net cash generated by operating activities by the
weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in 1ssue.




Miming statistical information
The following describes certan hne tems used i the ABG Groups
discusston of key perforrmance mdscators

+ Open pit material mined — measures 1n tonnes the total amount
of open pit ore and waste muned

+ Underground ore tonnes hosted — measures in tonnes the total amount
of underground ose muned and hosted

« Total tonnes mined includes open pit matenal plus underground
ore tonnes hosted.
+ Stnip ratio ~ measures the ratio of waste to ore for open pit
matenal mined.
+ Ore mulled - measures 1n tonnes the amount of ore material processed
through the mull
» Head grade - measures the metal content of mined ore going imto
a mull for processing
Milled recovery — measures the proportion of valuable metal physically
recovered in the processing of ore 1t 1s generally stated as a percentage
of the metal recovered compared to the total metal onginally present
Total production costs - measures the total cost of production and
1s an aggregate of total cash costs as well as production speafic
depreciation and amortisation

Basis of preparation for the reporting of tax data

This basis of preparation supports the reparting of tax data contaned

on page 43 of thus report. Generally the references to “Tax” in ths context
means any amount of money required to be paid to, or repaid by,

a governmentb

In overview, the key information presented as regards Tax 15 as follows

Taxes borne - these are taxes that the ABG Group 1s obliged to pay to a
government on 1ts own behalf, or taxes that it 1s obhged to pay to a third
party and that wan/eannot be recovered from 4 government. The main
taxes that we have included in thss category are

Government royalties - these compnise payments made to governments
in the form of royalties Typically these tend to become payable, and
are paid, in the year to which they relate These taxes form part of our
operating costs

Corporate income tax - this comprises any tax on the business calculated
on the basis of its prohts, income or capital gans Typically, these taxes
would be reflected 1n corporate income tax returns made to governments

Customs duttes - these comprise all customs/excise/import and export
duties Typically, these taxes tend to become payable and are paid to
governments at the pownt where goods are imported and exported
from territonies These taxes form part of our aperating and capuial
incurred costs

Employer payroll taxes - these compnise payrol! and employer taxes
payable as a result of a company’s capacity as an employer Typacally,

these taxes would be reflected 1n payroll tax returns made to governments
and tend 10 be payable, and are paid, on a regular basis (often monthly)
throughout the year shortly after the submission of the return These taxes
form part of our operating costs

Environmental taxes - these comprise levies or other payments

to governments relating to environmental policy Typically, these taxes
tend to be payable on an annual basis These taxes are also included

1t our operating costs

Indrrect taxes ~ these comprise VAT and other fuel levies that anse on
the purchase of guods and services and are paid to third parties, to be
refunded by governments Typcally, these taxes would form part of a
sdles 1aX returnt made o governments Refunds recerved are induded
in the taxes refunded category

Stamp duty - this comprises taxes that arise on transfers of assets or
capual Typically, these taxes would be reflected in stamp duty returns
made to governments and tend to become payable, and are paud,

to governments shortly after caprtal or assets are transferred.

Taxes collected — these are taxes that a company 1s obliged to collect
from others and pay to government The man taxes that we have included
1n thus category are

Employee payroll taxes - these compnise payroll and employee taxes
withheld from employee remuneration and pa:d to governments,

Le. taxes collected by ABG and remitted to governments on behalf of
employees under arrengements such as PAYE schemes Typically, these
taxes would be reflected 1in payroll tax returns made to governments
and tend to be payable, and are paid, on a regular basis (often monthly)
throughaut the year, shortly after submission of the return

Withholding taxes collected from suppliers - these compnse taxes that
are requered to be withheld 1n advance on payments made to supphers
Typically, these taxes would be reflected 1n income tax returns made
to governments and tend to be payable, and are paid, on a regular
basis (often monthly) throughout the year shortly after the submussion
of the return

Taxes refunded - these are taxes that are refunded by govermnments
to ABG These mostly comprisc the following

Indurect taxes (mamly VAT and fuel levies) - typically, indwrect taxes
would tend to become repayable and are repaid by governments regularly
{often quarterly) throughout the year, shortly after the subrmission of
relevant sales tax returns Alse included are other refunds recerved.
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Shareholder enquiries

All enquiries concermng shareholdings including nonfication of
change of address or didend payments should be made to ABG's
registrars, Computershare Investor Services PLC, whose contact
details are as follows

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol

BS99 6ZZ

Helphne number +44 (0) 870 707 1895

Computershare online enquiry service

Computershare provides a range of services through its online
portal, Investor Centre, which can be accessed free of charge at
www investorcentre co uk. This service enables shareholders to check
details of their shareholdings or dividends, download forms to noufy
changes in personal details and access other relevant informatton

Payment of dividends

Detauls of dividends proposed 1n relfation to the year are contained

1n the Directors’ Report on page 71 Shareholders may elect to receve
payment of the 2012 final dwdend and any future dindend in pounds
sterling directly to a Bank or Buwlding Society account Payments of
amounts m US dellars shall be made by cheque and sent by post to
shareholders regestered addresses on 24 May 2013 Any shareholders
who elect to receive a dividend 1n pounds sterling but who do not provide
a direct credit mandate wall recerve their dmadend by cheque, which wall
be sent to shareholders registered addresses on 24 May 2013

If you wish w recerve the 2012 final dividend and any future dividend

by direct credit and have not already made a payment election, please
request a dividend mandate form frorm the shareholder helpline and returmn
1t to Computershare at the address above by no later than 7 May 2013
Alternatively, direct credit mandate instructions can be updated online at
www Investorcentre co uk

Currency Election forms can be returned using the pre-paid envelope
provided wath the matenals accompanying thus report. Electtons made
after 7 May 2013 will be applied to subsequent divtdends only

Should you have any queries relating to the payment of
drnidends, please call Computershare’s shareholder helpline
on +44 {0) 870 707 1895

160 wwwafncanbarrckgold.com

Electronic communications

ABG has obtained shareholders’ consent to send and supply documents
and information to shareholders in electronuc form and via ABG's website,
m accordance with provisions contaned in ABG's articles of association

Increased use of electronic commurucations will deliver additional savings
to ABG 1n terms of admunistration, printing and postage costs, as well as
speeding up the pronision of mformation to shareholders The reduced use
of paper will also have environmental benefits

Shareholder secunty

Sharcholders should be cautious of any unsohated financial advice,
offers to buy shares at a discount or any other unsohated adwice regarding
investment matters More detaled information can be provided at

www moneymadeclear fsa.gov uk.

Financial calendar

Financial year end 31 December 2012
Preluminary results for 2012 13 February 2013
Annual General Meeting 18 April 2013
Quarterly results Q1 2013 18 Apnl 2013
Payment date for 2012 final dividend 24 May 2013
Half year report 2013 July 2013
Quarterly results Q3 2013 QOctober 2013
Quarterly results Q4 2013 January 2014
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Contact details

ABG offices

Regstered office

African Barnick Gold ple
6 St James’s Place
London SWIA INP
United Kingdom

Regstered number 7123187

Business address

5th Floor

No 1 Cavendish Place
London W1G 0QF
United Kingdom

Johannesburg office

2nd Floor

Bedfurd Square Oflices Swite
Bedford Gardens
Bedfordview

2007

South Afnca

Dar Es Salaam office

Plot 1736, Hamza Az1z Road,
Msasani Perunsula,

PO Box 1081, Dar es Salaam,
Tanzanma
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Contacts

ABG Investor Relations

Andrew Wray, Head of Corporate Development
and Investor Relations

Phone- +44 (0) 207 129 7150

E-mall awray@alnicanbarrickgold com

Giles Blackham

Investor Relations Manager

Phone +44 (0) 207 129 7150

E-mal ghlackham@africanbarnckgold.com

ABG Registrars

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavihons

Bridgwater Road

Bnistol BS99 6272

Unsted Kangdom

ARG Corporate Brokers

J P Morgan Securities Ltd
25 Bank Street

Canary Wharf

London E14 5}P

Unated Kingdom

RBC Capnal Markets
Thames Court

One Queenhithe
London EC4V 4DE
United Kingdom

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1 Embankment Place
London WC2N 6RH

United Kingdom

Legal Advisers

Shearman & Sterling LLP
Broadgate West

9 Appold Street

London EC2A 2AP
United Kingdom

Additional mformation

Additional mformation regarding
ABG can be found on the website

www afnicanbarnckgold com



